
** Revised **

CITY OF CARSON
HOUSING AUTHORITY/
SUCCESSOR AGENCY/
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY/
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor

Jawane Hilton, Mayor Pro Tem and District 1 Councilmember  Cedric L. Hicks, Sr., District 3 Councilmember

Jim Dear, District 2 Councilmember  Arleen Bocatija Rojas, District 4 Councilmember

Dr. Khaleah Bradshaw, City Clerk Monica Cooper, City Treasurer

“In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability related modification
or accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please call the
City Clerk’s office at 310-952-1720 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.” (Government Code Section 54954.2)
 

Treat everyone courteously
Listen to others respectfully
Exercise self-control
Give open-minded consideration to all viewpoints
Focus on the issues and avoid personalizing debate
Embrace respectful disagreement and dissent as democratic rights that are inherent components of an inclusive
public process and tools for forging sound decisions

RULES OF DECORUM:

1. No person attending a Public Meeting shall engage in disorderly or boisterous conduct, including but not limited to
applause, whistling, stamping of feet, booing, or making any loud, threatening, profane, abusive, personal,
impertinent, or slanderous utterance-that disturbs, disrupts, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the
meeting.

2. All remarks by members of the public shall be addressed to the Mayor or the Chair and not to any other member of
the public or to any single Council, Board or Commission Member unless in response to a question from that
Member.

3. Signs, placards, banners, or other similar items shall not be permitted in the audience during a Public Meeting if
the presence of such item disturbs, disrupts or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting.

4. All persons attending a Public Meeting shall remain seated in the seats provided, unless addressing the body at
the podium or entering or leaving the meeting.

5. All persons attending a Public Meeting shall obey any lawful order of the Presiding Officer to enforce the Rules of
Decorum.

 

PUBLIC INFORMATION

The public may address the members of the City Council on any matters within the jurisdiction of the City
Council or on any items on the agenda of the City Council during the designated public comment periods.
There will be two Oral Communication sessions: one for Agendized Items (comment about items ON the
agenda) and the other for non-Agendized items (comment about items NOT on the Agenda). The Oral
Communications portion of the agenda is limited to a duration of one hour unless otherwise approved by the
City Council. Comment time is normally 3 minutes depending on the number of speakers.

PUBLIC VIEWING AVAILABLE BY:

Livestream  on  the  City’s  website:  The  meeting  will  be  streamed  live  over  the i n t e r n e t  v i a :  w w w
. c a r s o n c a . g o v  o r  o n  Y o u t u b e : www.youtube.com/c/CityofCarsonCaliforniaOfficialYouTubePage

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2024
701 East Carson Street

City Hall

5:00 PM

http://www.youtube.com/c/CityofCarsonCaliforniaOfficialYouTubePage


Cable TV: Spectrum (Channel 35) and ATT (Channel 99)

IF YOU ARE NOT ABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN-PERSON, PUBLIC COMMENTS CAN BE SUBMITTED
BEFORE THE MEETING AT/VIA:

Email: Public comments can be emailed to cityclerk@carsonca.gov. The cut-off time to submit any email
communications is 3:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Written: Written comments can be dropped off at the City Clerk’s Office or in the white box outside City Hall.
The cut-off time to submit any written communications is 3:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting. Written
comments dropped off at the City Clerk’s Office or at the white box or any email received will not be read
aloud at Council Meeting but will be circulated to the City Council and incorporated into the record.

CALL TO ORDER: CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/HOUSING AUTHORITY (5:00 pm)

ROLL CALL (CITY CLERK)

FLAG SALUTE

INVOCATION

1. PASTOR MICHAELLA AGAG FROM PENTECOSTAL MISSIONAL CHURCH OF CHRIST (4th Watch)

CLOSED SESSION (Items 2 - 4)

REPORT ON ANY PUBLIC COMMENTS ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (CITY CLERK)

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (CITY ATTORNEY)

RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION UNTIL 6:00 P.M. OR UNTIL THE END OF CLOSED SESSION,
WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (CITY COUNCIL)

— A closed session will be held, pursuant to Government Code 54957.6, with City Manager,
Assistant City Manager, and Human Resources Officer, its negotiators(s), regarding labor
negotiations with AME, CPSA, and, AFSCME Local 809 and 1017 as well as Unclassified
Management.

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION (CITY COUNCIL)

— A closed session will be held, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1), to confer
with legal counsel regarding pending litigation to which the City of Carson is a party. The title
of such litigation is as follows: CAM-Carson, LLC v. Carson Reclamation Authority, City of Carson
and Successor Agency to the Carson Redevelopment Agency, Los Angeles Superior Court Case
No. 20STCV16461.

4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION (CITY COUNCIL)

— A closed session will be held, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) or (d)(3)
and (e)(1), because there is a significant exposure to litigation in 5 case(s)

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AT 6:00 P.M. OR AT THE END OF CLOSED SESSION, WHICHEVER
OCCURS FIRST

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS (CITY ATTORNEY)

mailto:cityclerk@carsonca.gov


INTRODUCTIONS (MAYOR)

5. REPORT FROM CAPTAIN NORMAN OF CARSON SHERIFF'S STATION

PRESENTATIONS

6. UPDATE FROM VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMISSION

7. UPDATE FROM YOUTH COMMISSION

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FOR MATTERS LISTED ON THE AGENDA (MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC) (LIMITED
TO ONE HOUR)

The public may address the members of the City Council/Housing
Authority/Successor Agency on any matters within the jurisdiction of the City Council/Housing
Authority/Successor Agency or on any items on the agenda of the City Council/Housing
Authority/Successor Agency, other than closed session matters, prior to any action taken on the
agenda. Speakers are limited to no morethan three minutes, speaking once. Oral communications
will be limited to one (1) hour unless extended by order of the Mayor with approval of the City
Council.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

8. APPROVAL OF THE CARSON CITY COUNCIL-SUCCESSOR AGENCY-HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 6, 2024 MINUTES (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— APPROVE the minutes as listed.

CONSENT (Items 9 - 22)

ANY ITEM OR ITEMS MAY BE REMOVED FOR DISCUSSION

These items are considered to be routine items of business and have, therefore, been placed on the
CONSENT CALENDAR. For items remaining on the CONSENT CALENDAR, a single motion to ADOPT
the recommended action is in order.

9. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-109, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARSON RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $841,207.34, DEMAND
CHECK NUMBERS 175963 THROUGH 176069 FOR GENERAL DEMAND AND THE AMOUNT OF
$5,795.00, CHECK NUMBERS 1287 THROUGH 1287 FOR CO-OP AGREEMENT DEMANDS (CITY
COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 24-109, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF
$841,207.34, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS 175693 THROUGH 176069 FOR GENERAL DEMAND
AND THE AMOUNT OF $5,795.00, CHECK NUMBERS 1287 THROUGH 1287 FOR CO-OP
AGREEMENT DEMANDS".



10. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-11-CHA, A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON HOUSING
AUTHORITY RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $43,412.55, DEMAND CHECK
NUMBERS HA-002014 THROUGH HA-002018 (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 24-11-CHA, "A RESOLUTION OF THE
CARSON HOUSING AUTHORITY RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF
$43,412.55, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS HA-002014 THROUGH HA-002018".

11. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-11-CSA, A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON
SUCCESSOR AGENCY CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,890.00, DEMAND CHECK
NUMBERS SA-001936 THROUGH SA-001936 (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution NO. 24-11-CSA, "A RESOLUTION OF THE
CARSON SUCCESSOR AGENCY CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,890.00, DEMAND
CHECK NUMBERS SA-001936 THROUGH SA-001936".

12. CONSIDER A REPORT ON ALL INTRADEPARTMENTAL BUDGET TRANSFERS APPROVED UNDER
THE CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE AUTHORITY FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2024 PER
ORDINANCE 24-2401 (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. RECEIVE and FILE this information. 

13. CONSIDER A REPORT OF ALL CITY CONTRACTS APPROVED UNDER CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE
AUTHORITY FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2024 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2024 PURSUANT TO CMC
SECTION 2607 (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. RECEIVE and FILE this information. 

14. CONSIDER APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOS ANGELES COUNTY
METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY FOR PROPOSITION A DISCRETIONARY INCENTIVE
GRANT PROGRAM FUNDING (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. APPROVE the “Proposition A Discretionary Incentive Grant Program Memorandum of
Understanding for Collecting and Reporting Data for the National Transit Database for Report
Year 2022” between the City of Carson and Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority (Exhibit No. 1. “LACMTA MOU”); and

— 2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute the LACMTA MOU, following approval as to form by the
City Attorney.

15. CONSIDER APPROVING A CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MERCHANT LANDSCAPE
SERVICES, INC., TO LASER LEVEL THE BASEBALL DIAMOND INFIELDS AT CARSON, DOLPHIN, AND
DOMINGUEZ PARKS (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. APPROVE the proposed Contract Services Agreement between the City of Carson and
Merchant Landscape Services, Inc., to provide laser leveling services for the baseball fields at
Carson, Dominguez and Dolphin Parks for a not-to-exceed Contract Sum of $97,840.00.

— 2. AUTHORIZE the City Manager to execute the Agreement following approval as to form by
the City Attorney.



16. CONSIDER AWARDING A CONTRACT TO DON'S AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES TO PROVIDE
AUDIOVISUAL SERVICES AT THE CARSON EVENT CENTER (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. AWARD and APPROVE the Contract Services Agreement between the City and Donald Alan
Sprague dba Don’s Audio Visual Services

— 2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute the Contract Services Agreement between the City and
Donald Alan Sprague dba Don’s Audio Visual Services following approval as to form by the City
Attorney

17. **REVISED** CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-103, AMENDING THE JOB
SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER POSITION (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT the following Resolution No. 24-103, "A RESOLUTION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE JOB
CLASSIFICATION OF THE ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER."

18. **REVISED** CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE
MAINTENANCE CONTRACT WITH LOS ANGELES COUNTY CONSERVATION CORPS, FOR WEED
ABATEMENT, REMOVAL OF MISCELLANEOUS DEBRIS, WITHIN THE CITY'S RIGHT OF WAY (CITY
COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. APPROVE Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for Contract Services by and between the
City of Carson and Los Angeles County Conservation Corps to extend the term of the
agreement by one year and increase the contract sum by $433,379.89 such that the total cost
of the Contract Agreement does not exceed $866,759.78.

— 2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute the amendment after approval as to form by the City
Attorney.

19. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY FOR FIXED-ROUTE BUS
SERVICES BY ONE ADDITIONAL YEAR (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. APPROVE proposed Amendment No. 2 to the Contract Services Agreement between the
City of Carson and Long Beach Public Transportation Company (Exhibit No. 1; “Amendment No.
2”).

— 2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2, following approval as to form by the
City Attorney.

20. CONSIDER APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CONTRACT SERVICES AGREMENT WITH
LIGHTHOUSE4KIDS, INC. (FORMERLY, THE LIGHTHOUSE-HOME FOR MEDICALLY FRAGILE CHILDREN)
(CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. APPROVE the proposed Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement (Exhibit No. 1; “Amendment
No. 1”); and

— 2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2, following approval as to form by the
City Attorney.



21. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CHARGEPOINT AGREEMENT AND A PURCHASE ORDER TO
CHARGEPOINT FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY EQUIPMENT AND NETWORK SERVICES (CITY
COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. APPROVE the ChargePoint Quotation and AUTHORIZE the City Manager to execute the
Quotation subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney.

— 2. APPROVE the ChargePoint Master Services and Subscription Agreement incorporated by
reference into the Quotation.

— 3. APPROVE ChargePoint Terms and Conditions of Purchase incorporated by reference into
the Quotation.

— 4. APPROVE ChargePoint Support Services Terms and Conditions incorporated by reference
into the Quotation.

— 5. APPROVE ChargePoint Installation, Commissioning, and Activation Scope and Terms
incorporated by reference into the Quotation.

— 6. APPROVE ChargePoint Terms of Services for ChargePoint Accounts.

— 7. AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Manager to issue a Purchase Order to ChargePoint in an
amount not to exceed $100,000.00.

22. CONSIDER ISSUING THE "10-DAY REPORT" PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
65858(D) REGARDING INTERIM URGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U, WHICH ESTABLISHED A
TEMPORARY 45-DAY MORATORIUM ON ACCEPTANCE, PROCESSING AND CONSIDERATION OF
APPLICATIONS AND APPROVAL AND ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND ENTITLEMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL
OR INDUSTRIAL REDEVELOPMENT AND SUBSEQUENT USE OF CURRENT OIL REFINERY SITES WITHIN
THE CITY OF CARSON FOLLOWING CESSATION OF REFINERY OPERATIONS (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. TAKE the following action: ISSUE the "10-Day Report on Interim Ordinance No. 24-2414U”
(Exhibit No. 2).

SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY (Item 23)

Public testimony is restricted to three minutes per speaker, speaking once (excepting applicants
who are afforded a right of rebuttal, if desired), unless
extended by order of the Mayor with the approval of the City Council.



23. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 24-108 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $22,000,000
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY’S TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR
TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING, REFINANCING AND/OR REIMBURSING
THE COST OF ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT, REHABILITATION, EQUIPPING AND
FURNISHING OF FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF AIDS HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION AND/OR A
SUCCESSOR OR RELATED ENTITY (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. OPEN the public hearing, TAKE public testimony, and accept any written and/or oral
communications, and CLOSE the public hearing.

— 2. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 24-108, "A RESOLUTION 24-108 OF THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO
EXCEED $22,000,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY’S
TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING,
REFINANCING AND/OR REIMBURSING THE COST OF ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION,
IMPROVEMENT, REHABILITATION, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING OF FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT
OF AIDS HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION AND/OR A SUCCESSOR OR RELATED ENTITY."

DISCUSSION (Item 24 - 25)

24. CONSIDER FOR INTRODUCTION ORDINANCE NO. 24-2415, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES
FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 (THE BOULEVARDS AT SOUTH BAY-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS) OF
THE CITY OF CARSON, AUTHORIZING THE CESSATION OF THE LEVY RELATED SPECIAL TAXES AND
THE EXTINGUISHMENT AND CANCELLATION OF ALL RELATED LIENS" (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. ACTING AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2012-2,
WAIVE FURTHER READING AND INTRODUCE ORDINANCE NO. 2415, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMUNITY
FACILITIES FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 (THE BOULEVARDS AT SOUTH BAY-CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS) OF THE CITY OF CARSON, AUTHORIZING THE CESSATION OF THE LEVY
RELATED SPECIAL TAXES AND THE EXTINGUISHMENT AND CANCELLATION OF ALL RELATED
LIENS"

— 2. DIRECT STAFF TO RECORD "NOTICE OF CESSATION OF SPECIAL TAX UNDER COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 OF THE CITY OF CARSON " AGAINST THE PROPERTY

25. CONSIDERATION OF ONLY LOCAL UNCONTESTED APPOINTMENTS TO THE CITY’S COMMISSIONS,
COMMITTEES, AND BOARDS, AND CITY AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS BY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
AND CONSIDER ALL (CONTESTED AND UNCONTESTED) APPOINTMENTS TO ALL COMMISSIONS
EXCEPT PLANNING COMMISSION AND ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. CONSIDER and only APPOINT uncontested members to the City Commissions,
Committees, and Boards;

— 2. CONSIDER and APPOINT all (contested and uncontested) members to all commissions
except Planning Commission and Environmental Commission;

— 3. CONSIDER and APPOINT members to City Affiliated Organizations;

— 4. DIRECT the City Clerk to notify all affected appointments of this action in writing;

— 5. IF APPLICABLE, DIRECT the City Clerk to post and publish in accordance with the Maddy
Act



ORDINANCE SECOND READING (Item 26)

26. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 24-2413, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 6340 (LIMITED EXEMPTIONS) OF PART 2
(LICENSES – PROVISIONS GOVERNING) OF CHAPTER 3 (BUSINESS, PROFESSIONS AND TRADES) OF
ARTICLE VI (TAXES AND LICENSES) OF THE CARSON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD A VETERAN’S
LICENSE EXEMPTION CONSISTENT WITH STATE LAW" (CITY COUNCIL)
RECOMMENDED ACTION

— 1. CONDUCT a Second Reading by title only and with full reading waived, and ADOPT,
Ordinance No. 24-2413, entitled “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CARSON, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 6340 (LIMITED EXEMPTIONS) OF PART 2 (LICENSES
– PROVISIONS GOVERNING) OF CHAPTER 3 (BUSINESS, PROFESSIONS AND TRADES) OF
ARTICLE VI (TAXES AND LICENSES) OF THE CARSON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD A VETERAN’S
LICENSE EXEMPTION CONSISTENT WITH STATE LAW"

MEMORIAL ADJOURNMENTS

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FOR MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA (MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC)

The public may at this time address the members of the City Council/Housing
Authority/Successor Agency on any matters within the jurisdiction of the City
Council/Housing Authority/Successor Agency. No action may be taken on non-agendized items
except as authorized by law. Speakers are requested to limit their comments to no more than three
minutes each, speaking once.

COUNCIL MEMBER REQUESTS TO ADD ITEMS TO FUTURE AGENDAS

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (COUNCIL MEMBERS)

ANNOUNCEMENT OF UNFINISHED OR CONTINUED CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (AS NECESSARY)

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

REPORT OF ACTIONS ON UNFINISHED OR CONTINUED CLOSED SESSION ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT

Date Posted: November 19, 2024



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to City Council, Successor Agency, and
Housing Authority
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 8.
 

To:                  City Council, Successor Agency, and Housing Authority
 
From:             Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk  CCO  Administration
 
Subject:          APPROVAL OF THE CARSON CITY COUNCIL-SUCCESSOR AGENCY-HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 6, 2024 MINUTES (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

The City Clerk’s Office is seeking approval of the following minutes:

Wednesday, November 6, 2024 (Regular)

II. RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE the minutes as listed.

III. ALTERNATIVES

 
None.

 

IV. BACKGROUND

 
None.

 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

 
None.

 

VI. EXHIBITS

1.    Minutes, November 6, 2024 (Regular)

Prepared by: Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk and Joy Simarago, Deputy City Clerk

 

 

701 East Carson Street



 

Attachments

Draft Minutes - CC Reg Mtg 11-06-2024.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d2eeda622140054f0eb07%2FDraft%20Minutes%20-%20CC%20Reg%20Mtg%2011-06-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ff754d00-1019-46c2-acf9-5caca194ec2d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d2eeda622140054f0eb07%2FDraft%20Minutes%20-%20CC%20Reg%20Mtg%2011-06-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ff754d00-1019-46c2-acf9-5caca194ec2d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d2eeda622140054f0eb07%2FDraft%20Minutes%20-%20CC%20Reg%20Mtg%2011-06-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ff754d00-1019-46c2-acf9-5caca194ec2d


�����������	
��������
��������������
���

�	������������
��������	����	����	���������������	�������������������  �!"�"#$%#&��'!(��")*�' +,)��%,,"#��-%*�(+."),'*-��)!."#'!(�/0&11�234567�8779:;<�=>?�@>AA7B�9C�CDB7D�>9�EFGG�HIJI�KL�J>LCDMN<7;@L�O6>:D8>;MNP96CD:9L�O6>:D8>;�QPA>R>S:?TUCA87?�:;�967�U7A7;�V>=><C7�OCP;@:A�O6>8K7D?W�O>D?C;�O:9L�U>AAW�AC@>97B�>9�XGY�ZI�O>D?C;[9D779W�O>D?C;W�O>A:\CD;:>�]GX̂EI#"  ���  �/�'!(�� %#_4O:9L�OA7D̀MN<7;@L�[7@D79>DLMNP96CD:9L�[7@D79>DLW�RDI�V6>A7>6�VI�aD>B?6>=�;C97B�967�DCAAFOCP;@:A�J78K7D?MN<7;@L�J78K7D?MNP96CD:9L�aC>DB�J78K7D?�HD7?7;9FJ>LCDMN<7;@L�O6>:D8>;MNP96CD:9L�O6>:D8>;�QPA>�R>S:?TUCA87?W�OCP;@:A�J78K7DMN<7;@LJ78K7DMNP96CD:9L�aC>DB�J78K7D�O7BD:@�U:@̀?W�>;B�OCP;@:A�J78K7DMN<7;@L�J78K7DMNP96CD:9LaC>DB�J78K7D�NDA77;�bCc>?OCP;@:A�J78K7D?MN<7;@L�J78K7D?MNP96CD:9L�aC>DB�J78K7D?�NK?7;9FJ>LCD�HDC�578dCD7MN<7;@L�e:@7�O6>:D8>;MNP96CD:9L�e:@7�O6>:D8>;W�RDI�f>=>;7�U:A9C;�gZ;97D7B�>9EFGh�HIJIi�>;B�OCP;@:A�J78K7DMN<7;@L�J78K7DMNP96CD:9L�aC>DB�J78K7D�R7>D�gZ;97D7B�>9�EFGEHIJIijklm�noplpqrsJC;:@>�OCCd7DW�O:9LMN<7;@LMNP96CD:9L�5D7>?PD7Dt�R>S:B�OI�bCK7D9?W�fDIW�O:9L�J>;><7Dt�[P;;L�[CA9>;:WO:9LMN<7;@LMNP96CD:9L�N99CD;7Lt�fC6;�b>L8C;BW�N??:?9>;9�O:9L�J>;><7Dt�RDI�bCK7D9�Q7;;CuWN??:?9>;9�O:9L�J>;><7Dt�J:@6>7A�v6:99:̀7DW�fDIW�R:D7@9CD�C\�OC88P;:9L�[7DS:@7?t�RDI�NDA:;<9C;



��������	
������	��	������	������	����	������	
������	��	����������	����������	���	���������������	 ���������	
������	��	!�������	 ���	"�������#�	
������	��	$����	����������	%���	�������
������	��	������	������	���	����	&�������	'�����	������������	(������)*+,	-+*./01����	���	���2���34�����	5���	��������34������	5���	���������	
�6	$����	���	��	������	��4���������6789:;+/7:8	<7=>?	@ABC	DEFGHI	JKLHIKF	MNLLKI	OIHP	QKLRKSKIF	TRUGHIV	WXGKIXEGRHXEL	YZNIUZ[	\]̂\	_̀�����	
������	1�����	��a�	��	��a������6;*:-0b	-0--7:8	<7=>?c	d	e	fAg0h:g/	:8	+8i	h.j*7;	;:kk08/-	:8	;*:-0b	-0--7:8	7/0k-	<;7/i	;*0glA%���6+88:.8;0k08/	:)	;*:-0b	-0--7:8	7/0k-	<;7/i	+//:g80iA���34�����34������	������	���������	��	������	�������	����6g0;0--	78/:	;*:-0b	-0--7:8	.8/7*	mnoo	hpkp	:g	.8/7*	/q0	08b	:)	;*:-0b	-0--7:8rsq7;q090g	:;;.g-	)7g-/���	������	t��	��������	�	uvwx	�616	��	1����34�����	��������34������	��������	
�a��y$�����6zC	Y{|}~�~|Y~	�W��	��Q{�	|~�{�W��{�	�YW��	Y{�|YW��[	�]̂�	_̀�	4	������	�������	t���	��	�����	2������	�	��a������	����	u��u�6x�	t��	���	1�������4������	���	1�������	���	$����	���������	(�������	��	����������	���������	���������������	t��	41'�	���4�	���	4!��1'	�����	�w�	���	�w��	��	t���	��	������������1��������64���(%v	%�	��2������	�����	t��	����6�C	Y{|}~�~|Y~	�W��	�~���	Y{�|�~�	�	~�W��W|�	�W�W���W{|	�YW��	Y{�|YW��[	�]̂�	_̀�	4	������	�������	t���	��	�����	2������	�	��a������	����	������	u��ux6��������	�	������t��	�����	�������	���������	2������	��������	�	t����	��	���	��	������	��	�	2���6	���	���	������	��������	��	��	�����t�v	�41y�������	���	a6	������	����������	4�������	���	��	������	���



����������	
������������������������������	
����������	�
��������������������������������� !"! �	��#$�%�#�������&�'�����������������()�*+,-./.,*.�0123�4.564�*+7,8.4�9�6,21*1:62.;�41215621+,�<*12=�*+7,*14>?�@ABC�DEF�	����������������'����G������������������H���������������������I"JI!�JK�LK�L����K�LK&L����K�LK L��G�������������������
��M������N������������
��������M����������	��#$�%����������G���������'����O���PQRSTUQTQ�VS�SWQT�XQXXYST�ZV�[\]]�Ŵ_ �̂SP�ZV�V̀ Q�QTa�Sb�RcSXQa�XQXXYSTde ỲR̀ QUQP�SRRfPX�bYPXV���������
�'����������������!%�g�h�i��G��i����j	
�������������j	����������������k����lm������PQWSPV�ST�RcSXQa�XQXXYST�ZRVYSTX�nRYVo�ZVVSPTQop���j	
����j	�������	����������������������������������������������YTVPSafRVYSTX�n_ZoSPp�nYqrst�u�v�[pw)�/.:+/2�-/+x�*6:261,�,+/x6,�+-�*6/8+,�83./1--y8�82621+,?�@ABz�DE���������������������{��������������'���M�����������������i����j	
�������������j	����������������k����lm��������O������������������M����������������G����M���������������|����������G��������������������M�����������������i����j	
�������������j	����������������k����lm�������������������'�������GG����������}������������������������O��'��G�������������������'�������O��������������'��O�'���������i���
���������������������������������������G������M����������������
����������G�M�������~���G��O���
���M������������������������������������MM��������M��������������������������������������
���G���
������'����������MM|���MM����������������O������������������������������������
�'�����������G����M����������)�/.:+/2�-/+x�6881826,2�*31.-��6,.�+-�4+8�6,5.4.8�*+7,2=�-1/.�?�@A���DE����������WPQXQTVZVYSTX�nYqrst���v���p



���������	
������	
����������	
����
�������	������������������ !"�� �#���$"�%&!"%�'!�("� )*� �%�+�,!"�-�#./01!*2�/3�+�,!"�4"!�5�26!"�3�-"7�1.* !�3���%8!)�'.*�+�29�"�1.':/�!�� ;�."�"�0�*�' .!�/7���� !"�$"�%&!"%�/ � �%�;��./�.��!&&.'��"�6"�/�� .�(� ;��<= ;����� ��-./ ".' �&!"� ;����> �?=�%�,/ ;���;./� �"2�@.**��>6."����%� ;./�./�;./�&.��*�*�(./*� .#��)6%� �7�1�� ;��:�%� ;��+�,!"���%�8. ,8!)�'.*�!�� ;�."� "�2��%!)/�*��%�"/;.6���%�!) / ��%.�(�6�" ��"/;.6�!#�"� ;��*�/ ��.(; �,��"/75;��*�(./*� .#��)6%� ��@�/�6"!#.%�%�.��@". .�(�@;.';�@.**�9���%%�%� !� ;��2.�) �/���%�;�"%�'!6,6�':� 71��.� "!%)'�%�A=�2��/)"�/� ;./�,��"3��.���!&�@;.';�@�"��/.(��%�.� !�*�@���%�6"�/�� �%� ;����� ��$.**/�B�$C��/�&!**!@/D�$�AEF=�0�8!�/)2�"�4"! �' .!�/�&!"�G#�"%"�& �H��/�$�AE=I�0�8����9./�5�>�$�AAEI�0�8����9./�J.'��/.�(�$�A<KL�0�8"�� .�(� ;��%�/.(�� .!��!&�$*�':0��"#.�(�M�/ . ) .!�/�&!"�;."��*��"�.�(�&!"�'!22)�. ,'!**�(�/3�)�.#�"/. .�/3���%�8�*.&!"�.��/ � ��)�.#�"/. .�/�$�AA<E�0�N>6��%.�(�N�"!**2�� �.�� ;��H�2.*,�N*�' ".'�O� ��P//./ ��'��4"!("�2�$�AAFF�0�N�;��'.�(�Q .*. ,��)66*.�"�-.#�"/. ,�$�A<FA�0�$.!2� ".'�M%�� .&.'� .!��&!"�P*'!;!*�4)"';�/�/�BM� ). �-!2�C�$�I?K�0�8"�%. �O�6!" .�(�&!"�J!@0M�'!2��1!)/�;!*%/�B"�2!#�/� ;��/)�/� �&"!2��$�AA=FC1��.� "!%)'�%�&.#��6.�'�/�!&�"�6�"� .!�/�*�(./*� .!�� ;./�,��"7�Q�&!" )�� �*,3��!���@�"��/.(��%�9, ;��R!#�"�!"���%�6"�/�� �%���&�@��/�&!**!@/D�$�AKE<�0�8�*.&!"�.��P2�".'���H"��%2���P&&�."/�P(��',�$�A<<A�0�5;��H)�%�&!"�O�6�"� .!�/���%�O�/ !"� .#��S)/ .'��$�AE=E�0�O� )"�.�(�6"!6�" ,�&"!2�.�%.#.%)�*/�@;!�;�%�"�'.�**,�2! .#� �%� �:��� ;"!)(;��2.��� %!2�.�1�����!)�'�%� ;��P��)�*�5)":�,�R.#��@�,�@.**�9��;�*%�!��T!#�29�"�??3�?E?K3�� �N*�8�2.�!8!**�(��'!22��'.�(�� �AEDEE�P7+7



��������	��
���
������
�������������
����������������
�������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������
� ������ ���
�����������������������������!���������������!�����������������������"���������������"���������������������!��#$�����������
���������	��
���
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������%&�'()*+,-,./)0�(1*)20/3/02�4-,++�564/0144�4,.6(7,8�90):�;<=�>�?@AB�CDE�����������
���������������������F�
������������������������	�� �����G�
���H��������
���������� �����������������
�� ���
�����IG��������������������������!����������
���������������������
�������
����
������������
��J&�'()*+,-,./)0�(1*)20/3/02�0):1-51(�,4�0,./)0,+�'(1-,.6(/.8�,K,(0144-)0.L�>�?@MN�CD��������������"�������������"����������	���
��������$�������
��������������������
�����������O����G���	������������ �P���������!�
��������������������
������
�������������
����������������������������������������������Q<&�'()*+,-,./)0�(1*)20/3/02�0):1-51(�,4�/07/210)64�'1)'+1�-)0.L>�?@BR�CDP����S����T����������

�����
�QQ&�'()*+,-,./)0�(1*)20/3/02�0):1-51(�,4�7/,51.14�,K,(0144�-)0.L>�?@BU�CDP����S��������������
�������P����S���V�������G���E������"�������W������������"����������W������������ �����$���������
�������������������
���������
����X�������������������
����
������������
��QY&�(1*)20/3/02�.L1�*/.8�)Z�*,(4)0�51/02�0)-/0,.17�,4�,�Y<Y[�Z/0,+/4.�Z)(�.L1-)4.�564/0144\Z(/107+8�*/.8�,K,(7�58�.L1�+)4�,021+14�*)60.8�1*)0)-/*71:1+)'-10.�*)(')(,./)0>�?@B?�CD�����"���������������"���������������������!��#$������������
����������������������������������������
���������
��������������
�S��������������
������������
����������



��������	
���
	����������������
������������
	�����
��������������	����
��
�������������
�����
�����
	������������� !" �#$%&'()*�+&,�-./0+1&+21310*�45516'(�7'+0+�8.36/+(�955'(',�69::'&0/�(')+(,1&)�0;'�+<+(,�+&,=('/'&0',�+�>1,'9�5(9:�0;'�?'+).'�95�@+3159(&1+�@101'/�@9&5'('&6'�0;+0�<+/�;'3,�'+(31'(�1&-'=0':2'(A�B+*9(CD)'&6*�@;+1(:+&CD.0;9(10*�@;+1(:+&�E+>1/FG93:'/�0;+&H',�/0+55�59(�0;'1(<9(HAIJKL�MINNOPQMKRQIPS�TIJ�NKRRUJS�LQSRUV�IP�RWU�KXUPVK�YNUNZUJS�IT�RWU[OZLQM\�YLQNQRUV�RI�IPU�WIOJ\%>+&�D001=9'�5(9:�]99)3'�̂.2316�-'609(�F�_0':�̀9A�abG1);31);0',�;1/�0;9.);0/�9&�0;'�=+(0&'(/;1=�<10;�@+(/9&�0;./�5+(AK[[JIcKL�IT�NQPORUS�YQdefg�hi�j�hk\������������������������
��������
���l�����������	�
��l�����
	����������������mn��������
����o�������
���p��q!rs�#$7%@4BB%̀E%E�D@t_4̀ u�D̂ 7̂4v%�0;'�:1&.0'/�+/�31/0',Awxyzx{�yx�|}}~x�������zyy���������~z������z�����~�����x{��������z�����~�~����yz{��z{�����������m����������������������
�
	������������	���������
��������
���l����������	�
��l�����
	�����������
����o�������
���p��q!�r�#$7%@4BB%̀E%E�D@t_4̀ u�D̂ 7̂4v%�0;'�:1&.0'/�+/�31/0',A_0':�̀9A�b��<+/�;'+(,�+50'(�_0':�̀9A�abAwxyzx{�yx�|}}~x�������zyy�������z�����~����x{����������~z������z�����~��~����yz{��z{����������MIPSUPR�YQdefg�h��j��k\@9.&613�B':2'(CD)'&6*�B':2'(CD.0;9(10*��9+(,�B':2'(�G16H/�('�.'/0',�09�(':9>'�_0':�̀9A�ab59(�,1/6.//19&A��� �¡����¢¢£�¤¥�¦§̈© ��¥ª�̈«�¬ ©��¥£�¦¥®�¡ª¥ª�̈«��£��¬̄ ¡¥�� °��¡�£¥¦§°� ¡±� ¡�ml�l�l�l�������
�����������
	���������
�
�����l��²n�����������
��������������
���������������������
�������
	���������
������
����
��������
����³²n���n�����²n����
��������
��������²mm�������	���²ḿ���o�������
���p��q!r"�#$



������������	�
��������	������������������������	���
���������������� !"#$%�&	���'�()
�����*�
+����
,��)���(��*�
+����
,��*��	�'����	
�*,��-��(	��'�	������	��'����
+��	��)�
��*.$%!/%!#�$%����	����+��0��)�1��'�$22#3�
+��)-+�$24/ �&	�
���5����6�����/�7����88��9��������������:;<�=>?@ABCD�C@EFGHA@IA?J�F�KLMNOOO�DCPFDB�Q>D�A?Q>DRFEA>?�HCFBA?J�E>�EICFDDC@E�F?B�=>?SA=EA>?�>Q�EI>@C�DC@T>?@AGHC�Q>D�EIC�BCFEI�>Q�=ICDA@C�U>I?@>?A?�EIC�=AEV�>Q�=FD@>?�W=AEV�=>X?=AHYZ�[\]̂�_̀������������	�
�����	���������������a����6���������. 2%###���7����	�
���5����6�����$�7����88��9��������������:b<�=>?@ABCD�FB>TEA?J�DC@>HXEA>?�?><�Lcd:OcN�FRC?BA?J�EIC�=HF@@AQA=FEA>?�@FHFDVDFEC�Q>D�EIC�GXBJCE�RF?FJCD�T>@AEA>?�W=AEV�=>X?=AHYZ�[\]̂�_̀������������	�
������	������������������������	���
���������������� !"#!%�e	���'�()
�����*�
+����
,��)���(��*�
+����
,��*��	�'��%��	(�*����	%�	������-�
+���(	''�*��	
����'	(	�,��	
�*���1)�-�
��	�	-���f	�
���5����6�����g�7����88��9��������������:h<�=>?@ABCD�F?�XTBFEC�>?�=AEV�=>RRA@@A>?@�W=AEV�=>X?=AHYZ�[\]̂�_̀������������	�
�����������������*�(���������8����	�
���5����6�����4�7����88��9��������������LO<�=>?@ABCD�F?�XTBFEC�>?�=AEV�TD>UC=E@�W=AEV�=>X?=AHYZ�[\]̂�_̀������������	�
�����������������*�(���������8����	�
���5����6����� #�7����88��9��������������



��������	
���	���������������������������������������
�����������������	���������	����������
����������	���	��	��������	����������	�����	��������	������ !�"#$$�%&'(�)*+�,'(-.'/�01-(�2-3+'3&45678859:5:�;6<=79>�?@�;AA47B5�C�DEFGHCDG�IJGK�=FLJMKG�ANOPJD�QRDGEHS�=FD@�TEH�UEEMPR�6PENV�APCGTEHW�LETGICHRPJDRFLRLS�JFDPNVJFM�LETGICHR�WCJFGRFCFDRS�CFV�LETGICHR�LNXXEHG�TEH�C�GEGCP�DEFGHCDG�CWENFG�FEG�GERYDRRV�Z[\]S[[̂@?_S�TEH�C�GRHW�ET�̂�̀RCHLa�CFV>�[@�;b<c74=d5�GKR�8C̀EH�GE�RYRDNGR�GKR�DEFGHCDG�CTGRH�CXXHEeCP�CL�GE�TEHW�Ò�GKR�6JG̀;GGEHFR̀@=GRW�9E@�[?�ICL�KRCHV�CTGRH�CXXHEeCP�ET�GKR�6EFLRFG�JGRWL@6ENFDJP�8RWORHf;MRFD̀�8RWORHf;NGKEHJG̀�gECHV�8RWORH�cJDhL�HRiNRLGRV�GE�HRWEeR�=GRW�9E@[?�TEH�VJLDNLLJEF@:JHRDGEH�ET�=FTEHWCGJEF�<RDKFEPEM̀�CFV�QRDNHJG̀�UCH̀�6CHGRH�MCeR�C�HRXEHG@�jkljm��j�nnojpq�rstulkkqv�tw��qvolx�����lxyr��o��rqxjmvqv�tw�
o��z{|{mq��l}kjm�oqrs}klm~�lm�����������������	
��������	������
������������������������
��������
�����
	���������������������	�������������
���	����	��������	����	���
��	������	��������
����������
���	��	���������	���������������������	����
�������
�����	���������������������������������	������
�����	����������������	�����	����������	�����	���	�������������	��������	������ ��"#45678859:5:�;6<=79>�?@�;AA47B5�;WRFVWRFG�9E@�[�GE�8RWEHCFVNW�ET�bFVRHLGCFVJFM�ORGIRRF�GKR�6JG̀�ET�6CHLEFCFV�6CPJTEHFJC�QGCGR�bFJeRHLJG̀S�:EWJFMNR��cJPPL��6Qb:c��GKCG�IJPP�RYXCFV�JGL�DEPPCOEHCGJEF�GEJFDPNVR�LGNVRFGL�CDHELL�CPP�XHEMHCWL�JF�GKR�6EPPRMR�ET�cRCPGKS�cNWCF�QRHeJDRLS�CFV�9NHLJFM@�>�[@�;b<c74=d5�GKR�8C̀EH�GE�RYRDNGR�;WRFVWRFG�9E@�[�GE�8RWEHCFVNW�ET�bFVRHLGCFVJFMORGIRRF�GKR�6JG̀�ET�6CHLEF�CFV�6CPJTEHFJC�QGCGR�bFJeRHLJG̀S�:EWJFMNR��cJPPL�TEPPEIJFM�CXXHEeCP�CLGE�TEHW�Ò�GKR�6JG̀�;GGEHFR̀@;6<=79��=GRW�9E@�[[�ICL�CXXHEeRV�EF�6EFLRFG@



��������	
�����������������������	�	��	������
����	������
������	��	�����
����	����������������	����	
����
������
	��������	������������	����	��������	�����������������������������������
� 	����������������	���������������!��������"#$%&��	�������������	��������������!����'�	�������������
�����������������	�����
(�����������������	���"$�)"����������	����	���	���������*��	��������	
��	����'�	��������	�(+�,-./�0123456637838�94:;57<�=>�9??25@3�?AB3�CDE�?EDFGHI�7D>�=JKLM�NOPQGEDR�AIEGGI�;STEDUGSGVI�?EDFGHI�HDUGEOVP�NOPQGEDRAIEGGI�CEDS�4REWDV�AIEGGI�ID�XDSOIR�YDQZGURE[><�\>�9]:̂52;_3�WIRCC�ID�R[UGEIOWG�ÌG�aDEb�RV[�HRZZ�CDE�HDVWIEQHIODV�cO[W�CDE�?EDFGHI�7D>�=JKLMNOPQGEDR�AIEGGI�;STEDUGSGVI�?EDFGHId�HDUGEOVP�NOPQGEDR�AIEGGI�CEDS�4REWDV�AIEGGI�ID�XDSOIRYDQZGURE[><�e>�69f3�ÌG�4RZOCDEVOR�3VUOEDVSGVIRZ�gQRZOIh�9HI�COV[OVP�ÌRI�ÌG�TEDTDWG[�CDE�?EDFGHI�7D>=JKLM�NOPQGEDR�AIEGGI�;STEDUGSGVI�?EDFGHId�HDUGEOVP�NOPQGEDR�AIEGGI�CEDS�4REWDV�AIEGGI�ID�XDSOIRYDQZGURE[d�REG�HRIGPDEOHRZZh�GiGSTI�TQEWQRVI�ID�AGHIODV�=Kej=�DC�ÌG�4RZOCDEVOR�3VUOEDVSGVIRZgQRZOIh�9HI�PQO[GZOVGW><�k>�9]:̂52;_3�WIRCC�ID�EGHDE[�ÌG�l7DIOHG�DC�3iGSTIODVm�OV�ÌG�DCCOHG�DC�ÌG�XDW�9VPGZGW�4DQVIh4ZGEb�RV[�aOÌ�ÌG�AIRIG�4ZGREOVP�̂DQWG�RI�ÌG�nDUGEVDEoW�5CCOHG�DC�?ZRVVOVP�RV[�2GWGREH̀�CDE?EDFGHI�7D>�=JKLM�NOPQGEDR�AIEGGI�;STEDUGSGVI�?EDFGHId�HDUGEOVP�NOPQGEDR�AIEGGI�CEDS�4REWDVAIEGGI�ID�XDSOIR�YDQZGURE[>94:;57M�;IGS�7D>�\e�aRW�RTTEDUG[�DV�4DVWGVI>�p������	
�����������������������	�	��	�����
����	�����
������
	���q���	������������	��q�	���������	�����������������������������������
� 	���������������	����������������!��������"p$"&��	�������	������	����������
��������������������
������������������������������
�������������
��	�����������
��	����	���������
����!��������"p$�&��	�������	������	���������
�����������������
���
�������������
���	���������������
��	��������'�	��������	�(�+�,-./�0123456637838�94:;57<�=>�9??25@3�ÌG�?ZRVWd�ATGHOCOHRIODVW�B�3WIOSRIG�CDE�?EDFGHI�7D>�=kK=�B�?EDFGHI�7D>�=kK\�RV[RQÌDEOrG�WIRCC�ID�R[UGEIOWG�ÌG�TEDFGHIW�CDE�HDVWIEQHIODV�cO[><�\>�69f3�ÌG�4RZOCDEVOR�3VUOEDVSGVIRZ�gQRZOIh�9HI�COV[OVP�ÌRI�ÌG�TEDTDWG[�?EDFGHI�7DW>�=kK=RV[�=kK\�CDE�4OIhsaO[G�YObG�XRVG�;VWIRZZRIODV�REG�HRIGPDEOHRZZh�GiGSTI�TQEWQRVI�ID�AGHIODV�=Kej=



���������	
����
����
��������	����	
���������
��	
��������������� !���������������������"#��
������$��%�
��&�
���������
����������'�������	����������	��(�����)��*����#����+,-+�����+,-./��
��01
���2
(��'���� ����		��
���3$�
4
��#���.�5��6���� �#/� ����#���.,�1����%%�����������������789�:;<=>?@A�B?;CD><E�A@=;FGD>;<�<;9�7HIJKL�BM@<?><E�DN@�O>=:BF�P@BA�7K7HI78QG?E@D�><�DN@�E@<@ABF�OG<?�B<?�=C@:>BF�A@R@<G@�OG<?=�SN>:N�S;GF?�BFF;:BD@EAB<D�OG<?=�BSBA?@?�OA;M�DN@�=DBD@�;O�:BF>O;A<>B�D;�@<BQF@�DN@�:>DP�D;�@TC@<?DN@�OG<?=�O;A�:>C�CA;U@:D�<;�JLJKV�O;>=>B�CBAW�>MCA;R@M@<D=�X:>DP�:;G<:>FYZ�[\]̂_̀���aa#bb���� �#��c� d�������������
��������b�)������	��
���#���.,0+efg�h���i�'�� �#��j����� �k��j���i�#�� �k���#� '��a#b #l����j i��'�k���.e.,0.-�2�bl�� #����l#��'�j�#b�#b�i)� �'��d#��j�#bih�1�
���1��	���		�������������������1���������������i���������	
����
��������4	�������
�������$%�����������������������h��� �#/� ����#���.-�1����%%�����������������mnopqrs�tuvoum�tw�xyo�vrz�{q|}~����7L9�CGQF>:�N@BA><E�D;�:;<=>?@A�A@=;FGD>;<�<;9�7HIJK7V�B�A@=;FGD>;<�;O�DN@�:>DP:;G<:>F�;O�DN@�:>DP�;O�:BA=;<�B:D><E�><�>D=�:BCB:>DP�B=�DN@�F@E>=FBD>R@�Q;?P�;ODN@�:>DP�;O�:BA=;<�:;MMG<>DP�OB:>F>D>@=�?>=DA>:D�<;9�7KJ�IKJ�XMB><D@<B<:@�B<?=@AR>:@=Y�BCCA;R><E�B<<@TBD>;<�<;9�J��XWQ�N;M@=V�O;AM@AFP�:BMQA>B�:;GADY�O;ACA;C@ADP�F;:BD@?�BD�H7��@9�77KDN�=DA@@D�XMGFD>CF@�BC<=Y�S>DN><�DN@�OGDGA@B<<@TBD>;<�BA@B�X:>DP�:;G<:>FYZ�[\�]�_̀���aa#bb���� �#��+���)#�����%�4	
������
��g�����%�4	
������
�������������%������1�
���������������	������
���
���g������'�i�����%�4	
������
�����.��c� d�������������
��������b�)������	��
���#���.,0+e.g�"���i�'�� �#��j����� �k���#� '��j���� �k��j����i�#���� #l� #� �i���)�� �k��i����'l i'�� d�2�bk��j���� �k��j����i�#���aa�# �k�j�� ' � i�b i�� ���#���.e+�0e+�3a� #�#�#���#bi�d �i6��))��d #l��##��� �#�#���+��3�2���aig�j��a�'k���a2� �������6�j��)��)��k�'����b����,.����..e���i����c �� #����j������##��� �#�����3� �k���#� '6&g��#b



����������	��
�������������
�������������
������������������������� ����!��
���������"�������#������$���%&�'
����
���
����������$���()����*+�"��#*+��������*��������*�,���
��������������������������
��������-��#���
���"�
��������.��'����.�
���'�������/
*�����������������-��#���
���"������
��
�*���-��#�#��������/
*��+�"��#*���
���
�+��������*���
���
��0
���1 ��������#�
��������2�-��#� �
���"���������*�����3+�"��#*�,�#���
�*+��������*�,�#���
�*.�0�����
���
'���������������������*��'���.��� ����!��
����������"����.���-�������������
�������������
���������������������������*����
�������4������"�����
���5
�����������������*�����
�������������*�
#��������0�����#��$���%6(716(�8/
�����
�#��,����#��9��:�����
����������#��"�������-��#
�������4�����������������������-�*�����������'���#��:�����-���"������������'�����"�������
3.�/
*��+�"��#*���
���
�+��������*���
���
��0
���1 ������#����������2�-��#� �
���"�;<=><?�@<�ABBC<DE�FGHI>==EJ�HK�L>I�MENC�FEO<?JEJ�HK�MCP�LNQN?E�R>S=<?�CEFGS=>?T�>?�UVWVWVWVWXYZ[\ZZY]̂ �_Ỳabc�de�f�dghijP�klmnoMpq�om@qlMrk@olm�AmM�soqn@�qpAMomtu�vw�@o@xp�lmxwu�ls�lqMomAmkp�mlP�iyViyz{u�|Am�lqMomAmkp�ls�@Rp�ko@w�klrmkox�ls�@Rp�ko@w�ls�kAqnlmu�kAxoslqmoAuA;pmMomt�npk@olm�}{yW�~xo;o@pM�p�p;�@olmn��ls��Aq@�i�~xokpmnpn����ql�onolmntl�pqmomt��ls�kRA�@pq�{�~vrnompnnu��qlspnnolmn�AmM�@qAMpn��ls�Aq@okxp��o�~@A�pnAmM�xokpmnpn��ls�@Rp�kAqnlm�;rmoko�Ax�klMp�@l�AMM�A��p@pqAm�n�xokpmnpp�p;�@olm�klmnon@pm@��o@R�n@A@p�xA�|�~ko@w�klrmkox���������������//�$0�0���:��$��(�����	������������
���"�
����������#��������������
���".�-*����������*.������
�#��$���%�1%�(�.�����������$���0�$�$�����: ����:�����$������: ����:�������,�$.�������$��.�/�$0�$!�,��:��$�&��6�8��/�:�0����/2:��$,9���2��:�%�8����$,�,12��	�,��$,!�	��$�$!9���� �2:�����8��,�$�,,.�2���,,��$,��$0�:��0�9�����:�����	��8:���,��$0����$,�,9���: �����,�$�/�$���2�����0��:���00���	�:���$�,�����$,�����/2:��$��$,�,:�$:���: �,:�:��������*�/
�
"�����-����.������������������������



�����������		
�����������������������
�������������
����������������
��������������������� ����!"#$%&��'�(%)*��+�&+),%�'(���+!�%)*�%)�'(%��"(*')&-�+(�%)�)&'�)+���.��./."�%�!$'�')�%)*����+(��+(%"��+)��&&'!��)&'0�!(+&',,%)*��)�&+),%�'(��%+)�+1��!!$%&��%+),��)���!!(+2�$��)��%,,"�)&'�+1�!'(�%�,��)�')�%�$'�')�,�1+(�&+��'(&%�$�+(�%)�",�(%�$�('�'2'$+!�')���)��,"#,'3"')��",'+1�&"((')��+%$�('1%)'(-�,%�',�4%��%)���'�&%�-�+1�&�(,+)�1+$$+4%)*�&',,��%+)�+1('1%)'(-�+!'(��%+),0��)���'&$�(%)*���'�"(*')&-���'('+1�5&%�-�&+")&%$67�89:;�<=>?@ABB?CD?D�E@FGACH�IJ�KEGL?�MNOPQRO�ORSTUVW�SVT�EDAXF�SV�GVPROUY�ZOWRV[\�AOTUVSV[R�C]J�̂_̀ _̂I_Za�bECGCF?>GB�Z>c?C@d�A>DGCEC@?�Ae�Ff?�@GFd�Ae�@E>gACa�@EhGeA>CGEa�FA�?gFEihGgf�EF?BXA>E>d�_j̀DEd�BA>EFA>GZB�AC�E@@?XFEC@?a�X>A@?ggGCc�ECD�@ACgGD?>EFGAC�AeEXXhG@EFGACg�ECD�EXX>ALEh�ECD�GggZEC@?�Ae�X?>BGFg�ECD�?CFGFh?B?CFg�eA>@ABB?>@GEh�A>�GCDZgF>GEh�>?D?L?hAXB?CF�ECD�gZig?kZ?CF�Zg?�Ae�@Z>>?CF�AGh>?eGC?>d�gGF?g�KGFfGC�Ff?�@GFd�Ae�@E>gAC�eAhhAKGCc�@?ggEFGAC�Ae�>?eGC?>dAX?>EFGACga�ECD�D?@hE>GCc�Ff?�Z>c?C@d�Ff?>?Aeal�P]�RVmNOR�PQR�nNopU[�QRSpPQa�mSMRP\a�SVTqRpMSOR�Um�nO]PR[PRT�M]O�_j̀TS\�nROU]Ta�o\�_rjPQm�s]PRJ@UP\�@pROtrEWRV[\�gR[ORPSO\rENPQ]OUP\�gR[ORPSO\a�DOJ�iOSTmQSq�V]PRT�PQUm�UPRY�Um�Spm]�V]P�S�PONRnNopU[�QRSOUVWJ@UP\rEWRV[\rENPQ]OUP\�EPP]OVR\�gNVV\�g]pPSVU�mPSPRT�PQR�UPRY�qSm�V]PRT�Sm�S�XNopU[�fRSOUVW�UV[SmR�PQR�nO]nROP\�]qVRO�]O�SV\]VR�qUmQRm�P]�oR�QRSOTa�Q]qRsROa�NVTRO�pSq�UP�T]Rm�V]P�QSsR�P]�oRS�XNopU[�fRSOUVW�qQU[Q�Um�S�TUm[NmmU]V�UPRYJ�gQR�Spp]qRT�PQR�BS\]O�P]�]nRV�PQR�XNopU[�fRSOUVW�M]OSV\�mnRStROmJBS\]OrEWRV[\�@QSUOYSVrENPQ]OUP\�@QSUOYSV�DSsUm̀f]pYRm�TR[pSORT�PQR�XNopU[�fRSOUVW�]nRVJFQROR�oRUVW�V]�nROm]Vm�qUmQUVW�P]�mnRSta�BS\]OrEWRV[\�@QSUOYSVrENPQ]OUP\�@QSUOYSV�DSsUm̀f]pYRm�[p]mRT�PQR�XNopU[�fRSOUVWJ@UP\rEWRV[\rENPQ]OUP\�EPP]OVR\�gNVV\�g]pPSVU�WSsR�S�ORn]OP�UV�npS[R�]M�DUOR[P]O�]M�@]YYNVUP\DRsRp]nYRVP�gSURT�CSSmRQ�qQ]�Um�SPPRVTUVW�PQR�?TT\�EqSOTm�@RORY]V\J�gQR�V]PRT�PQR�NOWRV[\]OTUVSV[R�ORuNUORm�S�_rj�s]PRJBS\]O�XO]�FRYn]ORrEWRV[\�LU[R�@QSUOYSVrENPQ]OUP\�LU[R�@QSUOYSVa�DOJ�fUpP]V�SmtRT�UM�PQUm�UPRY]Vp\�ORMROm�P]�ORMUVROURm�SVT�T]Rm�V]P�SMMR[P�p][Sp�UVTNmPOUSp�nSOPVROmJ�@UP\rEWRV[\rENPQ]OUP\EPP]OVR\�g]pPSVU�ORnpURT�PQSP�PQUm�Um�]Vp\�TRmUWVRT�P]�Spp]q�PQR�[UP\�P]�mPNT\�SV\�]Up�ORMUVRO\�PQSP



������������	�
�����������������
�������	��������
��������������������	��������
�����������	
�	�
���������������������������������
������������
������
�������
������
����
�������������������������� �!���
�����������������"##$������!������
���������!!���������
�	��������	�
��������
�	������������	����������������������������������
��������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������	�������������%&'(&)�*&�+,,-&./�0123(''/4�25�6(3�7/8-�0/9&)4/4�25�:/4-(9�;<�=(9>0�?-<�-/01@'()A�()�BCDCDCDCDEF<�:GH?I7JK+*IGH�GL�GH;M�;G:+;�NH:GH*J?*J7�+OOGIH*%JH*?�*G�*=J�:I*MP?:G%%I??IGH?Q�:G%%I**JJ?Q�+H7�RG+K7?Q�+H7�:I*M�+LLI;I+*J7�GKS+HIT+*IGH?�RM%+MGK�+H7�:I*M�:GNH:I;�+H7�:GH?I7JK�+;;�U:GH*J?*J7�+H7�NH:GH*J?*J7V+OOGIH*%JH*?�*G�+;;�:G%%I??IGH?�JW:JO*�O;+HHIHS�:G%%I??IGH�+H7JHXIKGH%JH*+;�:G%%I??IGH�U:I*M�:GNH:I;VY�Z[\]�̂_ ̀���� à�̀����bc�ad�"����a�c�̀ �����������ee�cab����������������
�����������������������f���������f�������
��gd�$����a�c�̀ ������ee�cab�����h�������������������������i����
�������������������j��	��e���������������������̀���
����������������gd�k����a�c�̀ ������ee�cab����
�����������!!���������
����l������gd�m���c ̀�b�������������
���������!�������!!�������		����������!�����������������
�����gd�n��co��eepc���p̀f��c ̀�b�������������
�����	��������	��������������
����������������������������
������������
��������
��������
��������qr������������������a�����
�ksf�$s$mf������������������������������������j��	������!�e����������������f�̀���
����������������f����t������������������������������������������������	
�	�
�������		������������!�
������������������
�����
������������
��������
��������
��������qr�����������������������
��
���
��������������������
�����!�
�����	������		�������������������
������������
���
�������
�������
���
�f��
��
�������
��	�����������������
�����������e������c�!�
�������!!��������������������������������������������
������������
��������
��������
��������qr���������������������������������j��������



���������	
�����	�������������������	�����������
����	���������� �	!� ���"����#�$����	!� ���"��%	&��	'�"()$"*	"��#� �(	�$�	+��*���	,�-��"��(.#��-���	/�0#�)�)12���"�(	3"���4#��"5����	! "��"�%	6��'���("	6� �	,�����(��7#�� �	6��)6"-�)	8�"�����$"#� ��	9�:���#� ��	,�-;������� �	,�-;����#�$����	'"�(	,�-;��	5� �)	��0#�)��(	�	"((	!$����	2�"��)	��$�	,�-��"�	�(.#��-���	/�0#�)�)�,"��	<�	=�->������� �	3� �	�$"��-"���#�$����	3� �	�$"��-"�%	&��	5����	��0#�)��(	"	>�"���+�	?--��	!-��$%	;��$��	+	8��)���	!-��$	"�(	�#� ��	��(�	�	�#� ��	,�-;������� �,�-;����#�$����	'"�(	,�-;��	/.")%	"�(	�":�	"	>�"��������	�������������
	@��	������
	���	��
���	��	�A�	������	B���C��
	�@	�A�D�C���E=$�)	���-	*")	$�"�(	"+���	F�"�	�--#�� "���)	+�	,"����)	G�)��(	�	�$�	����("	H,�-;��)	+	�$�<#;�� I8�-	���"(���#� �(	�$���	#> -���	 ���	�:���)	")	+��*)1!$�	�$"���(	�$�	,"��	"�(	����	�#� ��	+�	�$�	 ���J)	>"�����)$�>	*��$	�$�	K,��	!����	�#������<���"-�LMNMOPQR	SPTU	VWXMYZMO	[[U	\]\̂	_OWY	[]̀]]	abcb	NW	[\̀]]	dbcb	PN	LMNMOPQR	dPOefgQNMO_MRNU	SMhMYZMO	iU	\]\̂	_OWY	̂̀j]	dbcb	NW	k̀j]	dbcb	PN	LMNMOPQR	dPOeaQQlPm	nOMM	ogpqNgQp	rMOMYWQTU	SMhMYZMO	sU	\]\̂	PN	ì]]	dbcbU	PN	NqM	rPORWQ	tXMQN	rMQNMO



����������	
����
���

���
�����������
�����������������
������	���
�������������������
����������
 ��������
������
����
�����
����������
������������
���������!��������������������������"�����
�������������������
������������ ��
������#���
������$�%�&����'���()*�������� ��
�����������
��������"�������+�������
���
��������������	���� �������������
��
����
����������
����
���"����"�������������������������	
��� ������������������� ����������"�����
�
���,� ����-�+�������������������	���� ��
�.�����,���
������ ��
�����������������
����������	
���
��������������������/012/34�565768�86916:;:�;0�<==�3;65:�;0�>1;186�<?62=<:'����08<4�/055123/<;302:�@/012/34�565768:A"���������� ��B��������� ��B������������
������ ���C�������
��������������������������������������������������������C����
�������	
����
���������������
�������
�����	��C
�����������C�
��������������������
	
�����'���� ���DE-�DFDG-����
�������� �������������"���������� ��B��������� ��B������������
������ ���,��
����
��������
��������
����
����
��
���	��C
�������������������������H�����.�
�����������������	
�����������
���
��
 ����
�������������
����*�����
������
��
�����������
���"
������������������
����������
��������	
��
����������
���
��������������	
�����
�������"���������� ���,��
��
������������������ �����	
����������"���������� ��B��������� ��B������������
������ ���,��
����
����
�������������	�������������������������
�����������
��������������DFDD�
�����
������
����������������
�����
�����������������I�����������I�����������������
������������������������E����	������������J����
�����
�����&������
������	����
������������������������
���������
������
���
��������������������*���
���������
����������	��C
����������	�����	�����
����
���������������������
���
��
 ����
�������������
����
����.����������B������K����"�
���
�B����������K����"�
���
�-�H���C��������
����������������������
��������������
����C��
������
����������
����������������������-������
�������������



�����������	�
����������������
�����������
�������������
	������
����������
���
������	�����
���	����������������������������������������������������������
�������� �
�����
���
������	�����������
���	�������������������
�����������
����������������������
����������������������
�������
�������	�	�!!���	��������
�������	��!	��	���������
		�	�
�����
������������
��
�������������
��
�� 
��	������	���
�������������"#�$$$��	�����	����	
�����	�����
�����	��������������
	�
�����
������������	������������������������
	�������%��	�
������
�����
�������
������%�����
�������������
���	���������	�!!����%���
������������"&������
��'�����(���
�
�����)�������*+��*$*+��
��",$$�-����
������%������
��-
�������������
�
���.����	��/��	�
�����������������	����
�����!�!

����������	���������0������!%�����'�
�	����!
�����	�
������ ���������
����%!��	�-
��
�������1��*2�3���!��	�
�������
	��%!��	�-
��45567589:95;�6<�75<=5=>?9@�6A�865;=579@�8B6>9@�>9>>=65�=;9:>�C4>�5989>>4ADE)����A989>>�;6�8B6>9@�>9>>=65)����A9865F959�;6�6G95�>9>>=65)����A9G6A;�6<�48;=65>�65�75<=5=>?9@�6A�865;=579@�8B6>9@�>9>>=65�=;9:>)����4@H67A5:95;'������������
	�
�I������
��J,#&�-��������
������������
��
�������������
��
�� 
��	������	�KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK1��
� 
��	������	�
������������
��
�������������
��
��''L%',



�����������������������������������������������������������	
�������������������	
�����
�����
��
����������������
��
�������������������������������� !"#$%



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 9.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             William Jefferson, Director of Finance  FIN  Accounting
 
Subject:          CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-109, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF CARSON RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $841,207.34, DEMAND
CHECK NUMBERS 175963 THROUGH 176069 FOR GENERAL DEMAND AND THE AMOUNT OF $5,795.00,
CHECK NUMBERS 1287 THROUGH 1287 FOR CO-OP AGREEMENT DEMANDS (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

RESOLUTION NO. 24-109, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON RATIFYING CLAIMS
AND DEMANDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
TOTAL OF $841,207.34 FOR GENERAL DEMANDS CHECK NUMBERS 175963 THROUGH 176069. 
 
TOTAL OF $5,795.00 FOR CO-OP AGREEMENT DEMANDS, CHECK NUMBERS 1287 THROUGH 1287, WHICH ARE
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OF CAPITAL PROJECTS WITHIN THE FORMER
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA, USING BOND PROCEEDS TRANSFERRED FROM THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO
THE CITY.

II. RECOMMENDATION

WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 24-109, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CARSON RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $841,207.34, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS
175693 THROUGH 176069 FOR GENERAL DEMAND AND THE AMOUNT OF $5,795.00, CHECK NUMBERS 1287
THROUGH 1287 FOR CO-OP AGREEMENT DEMANDS".

III. ALTERNATIVES

NONE.
 

IV. BACKGROUND

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:
 
SECTION 1: The claims and demands have been reviewed and verified for accuracy and compliance with the
budget and applicable agreements and are hereby ratified in the amount herein after set forth, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit No. 1.
 
SECTION 2: On November 19, 2024, the City Council ratified the above demand numbers 175963 through 176069
for General Demand and 1287 through 1287 for Co-op agreement demand. The City Treasurer is hereby directed to
pay out the funds named hereon, to each of the claimants listed above, the amount of warrant appearing opposite
their respective names, for the purpose stated on the respective demands, making a total of $847,002.34. 
 

701 East Carson Street



SECTION 3: That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution and enter it into the
book of original resolutions. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2024.
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
 
________________________________________
Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney
 
 
 
 
CITY OF CARSON: 
 
_________________________________________
Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor
 
 
 
ATTEST:
 
_________________________________________
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk
 
 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

 
CERTIFICATION

 
In accordance with Section 37202 of the California Government Code, I hereby certify that the above demands are
accurate and that funds are available for payment thereof. I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct. 
 

EXECUTED THE 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2024 AT CARSON, CALIFORNIA:
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
David C. Roberts, Jr., City Manager

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss.
CITY OF CARSON )
 
I, Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk of the City of Carson, California, hereby attest to and certify that the foregoing
resolution, being Resolution No. 24-109, adopted by the City of Carson City Council at its meeting held on
November 19, 2024 by the following vote:
 
AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
 
 

_____________________________________
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk

 
 

VI. EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT NO. 1: DEMAND RESOLUTION #24-109

 



 

Attachments

Exhibit 1 Demand Register Reso# 24-109.pdf
Exhibit 1 Demand Register Reso# 24-109 CA.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672ceba0a622140054f01425%2FExhibit%201%20Demand%20Register%20Reso%23%2024-109.pdf?alt=media&token=0f47dede-e51b-49a2-b432-0ea0a1d53db6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672ceba0a622140054f01425%2FExhibit%201%20Demand%20Register%20Reso%23%2024-109.pdf?alt=media&token=0f47dede-e51b-49a2-b432-0ea0a1d53db6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672ceba0a622140054f01425%2FExhibit%201%20Demand%20Register%20Reso%23%2024-109.pdf?alt=media&token=0f47dede-e51b-49a2-b432-0ea0a1d53db6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672ceba0a622140054f01425%2FExhibit%201%20Demand%20Register%20Reso%23%2024-109%20CA.pdf?alt=media&token=59ca842b-ad43-4387-913f-eeb3e4c4de43
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672ceba0a622140054f01425%2FExhibit%201%20Demand%20Register%20Reso%23%2024-109%20CA.pdf?alt=media&token=59ca842b-ad43-4387-913f-eeb3e4c4de43
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672ceba0a622140054f01425%2FExhibit%201%20Demand%20Register%20Reso%23%2024-109%20CA.pdf?alt=media&token=59ca842b-ad43-4387-913f-eeb3e4c4de43


City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 07:24
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      1

  FOR CASH ACCOUNT: 100-99-999-999-1010-                                                               FOR:  All                  

CHECK #   CHECK DATE TYPE    VENDOR NAME                                       UNCLEARED           CLEARED  BATCH  CLEAR DATE

   175963 10/29/2024 PRINTED 007777 Amir Aatari Sharghi, Bran                    7,725.00
   175964 10/29/2024 PRINTED 007777 Jonathan Cameron                             1,500.00
   175965 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007692 ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES                    9,964.50
   175966 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000042 ALIN PARTY SUPPLY CO                           315.04
   175967 10/31/2024 PRINTED 004388 AIS TRUST ACCOUNT NEWPORT                      300.87
   175968 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007864 ALTA PLANNING + DESIGN, I                   23,330.61
   175969 10/31/2024 PRINTED 005523 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES                      1,531.47
   175970 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000495 AMERICAN SOCCER CO INC                          63.02
   175971 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006675 AMERICAN TRANSPORTATION S                    1,749.20
   175972 10/31/2024 PRINTED 003927 ARAMSCO INC                                  8,849.29
   175973 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007663 ARTHUR R. BATUCAL                               50.00
   175974 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000568 ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA,                    5,946.00
   175975 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001825 AVALON COLLISION                             1,244.94
   175976 10/31/2024 PRINTED 004410 B D WHITE TOP SOIL CO INC                      137.81
   175977 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000697 BIG ANDYS TROPHIES AND PL                    5,478.60
   175978 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000013 BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF CA                    8,947.98
   175979 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001762 ROGER BRANCH JR                                 50.00
   175980 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001627 BSN SPORTS LLC                                 144.63
   175981 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008226 C BELOW INC                                 10,110.00
   175982 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008407 CALIFORNIA AIR CONDITIONI                   11,450.00
   175983 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007161 CARLOS ALBERTO GUERRA                          100.00
   175984 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001489 CHOURA VENUE SERVICES                        1,225.63
   175985 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008033 CLARENCE JOHNSON                               100.00
   175986 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007718 CLIVABETH PHOTOGRAPHY LLC                    2,065.00
   175987 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008325 COLOR CARD ADMINISTRATOR,                       57.94
   175988 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008380 COLOXCHANGE                                  4,700.00
   175989 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007159 CORODATA RECORDS MANAGEME                      784.09
   175990 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008405 CORODATA SHREDDING INC.                        189.00
   175991 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001180 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES                        6,050.27
   175992 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007185 CROSSTOWN ELECTRICAL & DA                   31,335.60
   175993 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000259 CROWN TROPHY OF CYPRESS                        116.37
   175994 10/31/2024 PRINTED 003586 CS AND ASSOCIATES INC                        2,195.00
   175995 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000268 DAILY JOURNAL CORP                             601.40
   175996 10/31/2024 PRINTED 004824 MANUEL DASILVA                                  50.00
   175997 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006396 KIMBERLEY DAVENPORT                             50.00
   175998 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007163 DIANNE THOMAS                                  100.00
   175999 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006465 LOUIE DIAZ                                     100.00
   176000 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001155 DISH                                           143.46
   176001 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006482 FREDERICK DOCDOCIL                             100.00
   176002 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006876 DONS AUDIO VISUAL                            1,235.00
   176003 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000039 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS                    1,338.20
   176004 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000105 FIREMASTER                                   4,556.94
   176005 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001268 GBROS INC                                      422.26
   176006 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000793 GRAINGER                                       617.85
   176007 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008132 HASA INC                                     1,669.94
   176008 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000234 THE HOME DEPOT INC                             856.27
   176009 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000615 DELL HUFF                                      100.00
   176010 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001798 CHINYERE IFEACHO                                50.00
   176011 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007103 JOE A. GONSALVES & SON                       4,000.00
   176012 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008436 JOE GIACOMIN CHEV INC                       56,992.00
   176013 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007688 JOKER PARTY SUPPLY, INC.                       323.63
   176014 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008264 LIFE AND TIMES NETWORK IN                    7,717.50



City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 07:24
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      2

  FOR CASH ACCOUNT: 100-99-999-999-1010-                                                               FOR:  All                  

CHECK #   CHECK DATE TYPE    VENDOR NAME                                       UNCLEARED           CLEARED  BATCH  CLEAR DATE

   176015 10/31/2024 PRINTED 005040 SALOMON LOPEZ                                   53.73
   176016 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000243 LOS ANGELES BUSINESS JOUR                    1,200.00
   176017 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000067 LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPT O                   77,704.54
   176018 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000072 BUSINESS FILINGS AND REGI                      150.00
   176019 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007248 MARIA'S GARDEN CENTER & L                    6,017.45
   176020 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006831 MARSH USA INC.                             116,206.48
   176021 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006271 MAYFLOWER DISTRIBUTING CO                      555.08
   176022 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006553 MCA DIRECT                                   1,025.71
   176023 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000669 MDG ASSOCIATES                              13,708.00
   176024 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007428 MFUME, DEQUITA                                 100.00
   176025 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000996 MIRACLE PLAYGROUND SALES                     4,585.35
   176026 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000379 MUTUAL PROPANE CO INC                        3,100.42
   176027 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000385 NATIONWIDE ENVIRONMENTAL                    98,131.60
   176028 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007779 NEMIE P. MOSEQUERA                              50.00
   176029 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008041 NORBERT DE LENDORFF                         33,100.00
   176030 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000481 OCEAN BLUE ENVIRONMENTAL                     5,038.97
   176031 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010999 DEBBIE MIDDENWAY                               151.04
   176032 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010999 KENT TRAN                                      155.22
   176033 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010999 LETTY ARGUERA                                   79.53
   176034 10/31/2024 PRINTED 002506 PHOTO MAKERS                                   386.88
   176035 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006908 QUEST MEDIA & SUPPLIES, I                   22,728.00
   176036 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001081 BRIAN RABER                                     50.00
   176037 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008230 RAJO, A CALIF. CORP                             80.00
   176038 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001255 JESSICA RAMOS                                   50.00
   176039 10/31/2024 PRINTED 004145 CASSANDRA REED                                  50.00
   176040 10/31/2024 PRINTED 003304 REQUEST LINE MUSIC                             700.00
   176041 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010000 DAVID FLORES                                 2,000.00
   176042 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010000 GREENLAW PARTNERS                              731.75
   176043 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010000 LINDA SIMS                                     250.00
   176044 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010000 MISCHALAY WILLIAMS                             250.00
   176045 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010000 OCASSP JOINT TECHNICAL SY                    1,308.00
   176046 10/31/2024 PRINTED 010000 RANDSTAD INHOUSE SERVICES                    1,854.00
   176047 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000402 ROADLINE PRODUCTS INC USA                      464.02
   176048 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008216 ROBERT HALF INC.                             8,352.00
   176049 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001715 HARRIETT RUSS                                   50.00
   176050 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000791 EMMANUEL A SALOMON                              50.00
   176051 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000427 SAM'S CLUB DIRECT                               90.74
   176052 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001605 SC FUELS                                    13,614.83
   176053 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006964 SCCI, INC.                                     825.00
   176054 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007632 SEAY, AL CARNEL                                 50.00
   176055 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007281 SHANNON WAYNE LAWRENCE                          50.00
   176056 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008398 SOCAL SURFACES, INC.                        68,900.00
   176057 10/31/2024 PRINTED 004417 SOCALGAS                                     8,778.95
   176058 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000718 STAPLES ADVANTAGE                               55.98
   176059 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000289 STATE OF CA DOJ/ACCTG OFF                      655.00
   176060 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007780 TERESITA J. JUNIO                               50.00
   176061 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007705 TRANSTECH ENGINEERS, INC.                   10,887.00
   176062 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006769 U S BANK CORPORATE PAYMEN                   42,537.40
   176063 10/31/2024 PRINTED 006769 CITY MANAGER                                 5,118.66
   176064 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007532 VENICE FAMILY CLINIC                         3,750.00
   176065 10/31/2024 PRINTED 001011 W.G. ZIMMERMAN ENGINEERIN                    8,640.00
   176066 10/31/2024 PRINTED 008256 WESTERN A/V                                 36,641.70



City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 07:24
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      3

  FOR CASH ACCOUNT: 100-99-999-999-1010-                                                               FOR:  All                  

CHECK #   CHECK DATE TYPE    VENDOR NAME                                       UNCLEARED           CLEARED  BATCH  CLEAR DATE

   176067 10/31/2024 PRINTED 002925 KARL WILVERT                                    50.00
   176068 10/31/2024 PRINTED 004222 RICHARD WOODS JR                                50.00
   176069 10/31/2024 PRINTED 007777 National Corrosion                          11,162.00

                           107 CHECKS          CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL              841,207.34               .00



City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 07:24
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      4

                                                                               UNCLEARED           CLEARED

                           107 CHECKS          FINAL TOTAL                     841,207.34               .00

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Jane Manalo **                                           



City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 07:27
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      1

  FOR CASH ACCOUNT: 284-99-999-999-1032-                                                               FOR:  All                  

CHECK #   CHECK DATE TYPE    VENDOR NAME                                       UNCLEARED           CLEARED  BATCH  CLEAR DATE

     1287 10/03/2024 PRINTED 007451 EXP US SERVICES INC                          5,795.00

                             1 CHECKS          CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL                5,795.00               .00



City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 07:27
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      2

                                                                               UNCLEARED           CLEARED

                             1 CHECKS          FINAL TOTAL                       5,795.00               .00

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Jane Manalo **                                           



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 10.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             William Jefferson, Director of Finance  FIN  Accounting
 
Subject:          CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-11-CHA, A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON
HOUSING AUTHORITY RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $43,412.55, DEMAND
CHECK NUMBERS HA-002014 THROUGH HA-002018 (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

RESOLUTION NO. 24-11-CHA, A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON HOUSING AUTHORITY RATIFYING CLAIMS AND
DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $43,412.55, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS HA-002014 THROUGH HA-002018. 

II. RECOMMENDATION

WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 24-11-CHA, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON HOUSING
AUTHORITY RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $43,412.55, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS HA-
002014 THROUGH HA-002018".

III. ALTERNATIVES

NONE.
 

IV. BACKGROUND

THE CARSON HOUSING AUTHORITY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:
 
SECTION 1: The claims and demands have been reviewed and verified for accuracy and compliance with the
budget and applicable agreements and are hereby ratified in the amount herein after set forth, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit No. 1.
 
SECTION 2: On November 19, 2024, the Carson Housing Authority ratified the above demand numbers HA-002014
through HA-002018. The City Treasurer is hereby directed to pay out the funds named hereon, to each of the
claimants listed above, the amount of warrant appearing opposite their respective names, for the purpose stated
on the respective demands, making a total of $43,412.55. 
 
SECTION 3: That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution and enter it into the
book of original resolutions. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2024.
 
 
CARSON HOUSING AUTHORITY, acting as the successor housing agency of the CARSON REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY, a public body by:
 

701 East Carson Street



 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
 
________________________________________
Sunny K. Soltani, Agency Counsel
 
 
 
 
CITY OF CARSON: 
 
_________________________________________
Lula Davis-Holmes, Chairman
 
 
 
ATTEST:
 
_________________________________________
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, Secretary
 
 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

 
CERTIFICATION

 
In accordance with Section 37202 of the California Government Code, I hereby certify that the above demands are
accurate and that funds are available for payment thereof. I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct. 
 

EXECUTED THE 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2024 AT CARSON, CALIFORNIA:
 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

David C. Roberts, Jr., Executive Director
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss.
CITY OF CARSON )
 
I, Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, Secretary of the Carson Housing Authority, California, hereby attest to and certify that
the foregoing resolution, being Resolution No. 24-11-CHA, adopted by the City of Carson City Council at its meeting
held on November 19, 2024 by the following vote:
 
AYES: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS:
NOES: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS:
 
 

_____________________________________
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, Secretary

 
 

VI. EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT NO. 1: DEMAND RESOLUTION #24-11-CHA

 

 



Attachments

Exhibit 1 CHA Demand Reso# 24-11-CHA.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672cf134a622140054f02253%2FExhibit%201%20CHA%20Demand%20Reso%23%2024-11-CHA.pdf?alt=media&token=9d7f6857-fdba-4d4c-82c2-1172125516e1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672cf134a622140054f02253%2FExhibit%201%20CHA%20Demand%20Reso%23%2024-11-CHA.pdf?alt=media&token=9d7f6857-fdba-4d4c-82c2-1172125516e1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672cf134a622140054f02253%2FExhibit%201%20CHA%20Demand%20Reso%23%2024-11-CHA.pdf?alt=media&token=9d7f6857-fdba-4d4c-82c2-1172125516e1


City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 08:53
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      1

  FOR CASH ACCOUNT: 255-99-999-999-1012-                                                               FOR:  Uncleared            

CHECK #   CHECK DATE TYPE    VENDOR NAME                                       UNCLEARED           CLEARED  BATCH  CLEAR DATE

     2014 10/03/2024 PRINTED 000423 AVALON COURTYARD, LLC                       12,172.36
     2015 10/10/2024 PRINTED 006884 LYFT, INC.                                      67.69
     2016 10/17/2024 PRINTED 008417 WORLD WIDE LOVE CAMPAIGN                    22,562.50
     2017 10/24/2024 PRINTED 001924 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELL                    2,500.00
     2018 10/31/2024 PRINTED 000547 CARSON TERRACE PARTNERS L                    6,110.00

                             5 CHECKS          CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL               43,412.55               .00



City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 08:53
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      2

                                                                               UNCLEARED           CLEARED

                             5 CHECKS          FINAL TOTAL                      43,412.55               .00

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Jane Manalo **                                           



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 11.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             William Jefferson, Director of Finance  FIN  Accounting
 
Subject:          CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-11-CSA, A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON
SUCCESSOR AGENCY CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,890.00, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS
SA-001936 THROUGH SA-001936 (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

RESOLUTION NO. 24-11-CSA, A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON SUCCESSOR AGENCY CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN
THE AMOUNT OF $1,890.00, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS SA-001936 THROUGH SA-001936. 

II. RECOMMENDATION

WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution NO. 24-11-CSA, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON SUCCESSOR
AGENCY CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,890.00, DEMAND CHECK NUMBERS SA-001936
THROUGH SA-001936".

III. ALTERNATIVES

NONE.
 

IV. BACKGROUND

THE CARSON SUCCESSOR AGENCY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:
 
SECTION 1: The claims and demands have been reviewed and verified for accuracy and compliance with the
budget and applicable agreements and are hereby ratified in the amount herein after set forth, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit No. 1.
 
SECTION 2: On November 19, 2024, the Carson Successor Agency ratified the above demand numbers SA-001936
through SA-001936. The City Treasurer is hereby directed to pay out the funds named hereon, to each of the
claimants listed above, the amount of warrant appearing opposite their respective names, for the purpose stated
on the respective demands, making a total of $1,890.00. 
 
SECTION 3: That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution and enter it into the
book of original resolutions. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2024.
 
 
CARSON SUCCESSOR AGENCY, to the dissolved CARSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a public body 
 
 

701 East Carson Street



 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
 
________________________________________
Sunny K. Soltani, Agency Counsel
 
 
 
 
CITY OF CARSON: 
 
_________________________________________
Lula Davis-Holmes, Chairman
 
 
 
ATTEST:
 
_________________________________________
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, Secretary
 
 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

 
CERTIFICATION

 
In accordance with Section 37202 of the California Government Code, I hereby certify that the above demands are
accurate and that funds are available for payment thereof. I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct. 
 

EXECUTED THE 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2024 AT CARSON, CALIFORNIA:
 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

David C. Roberts, Jr., Executive Director
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss.
CITY OF CARSON )
 
I, Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, Secretary of the Carson Successor Agency, California, hereby attest to and certify that
the foregoing resolution, being Resolution No. 24-11-CSA, adopted by the City of Carson City Council at its meeting
held on November 19, 2024 by the following vote:
 
AYES: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS:
NOES: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS:
 
 

_____________________________________
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, Secretary

 
 

VI. EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT NO. 1: DEMAND RESOLUTION #24-11-CSA

 

 



Attachments

Exhibit 1 CSA Demand Reso #24-11-CSA.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672cf3c7a622140054f02a52%2FExhibit%201%20CSA%20Demand%20Reso%20%2324-11-CSA.pdf?alt=media&token=813d3ce8-0919-44e3-89b9-fe9c4b1370f9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672cf3c7a622140054f02a52%2FExhibit%201%20CSA%20Demand%20Reso%20%2324-11-CSA.pdf?alt=media&token=813d3ce8-0919-44e3-89b9-fe9c4b1370f9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672cf3c7a622140054f02a52%2FExhibit%201%20CSA%20Demand%20Reso%20%2324-11-CSA.pdf?alt=media&token=813d3ce8-0919-44e3-89b9-fe9c4b1370f9


City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 09:06
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      1

  FOR CASH ACCOUNT: 782-99-999-999-1030-                                                               FOR:  All                  

CHECK #   CHECK DATE TYPE    VENDOR NAME                                       UNCLEARED           CLEARED  BATCH  CLEAR DATE

     1936 10/24/2024 PRINTED 001924 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELL                    1,890.00

                             1 CHECKS          CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL                1,890.00               .00



City of Carson

AP CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER

Report generated: 11/07/2024 09:06
User:             jmanalo
Program ID:       apchkrcn

Page      2

                                                                               UNCLEARED           CLEARED

                             1 CHECKS          FINAL TOTAL                       1,890.00               .00

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Jane Manalo **                                           



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 12.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             William Jefferson, Director of Finance  FIN  Administration
 
Subject:          CONSIDER A REPORT ON ALL INTRADEPARTMENTAL BUDGET TRANSFERS APPROVED
UNDER THE CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE AUTHORITY FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2024 PER
ORDINANCE 24-2401 (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On February 20, 2024 (Item No. 27) Council approved the second reading of Ordinance 24 -2401 amending section
2955.1 (Budget Transfers) of Chapter 9.5 (Fiscal Administration) of Article II (Administration) of the Carson
Municipal Code. Section 2 requires that once per month during a regular City Council meeting, a list of all
interdepartmental budget transfers approved under City Manager authority, including any Departmental Director-
approved transfers, shall be presented to the City Council. Staff are presenting to Council a report for
Interdepartmental Transfers authorized by the City Manager or Designee for the period of October (Exhibit No. 1).

This staff report outlines departmental budget transfers for review by the City Council. It provides a comprehensive
overview of the proposed transfers, their rationale, and the impact on departmental operations. The report aims to
ensure transparency and fiscal responsibility in managing the city's budget

II. RECOMMENDATION

RECEIVE and FILE this information. 

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action the City Council deems appropriate and consistent with the requirements of the law

IV. BACKGROUND

The city's budget is a critical tool for allocating resources to various departments and initiatives, ensuring the
efficient delivery of services to residents. Throughout the fiscal year, departments may encounter unforeseen
circumstances or evolving priorities that necessitate adjustments to their budgets. These adjustments often
involve transferring funds between line items to address emerging needs or to capitalize on new opportunities.

701 East Carson Street



In  compliance  with  city  regulations,  department  directors  may  also  approve interdepartmental budget
transfers within their respective Departments on terms prescribed by the City Manager (subject to compliance with
this section and applicable law), except that: (i) Department Directors shall not be permitted to approve any
interdepartmental budget transfers involving personnel-related funds or expenditures, such as salaries or benefits;
and (ii) the City Manager shall have authority to restrict (including by removing) the interdepartmental budget
transfer authority of one or more Department Directors as deemed necessary in the City Manager’s sole discretion.

These requests undergo careful review to assess the justification, necessity, and potential impact of the proposed
transfers. The City Manager's office then presents these requests to the City Council.

Attached as Exhibit 1 is the Interdepartmental Transfers Report for City Manager or Designee Authority executed in
October

V. FISCAL IMPACT

None.

VI. EXHIBITS

 
1. Interdepartmental Transfers - October 2024
 

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit No. 1 - Intradepartmental Transfers - October 2024.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d193fa622140054f0afd8%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20Intradepartmental%20Transfers%20-%20October%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=ba29dd2b-c86c-41ae-82e0-2bb189293eb7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d193fa622140054f0afd8%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20Intradepartmental%20Transfers%20-%20October%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=ba29dd2b-c86c-41ae-82e0-2bb189293eb7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d193fa622140054f0afd8%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20Intradepartmental%20Transfers%20-%20October%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=ba29dd2b-c86c-41ae-82e0-2bb189293eb7


INTRADEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS

EFFECTIVE DATE DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT FROM
AMOUNT 

FROM
ACCOUNT TO AMOUNT TO DESCRIPTION OF TRANSFER

10/21/2024 City Manager-Housing 215-50-720-100-5002  $    59,400.00 215-50-720-100-6004 59,400.00$           CDBG2024-25 Entitlement Funds to cover consulting services.

10/21/2024 Public Works 205-99-999-999-3601  $  114,361.90 205-80-801-100-8004 114,361.90$        To fund expense account for SB1383 Resident Organic Recycling Grant

10/22/2024 Community Services 244-90-950-709-4991  $         735.00 244-90-950-709-6004 100,947.98$        Transfer of funds generated from Special Event revenues to expense budget.

10/22/2024 Community Services 244-90-950-709-4995  $    41,115.98 244-90-950-709-6004 Continued Continued

10/22/2024 Community Services 244-90-950-709-4996  $    14,097.00 244-90-950-709-6004 Continued Continued

10/22/2024 Community Services 244-90-950-709-4999  $    45,000.00 244-90-950-709-6004 Continued Continued

10/24/2024 Public Works 101-80-840-281-6500  $  250,000.00 101-80-840-281-8004 276,882.73$        Transfer funds for the purchase of a Asphalt Paver approved by Council 10/1/2024.

10/24/2024 Public Works 101-80-840-294-6004  $    26,882.73 101-80-840-281-8004 Continued Continued

EXHIBIT NO. 1



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 13.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             William Jefferson, Director of Finance  FIN  
 
Subject:          CONSIDER A REPORT OF ALL CITY CONTRACTS APPROVED UNDER CITY MANAGER OR
DESIGNEE AUTHORITY FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2024 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2024 PURSUANT TO
CMC SECTION 2607 (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

This City Manager is presenting to the City Council a list of all new contracts and amendments procured under City
Manager or designee's authority as required by Section 2604 of the Carson Municipal Code for the period October
1, 2024 through October 31, 2024.

II. RECOMMENDATION

RECEIVE and FILE this information. 

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action as deemed appropriate by the City Council, consistent with the requirements of the law. 

IV. BACKGROUND

On January 9, 2024 (Item No. 27), Council approved Ordinance No. 23-2309 amending various sections of Chapter
6 (Purchasing System) of Article II (Administration) of the Carson Municipal Code. Ordinance No. 23-2309
increased the City Manager's authority to procure materials, supplies, equipment, services and professional
services from $25,000 to $75,000. Section 2604 now requires the City Manager to, once per month, present to the
City Council a list of all new contracts and amendments procured under City Manager or designee's authority.

Attached as Exhibit 1 is the City Manager's Contract Report for contracts executed between October 1, 2024 and
October 31, 2024. 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

None. 

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Contract Report - October 2024

 

 

701 East Carson Street



Attachments

Exhibit 1: Contract Report - October 2024

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d444da622140054f146eb%2FContract%20Report%20-%20October%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=dbc5aa34-82e6-45ba-8e9f-7fd27793a205
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d444da622140054f146eb%2FContract%20Report%20-%20October%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=dbc5aa34-82e6-45ba-8e9f-7fd27793a205
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d444da622140054f146eb%2FContract%20Report%20-%20October%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=dbc5aa34-82e6-45ba-8e9f-7fd27793a205


Signatory Holder Original/ 
Amendment

Contract 
Number Vendor Name Vendor 

Number Category Description of Service Sum Department

 Effective 
Date 

(Attestation 
Date - pg 1)

Expiration 
Date 

M WHITTIKER Original 24-229 JAZZ IN PINK 6715 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 JAZZ FESTIVAL $3,500.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/05/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-230 DONALD HAYES 4308 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 JAZZ FESTIVAL $3,500.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/05/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-231 GAVIN RHONE 5541 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 JAZZ FESTIVAL $7,000.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/05/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-236 RELIANT TALENT AGENCY LLC 8408 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 JAZZ FESTIVAL $10,000.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/05/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-241 REQUEST LINE MUSIC 3304 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 JAZZ FESTIVAL $700.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/05/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-246 MIXONE SOUND 2703 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 JAZZ FESTIVAL $9,000.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/05/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-206 AALON BUTLER 6455 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 SENIOR HALLOWEEN LUNCHEON $800.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/11/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-248 REQUEST LINE MUSIC 3304 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 FAHM CELEBRATION $1,000.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/12/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-252 ARDYANNA DUCUSIN 7318 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 FAHM CELEBRATION $200.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/12/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-242 REQUEST LINE MUSIC 3304 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 WOMEN'S HEALTH CONFERENCE $700.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/18/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-247 NEICE KNIGHT 7453 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 WOMEN'S HEALTH CONFERENCE $100.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/18/2024 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-254 NIKKI SHORTS 7736 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 WOMEN'S HEALTH CONFERENCE $1,400.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/18/24 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-255 TOBIAS LEVI MOODY 8180 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 WOMEN'S HEALTH CONFERENCE $600.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/18/24 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-259 ARJAY FERRER JIMENEZ 3104 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 LARRY ITLIONG DAY $1,500.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/26/2024 *
D ROBERTS Original 24-270 MILAGRO MEDIA STRATEGIES 8434 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 GROUNDBREAKING EVENT - MILLS PARK $4,200.00 ISPM 10/29/24 *
D ROBERTS Original 24-269 MILAGRO MEDIA STRATEGIES 8434 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 GROUNDBREAKING EVENT - FOISIA PARK $4,200.00 ISPM 10/30/24 *
D ROBERTS Original 24-268 MILAGRO MEDIA STRATEGIES 8434 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 GROUNDBREAKING EVENT - CARRIAGE CREST $4,200.00 ISPM 10/31/24 *

M WHITTIKER Original 24-271 REQUEST LINE MUSIC 3304 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 HALLOWEEN CARNIVAL $700.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/31/24 *
M WHITTIKER Original 24-238 NORMAN BROWN 8409 EVENT SERVICE PROVIDE AGREEMENT 2024 JAZZ FESTIVAL $10,000.00 COMMUNITY SERVICES 10/5/2024 *



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 14.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Michael Whittiker, Community Services Director  CS  Community Services
 
Subject:          CONSIDER APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOS ANGELES
COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY FOR PROPOSITION A DISCRETIONARY
INCENTIVE GRANT PROGRAM FUNDING (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

The Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) issues a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) to over 40 participating agencies each year as part of its voluntary Proposition A Discretionary Incentive
Grant Program. In exchange for reporting transit data to support local, state, and regional planning efforts,
agencies may request an allocation of grant funds. By executing the proposed MOU with LACMTA for Report Year
2022, the City will be eligible to retroactively invoice LACMTA in the total amount of $56,301.

II. RECOMMENDATION

1. APPROVE the “Proposition A Discretionary Incentive Grant Program Memorandum of Understanding for
Collecting and Reporting Data for the National Transit Database for Report Year 2022” between the City of
Carson and Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Exhibit No. 1. “LACMTA MOU”); and

2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute the LACMTA MOU, following approval as to form by the City Attorney.

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action the City Council deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

On an annual basis, LACMTA issues a MOU to over 40 participating agencies as part of its voluntary Proposition A
Discretionary Incentive Grant Program. Participants, including the City of Carson, report transit data from the prior
fiscal year to the National Transit Database (NTD) by October 31st each year. This data aids the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) with local, state, and regional planning efforts. Additionally, the data provides decision
makers with resources such as multiyear comparisons and trend analyses relating to public transit services
nationwide. In exchange for this data, agencies may request an allocation of grant funds through LACMTA.

Allocations are based on the number of revenue miles (service miles) performed over the course of a given fiscal
year. LACMTA issues MOUs approximately two years following each fiscal year on a rolling basis. For Report Year
2022, i.e., July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022, the City can request $46,635 for rendering Dial-A-Ride service, and $9,666
for fixed-route service.
 

701 East Carson Street



The proposed MOU is a standard form agreement of LACMTA that is required for all participating agencies, and the
City has not sought to negotiate its provisions. The conditions of the funding are set forth in Article 4, including an
indemnification provision in favor of LACMTA, a provision stating the City agrees that the funds will be used for
projects that meet the eligibility, administrative, audit and lapsing requirements of the Proposition A and C Local
Return guidelines most recently adopted by the LACMTA Board, and a provision stating the expenditures will be
subject to audit as part of LACMTA’s annual Consolidated Audit. Article 5 states that LACMTA reserves the right to
terminate the MOU and withhold or recoup funds if it determines that the City has not met the requirements
specified by the FTA for collecting and submitting NTD statistics through LACMTA.

By executing the proposed MOU with LACMTA for Report Year 2022, the City will be eligible to retroactively invoice
LACMTA in the total amount of $56,301.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

Should the City Council approve the recommendation, payment from LACMTA in the total amount of $56,301, once
received, will be deposited in Proposition A account no. 218-99-999-999-4513.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. LACMTA MOU

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit No. 1 - LACMTA MOU.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F671975e60b6ec0005e40aa28%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20LACMTA%20MOU.pdf?alt=media&token=b8290e5f-5e73-4a8b-90cc-a3e9112781cf
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F671975e60b6ec0005e40aa28%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20LACMTA%20MOU.pdf?alt=media&token=b8290e5f-5e73-4a8b-90cc-a3e9112781cf
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F671975e60b6ec0005e40aa28%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20LACMTA%20MOU.pdf?alt=media&token=b8290e5f-5e73-4a8b-90cc-a3e9112781cf


MOUPAICARS24000 
 

PROPOSITION A DISCRETIONARY INCENTIVE GRANT PROGRAM 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR COLLECTING AND REPORTING DATA FOR THE  
NATIONAL TRANSIT DATABASE  

FOR REPORT YEAR 2022 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into as of May 1, 2024 by and 

between Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (“LACMTA”) and the City of 
Carson (the “City”). 

 
WHEREAS, on November 14, 1980, the voters of the County of Los Angeles approved by 

majority vote Proposition A, an ordinance establishing a one-half percent sales tax for public transit 
purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, at its September 26, 2001 meeting, the LACMTA authorized payment of 

Proposition A Discretionary Incentive funds to each participating agency in an amount equal to the 
Federal funds generated for the region by each agency’s reported data; and 

 
WHEREAS, at its June 22, 2023 meeting, LACMTA approved the Fiscal Year FY 2023-24 

transit fund allocations, which included funds to make payments to all cities that voluntarily 
reported NTD data for FY 2021-22; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has voluntarily submitted their FY2021-22 data to the National 

Transit Database (NTD) and have successfully met all NTD and Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) requirements in order to generate Federal 5307 funds for the Los Angeles County region; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has requested funds under the Proposition A Discretionary Incentive 

Program for collecting and reporting data for the NTD from the FY 2021-22 Report Year (the 
“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 1, 2024, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) published in the 

Federal Register the FY 2023-24 Apportionments, Allocations, and Program Information 
including unit values for the data reported to the NTD; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to agree on the terms and conditions for payment for the 

Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, LACMTA and the City hereby agree to the following terms and 
procedures: 
 
 
 



 
 
 
ARTICLE 1.  TERM 
 
1.0 This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) will be in effect from May 1, 2024, 

through June 30, 2027 at which time all unused funds shall lapse. 
 
 
ARTICLE 2.  STANDARDS 
 
2.0 To receive payment for the submittal of the FY 2021-22 NTD statistics, the City warrants 

that it: 
 

A.  Adhered to the Federal Guidelines for collecting and Reporting NTD statistics 
including all audit requirements; 

 
B.  Prepared and submitted the FY 2021-22 ANNUAL NTD REPORT of the City’s 

fixed-route and/or demand response transit service to the NTD on or before October 
31, 2022; 
 

C.  Prepared and submitted the FY 2021-22 ANNUAL NTD REPORT of the City’s 
fixed-route and/or demand response transit service to the LACMTA on or before 
February 15, 2023; 

 
 
ARTICLE 3.  PAYMENT OF FUNDS TO CITY  
 
3.0 LACMTA shall pay the City for collecting and reporting FY 2021-22 NTD statistics.  

LACMTA shall pay the City for submitting the FY 2021-22 ANNUAL NTD REPORT 
for the applicable transit services as follows:   

 
MOTOR BUS SERVICE 
For City’s motor bus service, LACMTA shall pay an amount equal to the 13,788 revenue 
vehicle miles reported by the City multiplied by the FTA unit value of 
0.70102255316358331 per revenue vehicle mile.  See Attachment A for detail. 

 
DIAL-A-TAXI SERVICE 
For City’s dial-a-ride service, LACMTA shall pay an amount equal to the 66524 revenue 
vehicle miles reported by the City multiplied by the FTA unit value of 
0.70102255316358331 per revenue vehicle mile.  See Attachment A for detail. 
 
 

3.1 The City shall submit one invoice to LACMTA prior to June 30, 2027, in the amount of 
$56,301 to receive its payment described above. 

 



 
3.2 INVOICE BY CITY: 

 
Send invoice with supporting documentation to: 

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
Accounts Payable 
P. O. Box 512296 
Los Angeles, CA  90051-0296 
accountspayable@metro.net 

 
 Re: LACMTA MOU# MOUPAICARS24000    M.S. Chelsea Meister (99-4-3) 

 
 
ARTICLE 4.  CONDITIONS 
 
 
4.0 The City agrees to comply with all requirements specified by the FTA guidelines for 

reporting NTD statistics. 
 
4.1 The City understands and agrees that LACMTA shall have no liability in connection with 

the City’s use of the funds.  The City shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
LACMTA and its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all liability 
and expenses including defense costs and legal fees and claims for damages of any nature 
whatsoever, arising out of any act or omission of the City, its officers, agents, employees, 
and subcontractors in performing the services under this MOU. 

 
4.2 The City is not a contractor, agent or employee of LACMTA.  The City shall not 

represent itself as a contractor, agent or employee of LACMTA and shall have no power 
to bind LACMTA in contract or otherwise. 

 
4.3 The City agrees that expenditure of the Proposition A Discretionary Incentive funds will 

be used for projects that meet the eligibility, administrative, audit and lapsing 
requirements of the Proposition A and Proposition C Local Return guidelines most 
recently adopted by the LACMTA Board. 
 

4.4 These expenditures will be subject to AUDIT as part of LACMTA’s annual Consolidated 
Audit. 

 
 
ARTICLE 5.  REMEDIES 
 
5.0 LACMTA reserves the right to terminate this MOU and withhold or recoup funds if it 

determines that the City has not met the requirements specified by the FTA for collecting 
and submitting NTD statistics through LACMTA. 

 
 



ARTICLE 6.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
6.0 This MOU constitutes the entire understanding between the parties, with respect to the 

subject matter herein. 
 
6.1 The MOU shall not be amended, nor any provisions or breach hereof waived, except in 

writing signed by the parties who agreed to the original MOU or the same level of authority. 
 
 
ARTICLE 7.  CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
7.0 LACMTA's Address: 
 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
 One Gateway Plaza 
 Los Angeles, CA  90012 
 Attention:  Chelsea Meister (99-21-3) 
 meisterc@metro.net  
 
 
7.1 City’s Address:  
 Carson  
 801 E. Carson St. 
 Carson,CA  90745 
 Attn: Jason Jo 
 jjo@carson.ca.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:meisterc@metro.net


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and LACMTA have caused this MOU to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives on the date noted below: 
 
 
CITY:   
           
City of Carson    Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
       Transportation Authority 
 
 
_________________________    By: ___________________________ 
       STEPHANIE N. WIGGINS  
Mayor/City Manager      Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
Date: ____________________    Date: _______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
  
       DAWYN R. HARRISON 

County Counsel 
 
By: _____________________    By: ____________________ 
 Legal Counsel      Deputy 
 
 
Date: ____________________    Date: __________________ 
 

LEVINEG
Text Box
10/2/2024



ATTACHMENT A
LACMTA Voluntary NTD Reporting Program for FY22
Using FY24 FTA Formula Programs Apportionment Data Values

Jurisdiction MODE
 Total Vehicle 
Revenue Miles  $ from VRM 

 Tier II 
Operator 
Deduction 

 Total ($)Due 
to 
Jurisdiction 

Alhambra MB 168,115                    117,852.41     117,852        178,639     
Alhambra DR 86,711                      60,786.37       60,786          
Artesia DR (DT) 3,956                        2,773.25         2,773            
Azusa DR 28,615                      20,059.76       20,060          
Baldwin Park MB 173,378                    121,541.89     121,542        139,086     
Baldwin Park DR 25,027                      17,544.49       17,544          
Bell MB 33,351                      23,379.80       23,380          
Bell DR 14,950                      10,480.29       10,480          
Bellflower MB 72,617                      50,906.15       50,906          58,146       
Bellflower DR 10,327                      7,239.46         7,239            
Bell Gardens MB 91,237                      63,959.19       63,959          81,790       
Bell Gardens DR 25,435                      17,830.51       17,831          
Burbank MB 212,160                    148,728.94     (19,766)      128,963        
Calabasas MB 65,374                      45,828.65       45,829          51,463       
Calabasas DR 8,037                        5,634.12         5,634            
Carson MB 13,788                      9,665.70         9,666            56,301       
Carson DT 66,524                      46,634.82       46,635          
Cerritos MB 100,933                    70,756.31       70,756          97,359       
Cerritos DR 37,948                      26,602.40       26,602          
Compton MB 185,493                    130,034.78     130,035        130,192    
Compton DR 224                           157.03            157               
Covina DR 43,672                      30,615.06       30,615          
Cudahy MB 33,395                      23,410.65       23,411          30,244       
Cudahy DR 9,747                        6,832.87         6,833            
Downey MB 103,313                    72,424.74       72,425          101,291     
Downey DR 41,178                      28,866.71       28,867          
Duarte MB DID NOT REPORT F  -                  -                
El Monte MB 221,303                    155,138.39     155,138        192,668     
El Monte DR 53,536                      37,529.94       37,530          
Glendora MB 44,811                      31,413.52       31,414          61,485       
Glendora DR 42,896                      30,071.06       30,071          
Huntington Park MB 147,119                    103,133.74     103,134        132,064     
Huntington Park DT 41,268                      28,929.80       28,930          
LACDPWAvocado MB 39,129.00                 27,430.31       27,430          
LACDPWELA MB 226,843.00               159,022.06     159,022        
LACDPWELA DR 32,646.00                 22,885.58       22,886          181,908     
LACDPWEast Valinda MB 44,279.00                 31,040.58       31,041          
LACDPWKing Medical MB 37,428.00                 26,237.87       26,238          
LACDPWWillowbrook Shuttle MB 73,799.00                 51,734.76       51,735          542,348    
LACDPWS.Whittier MB 196,000.00               137,400.42     137,400        
LACDPWAthens MB 36,721.00                 25,742.25       25,742          
LACDPWLennox MB 30,216.00                 21,182.10       21,182          
LACDPWFloranceFirestone MB 56,592.00                 39,672.27       39,672          
Lakewood DR 52,213                      36,602.49       36,602          
Lawndale MB DID NOT REPORT F  - -                
Lynwood MB 147,420                    103,344.74     103,345        
Malibu DT 5,867                        4,112.90         4,113            
ManhattanBeach DR 22,484                      15,761.79       15,762          
Maywood MB 31,380                      21,998.09       21,998          32,276       
Maywood DR 14,662                      10,278.39       10,278          
MontereyPark MB -                            -                  -                11,785       
MontereyPark DR 16,811                      11,784.89       11,785          
Pico Rivera DR 8,765                        6,144.46         6,144            
Rosemead MB 104,818                    73,479.78       73,480          94,855       
Rosemead DR 30,491                      21,374.88       21,375          
Santa Fe Springs DR 12,570                      8,811.85         8,812            
South Gate MB 118,783                    83,269.56       83,270          160,309     
South Gate DT 109,896                    77,039.57       77,040          
SouthPasadena DR 20,054                      14,058.31       14,058          
WestCovina MB 155,047                    108,691.44     108,691        135,451     
WestCovina DR 38,172                      26,759.43       26,759          
West Hollywood MB 114,445                    80,229            80,229          
Total 3,869,524                 2,792,852       (19,766)      2,773,086     
FY24 Revenue Mile Rate 0.701022553



ATTACHMENT A
LACMTA Voluntary NTD Reporting Program for FY '22
Using FY '24 FTA Formula Programs Apportionment Data Unit Values

Jurisdiction MODE
 Total Vehicle 
Revenue Miles 

 Total Vehicle 
Revenue Hours 

 Total Passenger 
Miles 

 Total Operating 
Costs  $ from VRM  $from OPCOST  Total Generated 

 Total ($)Due to 
Jursd Before 
Tier 2 
Deduction 

 Tier II 
Operator 
Deduction 

 Total ($)Due to 
Jurisdiction 

Glendale MB 871,699              100,417                  1,127,888            10,012,370          611,080.66      8,770                      619,851$                   619,851             (82,378)          537,473                  

Pasadena MB 739,633              71,223                    1,905,376            6,777,893            518,499.41      36,974                    555,473$                   555,473             (73,822)          481,651                  
LADOT COMMUNITY DASH MB 4,118,894 292,898 11,327,239 40,076,119 2,887,437        220,998                  3,108,436$                3,108,436          (413,110)        2,695,326               
LADOT DEPARTMENT OF AGING DR 169,282 28,228 306,343 3,955,395 118,670           1,638                      120,308$                   120,308             120,308                  
Total LADOT 4,288,176 321,126 11,633,582 44,031,514 3,006,108        222,636                  3,228,744$                3,228,744          2,815,634               

-                    -                          
Total NTD 5307 Funds 5,899,508           492,766                  14,666,846          60,821,777          4,135,688        268,380                  4,404,068                  4,404,068          (569,310)        3,834,758               

-                    
FY24 Revenue Mile Rate *
FY24 Passenger Mile Rate

                        0.7010226 
                        0.0690283 



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 15.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Michael Whittiker, Community Services Director  CS  Operations
 
Subject:          CONSIDER APPROVING A CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MERCHANT
LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC., TO LASER LEVEL THE BASEBALL DIAMOND INFIELDS AT CARSON,
DOLPHIN, AND DOMINGUEZ PARKS (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

The existing baseball diamond infields at Carson, Dominguez and Dolphin Parks are in poor playing condition due
to excessive play, weather, and erosion. To restore these City ball fields to optimal playing condition, staff has
selected Merchant Landscape Services, Inc. (Merchant) to bring the necessary amount of infield mix and laser level
the surface of the baseball diamond infields. Staff recommends the City Council approve the proposed Contract
Services Agreement with Merchant to perform this task at Carson, Dominguez and Dolphin Parks (including one
infield at Carson Park, one at Dominguez Park and two at Dolphin Park, for a total of four infields) for a total
amount not to exceed $97,840.00 ($24,460.00 per field).

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

1. APPROVE the proposed Contract Services Agreement between the City of Carson and Merchant Landscape
Services, Inc., to provide laser leveling services for the baseball fields at Carson, Dominguez and Dolphin
Parks for a not-to-exceed Contract Sum of $97,840.00 (Exhibit No. 1; "Agreement").

2. AUTHORIZE the City Manager to execute the Agreement following approval as to form by the City Attorney.

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE any other action the City Council deems appropriate and consistent with the requirements of applicable law.

IV. BACKGROUND

The City of Carson is responsible for the maintenance of 21 baseball diamonds throughout 10 City parks. Through
normal use, ruts can develop around the bases and uneven areas can be caused by extensive play, erosion, and
weather events. Laser leveling helps to address these issues and restores the fields to a smooth, even condition.
Laser leveling is a precise and efficient method to grade fields which ensures optimal play ability and safety for all
users.

701 East Carson Street



To address the need for leveling of City ball fields, staff issued a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) 24-006. Only
one proposal was received in response to the RFP, and during the job walk the vendor disclosed its lack of
experience for the magnitude of the scope requested. The proposal further confirmed limited equipment and
staffing that would not be sufficient for the City’s needs based on the requirements outlined in the scope of work.
Accordingly, the City rejected all proposals pursuant to CMC 2611(l), and no award was made pursuant to the RFP.

Due to the lack of an award made pursuant to the RFP and based on the Purchasing Manager determination that
these services constitute professional services as defined in CMC 2601(n) because of the high degree of technical
or individual skill involved, staff proceeded to issue notice to a number of potential vendors adequate to permit
reasonable competition consistent with the nature and requirements of the procurement pursuant to CMC 2611(c)
(1)(iii).

Among other responses to this notice, City staff received a proposal from Merchant Landscape Services, Inc.
(Merchant), a reputable contractor with experience in field leveling and maintenance. Merchant has provided
evidence that it possesses the expertise and experience to perform the requisite professional services. The
recommended draft Agreement (Exhibit No. 1) was prepared based on Merchant’s proposal.

The proposed scope of work set forth in the Agreement includes:

Laser leveling of the following City baseball/softball infields: (1) Dolphin Park Field #1; (2) Dolphin Park Field
#2; (3) Dominguez Park Field #1; and (4) Carson Park Field #1.
Providing 50 tons of Pro Gold Mix with Turf face for each field, for a total of 200 tons.
Providing labor to install the Pro Gold Mix, remove and re-install all field hardware (e.g., base pegs, pitching
rubbers, home plates), rototill and prepare the fields for laser leveling, and otherwise complete the services
for all fields.
Provide all necessary equipment, tools, materials and supplies to complete the services for all fields.

In March 2024, Hemingway, Stevenson, and Veterans Parks underwent the very same laser leveling with positive
results. Based on daily use and resulting wear on the baseball fields at Carson, Dolphin, and Dominguez Parks,
laser leveling is now needed to restore these fields to safe and optimal conditions.

Staff recommends the City Council approve the proposed Agreement with Merchant to perform this task at Carson,
Dominguez and Dolphin Parks (including one infield at Carson Park, one at Dominguez Park and two at Dolphin
Park, for a total of four infields) for a total amount not to exceed $97,840.00 ($24,460.00 per field). The project is
expected to be completed within 90 business days from City's issuance of a notice to proceed.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

None. Funds are included in the adopted FY 2024 - 2025 budget in Account No. 101-90-970-105-6004 and Account
No. 101-90-970-107-6004.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Merchant Landscape Services, Inc. draft Contract Services Agreement

Prepared by:  Michael Whittiker, Director of Community Services/Recreation/Park Maintenance Department, and
Modesto Bolaños, Landscape and Park Maintenance Superintendent

 

 

 



Attachments

MERCHANT LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC- CONTRACT.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67105517480be5006912fccd%2FMERCHANT%20LANDSCAPE%20SERVICES%20INC-%20%20CONTRACT.pdf?alt=media&token=5e66ae7d-0e78-4287-b969-526babab3a02
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67105517480be5006912fccd%2FMERCHANT%20LANDSCAPE%20SERVICES%20INC-%20%20CONTRACT.pdf?alt=media&token=5e66ae7d-0e78-4287-b969-526babab3a02
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67105517480be5006912fccd%2FMERCHANT%20LANDSCAPE%20SERVICES%20INC-%20%20CONTRACT.pdf?alt=media&token=5e66ae7d-0e78-4287-b969-526babab3a02


CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

By and Between 

CITY OF CARSON 

and 

MERCHANTS LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.



AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARSON AND 

MERCHANTS LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES (herein <Agreement99) is made and 
enteredintothis _4dayoff , 2024 by and between the CITY OF CARSON, a California 
municipal corporation (<City=) and MERCHANTS LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC., a California 
corporation (<Consultant=). City and Consultant are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to 

as <Party= and hereinafter collectively referred to as the <Parties.= 

RECITALS 

A. City has sought the performance of the services defined and described particularly 
in Article 1 of this Agreement. 

B. Consultant, following submission of a proposal or bid for the performance of the 
services defined and described particularly in Article 1 of this Agreement, was selected by the City 
to perform those services. 

C. Pursuant to the City of Carson9s Municipal Code, City has authority to enter into 
and execute this Agreement. 

D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Consultant for performance of those 

services defined and described particularly in Article 1 of this Agreement and desire that the terms 

of that performance be as particularly defined and described herein. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the 

Parties and contained herein and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

1.1 Scope of Services. 

In compliance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Consultant shall provide 
those services specified in the <Scope of Services= attached hereto as Exhibit <A= and incorporated 
herein by this reference, which may be referred to herein as the <services= or <work= hereunder. 
As a material inducement to the City entering into this Agreement, Consultant represents and 

warrants that it has the qualifications, experience, and facilities necessary to properly perform the 
services required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent, and professional manner, and is 
experienced in performing the work and services contemplated herein. Consultant shall at all times 
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services 
described herein. Consultant covenants that it shall follow the highest professional standards in 
performing the work and services required hereunder and that all materials will be both of good 

quality as well as fit for the purpose intended. For purposes of this Agreement, the phrase <highest 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -l-



professional standards= shall mean those standards9 of practice recognized by one or more first- 
class firms performing similar work under similar circumstances. 

1.2 Consultant9s Proposal. 

The Scope of Service shall include the Consultant9s scope of work or bid which shall be 
incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. In the event of any 
inconsistency between the terms of such proposal and this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement 

shall govern. \ 

1.3 Compliance with Law. 

Consultant shall keep itself informed concerning, and shall render all services hereunder in 
accordance with, all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules, and regulations of the City and any 

Federal, State or local governmental entity having jurisdiction in effect at the time service is 

rendered. 

1.4 Licenses, Permits, Fees and Assessments. 

Consultant shall obtain at its sole cost and expense such licenses, permits and approvals as 

may be required by law for the performance of the services required by this Agreement. Consultant 

shall have the sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments and taxes, plus applicable penalties 

and interest, which may be imposed by law and arise from or are necessary for the Consultant9s 

performance of the services required by this Agreement, and shall indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless City, its officers, employees or agents of City, against any such fees, assessments, taxes, 

penalties or interest levied, assessed or imposed against City hereunder. 

1.5 Familiarity with Work. 

By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants that Consultant (i) has thoroughly 

investigated and considered the scope of services to be performed, (ii) has carefully considered 

how the services should be performed, and (iii) fully understands the facilities, difficulties and 

restrictions attending performance of the services under this Agreement. If the services involve 

work upon any site, Consultant warrants that Consultant has or will investigate the site and is or 

will be fully acquainted with the conditions there existing, prior to commencement of services 

hereunder. Should the Consultant discover any latent or unknown conditions, which will materially 

affect the performance of the services hereunder, Consultant shall immediately inform the City of 

such fact and shall not proceed except at Consultant9s risk until written instructions are received 

from the Contract Officer. 

1.6 Care of Work. 

The Consultant shall adopt reasonable methods during the life of the Agreement to furnish 

continuous protection to the work, and the equipment, materials, papers, documents, plans, studies 

and/or other components thereof to prevent losses or damages, and shall be responsible for all such 

damages, to persons or property, until acceptance of the work by City, except such losses or 

damages as may be caused by City9s own negligence. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -2-



1.7 Further Responsibilities of Parties. 

Both parties agree to use reasonable care and diligence to perform their respective 
obligations under this Agreement. Both parties agree to act in good faith to execute all instruments, 
prepare all documents and take all actions as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes 
of this Agreement. Unless hereafter specified, neither party shall be responsible for the service of 

the other. 

1.8 Additional Services. 

City shall have the right at any time during the performance of the services, without 
invalidating this Agreement, to order extra work beyond that specified in the Scope of Services or 
make changes by altering, adding to or deducting from said work. No such extra work may be 
undertaken unless a written order is first given by the Contract Officer to the Consultant, 
incorporating therein any adjustment in (i) the Contract Sum for the actual costs of the extra work, 
and/or (ii) the time to perform this Agreement, which said adjustments are subject to the written 
approval of the Consultant. Any increase in compensation of up to ten percent (10%) of the 

Contract Sum or $25,000, whichever is less; or, in the time to perform of up to one hundred eighty 

(180) days, may be approved by the Contract Officer. Any greater increases, taken either separately 
or cumulatively, must be approved by the City Council. It is expressly understood by Consultant 

that the provisions of this Section shall not apply to services specifically set forth in the Scope of 

Services. Consultant hereby acknowledges that it accepts the risk that the services to be provided 

pursuant to the Scope of Services may be more costly or time consuming than Consultant 

anticipates and that Consultant shall not be entitled to additional compensation therefor. City may 

in its sole and absolute discretion have similar work done by other contractors. No claims for an 

increase in the Contract Sum or time for performance shall be valid unless the procedures 

established in this Section are followed. 

1.9 Special Requirements. 

Additional terms and conditions of this Agreement, if any, which are made a part hereof 

are set forth in the <Special Requirements= attached hereto as Exhibit <B= and incorporated herein 

by this reference. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of Exhibit <B= and any other 

provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit <B= shall govern. 

1.10 Compliance with Labor and Wage Laws. 

The Services are subject to prevailing wages under the Labor Code and as such, the below 

provisions will apply. 

(a) Public Work. The Parties acknowledge that the work to be performed under 

this Agreement is a <public work= as defined in Labor Code Section 1720 and that this Agreement 

is therefore subject to the requirements of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 

1720) of the California Labor Code relating to public works contracts and the rules and regulations 

established by the Department of Industrial Relations (<DIR=) implementing such statutes. The 

work performed under this Agreement is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by 

the DIR. Consultant shall post job site notices, as prescribed by regulation. 

01007,0001/1016882.3 -3-



(b) Registration with DIR. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.1, Consultant 

and all subcontractors must be registered with, and pay an annual fee to, the DIR prior to and 
during the performance of any work under this Agreement. 

(c) Prevailing Wages. Consultant shall pay prevailing wages to the extent 
required by Labor Code Section 1771. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1773.2, copies of the 
prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at City Hall and will be made available to any 
interested party on request. By initiating any work under this Agreement, Consultant 
acknowledges receipt of a copy of the DIR determination of the prevailing rate of per diem wages, 
and Consultant shall post a copy of the same at each job site where work is performed under this 
Agreement. If this Agreement is subject to the payment of federal prevailing wages under the 
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 3141 et seq.), then Consultant shall pay the higher of either the state 
for federal prevailing wage applicable to each laborer. 

(d) Penalty for Failure to Pay Prevailing Wages. Consultant shall comply with 
and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code Sections 1774 and 1775 concerning the payment 
of prevailing rates of wages to workers and the penalties for failure to pay prevailing wages. The 
Consultant shall, as a penalty to the City, forfeit two hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, 
or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing rates as determined by the DIR for 
the work or craft in which the worker is employed for any public work done pursuant to this 
Agreement by Consultant or by any subcontractor. 

(e) Payroll Records. Consultant shall comply with and be bound by the 
provisions of Labor Code Section 1776, which requires Consultant and each subcontractor to: keep 
accurate payroll records and verify such records in writing under penalty of perjury, as specified 
in Section 1776; certify and make such payroll records available for inspection as provided by 
Section 1776; and inform the City of the location of the records. 

(f) Apprentices. Consultant shall comply with and be bound by the provisions 

of Labor Code Sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 and California Code of Regulations Title 8, 

Section 200 et seq. concerning the employment of apprentices on public works projects. Consultant 
shall be responsible for compliance with these aforementioned Sections for all apprenticeable 
occupations. Prior to commencing work under this Agreement, Consultant shall provide City with 
a copy of the information submitted to any applicable apprenticeship program. Within sixty (60) 
days after concluding work pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant and each of its subcontractors 
shall submit to the City a verified statement of the journeyman and apprentice hours performed 

under this Agreement. 

(g) Eight-Hour Work Day. Consultant acknowledges that eight (8) hours labor 

constitutes a legal day9s work. Consultant shall comply with and be bound by Labor Code Section 

1810. 

(h) Penalties for Excess Hours. Consultant shall comply with and be bound by 

the provisions of Labor Code Section 1813 concerning penalties for workers who work excess 

hours. Consultant shall, as a penalty to the City, forfeit twenty-five dollars ($25) for each worker 

employed in the performance of this Agreement by Consultant or by any subcontractor for each 

calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) hours 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -4-



in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions 
of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 3 of the Labor Code. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1815, 

work performed by employees of Consultant in excess of eight (8) hours per day, and forty (40) 

hours during any one week shall be permitted upon public work upon compensation for all hours 
worked in excess of 8 hours per day at not less than one and one-half (1%) times the basic rate of 

pay. 

(i) Workers9 Compensation. California Labor Code Sections 1860 and 3700 
provide that every employer will be required to secure the payment of compensation to its 
employees if it has employees. In accordance with the provisions of California Labor Code Section 
1861, Consultant certifies as follows: 

<TJ am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for workers9 compensation or to undertake self- 
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract.= 

(j) Consultant9s Responsibility for Subcontractors. For every subcontractor 

who will perform work under this Agreement, Consultant shall be responsible for such 
subcontractor9s compliance with Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1720) 
of the California Labor Code, and shall make such compliance a requirement in any contract with 
any subcontractor for work under this Agreement. Consultant shall be required to take all actions 
necessary to enforce such contractual provisions and ensure subcontractor9s compliance, including 
without limitation, conducting a review of the certified payroll records of the subcontractor on a 
periodic basis or upon becoming aware of the failure of the subcontractor to pay his or her workers 
the specified prevailing rate of wages. Consultant shall diligently take corrective action to halt or 
rectify any such failure by any subcontractor. 

ARTICLE 2. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

2.1 Contract Sum. 

Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Consultant the 
amounts specified in the <Schedule of Compensation= attached hereto as Exhibit <C= and 
incorporated herein by this reference. The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual 
expenses, shall not exceed Ninety-Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Forty Dollars ($97,840.00) 
(the <Contract Sum99), unless additional compensation is approved pursuant to Section 1.8. 

2.2 Method of Compensation. 

The method of compensation may include: (i) a lump sum payment upon completion; (11) 
payment in accordance with specified tasks or the percentage of completion of the services, less 
contract retention; (iii) payment for time and materials based upon the Consultant9s rates as 
specified in the Schedule of Compensation, provided that (a) time estimates are provided for the 
performance of sub tasks, (b) contract retention is maintained, and (c) the Contract Sum is not 

exceeded; or (iv) such other methods as may be specified in the Schedule of Compensation. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -5-



2.3 Reimbursable Expenses. 

Compensation may include reimbursement for actual and necessary expenditures for 
reproduction costs, telephone expenses, and travel expenses approved by the Contract Officer in 
advance, or actual subcontractor expenses of an approved subcontractor pursuant to Section 4.5, 
and only if specified in the Schedule of Compensation. The Contract Sum shall include the 
attendance of Consultant at all project meetings reasonably deemed necessary by the City. 
Coordination of the performance of the work with City is a critical component of the services. If 
Consultant is required to attend additional meetings to facilitate such coordination, Consultant 
shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for attending said meetings. 

2.4 Invoices. 

Each month Consultant shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and 
expenses incurred during the preceding month in a form approved by City9s Director of Finance. 
By submitting an invoice for payment under this Agreement, Consultant is certifying compliance 
with all provisions of the Agreement. The invoice shall detail charges for all necessary and actual 
expenses by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, equipment, 
supplies, and sub-contractor contracts. Sub-contractor charges shall also be detailed by such 
categories. Consultant shall not invoice City for any duplicate services performed by more than 

one person. 

City shall independently review each invoice submitted by the Consultant to determine 
whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 
Agreement. Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Consultant 
which are disputed by City, or as provided in Section 7.3, City will use its best efforts to cause 
Consultant to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Consultant9s correct and undisputed 
invoice; however, Consultant acknowledges and agrees that due to City warrant run procedures, 
the City cannot guarantee that payment will occur within this time period. In the event any charges 
or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City to Consultant for 
correction and resubmission. Review and payment by City for any invoice provided by the 
Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any rights or remedies provided herein or any applicable 

law. 

2.5 Waiver. 

Payment to Consultant for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed 
to waive any defects in work performed by Consultant. 

ARTICLE 3. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 

3.1 Time of Essence. 

Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -6-



3.2 Schedule of Performance. 

Consultant shall commence the services pursuant to this Agreement upon receipt of a 
written notice to proceed and shall perform all services within the time period(s) established in the 
<Schedule of Performance= attached hereto as Exhibit <D= and incorporated herein by this 
reference. When requested by the Consultant, extensions to the time period(s) specified in the 
Schedule of Performance may be approved in writing by the Contract Officer but not exceeding 
one hundred eighty (180) days cumulatively. 

3,3 Force Majeure. 

The time period(s) specified in the Schedule of Performance for performance of the 
services rendered pursuant to this Agreement shall be extended because of any delays due to 
unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Consultant, 

including, but not restricted to, acts of God or of the public enemy, unusually severe weather, fires, 
earthquakes, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, 

litigation, and/or acts of any governmental agency, including the City, if the Consultant shall 
within ten (10) days of the commencement of such delay notify the Contract Officer in writing of 
the causes of the delay. The Contract Officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and 
extend the time for performing the services for the period of the enforced delay when and if in the 
judgment of the Contract Officer such delay is justified. The Contract Officer9s determination shall 
be final and conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall Consultant be entitled 
to recover damages against the City for any delay in the performance of this Agreement, however 
caused, Consultant9s sole remedy being extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

3.4 Term. 

Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this Agreement, this Agreement 
shall continue in full force and effect until completion of the services but not exceeding one (1) 
years from the date hereof, except as otherwise provided in the Schedule of Performance (Exhibit 
<D=). 

ARTICLE 4. COORDINATION OF WORK 

4.1 Representatives and Personnel of Consultant. 

The following principals of Consultant (<Principals=) are hereby designated as being the 
principals and representatives of Consultant authorized to act in its behalf with respect to the work 
specified herein and make all decisions in connection therewith: 

Edgar Valdovinos Branch Manager 

(Name) (Title) 

(Name) (Title) 

(Name) (Title) 

01007.0001/1016882,3 -7-



It is expressly understood that the experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of the 

foregoing principals were a substantial inducement for City to enter into this Agreement. 

Therefore, the foregoing principals shall be responsible during the term of this Agreement for 

directing all activities of Consultant and devoting sufficient time to personally supervise the 

services hereunder. All personnel of Consultant, and any authorized agents, shall at all times be 

under the exclusive direction and control of the Principals. For purposes of this Agreement, the 

foregoing Principals may not be replaced nor may their responsibilities be substantially reduced 

by Consultant without the express written approval of City. Additionally, Consultant shall utilize 

only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall make 

every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and continuity of Consultant9s staff and 

subcontractors, if any, assigned to perform the services required under this Agreement. Consultant 

shall notify City of any changes in Consultant9s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to 

perform the services required under this Agreement, prior to and during any such performance. 

4.2 Status of Consultant. 

Consultant shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, or to incur any obligation, 

debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless 

such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in 

writing by City. Consultant shall not at any time or in any manner represent that Consultant or any 

of Consultant9s officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or 

agents of City. Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant9s officers, employees or agents, shall 

obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to 

City9s employees. Consultant expressly waives any claim Consultant may have to any such rights. 

4.3 Contract Officer. 

The Contract Officer shall be Modesto Bolanos, Park Maintenance Superintendent, or such 

other person as may be designated by the City Manager. It shall be the Consultant9s responsibility 

to assure that the Contract Officer is kept informed of the progress of the performance of the 

services and the Consultant shall refer any decisions which must be made by City to the Contract 

Officer. Unless otherwise specified herein, any approval of City required hereunder shall mean the 

approval of the Contract Officer. The Contract Officer shall have authority, if specified in writing 

by the City Manager, to sign all documents on behalf of the City required hereunder to carry out 

the terms of this Agreement. 

4.4 Independent Consultant. 

Neither the City nor any of its employees shall have any control over the manner, mode or 

means by which Consultant, its agents or employees, perform the services required herein, except 

as otherwise set forth herein. City shall have no voice in the selection, discharge, supervision or 

control of Consultant9s employees, servants, representatives or agents, or in fixing their number, 

compensation or hours of service. Consultant shall perform all services required herein as an 

independent contractor of City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent 

contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role. Consultant shall not at any 

time or in any manner represent that it or any of its agents or employees are agents or employees 

of City. City shall not in any way or for any purpose become or be deemed to be a partner of 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -8-



Consultant in its business or otherwise or a joint venturer or a member of any joint enterprise with 

Consultant. 

4.5 Prohibition Against Subcontracting or Assignment. 

The experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of Consultant, its principals and 

employees were a substantial inducement for the City to enter into this Agreement. Therefore, 

Consultant shall not contract with any other entity to perform in whole or in part the services 

required hereunder without the express written approval of the City. In addition, neither this 

Agreement nor any interest herein may be transferred, assigned, conveyed, hypothecated or 

encumbered voluntarily or by operation of law, whether for the benefit of creditors or otherwise, 

without the prior written approval of City. Transfers restricted hereunder shall include the transfer 

to any person or group of persons acting in concert of more than twenty five percent (25%) of the 

present ownership and/or control of Consultant, taking all transfers into account on a cumulative 

basis. In the event of any such unapproved transfer, including any bankruptcy proceeding, this 

Agreement shall be void. No approved transfer shall release the Consultant or any surety of 

Consultant of any liability hereunder without the express consent of City. 

ARTICLE 5. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

5.1 Insurance Coverages. 

The Consultant shall procure and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, in a form and 

content satisfactory to City, during the entire term of this Agreement including any extension 

thereof, the following policies of insurance which shall cover all elected and appointed officers, 

employees and agents of City: 

(a) General Liability Insurance (Coverage Form ISO CGL CG 00 01 or 

equivalent). A policy of comprehensive general liability insurance written on a per occurrence 

basis for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. The policy of insurance shall be in 

an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence or if a general aggregate limit is used, then 

the general aggregate limit shall be twice the occurrence limit. 

(b) Worker9s Compensation Insurance. A policy of worker9s compensation 

insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the laws of the State of California and which 

shall indemnify, insure and provide legal defense for the Consultant against any loss, claim or 

damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by 

or any persons retained by the Consultant in the course of carrying out the work or services 

contemplated in this Agreement, with Employer9s Liability insurance coverage limits of at least 

$1,000,000.00. 

(c) Automotive Insurance (Coverage Form ISO CA 00 01 including <any auto= 

and endorsement CA 0025 or equivalent). A policy of comprehensive automobile liability 

insurance written on a per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage in an amount not less 

than $1,000,000. Said policy shall include coverage for owned, non-owned, leased, hired cars and 

any automobile. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -9-



(d) Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance appropriate to the 

Consultant9s profession, as determined by the City9s Risk Manager, provided that the limits shall 

be no less than $1,000,000 per claim and no less than $1,000,000 general aggregate. This coverage 

may be written on a <claims made= basis, and must include coverage for contractual liability. The 

professional liability insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to 

claims based upon, arising out of or related to services performed under this Agreement. The 

insurance must be maintained for at least 5 consecutive years following the completion of 

Consultant9s services or the termination of this Agreement. During this additional 5-year period, 

Consultant shall annually and upon request of the City submit written evidence of this continuous 

coverage. 

(e) Subcontractors. Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds 

under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and certified endorsements for each 

subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall include all of the requirements stated herein. 

(f) Additional Insurance. Policies of such other insurance, as may be required 

in the Special Requirements in Exhibit <B=. 

(g) Broader Coverages and Higher Limits. Notwithstanding anything else 

herein to the contrary, if Consultant maintains broader coverages and/or higher limits than the 

minimums shown above, the City requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverages and/or 

higher limits maintained by Consultant. 

5.2 General Insurance Requirements. 

All of the above policies of insurance shall be primary insurance and shall name the City, 

its elected and appointed officers, employees and agents as additional insureds and any insurance 

maintained by City or its officers, employees or agents may apply in excess of, and not contribute 

with Consultant9s insurance. The insurer is deemed hereof to waive all rights of subrogation and 

contribution it may have against the City, its officers, employees and agents and their respective 

insurers. Moreover, the insurance policy must specify that where the primary insured does not 

satisfy the self-insured retention, any additional insured may satisfy the self-insured retention. 

All of said policies of insurance shall provide that said insurance may not be amended or 

cancelled by the insurer or any party hereto without providing thirty (30) days prior written notice 

by certified mail return receipt requested to the City. In the event any of said policies of insurance 

are cancelled, the Consultant shall, prior to the cancellation date, submit new evidence of insurance 

in conformance with Section 5.1 to the Contract Officer. 

No work or services under this Agreement shall commence until the Consultant has 

provided the City with Certificates of Insurance, additional insured endorsement forms or 

appropriate insurance binders evidencing the above insurance coverages and said Certificates of 

Insurance or binders are approved by the City. City reserves the right to inspect complete, certified 

copies of and endorsements to all required insurance policies at any time. Any failure to comply 

with the reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches or warranties shall not 

affect coverage provided to City. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -10-



All certificates shall name the City as additional insured (providing the appropriate 
endorsement) and shall conform to the following <cancellation= notice: 

CANCELLATION: 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE 
CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATED THEREOF, 
THE ISSUING COMPANY SHALL MAIL THIRTY (30)-DAY 
ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE TO CERTIFICATE HOLDER 
NAMED HEREIN. 

[to be initialed] fE 
Consultant Initials 

City, its respective elected and appointed officers, directors, officials, employees, agents 

and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities 

Consultant performs; products and completed operations of Consultant; premises owned, occupied 

or used by Consultant; or any automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Consultant. The 

coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City, and their 

respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. Consultant9s 

insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 

except with respect to the limits of the insurer9s liability. 

_ Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At 

the option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 

retentions as respects City or its respective elected or appointed officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers or the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigations, claim administration, defense expenses and claims. The Consultant agrees that the 

requirement to provide insurance shall not be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which 

the Consultant may be held responsible for the payment of damages to any persons or property 

resulting from the Consultant9s activities or the activities of any person or persons for which the 

Consultant is otherwise responsible nor shall it limit the Consultant9s indemnification liabilities as 

provided in Section 5.3. 

In the event the Consultant subcontracts any portion of the work in compliance with 

Section 4.5 of this Agreement, the contract between the Consultant and such subcontractor shall 

require the subcontractor to maintain the same policies of insurance that the Consultant is required 

to maintain pursuant to Section 5.1, and such certificates and endorsements shall be provided to 

City. \ 

5.3 Indemnification. 

To the full extent permitted by law, Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the City, its officers, employees and agents (<Indemnified Parties=) against, and will hold 

and save them and each of them harmless from, any and all actions, either judicial, administrative, 

arbitration or regulatory claims, damages to persons or property, losses, costs, penalties, 

obligations, errors, omissions or liabilities whether actual or threatened (herein <claims or 

liabilities=) that may be asserted or claimed by any person, firm or entity arising out of or in 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -11-



connection with the negligent performance of the work, operations or activities provided herein of 

Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or invitees, or any individual or entity 

for which Consultant is legally liable (<indemnitors=), or arising from Consultant9s or indemnitors9 

reckless or willful misconduct, or arising from Consultant9s or indemnitors9 negligent performance 

of or failure to perform any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement, and in 

connection therewith: 

(a) Consultant will defend any action or actions filed in connection with any of 

said claims or liabilities and will pay all costs and expenses, including legal costs and attorneys9 

fees incurred in connection therewith; 

(b) Consultant will promptly pay any judgment rendered against the City, its 

officers, agents or employees for any such claims or liabilities arising out of or in connection with 

the negligent performance of or failure to perform such work, operations or activities of Consultant 

hereunder; and Consultant agrees to save and hold the City, its officers, agents, and employees 

harmless therefrom; 

(c) In the event the City, its officers, agents or employees is made a party to 

any action or proceeding filed or prosecuted against Consultant for such damages or other claims 

arising out of or in connection with the negligent performance of or failure to perform the work, 

operation or activities of Consultant hereunder, Consultant agrees to pay to the City, its officers, 

agents or employees, any and all costs and expenses incurred by the City, its officers, agents or 

employees in such action or proceeding, including but not limited to, legal costs and attorneys9 

fees. 

Consultant shall incorporate similar indemnity agreements with its subcontractors and if it 

fails to do so Consultant shall be fully responsible to indemnify City hereunder therefore, and 

failure of City to monitor compliance with these provisions shall not be a waiver hereof. This 

indemnification includes claims or liabilities arising from any negligent or wrongful act, error or 

omission, or reckless or willful misconduct of Consultant in the performance of professional 

services hereunder. The provisions of this Section do not apply to claims or liabilities occurring as 

a result of City9s sole negligence or willful acts or omissions, but, to the fullest extent permitted 

by law, shall apply to claims and liabilities resulting in part from City9s negligence, except that 

design professionals9 indemnity hereunder shall be limited to claims and liabilities arising out of 

the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the design professional. The indemnity 

obligation shall be binding on successors and assigns of Consultant and shall survive termination 

of this Agreement. 

5.4 Sufficiency of Insurer. 

Insurance required by this Agreement shall be satisfactory only if issued by companies 

qualified to do business in California, rated <A-= or better in the most recent edition of Best Rating 

Guide, The Key Rating Guide or in the Federal Register, and only if they are ofa financial category 

Class VII or better, unless such requirements are waived by the Risk Manager of the City (<Risk 

Manager=) due to unique circumstances. If this Agreement continues for more than 3 years 

duration, or in the event the risk manager determines that the work or services to be performed 

under this Agreement creates an increased or decreased risk of loss to the City, the Consultant 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -12-



agrees that the minimum limits of the insurance policies may be changed accordingly upon receipt 

of written notice from the Risk Manager. 

ARTICLE 6. RECORDS, REPORTS, AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION 

6.1 Records. 

Consultant shall keep, and require subcontractors to keep, such ledgers, books of accounts, 

invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, reports, studies or other documents relating to the 

disbursements charged to City and services performed hereunder (the <books and records=), as 

shall be necessary to perform the services required by this Agreement and enable the Contract 

Officer to evaluate the performance of such services. Any and all such documents shall be 

maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be complete and 

detailed. The Contract Officer shall have full and free access to such books and records at all times 

during normal business hours of City, including the right to inspect, copy, audit and make records 

and transcripts from such records. Such records shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years 

following completion of the services hereunder, and the City shall have access to such records in 

the event any audit is required. In the event of dissolution of Consultant9s business, custody of the 

books and records may be given to City, and access shall be provided by Consultant9s successor 

in interest. Notwithstanding the above, the Consultant shall fully cooperate with the City in 

providing access to the books and records if a public records request is made and disclosure is 

required by law including but not limited to the California Public Records Act. 

6.2 Reports. 

Consultant shall periodically prepare and submit to the Contract Officer such reports 

concerning the performance of the services required by this Agreement as the Contract Officer 

shall require. Consultant hereby acknowledges that the City is greatly concerned about the cost of 

work and services to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. For this reason, Consultant agrees 

that if Consultant becomes aware of any facts, circumstances, techniques, or events that may or 

will materially increase or decrease the cost of the work or services contemplated herein or, if 

Consultant is providing design services, the cost of the project being designed, Consultant shall 

promptly notify the Contract Officer of said fact, circumstance, technique or event and the 

estimated increased or decreased cost related thereto and, if Consultant is providing design 

services, the estimated increased or decreased cost estimate for the project being designed. 

6.3 Ownership of Documents. 

All drawings, specifications, maps, designs, photographs, studies, surveys, data, notes, 

computer files, reports, records, documents and other materials (the <documents and materials=) 

prepared by Consultant, its employees, subcontractors and agents in the performance of this 

Agreement shall be the property of City and shall be delivered to City upon request of the Contract 

Officer or upon the termination of this Agreement, and Consultant shall have no claim for further 

employment or additional compensation as a result of the exercise by City of its full rights of 

ownership use, reuse, or assignment of the documents and materials hereunder. Any use, reuse or 

assignment of such completed documents for other projects and/or use of uncompleted documents 

without specific written authorization by the Consultant will be at the City9s sole risk and without 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -13-



liability to Consultant, and Consultant9s guarantee and warranties shall not extend to such use, 

reuse or assignment. Consultant may retain copies of such documents for its own use. Consultant 

shall have the right to use the concepts embodied therein. All subcontractors shall provide for 

assignment to City of any documents or materials prepared by them, and in the event Consultant 

fails to secure such assignment, Consultant shall indemnify City for all damages resulting 

therefrom. Moreover, with respect to any documents and materials that may qualify as <works 

made for hire= as defined in 17 U.S.C. § 101, such documents and materials are hereby deemed 

<works made for hire= for the City. 

6.4 Confidentiality and Release of Information. 

(a) All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in 

performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the 

public domain or already known to Consultant. Consultant shall not release or disclose any such 

information or work product to persons or entities other than City without prior written 

authorization from the Contract Officer. 

(b) Consultant, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, 

without prior written authorization from the Contract Officer or unless requested by the City 

Attorney, voluntarily provide documents, declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, 

response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this 

Agreement. Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered <voluntary= provided 

Consultant gives City notice of such court order or subpoena. 

(c) If Consultant, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 

Consultant, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City 

shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and 

fees, including attorneys fees, caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant9s conduct. 

(d) Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, 

employees, agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of 

deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery 

request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work performed 

there under. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant or be present at 

any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with City and 

to provide City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 

Consultant, However, this right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by 

City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 

ARTICLE 7. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND TERMINATION 

7A California Law. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed both as to validity and to 

performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Legal actions 

concerning any dispute, claim or matter arising out of or in relation to this Agreement shall be 

instituted in the Superior Court of the County of Los Angeles, State of California, or any other 

appropriate court in such county, and Consultant covenants and agrees to submit to the personal 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -14-



jurisdiction of such court in the event of such action. In the event of litigation in a U.S. District 

Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in the County of Los 

Angeles, State of California. 

7.2 Disputes; Default. 

In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the City shall 

not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Consultant for any work performed after 

the date of default. Instead, the City may give notice to Consultant of the default and the reasons 

for the default. The notice shall include the timeframe in which Consultant may cure the default. 

This timeframe is presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if 

circumstances warrant. During the period of time that Consultant is in default, the City shall hold 

all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on the invoices. In the 

alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or all of the outstanding invoices 

during the period of default. If Consultant does not cure the default, the City may take necessary 

steps to terminate this Agreement under this Article. Any failure on the part of the City to give 

notice of the Consultant9s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City9s legal rights 

or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 

73 Retention of Funds. 

Consultant hereby authorizes City to deduct from any amount payable to Consultant 

(whether or not arising out of this Agreement) (i) any amounts the payment of which may be in 

dispute hereunder or which are necessary to compensate City for any losses, costs, liabilities, or 

damages suffered by City, and (ii) all amounts for which City may be liable to third parties, by 

reason of Consultant9s acts or omissions in performing or failing to perform Consultant9s 

obligation under this Agreement. In the event that any claim is made by a third party, the amount 

or validity of which is disputed by Consultant, or any indebtedness shall exist which shall appear 

to be the basis for a claim of lien, City may withhold from any payment due, without liability for 

interest because of such withholding, an amount sufficient to cover such claim. The failure of City 

to exercise such right to deduct or to withhold shall not, however, affect the obligations of the 

Consultant to insure, indemnify, and protect City as elsewhere provided herein. 

74 Waiver. 

Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiver by any 

party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other 

provision or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement. 

Acceptance by City of any work or services by Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any of 

the provisions of this Agreement. No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or remedy by 

a non-defaulting party on any default shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver. 

Any waiver by either party of any default must be in writing and shall not be a waiver of any other 

default concerning the same or any other provision of this Agreement. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -15-



75 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative. 

Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this 

Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are cumulative and the exercise by either party 

of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same or 

different times, of any other rights or remedies for the same default or any other default by the 

other party. 

7.6 Legal Action. 

In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party may take legal action, in law or in 

equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to compel 

specific performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or injunctive relief, or to obtain any 

other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any contrary 

provision herein, Consultant shall file a statutory claim pursuant to Government Code Sections 

905 et. seq. and 910 et. seq., in order to pursue a legal action under this Agreement. 

77 Termination Prior to Expiration of Term. 

This Section shall govern any termination of this Agreement except as specifically 

provided in the following Section for termination for cause. The City reserves the right to terminate 

this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon thirty (30) days9 written notice to 

Consultant, except that where termination is due to the fault of the Consultant, the period of notice 

may be such shorter time as may be determined by the Contract Officer. In addition, the Consultant 

reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon sixty (60) 

days9 written notice to City, except that where termination is due to the fault of the City, the period 

of notice may be such shorter time as the Consultant may determine. Upon receipt of any notice 

of termination, Consultant shall immediately cease all services hereunder except such as may be 

specifically approved by the Contract Officer. Except where the Consultant has initiated 

termination, the Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for all services rendered prior to the 

effective date of the notice of termination and for any services authorized by the Contract Officer 

thereafter in accordance with the Schedule of Compensation or such as may be approved by the 

Contract Officer, except as provided in Section 7.3. In the event the Consultant has initiated 

termination, the Consultant shall be entitled to compensation only for the reasonable value of the 

work product actually produced hereunder. In the event of termination without cause pursuant to 

this Section, the terminating party need not provide the non-terminating party with the opportunity 

to cure pursuant to Section 7.2. 

7.8 Termination for Default of Consultant. 

If termination is due to the failure of the Consultant to fulfill its obligations under this 

Agreement, City may, after compliance with the provisions of Section 7.2, take over the work and 

prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and the Consultant shall be liable to 

the extent that the total cost for completion of the services required hereunder exceeds the 

compensation herein stipulated (provided that the City shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate such 

damages), and City may withhold any payments to the Consultant for the purpose of set-off or 

partial payment of the amounts owed the City as previously stated. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -16-



719 Attorneys9 Fees. 

If either party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend or made a party to any 

action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action 

or proceeding, in addition to any other relief which may be granted, whether legal or equitable, 

shall be entitled to reasonable attorney9s fees. Attorney9s fees shall include attorney9s fees on any 

appeal, and in addition a party entitled to attorney9s fees shall be entitled to all other reasonable 

costs for investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery and all other necessary costs 

the court allows which are incurred in such litigation. All such fees shall be deemed to have accrued 

on commencement of such action and shall be enforceable whether or not such action is prosecuted 

to judgment. 

ARTICLE 8. CITY OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES: NON-DISCRIMINATION 

8.1 Non-liability of City Officers and Employees. 

No officer or employee of the City shall be personally liable to the Consultant, or any 

successor in interest, in the event of any default or breach by the City or for any amount which 

may become due to the Consultant or to its successor, or for breach of any obligation of the terms 

of this Agreement. 

8.2 Conflict of Interest. 

Consultant covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall 

acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests 

of City or which would in any way hinder Consultant's performance of services under this 

Agreement. Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no person 

having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or subcontractor 

without the express written consent of the Contract Officer. Consultant agrees to at all times avoid 

conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the 

performance of this Agreement. 

No officer or employee of the City shall have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in 

this Agreement nor shall any such officer or employee participate in any decision relating to the 

Agreement which affects her/his financial interest or the financial interest of any corporation, 

partnership or association in which (s)he is, directly or indirectly, interested, in violation of any 

State statute or regulation. The Consultant warrants that it has not paid or given and will not pay 

or give any third party any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement. 

8.3 Covenant Against Discrimination. 

Consultant covenants that, by and for itself, its heirs, executors, assigns, and all persons 

claiming under or through them, that there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of, 

any person or group of persons on account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, gender, sexual 

orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry or other protected class in the performance of 

this Agreement. Consultant shall take affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and 

that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, creed, religion, 

sex, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry or other protected class. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -17-



8.4 Unauthorized Aliens. 

Consultant hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the Federal 

Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, and in connection 

therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein. Should Consultant so employ 

such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this Agreement, 

and should any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of unauthorized aliens, 

Consultant hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions 

imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorneys9 fees, incurred by City. 

ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

9.1 Notices. 

Any notice, demand, request, document, consent, approval, or communication either party 

desires or is required to give to the other party or any other person shall be in writing and either 

served personally or sent by prepaid, first-class mail, in the case of the City, to the City Manager 

and to the attention of the Contract Officer (with her/his name and City title), City of Carson, 701 

East Carson, Carson, California 90745 and in the case of the Consultant, to the person(s) at the 

address designated on the execution page of this Agreement. Either party may change its address 

by notifying the other party of the change of address in writing. Notice shall be deemed 

communicated at the time personally delivered or in seventy-two (72) hours from the time of 

mailing if mailed as provided in this Section. 

9.2 Interpretation. 

The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaning of the 

language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of 

this Agreement or any other rule of construction which might otherwise apply. 

9.3 Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such 

counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, whether the signatures are originals, 

electronic, facsimiles or digital. All such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the 

same Agreement. 

9.4 Integration; Amendment. 

This Agreement including the attachments hereto is the entire, complete and exclusive 

expression of the understanding of the parties. It is understood that there are no oral agreements 

between the parties hereto affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels 

any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, between 

the parties, and none shall be used to interpret this Agreement. No amendment to or modification 

of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Consultant and by 

the City Council. The parties agree that this requirement for written modifications cannot be 

waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -18-



9.5 Severability. 

In the event that any one or more of the phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or sections 

contained in this Agreement shall be declared invalid or unenforceable by a valid judgment or 

decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any 

of the remaining phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or sections of this Agreement which are 

hereby declared as severable and shall be interpreted to carry out the intent of the parties hereunder 

unless the invalid provision is so material that its invalidity deprives either party of the basic benefit 

of their bargain or renders this Agreement meaningless. 

9.6 Warranty & Representation of Non-Collusion. 

No official, officer, or employee of City has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 

Agreement, nor shall any official, officer, or employee of City participate in any decision relating 

to this Agreement which may affect his/her financial interest or the financial interest of any 

corporation, partnership, or association in which (s)he is directly or indirectly interested, or in 

violation of any corporation, partnership, or association in which (s)he is directly or indirectly 

interested, or in violation of any State or municipal statute or regulation. The determination of 

<financial interest= shall be consistent with State law and shall not include interests found to be 

<remote= or <non-interests= pursuant to Government Code Sections 1091 or 1091.5. Consultant 

warrants and represents that it has not paid or given, and will not pay or give, to any third party 

including, but not limited to, any City official, officer, or employee, any money, consideration, or 

other thing of value as a result or consequence of obtaining or being awarded any agreement. 

Consultant further warrants and represents that (s)he/it has not engaged in any act(s), omission(s), 

or other conduct or collusion that would result in the payment of any money, consideration, or 

other thing of value to any third party including, but not limited to, any City official, officer, or 

employee, as a result of consequence of obtaining or being awarded any agreement. Consultant is 

aware of and understands that any such act(s), omission(s) or other conduct resulting in such 

payment of money, consideration, or other thing of value will render this Agreement void and of 

no force or effect. 

Consultant9s Authorized Initials _, 

9.7 Corporate Authority. 

The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that (i) such 

party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this 

Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing this Agreement, such party is formally 

bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the entering into this Agreement does not 

violate any provision of any other Agreement to which said party is bound. This Agreement shall 

be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE} 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -19-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 

CITY: 

CITY OF CARSON, a municipal corporation 

David C. Roberts, Jr., City Manager 
ATTEST: 

Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP 

Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney 

[brj] 
CONSULTANT: 

MERCHANTS LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC., a 
California corporation 

Fs 

By: 4 LZ, Z LE ge 444~ 

' Name: Mark Brower 

Title: President 

To 
By: (Ye Vas | Se 

Name: Donna Brower 
Title: Secretary 

Address: 1510 §. Lyon St. 
Santa Ana, CA. 92705 

Two corporate officer signatures required when Consultant is a corporation, with one signature required from 

each of the following groups: 1) Chairman of the Board, President or any Vice President; and 2) Secretary, any 

Assistant Secretary, Chief Financial Officer or any Assistant Treasurer. CONSULTANT9S SIGNATURES 

SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS 
MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR 
REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO CONSULTANT9S BUSINESS ENTITY. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 -20-



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
SARK RA RANA RASA OKOKER OR OR ORI SORS OK SOR OH SER SCA OUSORS OLS COR OHS KRIS SORSOKSOPSE OR SORSORSORROE LOR ESCR SRSA ASG, 

, 

6 

; State of California 

© County of Orange 

& September 30, 2024 Nadine Rodriguez, Notary Public 
; On before me g 'y 
by Date , Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer 

& Mark C. Brower 
¢ ll d , 
: persona y appeare Name(s) of Signer(s) 

; 

; who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
& evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 

NADINE RODRIGUEZ 
Notary Public - California 

Orange County 
a 

Place Notary Seal Above 

E
N
 

Description of Attached Document 

er Commission + 2348721 
Ge My Comm. Expires Feb 24, 2025 p 

TY 

8Y
NN
 

OPTIONAL 
Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document 

and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. 

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he/she/hey executed the same in 

his/her/their authorized capacity(ies),, and that by 
his/herAheir signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 

person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the 

laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. =, 

Signature Ulli /: ly UM Cla, 
Signature of Notary Public~ ¬ 

Pa 
Title or Type of Document: 

Document Date: aa
n 

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: 

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) 

Signer9s Name: 

a 

Fil 
Signer9s-Name: 

a 
ke 

Ig 

& 
8 

: O Corporate Officer 4 Title(s): C+Corporate Officer 4 Title(s): 

: C) Individual peace 0 Individual RIGHT THUMBPRINT 

& O Partner 4 C Limited DO General | Top of thurnb here O Partner 4 C Limited 0 General | Top of thumb here 

8 O Attorney in Fact a O Attorney in Fact 

G QO Trustee . O Trustee 

8 O Guardian or Conservator . QO Guardian or Conservator 

© Other: a 4 Other: 

8 Signeys Representing: Signer Is Representing: 

RECEOESEOe BLASS SASAKI KIRK SA SRSA ISAISLSLIEK SISAL SLES LARS SRLS SEP LIEK LSE IIS LILIA, 

© 2010 National Notary Association - NationalNotary.org - 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) 

CIVIL CODE § 1189 

C2 

V
Q
O
Q
O
I
G
,
 

4 
D
I
X
 

Item #5907



EXHIBIT <A= 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

I. Consultant will perform the following Services related to exterior landscape 

maintenance of City athletic infields: 

A. Laser leveling of the following City baseball/softball infields: (1) Dolphin Park 

Field #1; (2) Dolphin Park Field #2; (3) Dominguez Park Field #1; and (4) Carson 

Park Field #1; 

B. Provide 50 tons of Pro Gold Mix with Turf face for each field, for a total of 200 

tons; 

C. Provide labor to install the Pro Gold Mix, remove and re-install all field hardware 

(e.g., base pegs, pitching rubbers, home plates), rototill and prepare the fields for 

laser leveling, and otherwise complete the services for all fields. 

D. Provide all necessary equipment, tools, materials and supplies to complete the 

services for all fields. 

I. All work product is subject to review and acceptance by the City, and must be revised 

by the Consultant without additional charge to the City until found satisfactory and 

accepted by City. 

IU. Consultant will utilize the following personnel to accomplish the Services: 

A. Edgar Valdovinos, Branch Manager 

B. Manuel Castillo, Laborer 

Cc, Will Castro, Heavy Equipment Operator 

01007.0001/1016882.3 A-l



EXHIBIT <B= 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 

(Superseding Contract Boilerplate) 

I. The first paragraph of Section 2.4 (Invoices) is hereby amended as follows: 

<Upon completion of the work, Each-+menth-Consultant shall furnish to City an 

original invoice for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding 

month in a form approved by City9s Director of Finance. By submitting an invoice 

for payment under this Agreement, Consultant is certifying compliance with all 

provisions of the Agreement. The invoice shall detail charges for all necessary and 

actual expenses by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, 

materials, equipment, supplies, and sub-contractor contracts. Sub-contractor 

charges shall also be detailed by such categories. Consultant shall not invoice City 

for any duplicate services performed by more than one person.= 

Il. Subsection (d) (Professional Liability) of Section 5.1 (Insurance Coverages) is hereby 

deleted. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 B-1



I. Consul 

EXHIBIT <C= 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION 

tant shall complete the Services for the following fixed fee amounts, inclusive 

of all costs and expenses: 

A. 

Il. Within 

Officer 

Dolphin Park Field #1: $24,460, consisting of the following sub-budgets: 

1. Field Laser Leveling: $5,500; 

2. 50 tons of Pro Gold Mix with Turf fact at $200 per ton: $10,000; 

3. Labor to install brick dust, roto till, remove hardware, and all other work: 

$8,960. 

Dolphin Park Field #2: $24,460, consisting of the following sub-budgets: 

1. Field Laser Leveling: $5,500; 

2. 50 tons of Pro Gold Mix with Turf fact at $200 per ton: $10,000; 

3. Labor to install brick dust, roto till, remove hardware, and all other work: 

$8,960. 

Dominguez Park Field #1: $24,460, consisting of the following sub-budgets: 

1. Field Laser Leveling: $5,500; 

2. 50 tons of Pro Gold Mix with Turf fact at $200 per ton: $10,000; 

3; Labor to install brick dust, roto till, remove hardware, and all other work: 

$8,960. 

Carson Park Field #1: $24,460, consisting of the following sub-budgets: 

1. Field Laser Leveling: $5,500; 

2. 50 tons of Pro Gold Mix with Turf fact at $200 per ton: $10,000; 

3. Labor to install brick dust, roto till, remove hardware, and all other work: 

$8,960. 

the budgeted amounts for each Task, and with the approval of the Contract 

, funds may be shifted from one Task sub-budget to another so long as the 

Contract Sum is not exceeded per Section 2.1, unless Additional Services are 

approved per Section 2.3. 

Il. The City will compensate Consultant for the Services performed upon submission of 

a valid 

01007.0001/1016882.3 

invoice. Each invoice is to include, to the extent applicable: 

C-1



A. Line items for all personnel describing the work performed and the applicable fixed 

fee. 

B. Line items for all materials and equipment properly charged to the Services. 

C. Line items for all approved subcontractor labor, supplies, equipment, materials, and 

travel properly charged to the Services. 

IV. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $97,840 as provided in 

Section 2.1 of this Agreement. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 C-2



EXHIBIT <D= 
SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE 

1. Consultant shall perform all Services timely in accordance with the following 

schedule: 

Days to Perform 

A. Completion of all Services 90 City business days (M-F, excluding holidays) 

from City9s Notice to Proceed 

I. The Contract Officer may approve extensions for performance of the services in 

accordance with Section 3.2. 

01007.0001/1016882.3 D-1



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 16.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Michael Whittiker, Community Services Director  CS  Community Services
 
Subject:          CONSIDER AWARDING A CONTRACT TO DON'S AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES TO PROVIDE
AUDIOVISUAL SERVICES AT THE CARSON EVENT CENTER (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On August 29, 2024, the City issued Request for Proposals (RFP) 24-017 to find qualified vendors to provide
audiovisual rental products and services at the Carson Event Center (Exhibit No. 1). When the RFP closed on
September 23, 2024, four (4) proposals were received (Exhibit No. 2). Upon completion of an extensive review and
evaluation, Don’s Audio Visual Services was selected as the most qualified vendor (Exhibit No. 3 and Exhibit No. 4)
and is recommended to be awarded a three (3) year Contract Services Agreement with two (2) optional one-year
extensions and a not-to-exceed Contract Sum of $225,000.00 over the initial three-year term (Exhibit No. 5).

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

1. AWARD and APPROVE the Contract Services Agreement by and between the City of Carson and Donald
Alan Sprague dba Don’s Audio Visual Services (Exhibit No. 5; "Agreement"); and

2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute the Agreement following approval as to form by the City Attorney.

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action City Council deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

The Carson Event Center offers 40,000 square feet of versatile space for public and private events. The City offers
clients contracted audiovisual rental products and services for their events such as meetings, conferences,
weddings, and parties.

On August 29, 2024, the City issued Request for Proposals (RFP) 24-017 to find qualified vendors to provide these
contracted audiovisual products and services at the Carson Event Center. Four (4) proposals were received
once RFP 24-017 closed on September 23, 2024. Pursuant to CMC 2611(b), the proposals were ranked by a staff
evaluation panel based on the evaluation criteria set forth in the RFP (pg. 9), including relevant local experience,
credentials, experience and understanding with similar projects, service capabilities and capacity, past
performance record, and prior experience with the City.

701 East Carson Street



The proposal from Don’s Audio Visual Services responded to the requirements of the RFP and was ranked the
highest of the proposals (Exhibit No. 3). It is therefore recommended for the contract award. This proposed
contract would allow the City (irrespective of any Event Center patron event-related request) and external
organizations and private clients (indirectly, via making a request to the City with the City making the purchase from
Don's in the City's discretion), to rent audiovisual equipment and obtain related services from Don's on an as-
needed basis for events and functions held at City facilities, at the rates outlined in the proposal (Exhibit No. 4) and
the Agreement (Exhibit No. 5).

The proposed contract term is three (3) years with two (2) optional one-year extensions at an annual not-to-exceed
sum of $75,000.00 for a three-year contract sum of $225,000.00.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

Funds for this service were included in the adopted FY 2024 – 2025 budget and will be incorporated in future
budgets in Account No. 101-90-930-101-6004.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. RFP 24-017 Packet
2. RFP 24-017 Bid Register
3. RFP 24-017 Proposal Rankings Summary
4. Don’s Audio Visual Services Proposal for RFP 24-017
5. Proposed Contract Services Agreement between City of Carson and Don’s Audio Visual Services, Inc.

Prepared by: Michael Whittiker, Jr., Director of Community Services/Recreation/Park Maintenance Department and
Toni Costanzo, A/Principal Administrative Analyst

 

 

Attachments

RFP 24-017 Packet.pdf
RFP 24-017 Bid Register.pdf
RFP 24-017 Proposal Rankings Summary.pdf
Don’s Audio Visual Services Proposal for RFP 24-017.pdf
Don's AV Contract 2025 (draft 11.6.24)(1027362.3).pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Packet.pdf?alt=media&token=4ed7051e-5350-4be9-abfe-8bab7d3eb64e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Packet.pdf?alt=media&token=4ed7051e-5350-4be9-abfe-8bab7d3eb64e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Packet.pdf?alt=media&token=4ed7051e-5350-4be9-abfe-8bab7d3eb64e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Bid%20Register.pdf?alt=media&token=f790f503-c9f5-44e9-957a-3b85c471fac1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Bid%20Register.pdf?alt=media&token=f790f503-c9f5-44e9-957a-3b85c471fac1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Bid%20Register.pdf?alt=media&token=f790f503-c9f5-44e9-957a-3b85c471fac1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Proposal%20Rankings%20Summary.pdf?alt=media&token=233c4657-8b63-4212-b4a2-59365e598662
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Proposal%20Rankings%20Summary.pdf?alt=media&token=233c4657-8b63-4212-b4a2-59365e598662
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FRFP%2024-017%20Proposal%20Rankings%20Summary.pdf?alt=media&token=233c4657-8b63-4212-b4a2-59365e598662
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FDon%E2%80%99s%20Audio%20Visual%20Services%20Proposal%20for%20RFP%2024-017.pdf?alt=media&token=ecda5bbe-8048-42fe-a207-de62e70c6a94
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FDon%E2%80%99s%20Audio%20Visual%20Services%20Proposal%20for%20RFP%2024-017.pdf?alt=media&token=ecda5bbe-8048-42fe-a207-de62e70c6a94
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FDon%E2%80%99s%20Audio%20Visual%20Services%20Proposal%20for%20RFP%2024-017.pdf?alt=media&token=ecda5bbe-8048-42fe-a207-de62e70c6a94
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FDon's%20AV%20Contract%202025%20(draft%2011.6.24)(1027362.3).pdf?alt=media&token=1fa7bf7c-7614-4509-8731-a819841e7cc3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FDon's%20AV%20Contract%202025%20(draft%2011.6.24)(1027362.3).pdf?alt=media&token=1fa7bf7c-7614-4509-8731-a819841e7cc3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F66fd86564b31880051c952c5%2FDon's%20AV%20Contract%202025%20(draft%2011.6.24)(1027362.3).pdf?alt=media&token=1fa7bf7c-7614-4509-8731-a819841e7cc3


City of Carson 
   Purchasing Division 
   701 E. Carson Street 
   Carson, CA 90745 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 24-017 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Purchasing Manager of the City of Carson will accept proposals for: 
 

CARSON EVEN CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL  
AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
 

ISSUE DATE:  08/29/2024 
PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING:  09/05/2024 | 10:00 AM 
QUESTIONS DEADLINE:  09/12/2024 | 10:00 AM 
PROPOSAL DEADLINE:  09/23/2024 | 10:00 AM 

 
PROPOSALS MUST BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY 

 
REGISTER AS A VENDOR AND SUBMIT ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS AT: 
https://www.planetbids.com/portal/portal.cfm?CompanyID=32461 
 
No late proposals will be accepted. Proposals received after the deadline established will 
not be considered for this project. Proposers are strongly encouraged to carefully read the 
entire RFP and are solely responsible for the timely submittal of complete proposals. The 
City reserves the sole right to evaluate the proposals submitted, waive any irregularity 
therein, approve sub-consultants (if applicable), and select or reject proposals, should such 
action be deemed in the best interests of the City. 
 
All questions or requests for interpretation regarding this solicitation must be submitted 
online through PlanetBids by the date and time specified. Any City response for this 
solicitation not submitted through PlanetBids is unauthorized and will be considered invalid. 
Any attempt to lobby members of the Carson City Council, or City of Carson staff during the 
release of the solicitation and the announcement of the award determination, may result in 
disqualification from the selection process.  
 
Please note, in the event of a conflict between any details included in this RFP and any 
details in PlanetBids, this RFP 24-017 shall control and govern. 
 
To view other bidding opportunities from the City of Carons, please visit:  
https://ci.carson.ca.su/Finance/Bidding.aspx

https://www.planetbids.com/portal/portal.cfm?CompanyID=32461
https://ci.carson.ca.su/Finance/Bidding.aspx


RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2  

RFP NO. 24-017 
CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
 
Table of Contents 

 
A. Summary         3 

 
B. Pre-Proposal Meeting       4 

 
C. Specific Proposal Requirements      5 

 
D. Questions and Addenda       6  

 
E. Proposer Qualifications       6  
 
F. Project Location & Schedule      6 

 
G. Insurance         6 

 
H. Pricing          8 
 
I. Proposal Opening, Document Review and Award of Contract  8 

 
 

Project Scope of Services       9 
 

 
Additional Documents Available as Downloads from PlanetBids 
 

1. Affidavit of Non-Federal Lobbyist Requirements 
2. Affidavit of Non-Collusion and Non-Discrimination 
3. Client Reference List 
4. Debarment and Suspension Certification 
5. W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification 
6. Acknowledgement of Insurance Endorsements 
7. Instructions for Entering Electronic Bids 
8. Insurance Checklist 
9. Contract Services Agreement Long Form (for reference) 

 
  



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

3  

A.  SUMMARY 
 

The City of Carson (hereinafter referred to as “City”) is issuing this Request for Proposals 
(RFP) to invite qualified and experienced firms to submit proposals for the rental and 
professional services of audiovisual equipment. The professional services include delivery, 
setup, breakdown, and removal of the equipment. Proposals should include a 
comprehensive price list for both equipment rental and associated professional services, 
tailored to meet the needs of the City and private clients, as outlined in the Project Scope 
and Specifications. 
 
The City owns and manages a Community Center also known as the Carson Event Center. 
The Carson Event Center offers 40,000 square feet of versatile meeting and event space 
including a 12,000 square foot ballroom and multiple meeting rooms that accommodate up 
to 1,200 guests. 
 
The selected vendor must be located in close proximity to the Carson Event Center, situated 
at 801 E. Carson Street, Carson, CA 90745. Additionally, the vendor should be available 
seven (7) days a week, with flexible hours ranging from early morning to late night, to 
accommodate both scheduled and last-minute events. 
 
The City intends to award a three-year contract with the option for two additional one-year 
contracts at the City’s sole discretion. The City reserves the right to award one contract or 
to award multiple contracts to more than one vendor. 
 
The City of Carson was incorporated as a California general law city on February 20, 1968. 
On November 6, 2018, with the City's voters’ approval, the City of Carson became a 
California chartered city. Carson is considered one of the youngest municipalities in the 
South Bay region of Los Angeles County. Carson is located less than 20 miles south of 
downtown Los Angeles and is considered part of the South Bay section of Los Angeles 
County. The City’s acreage is 19.2 square miles, and has grown considerably, beginning 
with a population of 61,000 in 1968 and with a current population of close to 100,000 
residents. 
 
Carson prides itself on being a culturally diverse community and is accessible by air, rail 
and freeway. The City is close to the Los Angeles International Airport, the Long Beach 
Airport, the Port of Los Angeles, and the Port of Long Beach. The four freeways that 
surround or run through the City are the Harbor (110); the San Diego (405); the Artesia (91); 
and the Long Beach (710). Additionally, the MTA Bus Line frequently stops in Carson on its 
route between Los Angeles and Long Beach and the City’s owned bus system, the Carson 
Circuit, provides convenient bus transportation within the City. There is no other city in the 
Los Angeles-Orange County region that matches Carson’s ease of accessibility. The City is 
home to many large, modern petrochemical, electronics, automobile, aerospace, trucking, 
and high-tech facilities. Many of these companies have won regional and local beautification 
awards. A number of multinational companies also call Carson their home by locating their 
corporate headquarters here. Through cooperative efforts between the City and businesses, 
the vitality and future of Carson continues to flourish. 
 
The City of Carson reserves the right to make changes in this RFP as it may deem 
appropriate. Any and all changes in the RFP will be made by written addenda which will be 
issued via PlanetBids. No oral changes will be permitted.  Addenda issued during the 
proposal process shall become a part of the original proposal.  All proposals must be 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

4  

submitted by the date and time established for the opening of proposals. Proposals 
submitted after such required date and time will be returned unopened to the sender. The 
City of Carson reserves the right to take any action considered to be in the best interest of 
the City of Carson.   
 
No proposal may be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days once proposals have been 
opened by the Purchasing Manager, or assigned designee. 
 
No contract exists on the part of the City until the City Council has made the award and a 
contract has been fully executed. The award, if made, will take place approximately within 
ninety (90) calendar days after the scheduled proposal opening date. 
 
The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received or any parts therein, 
and to be the sole judge of the merits of each proposal received. 
 
Unless expressly stated otherwise, documents must be uploaded in PDF format.  It is the 
proposer’s responsibility to ensure its documents are properly and timely uploaded onto 
the City’s online bid management system. Proposals that are missing pages, cannot be 
opened, etc. may be considered nonresponsive. It is the proposer’s sole responsibility to 
contact the City’s online bid management provider (PlanetBids™ at 818-992-1771) to 
resolve any technical issues related to electronic bidding, including (but not limited to) 
registering as a vendor, updating passwords, updating profiles, downloading/uploading 
documents, submitting an electronic bid/proposal, etc.  All questions or requests for 
interpretation regarding this RFP solicitation must be submitted online through PlanetBids 
within the date and time specified. Do not contact City personnel or Elected Officials with 
any questions or clarifications concerning this RFP other than through PlanetBids, as only 
the Purchasing Manager may be contacted.  Any City response for this RFP that is not 
posted through PlanetBids is unauthorized and will be considered invalid. Bidders are 
solely responsible for “on time” submission of their electronic bids. The Bid Management 
System will not accept late bids and no exceptions shall be made. Bidders will receive an 
e-bid confirmation number with a time stamp from the Bid Management System indicating 
that their bid was submitted successfully. The City will only receive those bids that were 
transmitted successfully.   
 
NOTE: E-Bids are sealed and cannot be viewed by the City until the closing date and time. 
If you need to withdraw your bid, you may do so any time before the bid deadline, by going 
back into the system and selecting “withdraw.” 

 
B.  PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING 
 
 Pre-proposal Meeting:    OPTIONAL 
 Pre-proposal meeting date and time: 09/05/2024 | 10:00 am 
 Pre-proposal meeting location:  Carson Event Center 
        801 E. Carson Street, Carson, CA 90745 
 
 The pre-proposal meeting is held for the purpose of answering proper’s questions. The pre-

proposal meeting is Optional and attendance is not required to submit a proposal. Arrive 
early, plan accordingly. A sign-in sheet will be available. Please meet in the Carson Event 
Center lobby area. 

 
 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

5  

C. SPECIFIC PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

All proposals in response to this RFP must be submitted electronically on PlanetBids no 
later than the due date and time established. Please allow sufficient time to prepare, scan 
and upload your documents into the electronic bid system prior to the deadline, as the 
system will lock and not allow entry of proposals after the designated deadline. Any 
technical questions regarding use of PlanetBids must be directed to PlanetBids. Faxed, 
emailed, or delivered bids will not be accepted. 

 
Proposers will be required to upload the following supplemental documents. Each 
supplemental document must be numbered in accordance with the following table. 

 
Required Proposal Sections and Documents 

1 Company Certification and Personnel Verification 
Certification, on company letterhead that the person submitting 
the bid is authorized to contract on behalf of the prospective 
vendor. Examples of authorized persons include owner, partner, 
or corporate officers.  Include name, title, address, and contact 
information. If bidder is a corporation, certification should 
include statement that corporation is in good standing with the 
California Secretary of State. 

Required 

2 Client Reference List  
Governmental entities preferred.  Include client contact 
information and a brief description of the product provided to 
each client. Minimum of three (3) references.  
(download from PlanetBids) 

Required 

3 Subcontractor List (if applicable) 
Include the subcontractor’s qualifications and the nature and 
extent of work to be performed by each subcontractor 

Required if 
Applicable 

4 Modification, Changes or Exceptions to the City’s Contract 
Services Agreement (download from PlanetBids) 
Exceptions to the specifications of any proposed items, contract 
terms and conditions shall be fully described and stated in 
writing.  

Required if 
Applicable 

5 Cost 
Include all relative pricing information Required 

6 Affidavit of Non-Collusion and Non-Discrimination  
(download from PlanetBids) Required 

7   Affidavit of Non-Federal Lobbyist Requirements  
(download from PlanetBids) Required 

8 Debarment and Suspension Certificate  
(download from PlanetBids) Required 

9 Certificate of Compliance with Labor Code Section 3700 
(download from PlanetBids) 

Required if 
Applicable 

10 W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 
Certification (download from PlanetBids) Required 

11 Acknowledgement of Insurance Endorsements 
(download from PlanetBids) Required 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

6  

12 Contract Services Agreement Long Form 
( for reference only download from PlanetBids) 

Required  
Upon Award 

 
Every document uploaded to PlanetBids must include Proposer’s name and RFP No. 24-
017 
 

D. QUESTIONS AND ADDENDA 
 
All project scope questions must be posted to PlanetBids by the date and time established. 
The City will coordinate responses and post them to PlanetBids five (5) days prior to the 
proposal deadline for all interested proposers to review. 
 
All questions must reference both the Section and page number of this RFP. All questions 
must be submitted individually and not in paragraph form. 

 
If discrepancies or omissions are found for this document, the City reserves the right to 
make such changes as deemed appropriate. Any such changes will be by written addenda, 
which will be posted to PlanetBids no later than five (5) days prior to the bid deadline. The 
City reserves the right to extend the bid deadline. 
 

Type of Question Contact Contact Info 
Those related to the Project PlanetBids Post directly to PlanetBids under the 

“Q&A” tab 
Use of PlanetBids PlanetBids (818) 992-1771 
City’s Purchasing Process Josilla Togiola 

Purchasing Manager 
jtogiola@carsonca.gov  
(310) 830-7600 ext. 1237 

  
E. PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS 

 
Proposers wo do not meet the minimum qualifications will be disqualified. 
 
Awarded vendor and subcontractors (if applicable) must pay the City’s business 
license tax and submit required insurance documents prior to execution of the contract. 
The majority of the work as required herein shall be performed by the awarded contractor. 
The work may not be subcontracted to another contractor, unless the subcontractor has 
been included on the City-approved subcontractor list, or a substitution has been approved 
in writing by the City’s Contract Officer in advance of any scheduled or actual work. 
 

F. PROJECT LOCATION & SCHEDULE 
 
Job location: Carson Event Center, 801 E. Carson Street, Carson, CA 90745 
Job Work Schedule: Various (reference Project Scope and Specifications) 

 
G.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
The selected consultant(s) must comply with the insurance requirements detailed in the 
Contract Services Agreement Long Form and below. The Acknowledgement of Insurance 
Endorsements must also be signed and submitted as part of the proposal . Failure to submit 

mailto:jtogiola@carsonca.gov


RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

7  

any required documents may result in City rejecting the proposal as being materially non-
responsive to this RFP. 

 
If a proposer believes any of City’s proposed insurance is not appropriate for any reason 
and/or the requirements warrant an adjustment, City invites submission of a written request 
with explanation of the same to be submitted prior to 10 days before the bid deadline. City will 
review the request and if appropriate, will issue an amendment to the insurance requirements 
as a written addendum. 
 

Certificate of Insurance: 

Shows GL, Auto, Work Comp and Professional Liability coverages with valid effective dates 

General Liability: Add’l Insured and Waiver of Subrogation must be checked. 

Auto Liability: Add’l Insured and Waiver of Subrogation must be checked. 

Workers Compensation: Waiver of Subrogation must be checked. 

* - if applicable 

Description of Operations: 

1. City of Carson, its elected and appointed officers, employees, volunteers and agents 

are additional insureds on GL and Auto policies. 

2. GL policy is Primary and Non-contributory. 

3. Waiver of Subrogation endorsement in favor of City of Carson OR in favor of 

additional insured. 

Certificate Holder: City of Carson, 701 E Carson Street, Carson, CA 90745 

Insurance Carriers: AM Best rating A- VII or Better 

GENERAL LIABILITY PROVISIONS: 

Coverage form ISO CGL CG 00 01. Minimum limits $1MM per occurrence/$2MM aggregate. 

 GL Endorsements: 

City of Carson, its elected and appointed officers, employees, volunteers and agents are 
additional insureds OR blanket additional insured endorsement. 

1. Primary and Non-contributory endorsement. 

2. Waiver of Subrogation endorsement in favor of City of Carson. 
 
Automobile Liability Provisions: 
Coverage form ISO CA 00 01. Minimum limits $1MM single combined limit. 

Auto Insurance Endorsements: 
1. City of Carson, its elected and appointed officers, employees, volunteers 

and agents are additional insureds OR blanket additional insured 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

8  

endorsement. 

2. Waiver of Subrogation endorsement in favor of City of Carson. 
 
Automobile Liability Provisions: 
Coverage form ISO CA 00 01. Minimum limits $1MM single combined limit. 

Auto Insurance Endorsements: 
3. City of Carson, its elected and appointed officers, employees, volunteers 

and agents are additional insureds OR blanket additional insured 
endorsement. 

4. Waiver of Subrogation endorsement in favor of City of Carson. 
 
Workers Compensation Provisions: 
Statutory Limits for workers comp. Minimum limit of $1MM for Employer Liability. 

Work Comp Endorsements: 
1. Waiver of Subrogation endorsement in favor of City of Carson. 

Professional Liability Insurance Provisions: 
1. Appropriate to the services being provided AND limits per stated in the 

agreement. 
 

H. PRICING 
 

 Proposers shall provide everything necessary at their own expense including, and not 
limited to, labor, prep work, materials, supplies, parts, tools and equipment required to 
perform the required services. 
 
The proposed price must include all necessary materials and fees to provide the required 
equipment rental and professional services. Permits, licenses and fees must be obtained 
at the awarded vendor’s sole expense. Federal taxes must not be included, as the City is 
exempt from paying federal taxes. However, the City does pay Sales Tax on the purchase 
of items, which must be included as a separate line within the total bid price. 

 
The following costs will not be allowed: additional charges such as fuel surcharges and 
mileage rates, fines, entertainment, advertising, and any costs considered inappropriate 
for reimbursement from taxpayer money. 
 
Include hourly rates for additional work which may be authorized by the City’s Contract 
Officer. 

 
I. PROPOSAL OPENING, DOCUMENT REVIEW AND AWARD OF CONTRACT 

 
All proposals will be opened publicly by the Office of the City Clerk, via PlanetBids, on the 
date and time established on the RFP document. Proposal results will not be given out via 
telephone, email, or facsimile. 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

9  

 
Proposals will be evaluated on the basis of the responses to all questions and requirements 
in this RFP document. The evaluation of a Proposer’s capacity to provide the required 
equipment and services will be based on the written material submitted and any interviews 
that my be required of the Proposer. Each proposal will be competitively evaluated on its 
strengths and weaknesses against the following criteria listed below in nor order of 
importance. 
 
All proposals will be evaluated, scored, and ranked on the below: 
 

No. Evaluation Criteria Points 
1 Relevant local experience and reputation of the contractor, including 

verification of data and references.  
10 

2 Local experience and credentials of key personnel assigned to the 
project. 

10 

3 Understanding of project objectives and scope of work as evidenced in 
the written narratives and oral interview (if conducted). 

25 

4 Experience with projects of similar size and nature. 25 

5 The capacity of the contractor to provide staffing, equipment, and 
services demonstrating that the present workload of the contractor and 
the availability of staff for the project will remain sufficient throughout 
the duration of the contract. 

15 

6 Contractor’s past record of performance in similar projects related to 
control of costs, quality of work, and adherence to schedule. 

10 

7 The City of Carson’s prior experience with the contractor. 5 

Total Maximum Points 100 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

10  

PROJECT SCOPE OF SERVICES 
RFP 24-017 

CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL  
AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
 
The City of Carson (hereinafter referred to as “City”) is issuing this Request for Proposals (RFP) 
to invite qualified and experienced firms to submit proposals for the audiovisual equipment rental 
and professional services. The professional services include delivery, setup, breakdown, and 
removal of the equipment. Proposals should include a comprehensive price list for both equipment 
rental and associated professional services, tailored to meet the needs of the City and private 
clients, as outlined in the Project Scope and Specifications. 

 
The City owns and manages a Community Center also known as the Carson Event Center. The 
Carson Event Center offers 40,000 square feet of versatile meeting and event space including a 
12,000 square foot ballroom and multiple meeting rooms that accommodate up to 1,200 guests. 

 
The selected vendor must be located in close proximity to the Carson Event Center, situated at 
801 E. Carson Street, Carson, CA 90745. Additionally, the vendor should be available seven (7) 
days a week, with flexible hours ranging from early morning to late night, to accommodate both 
scheduled and last-minute events. 

The vendor shall provide a comprehensive list of equipment rental options and associated 
professional services, including a specific fee breakdown. All services will be provided on an "as 
needed" basis for both scheduled, unscheduled, and last-minute events. 

The vendor shall offer equipment rental services for the following categories of equipment for 
events at the Carson Event Center, as requested by the Contract Officer, but are not limited to: 

• Lighting equipment, including a detailed fee list for all related items. 
• Effects and atmosphere equipment, including a detailed fee list for all related items. 
• Video equipment, including a detailed fee list for all related items. 
• Audio equipment, including a detailed fee list for all related items. 
• Backline equipment, including a detailed fee list for all related items. 

The vendor is responsible for providing all technical services related to the City’s rental and use 
of equipment as specified. This includes setup, testing, and takedown of all rented equipment at 
no additional charge, as these costs are included in the rental rates provided. Any additional costs 
will only apply to special labor requests beyond routine setup and takedown, with such labor 
charged at the rates specified in the fee list. 

The consultant must be available seven (7) days a week, with flexible hours from early morning 
to late night, to accommodate event schedules at the Carson Event Center, including holidays. 

The consultant should include detailed equipment availability in their proposal. 

 

 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

11  

Current Audiovisual for Reference Only. Please provide all rental equipment pricing. 

Item Rental Cost 
LCD Projector 5K $ 
50” Monitor Package and Stand with Battery Power Option $ 
65” Monitor Package and Stand $ 
70” Monitor Package and Stand $ 
Tripod Screens: 7’ – 8’ (seven feet to eight feet) $ 
10 ‘ (10 foot) Roll-Up Screen $ 
Display Easel or Flipchart Easel Only  $ 
Microphone: Push-to-Talk/Podium/Table/Standing $ 
Wireless Mic System: Handheld/Lavaliere (Lapel)/Headset $ 
4 Channel Audio Mixer with laptop or iPod audio $ 
Audio Mixer (up to 6 Mics + Aux) $ 
Audio Mixer (up to 16 Mics + Aux) $ 
QSC K8.2 Powered Speaker and Stand or with Microphone $ 
QSC K 10.2 Powered Speaker and Stand or with Microphone $ 
QSC K12.2 Powered Speaker and Stand or with Microphone $ 
CD, DVD, Blue Ray Disc Player (Circle) $ 
Flipchart Package (Plain Paper Pad and Post-It Pad) $ 
Whiteboard with Markers, Eraser 3’ x 4’ (three feet by four feet) or 
3’ x 5’ (three feet by five feet) Circle 

$ 

Polycom Conference Speakerphone $ 
Remote RF Slide Advancer (Clicker) $ 
Laptops: PC or MacBook Pro $ 
Pipe and Drape $ 
 $ 
Scheduling Technician should have a 48-hour lead time $ 
Hourly Rate Technician Labor, Monday to Friday 7:00 AM to 6:00 
PM  

4 

Hourly Rate Technician Labor, Nights and Weekends $ 
  
  
  

 
  



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

12  

HALLS ABC RECOMMENDED/COMPARABLE EQUIPMENT LIST 
 

BRAND   MODEL  QTY.   DESCRIPTION 
Barco   F80-4K9   1  Projector Hall B 
Barco   GLD Zoom R9801719  1  Projector Lens 
 
Epson   Epson PowerLite 2255U 2   Projector Hall’s AC 
 
Lumantek  HSV+    3  Convert HDMI-SDI 
Generic   HD-SDI & Control on/off 3  Control Cabling 
Epson   Epson PowerLite 2255U 1   Spare Projector 
 
Dalite   Da-Lite 37087L   1  Screen Hall B 
Dalite   Da-Lite 79014L   2  Screen Halls AC 
 
Soundtube  CM62-EZ-II-LDS-WH Wings 8  Wing Speakers 
Soundtube  SM52-EZ-WX-BK Hallway 8  Hallway Speakers 
Soundtube  RS1001I-II-T-BK Main  16  Main Speakers 
Soundtube  SM52-EZ-WX-BK-Outside 8  Outside Speakers 
 
Pas   NE8250.70PE   1  PA Main 
Pas   NE4250.70PE   2  PA Wings 
 
Chauvet  DJ Intimidator Spot 375Z 18  Spots Main 
Chauvet  DJ Intimidator Spot 375Z 2  Spots Wing 
Chauvet  DJ Intimidator Spot 375Z 6  Spots Main 
Chauvet  DJ Intimidator Spot 475Z 1  Rear Spot 
Chauvet  Stage Designer StageDes50 1  Control Main Spots 
Chauvet  Obey3    2  Control Wing Spots 
 
Datapro  Stage w/HDMI + connectors 1  Panels 
Datapro  Rear w/HDMI + connectors 1  Panels 
Datapro  Custom Faceplate  2  Panels 
Datapro  Custom Faceplate  5  Panels 
Datapro  Custom Faceplate  2  Panels 
 
Biamp   Nexia CS   4  DSP 
Biamp   Volume/Select 8  5  Audio Control 
 
PTZ Optics  PTZOptics 20x-SDI  4  Camera Main 
PTZ Optics  PTZOptics 30x-NDI  1  Camera Rear 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 24-017 CARSON EVENT CENTER AUDIOVISUAL (A/V) EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

13  

 
 

HALLS ABC RECOMMENDED EQUIPMENT LIST 
 

BRAND   MODEL  QTY.   DESCRIPTION 
PTZ Optics  PTZOptics 20x-SDI  6  Camera Main 
PZT Optics  Joystick    3  Joystick 3 Zones 
 
Switcher  SWATEMPSW04K  4  Switchers 
 
Marshall  M-LYNX-702 V.3  6  SDI Monitors 
Dell   U2913WM   4  PC Monitors 
Dell   Precision 5820   1  PC Main 
Dell   XPS Desktop   2  PC Wings 
 
Netgear  Netgear ProSafe GS108  3  Network Misc 
 
Extron   MLC 62 RS CC – IR  3  Master On/Off 
Extron   DTP HDMI 4K 330 Tx & Rx 6  HD Signal Pass 
 
Sharp   Sharp 4T – B 60”  1  Hallway TV 
Chief Mount  Chief RXT2   1  TV Mount 
Ocean Matrix  OMX-13HMHM0001  1  Pip 1:4 
Lumantek  EZ-SHV+   3  Convert SDI to HDMI 
Kramer   VM-22HD   2  VDAs SDI 
 
Cabling   HDMI, Cat6e, AST  1  All Cables 

 

 

 

[END] 



N
A
M
E
 

OF 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
:
 

C
I
T
Y
 
OF 

C
A
R
S
O
N
 

BID 
R
E
G
I
S
T
E
R
 

(A/V) 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
R
E
N
T
A
L
 
A
N
D
 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 

B
I
D
 
O
P
E
N
I
N
G
 
D
A
T
E
:
 

0
9
-
2
3
~
2
4
 

T
I
M
E
:
 

1
0
:
0
0
 
A
.
M
.
 

C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 

P
L
A
N
E
T
 

BID 
H
A
R
D
 
C
O
P
Y
 

# 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 

C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 

D
A
T
E
/
T
I
M
E
 

D
A
T
E
/
T
I
M
E
 

- 
(If Applicable), 

|| 
R
E
C
E
I
V
E
D
 

R
E
C
E
I
V
E
D
 

D
o
m
'
s
 

A
m
d
o
 

V
i
s
u
q
/
 

L
E
O
N
A
 P
T
 

4 
f/ BJ 2-4 

I. 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 

S
a
 

B
A
G
H
 

L
L
;
 

fe 
-btA. 

P
A
U
S
 

(C 
C
A
M
A
 

e 
a
 

G 
(
P
e
,
 

2 
| 

h
i
c
t
t
o
-
m
 

A
d
d
 

WA 
Z s
m
)
 

T
i
e
 

¢[23/2c“n 
P
C
E
 

Heewtrich 
if 

e
L
 

4. 
T
e
c
h
e
]
 

ogy 
Y
e
u
n
g
 
C
o
k
 

; 
t
Z
 

7
 

i 
i 

G
y
 
E
S
L
 

tth 
- 

5. 

6. 

7. 8. 9. 10. 

11. 

Opened 
By: 

N
 

| is 
mia 

Staff Present: A
b
,
 
L
g
f
e
y
 
—
 

a
 

5
 

WiC 
é 

L 
City Clerk: 4

 
M
a
e
s
 
d
a
g
 

hac 
auch, 

Opened By: 
“She 

L
u
t
e
 
G\nez 

A
N
 
M
 

Print 
Legibly 

Initials ©



Reviewer 1 2 3
Proposals Points Points Points Total Points

Don's Audiovisual 100 95 90 285
Music Connect 63 77 5 145
PCE 70 71 50 191
Technology Training 62 79 0 141

Proposal Ranking Summary
RFP 24-017 Carson Event Center AV Services



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

City of Carson

701 E. Carson Street

Carson, CA 90745


Attn: Purchasing Manager




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Table of Contents


1.Certification of Authorization to Contract	

2.Affidavit of Non-Collusion and Non Discrimination

3.Proposer Qualifications 

4.Client References List

5.Subcontractor List (Not Applicable)

6.Cost Proposal

7.Proposed Modification to City contract template

8.Division Two Exhibit A Requirements


1.Cover Letter

2.Company Information

3.Project Approach and Scope of Services

4.Project Team

5.Experience

6.References

7.Conflicts of Interest

8.Exceptions to RFP

9.Addenda to the RFP

10.Compensation Schedule


a. Proposed Fee Schedule

b. Pricing Reflecting Discounts

c. Price Lists

d.Multiple Percentage Discounting

e. Each Service to be Priced Separately

f. Equipment to be Purchased by the City 


11. Additional Items

a. Federal Lobbyist Requirements Certification

b. Insurance Provisions

c. Labor Code 3700 Compliance Certification


   



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 1 - Certification of Authorization to Contract 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

City of Carson

701 E. Carson Street

Carson, CA 90745


Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Certification of Authorization to Contract on behalf 
of the entity Don’s Audio Visual Services dba DAVS as follows:


I, Donald A. Sprague, Owner, Operator, President hereby certify that I am authorized to  
contract Don’s Audio Visual Services dba DAVS with the City of Carson. 


I authorize myself, Donald A. Sprague to be the official contact for this Contract.


I Certify that Don’s Audio Visual Services dba DAVS is in good standing with the office 
of the California Secretary of State.


Donald A. Sprague / Owner - Operator	 	          Donald A Sprague

By (Printed)/Title 	 	 	 	 	 	 Signature


Business: 310-893-7165 
Cell: 310-629-6052 18 September 2024 
DSprague57@gmail.com      Date
21901 Grant Avenue 
Torrance, CA  90503



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 2 - Affidavit of Non-Collusion and Non-Discrimination 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

CITY OF CARSON 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION AND NON-DISCRIMINATION 

I hereby swear (or affirm) under the penalty of perjury:


That the attached proposal or bid has been arrived at by the responder independently 
and has been submitted without collusion with and without any agreement, 
understanding, or planned common course of action with any other firm or entity 
designed to limit fair and open competition:


That the contents of the proposal or bid response have not been communicated by the 
responders its employees or agents to any person not an employee or agent of the 
responder and will not be communicated to any such persons prior to the official 
opening of the solicitation responses: and 


The proposer/bidder does not and shall not discriminate, will provide equal 
employment practices, and will adhere to an affirmative action program to ensure that 
in their employment practices, persons are employed and employees are treated 
equally and without regard to or because of race, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, 
sexual orientation, age, disability, marital status or medical condition.


I certify that the statements in this affidavit are true and accurate.


 Donald A Sprague	 	 	 	 18 September 2024

Signature Date

__Donald A. Sprague_______ __Owner / Operator__
Printed Name Title



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 3 - Proposer Qualifications 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Basic Company Information Employee Resumes as 
follows:


We have one office in Los Angeles County.


Don’s Audio Visual Services dba DAVS      	 	 18 September 2024

Name of Company 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Date


21901 Grant Avenue	                                                   (310)629-6052

Torrance, California  90505	 	 	 	 	 Telephone Number

Company Main Office Address


I am the single Owner / Operator / Employee


Person to Contact concerning this proposal 

Donald A. Sprague / Owner / Operator.	 	 	     Donald A Sprague

By (Printed)/Title 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 Signature


Business: 310-629-6052 
Cell: 310-629-6052
dsprague57@gmail.com



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

 

Name and Title: 

Donald A. Sprague, Owner, Operator


Location and Contact Information: 

Main Office, Torrance

Don’s Audio Visual Services dba DAVS Headquarters

21901 Grant Avenue

Torrance, CA 90503

Office:		 (310) 893-7165

Cell:	 	 (310) 629-6052

Email:	 	 dsprague57@gmail.com


Responsibilities: 

• Overall management of Don’s Audio Visual Services dba DAVS.

• Business Development in Hotel, City and County event productions, 

• Show and stage design and development for many venues, including 

Carson Community Center since the 1990s


Experience: 

• Over 5 years experience as the Owner/Operator of Don’s Audio Visual 
Services dba DAVS


• Over 32 years combined experience as the General Manager State of the 
Art AV and the Corporate Accounts Manager of Broadcast Support, 
Inc.


• 3 years with North American Rockwell International as Manufacturing 
Production Scheduler in the Industrial Engineering Department


• Retired Air National Guard (USAF), as E-7 Master Sergeant with 22 years 
as: Air Crew, Ground Systems, and Top Three Supervisory experience




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Section 4 - Client References List 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required List of Client References follows:


LIST OF REFERENCES 

REFERENCE CONTACT 
INFORMATION

Name: Victor Fernandez Address: 801 E. Carson Street

Title: General Manager City: Carson

Organization: City Of Carson State and Zip: CA 90745

Scope of Work: Audio Visual On-
site AV Company. Provide Audio 
Visual Equipment and Service 
interacting with all City 
Departments and Clientele.

Telephone: (310) 835-0212

E-mail: vfernandez@Carson.CA.US

Name: Vida Dye Address: 665 N. Harbor Drive

Title: Catering Manager City: Redondo Beach

Organization: Bluewater Grill State and Zip: CA 90277

Scope of Work: Provide AV support 
for all functions

Telephone: (310) 318-3474

E-mail: vdye@bluewatergrill.com



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Name: Angelita Gamboa Address: 2800 Via Cabrillo Marina

Title: Catering Manager City: San Pedro

Organization: Doubletree San 
Pedro

State and Zip: CA 90731

Scope of Work: Provide Audio 
Visual Equipment and Service 
interacting with all Hotel 
Departments and Clientele.

Telephone: (310) 514-3344

E-mail: 
Angelita.Gamboa2@hilton.com

Name: Queenetta Potts Address: 2 Civic Center Drive

Title: Catering Manager City: Carson

Organization: Doubletree Carson State and Zip: CA 90745

Scope of Work: Provide Audio 
Visual Equipment and Service 
interacting with all Hotel 
Departments and Clientele.

Telephone: (310) 830-9200

E-mail: 
queenetta.Potts@hilton.com



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 5 - Subcontractor List 

City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Sub Contractor List as follows:


This is not applicable. 



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 6 - Cost Proposal 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


First below is the attached Email Order Form presently used by the Sales and 
Scheduling crew at the Community Center with the pricing for the end client of 
redundantly rental equipments. This contract would enact a 30% discount to all 
equipment rentals. The cost for the contract is dependent entirely on the clients at the 
center and what and when they order. There is no pre-set minimum or maximum for 
this contract. 


CARSON COMMUNITY CENTER AND CITY HALL
801 East Carson Street, Carson, CA  90745

PH: (310) 835-0212

We schedule our sets for 1 hour prior to the actual meeting start time.

Group Name:

Start Time   Start:                           End:

DAY(S)     M      T      W      TH      F      SA      SU   (Circle)    Special Delivery or Pick-up Instructions
      DAY            DATE          TIME 

Dates:                                          thru

Room(S):                                              Event #
QTY EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION PRICE DAYS AMOUNT

HDMI Distribution Amp w/Cables 150.00
LCD Projector 5K 200.00
50” Monitor Package and stand / w/Battery Power Option 150.00 250.00
65” Monitor Package and stand 250.00
70" Monitor Package and stand 250.00
Tripod Screens:    7ft   -   8ft 50.00
10ft Roll-Up Screen 100.00
Display Easel or Flipchart Easel Only 20.00
Wired Microphone       Push-To-Talk / Podium  /  Table  /  Standing 40.00
Wireless Mic System: Handheld / Lavaliere (Lapel) / Headset 85.00
4 Channel Audio Mixer  /  with laptop or ipod audio 50.00
Audio Mixer (up to 6 Mics + Aux) 100.00
Audio Mixer (up to 16 Mics + Aux) 250.00
QSC K8.2 Powered Speaker and stand / or with Microphone) 85.00  110.00
QSC K10.2 Powered Speaker and stand / or with Microphone) 95.00  120.00
QSC K12.2 Powered Speaker and stand / or with Microphone) 105.00. 135.00
CD, DVD, Blue Ray Disc Player (Circle) 40.00
Flipchart Package (Plain Paper Pad) / (Post-it Pad) 60.00  85.00
Whiteboard w Markers and Eraser      3' x 4'  /  3' x 5’ (Circle) 40.00  80.00
Polycom Conference speakerphone 75.00
Remote RF Slide Advancer (“Clicker”) 35.00
Laptops:  PC / MacBook Pro 150.00  175.00
LED Uplights 35.00
Pipe and drape (Black) 11.00 per ft.

Scheduling Tech Labor should have a 48 hour required lead-time.
Tech Labor:  M - F   7a - 6p is $75 ph
Tech Labor:  Nights and Weekends is $100 ph

Sub-Total

Rev. 9-12-24 Labor

Ordered By:____________________________________Date:_______________  Total

    AUDIO-VISUAL EQUIPMENT ORDER SHEET

Please email all orders to DAVS at dsprague57@gmail.com

Ph: 310-629-6052 
21901 Grant Avenue 
Torrance, CA  90503

Don’s Audio Visual Services

1



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Below is a complete listing of our equipment inventory and available per day rental 
pricing.


VIDEO LISTINGS
Flat Screen Displays

50" Samsung 150

65" Samsung Flat Screen Display 250

70" LCD Flat Screen Display Vizio E701i 1080P 1920 x 1080. Remote and IEC 
Cable

250

70" LED 240mhz 1080p. Vizio E70-C3 250

24" Truss Base Plate with 8' Truss and Clamp. 54 lbs $100

Epson EX11000 4800 Lumens HD DLP Laser Video Projector with Case, IEC Cable, 
Remote

200

Proxima C520 5500 Lumens Projector. Lens: 1.5 to 2.3 with Carry Case, Remote & 
IEC Cable

$200

Blackmagic ATEM Mini Pro Video Switcher 300

Blackmagic ATEM Mini Pro SDI Video Switcher 400

Blackmagic ATEM Extreme Pro Video Switcher 450

HDMI or SDI Video Distribution Amplifier and Cables 150

Fomako PTZ Camera with Professional Tripod 250

Fomako PTZ Controller for Multiple Cameras 200

Hollyworld HDMI Wireless Extender 125

CD/DVD/Blu-Ray Player $40

Da-Lite Screens
7' 0r 8’ Tripod Video Screen with Black Skirt 48" Tall $50

10’ Roll-up or Cradle Screen 100



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Projecto-Stand Da-Lite Safe-Lock $20

AUDIO LISTINGS
Speakers

QSC K8.2 Powered Speaker with carry bag & IEC Cable. 2000 watt. 127 db $85

QSC K10 Powered Speaker with carry bag & IEC Cable. 2000 watt. 129 db $95

QSC K12 Powered Speaker with carry bag & IEC Cable. 2000 watt. 131 db $105

QSC K-Sub 1000 Watt Compact Subwoofer with padded cover and IEC Cable. 1000 watt. 
130 db

$150

QSC KW122 Powered Speaker with carry bag & IEC Cable. 1000 watt. 131 db $150

QSC KW181 Powered Subwoofer with Cover & IEC Cable. 1000 watt. 131 db $180

USS Tripod Speaker Stand Max Height 6', 7" $20

USS Tripod Speaker Stand Max Height 9', 2" $25

Headphones
Bose Studio Headphones $20

Audio Mixing Boards
QSC Digital 16 Mixing Console $250

Behringer X32 Compact Digital Mixing Console $450

Behringer X32 Stage Box with 100 Cat 5E Cable $200

Soundcraft Analog, 32 Channel Mixing Console $350

Soundcraft EPM6 Mixer 6 Mic Pre, 2 Stereo inputs. Case and IEC. $100

XLR Mic Snake Analog 12 Channel M - F $125

Wired Microphones
Shure SM57 Instrument Mic w/clip and pouch $70



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Shure SM58 Lengendary Vocal Mic w/clip and pouch $70

Shure SM 81 Instrument Microphone w/clip & Pouch $75

Shure SM 87 Vocal Mic, Sensative Tailored Response. With Pouch & Clip $50

Shure 55SH Series 2 iconic Unidyne Vocal Microphone $75

Shure BETA52A Kick Drum Microphone with Pouch $75

Shure BETA56A Compact Drum Microphone with Pouch $75

Shure BETA57A Instrument Microphone with Pouch & Clip $100

Shure Nexadyne 8/C cardioid Pattern Extremely Smooth Vocal Microphone $100

Shure Nexadyne 8/S Cardioid polar pattern Extremely Smooth Vocal Microphone $100

Shure Beta 58A Vocal Microphone with Pouch & Clip $70

Shure Beta 91A Half-Cardioid "plate" Condenser Drum for Mic Kick Drum, Piano and floor use. 
With Pouch.

$80

Shure Beta 98 Miniature Cardioid Drum Microphone. Drum Mount incl. $80

Shure BHR440 Combo Microphone and Dual-Sided Headphone for Broadcast and 
intercom applications. XLR and 1/4"

$80

Shure WL 183,184,185 Lav Mic $50

Shure WL 93 Lav Mic $70

Shure WCM 16 Headworn Mic $80

Mogan Earset mic wired for Shure Body Packs $60

Stands
Table Top Mic Stand $5

Floor Mic Stand Solid Base $10

Floor Mic Stand Tripod Base $10

Floor Mic Stand Tripod Base, with boom arm $10

Floor Mic Stand with Short Boom $10

Problem Solvers
Whirlwind XLR 1 x 6 Signal Splitter $10



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Jensen Audio Isolation transformer. XLR in/out $12

DBX DB12 Active Direct Box (requires phantom power) $16

DBX DB10 Passive Direct Box $10

Radial Direct Box PRO48 Active $20

Radial PRO D1 Direct Box $20

Radial PRO D2 Stereo Direct Box $30

Radial PRO AV1 Stereo to Mono Summing Direct Box $30

WIRELESS MICROPHONE SYSTEMS
Shure UHF-SLXD DIGITAL Wireless Mic Kit with 58 or bodypack transmitter 85

Shure UHF-SLXP Wireless Mic Kit with 58 or bodypack transmitter 85

STAGE AND RISER LISTINGS
iStage 90 lbs PSF

4' x 4' Stage Deck with Grey Carpet Top 75

4' x 4' deck with Carpet Top. 1/4 round. 75

8" Riser for 4' x 4' Stage Deck 50

16" Riser for 4' x 4' Stage Deck 50

24" Riser for 4' x 4' Stage Deck 50

32" Riser for 4' x 4' Stage Deck 50

Stair set. 2 Steps (8" and 16"), 4' wide 150

Stair set. 3 Steps (8", 16" & 24"), 4' wide & 150



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Attachment 3 

LABOR LISTINGS
Per Hour

In House
Casual Labor $75

Diagnose, Repair, Assemble equipment. $75

Edit music and/or Video. Media transfer $150

Consulting $150

In field 6:00 AM to 11:59 PM M-F, non-holiday
Casual Labor $75

Audio, Lighting or Video Technician A2 $75

Audio, Lighting or Video Technician Supervisor $160

Rigger $125

In field 12:00 AM to 5:59 AM or Sunday or Holiday
Casual Labor $125

Audio, Lighting or Video Technician A2 $120

Audio, Lighting or Video Technician Supervisor $250

Rigger $200



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 7 - Proposed Modification to City Contract Template 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Proposed Modification or Substitution to City 
Contract template follows:


No Proposed Modification or Substitution to City Contract template. 



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.1 - Cover Letter 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required cover letter for rental/technical services as follows:


DAVS proposes to provide rental of various audio visual, lighting and sound equipment 
as enumerated in this proposal. We propose to: 1) provide technical services for both 
City and Non-City Customer Production Development and Show Preparation and 
Planning, 2) the physical Set-up and Strike of Audio Visual Equipment for both Rental 
and City of Carson owned equipments being integrated into scheduled functions, 3) to 
operate, facilitate and monitor in-show audio, video and lighting entities as required, 4) 
facilitate the Scheduling, Set, Start up, and Strike of all functions requiring any Audio 
Visual Services or equipment at the various rooms and outdoor facilities that make up 
the Carson Community and Meetings Center. Our services are available to all city parks 
and offices and will be coordinated with the Community Center Manager or their 
assigned designee at the same agreed upon rates. We are presently providing this 
service to the City of Carson. 


We will invoice the City of Carson the proposed pricing less a consideration percentage 
of 30%. This excludes Sales, Labor, and Sub-rentals. A 10% discount off of the original 
full price of equipments for all city events and qualified City of Carson residents will be 
honored when delineated prior to the submittal of the final invoice.


We will meet or exceed the City of Carson Insurance requirements as outlined in Article 
5 of the proposed attached agreement and contract.


Key Personnel that are being made available to the City of Carson pursuant to the 
goals and requirements throughout the duration of this contract are as follows:




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Mr. Donald A. Sprague………………….Owner/Operator


Mr. Donald A. Sprague…………….Primary Contact and Contract Manager 


I have been working with the City of Carson since 1992 over the span of my career 
including time with what is now a competing business entity, and have now been the 
primary source for Audio Visual Services at the Carson Community and Meetings 
Center for the last year and a half. I have provided far more intensely personal and 
flexible service in this last year and a half than has been possible in the many years 
prior. We are a production company with a much newer and wider array of equipment 
and services relating to much larger events then in my prior experience. I have enjoyed 
the close relationships developed and recent new associates brought on board by Mr. 
Victor Fernandez. 


I look forward to further expanding the customer base, as well as bringing in more 
revenue to the City of Carson by developing relationships with new and returning 
customers, both large and small, giving consistent high levels of service with 
outstanding value pricing resulting in rising customer satisfaction ratings.  


 Donald A Sprague

Signature


Donald A Sprague
Corporate Accounts Manager Cell: 310-629-6052
Torrance, CA  90503
dsprague57@gmail.com Business: 310-629-6052



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.2 - Company Information 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Basic Company Information as follows:


We have one office in Los Angeles County.


Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS      	 	 	 18 September 2024

Name of Company 		 	 	 	 	 	 Date


21901 Grant Avenue                                                                 (310)629-6052

Torrance, California  90503	 	 	 	 	 Telephone Number

Company Main Office Address


We have 1 full time employee.


Person to Contact concerning this proposal 

Donald A. Sprague / Corporate Accounts Manager	 	  Donald A Sprague

By (Printed)/Title 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Signature


Business: 310-629-6052 
Cell: 310-629-6052
dsprague57@gmail.com



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.3 - Project Approach and Scope of Services 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Project Approach and Scope of Services as follows:


APPROACH AND SCOPE OF WORK 

Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS proposes to provide rental of various 
audio visual, lighting, power and sound equipment and to provide technical 
services for City of Carson owned equipment or to operate equipment on rental 
as required. Our services will be available to all city locations as deemed 
necessary by the City of Carson. We will then subsequently invoice the City of 
Carson the proposed pricing less a consideration percentage of 30% on all 
**qualifying** equipment rentals. **Qualifying Equipment Rentals are hereby 
defined as all equipment owned by Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS, and 
not sub-rented from other sub-vendors for special or unusual requirements** In 
performing the Scope of Work Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS provides 
unique benefits to the city of Carson as summarized below:




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

• We are a Production Company first and foremost, which allows us to be 
quite well suited to creating events that range from small to large. We 
are experienced in creating productions in a wide variety of locations. 
For instance, we are quite well versed in power, sound, video and 
lighting requirements for all types of venues, both in-doors and out.


• We carry insurance at or above the levels required and we will submit 
certificates with all required additional insured parties and waivers at 
the time specified.


• Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS will provide an audio-visual 
manager who will meet with the Community Center personnel, the 
various City Divisions personnel outside the Community Center, and 
Non-City of Carson Customers renting space for functions with in the 
Community Center on a regular basis to coordinate and schedule our 
services.


• We provide quality professional personnel on-site seven days a week as 
needed. The service includes setting the pre-ordered equipment at 
least one hour prior to each function requiring our services. We also 
provide a technician to explain the use of the equipment and provide 
the required cabling to make the system work with customers and 
their own equipment.


	 

• Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS personnel are dressed in a 

professional manner. All employees conduct themselves in a manner 
consistent with the standards, quality, and image of the City of 
Carson. We are fully committed to representing the city to the public 
as the City Government would want it represented.


• Our coverage is able to meet last minute request for equipment. 
Additional personnel and equipment are only minutes away.


• We provide our rental equipment and services at competitive rates. We 
review these rates with the city before the price list is published. We 
are also flexible in meeting the needs of the customers of the Carson 
Community Center




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

• We own and have available top-of-the-line equipment, continuously 
updated and maintained by our own in-house servicing department.


• Our knowledge and sensitivity to safety is displayed in the placement of 
equipment and extra care in keeping walk spaces clear of 
obstructions, wires and cables. We are sensitive to lines of sight, 
lighting levels, sound levels and speaker placements to provide a 
good experience to all attendees.


• I have created and maintained a scheduling process via emailed service 
requests from the sales and scheduling personnel, which are 
augmented with cell service directly to me via phone or text up and 
down the line of service providers there at the center. I create the work 
orders from the emailed service requests, have a center representative 
sign for the actual delivery, and then subsequently make that into an 
invoice for each function submitted via email to the center for the 
beginning of the accounting process.


The approach is to spend more time just making available information to the sales and 
scheduling process and processors at the center so as to make the user experience for 
the customers more productive and accurate so when the day and hour of their 
function arrives, we as a team have married the confidence and expectations of the 
customer in the center and its various services into attainable results. Clients with 
larger functions also have been coordinating directly with me throughout the process of 
planning (technical and logistical), preparation, and on-site walk-throughs and 
meetings, all while developing an overall plan which turns their ideas and needs into 
reality while meeting their budgets. 


I have been working with the City of Carson since 1992 over the span of my career 
including time with what is now a competing business entity, and have now been the 
primary source for Audio Visual Services at the Carson Community and Meetings 
Center for the last year and a half. I have provided far more intensely personal and 
flexible service in this last year and a half than has been possible in the many years 
prior. We are a production company with a much newer and wider array of equipment 
and services relating to much larger events then in my prior experience. I have enjoyed 
the close relationships developed and recent new associates brought on board by Mr. 
Victor Fernandez. 




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

I look forward to further expanding the customer base, as well as bringing in more 
revenue to the City of Carson by developing relationships with new and returning 
customers, both large and small, giving consistent high levels of service with 
outstanding value pricing resulting in rising customer satisfaction ratings.  As the city 
upgrades all around us, so should the services at the Center!


 Donald A Sprague

Signature


Donald A Sprague	 	 	 	 	 Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS	 

Owner / Operator & Account Manager	 	          21901 Grant Avenue

Cell: 310-629-6052	 	 	 	 	 	 Torrance, CA  90503

dsprague57@gmail.com	 	 	 	 	 Business: 310-629-6052




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.4 - Project Team 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Project Team Resume as follows:


We have extensive large function experience behind our front interface, and the ability 
to not only do an outstanding job at the scheduling and handling of all of the small day 
to day requirements which include the last minute changes and rush orders that occur 
from time to time, but can ramp up to deal with the more involved and larger functions. 
We have a large stable of human resources for larger functions and requirements and 
therefore are capable of almost anything that could be requested and keep the project 
all in house and therefore retain more revenue for the city. 


Name and Title:


Donald Sprague, General Manager


Location and Contact Information: 

Main Office, Torrance

Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS Headquarters

21901 Grant Avenue

Torrance, CA 90503

Office:		 (310) 629-6052

Cell:	 	 (310) 629-6052

Email:	 	 dsprague57@gmail.com


Responsibilities: 



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

• Overall control of management of DAVS Business Development, 
Operations, Scheduling of Personnel and Equipments Assets, and 
Billing


• Propose, Price, and Approve all proposed pricing and show requirements


Experience: 

• 5 Years as Owner / Operator of DAVS which includes the present contract 
for AV Services at the Community Center


• 2 years with Broadcast Support, Inc. dba 5x5AV as the Corporate 
Accounts and Business Development Manager


• Over 29 years experience as the General Manager of State of the Art AV 
Equipment


• 3 years with North American Rockwell International as Manufacturing 
Production Scheduler in the Industrial Engineering Department


• Retired Air National Guard (USAF), with 22 years as: Air Crew, Ground 
Systems, and Top Three Supervisory experience


Education: 

• Associates in General Studies, College of the Air Force


Advanced Training and Capabilities: 

• ICIA AV Management Extension Course

• Multiple Military related advanced certifications including Supervisory and 

Management Training




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.5 - Experience 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Experience as follows:


The Present Open Purchase Order for the Carson Community Center since July of 
2017.




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.6 - References 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required List of References follows:


LIST OF REFERENCES 

REFERENCE CONTACT 
INFORMATION

Name: Victor Fernandez Address: 801 E. Carson Street

Title: General Manager City: Carson

Organization: City Of Carson State and Zip: CA 90745

Scope of Work: Audio Visual On-
site AV Company. Provide Audio 
Visual Equipment and Service 
interacting with all City 
Departments and Clientele.

Telephone: (310) 835-0212

E-mail: vfernandez@Carson.CA.US

Name: Vida Dye Address: 665 N. Harbor Drive

Title: Catering Manager City: Redondo Beach

Organization: Bluewater Grill State and Zip: CA 90277

Scope of Work: Provide AV support 
for all functions

Telephone: (310) 318-3474

E-mail: vdye@bluewatergrill.com

Name: Angelita Gamboa Address: 2800 Via Cabrillo Marina

Title: Catering Manager City: San Pedro



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Organization: Doubletree San 
Pedro

State and Zip: CA 90731

Scope of Work: Provide Audio 
Visual Equipment and Service 
interacting with all Hotel 
Departments and Clientele.

Telephone: (310) 514-3344

E-mail: 
Angelita.Gamboa2@hilton.com

Name: Queenetta Potts Address: 2 Civic Center Drive

Title: Catering Manager City: Carson

Organization: Doubletree Carson State and Zip: CA 90745

Scope of Work: Provide Audio 
Visual Equipment and Service 
interacting with all Hotel 
Departments and Clientele.

Telephone: (310) 830-9200

E-mail: 
queenetta.Potts@hilton.com



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.7 - Conflicts of Interest 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Conflicts of Interest Statement follows:


No Conflicts of Interest are known to exist from the past, present or future 
which Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS as a result of performing the 
work for this project. 



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.8 - Exceptions to RFP 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Exceptions to RFP as follows:


Section 5 of Division Two Exhibit A requires (3) similar contracts fulfilled or in-process 
at the present by DAVS. While the parent company is in regular short term contracts for 
multiple day engagements or events that happen over a period of time, such as the 
DoubleTree Carson, DoubleTree San Pedro, Hermosa Beach Beach House, 
Cheesecake Factory Redondo Beach, and Bluewater Grill respectively, other than the 
present engagement with the City of Carson Community and Meeting Center for the 
five years, we have no other directly related similar governmental contracts. However 
what we do is functionally the same and requires the same expertise and equipment 
support. I have also been the General Manager of this same contract at the Carson 
Community Center for over 20 years prior to coming to DAVS. I feel that the production 
company level of experience and equipment inventory far outstrips where I was before. 
Our capacity for larger functions combined with my logistical experience and ability to 
be value added to the employees and customers of the Carson Community Center 
should be calculated in to the final decision.


Donald A Sprague Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS
Owner / Operator & Account Manager 21901 Grant Avenue
Cell: 310-629-6052 Torrance, CA  90503
dsprague57@gmail.com Business: 310-629-6052



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.9 - Addenda to RFP 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Addenda to the RFP as follows:


Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS has received all addenda 


Addendum No. 1 posted on September 12, 2024




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.10 - Compensation Schedule 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Compensation Schedule as follows:


Section 8.10.a - Proposed Fee Schedule 

Reference Section 6 above for a complete equipment daily rental listing and an order 
form used presently by the City at present. This includes labor rates as well.  


Section 8.10.b - Pricing/Reflecting Discounts 

First below is the attached Email Order Form presently used by the Sales and 
Scheduling crew at the Community Center with the pricing for the end client of 
redundantly rental equipments. This contract would enact a 30% discount to all 
equipment rentals. The cost for the contract is dependent entirely on the clients at the 
center and what and when they order. 

We also will be advancing a 30% discount on all equipments rentals to the city and its 
entities.


Section 8.10.c - Price Lists 
Reference Section 6 above for a complete equipment daily rental listing and an order 
form used presently by the City at present. This includes labor rates as well.  


Section 8.10.d - Multiple Percentage Discounting 
Not Applicable




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.10.e - Each Service to be priced separately  
All services proposed by Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS are to be priced 
separately with all ineligible item identified. 

Section 8.10.f - Equipment to be Purchased by the City 
This proposal does not directly require the City to purchase equipment to accomplish  
and perform the work for this project.


Section 8.11 Additional items 

Not Applicable




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.11.a  Federal Lobbyist Requirements Certification 

City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Federal Lobbyist Requirements Certification as follows:


FEDERAL LOBBYIST REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION 

Name of Firm:_ Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS____  Date:_12 September 
2024___


Address:___21901 Grant Avenue_____________________________________________


State:_California________ Zip Code:_90503______ Phone No.:__(310) 629-6052______


______________________________________________________________________________


Acting on behalf of the above-named firm, as its Authorized Official, I certify as follows: 


1, No Federal appropriated funds have been paid, by or on behalf of the above named 
firm to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of and Federal grant, loan or cooperative agreement, and any 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification thereof, and; 


2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee or any agency, 
a Member of Congress an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the above named firm shall complete and submit Standard 



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions, 
and: 


3. The above-named firm shall require that the language of this certification be included 
in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-
grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreement) and that all 
sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 


This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into the transaction imposed by Section 1352 Title 
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to 
a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 


Authorized Official: 

Name:__Donald A. Sprague_________ Title:___Owner/Operator_____


Signature: Donald A Sprague    Date:____18 September 2024_____




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.11.b  Insurance Provisions 

City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor 

Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required insurance provisions as follows:


Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS currently maintains comprehensive general 
liability of $2,000,000 and automobile insurance for $1,000,000. The city of Los 
Angeles is currently named as additional insured on our policy. Our insurance currently 
names the city of Los Angeles and their officers, employees, agents, elected officials 
and members of the boards or commissions as additional  insured parties. Upon 
award, we will review all insurance provisions with the city and we will provide a new 
certificate of insurance to the city of Los Angeles Risk Management with any and all 
revisions required for approval prior to starting any work.


We currently maintain Worker’s Compensation and Employer Liability insurance. Our 
coverage includes a waiver of subrogation against the city of Los Angeles. Upon notice 
of award, we will review our insurance with the city and we will furnish the city with an 
updated certificate with any required changes. We will not cancel or materially change 
our insurance without a thirty (30) day prior written notice to the city of Los Angeles 
Risk Management.


Donald A Sprague Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS
Owner / Operator & Account Manager 21901 Grant Avenue
Cell: 310-629-6052 Torrance, CA  90503
dsprague57@gmail.com Business: 310-629-6052 



           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Section 8.11.c  Labor Code 3700 Compliance Certification 
City of Carson 

Request for Proposal No. 24-017 
Audio Visual Services Contractor


Attn: Purchasing Manager,


In accordance with your request for proposal for the rental of various audio visual, 
lighting and sound equipment, and technical services, as described by City of Carson 
Request for Proposal No. 24-017 and the attached document, we are pleased to offer 
the City of Carson the required Compliance with Labor Code 3700 Certification as 
follows:


CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH LABOR CODE SECTION 3700 


Name of Firm:__ Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS ________________________ 


Acting on behalf of the above-named firm Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS, as 
its Authorized Official, I, the undersigned, certify as follows: 


Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of 
the California Labor Code, which require every employer to be insured against liability 
for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
provisions of that code, and will comply with such provisions before commencing the 
performance of the work under any contract awarded in response to Don’s Audio 
Visual Services dba. DAVS’s proposal. 


Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS


 


By:  Donald A Sprague 

 
Title: _Owner/Operator_______


 
Date: ___18 September 2024____________




           RFP-NO. 24-017

                                        Don’s Audio Visual Services

Thank you for the opportunity bid to continue to supply services 
to the City of Carson.


	 	 	 	 	  Donald A Sprague

Donald A Sprague


Owner/Operator & Account Manager

Cell: 310-629-6052
dsprague57@gmail.com
Don’s Audio Visual Services dba. DAVS

21901 Grant Avenue
Torrance, CA  90503
Business: 310-629-6052



 

 

CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT  

By and Between 

CITY OF CARSON 

and  

DONALD ALAN SPRAGUE, DBA DON’S AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES 

  



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -1- 

AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARSON AND  

DONALD ALAN SPRAGUE, DBA DON’S AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES (herein “Agreement”) is made and 

entered into effective the 31st day of December, 2024, by and between the CITY OF CARSON, a 

California municipal corporation (“City”) and DONALD ALAN SPRAGUE, DBA DON’S 

AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES, a sole proprietorship (“Consultant”). City and Consultant are 

sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to 

as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

A. City has sought, by issuance of a Request for Proposals or Invitation for Bids, the 

performance of the services defined and described particularly in Article 1 of this Agreement.  

B. Consultant, following submission of a proposal or bid for the performance of the 

services defined and described particularly in Article 1 of this Agreement, was selected by the City 

to perform those services. 

C. Pursuant to the City of Carson’s Municipal Code, City has authority to enter into 

and execute this Agreement. 

D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Consultant for performance of those 

services defined and described particularly in Article 1 of this Agreement and desire that the terms 

of that performance be as particularly defined and described herein. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the 

Parties and contained herein and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

1.1 Scope of Services. 

In compliance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Consultant shall provide 

those services specified in the “Scope of Services” attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

herein by this reference, which may be referred to herein as the “services” or “work” hereunder. 

As a material inducement to the City entering into this Agreement, Consultant represents and 

warrants that it has the qualifications, experience, and facilities necessary to properly perform the 

services required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent, and professional manner, and is 

experienced in performing the work and services contemplated herein. Consultant shall at all times 

faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services 

described herein. Consultant covenants that it shall follow the highest professional standards in 

performing the work and services required hereunder and that all materials will be both of good 

quality as well as fit for the purpose intended. For purposes of this Agreement, the phrase “highest 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -2- 

professional standards” shall mean those standards of practice recognized by one or more first-

class firms performing similar work under similar circumstances. 

1.2 Consultant’s Proposal. 

The Scope of Service shall include the Consultant’s scope of work or bid which shall be 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. In the event of any 

inconsistency between the terms of such proposal and this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement 

shall govern. 

1.3 Compliance with Law. 

Consultant shall keep itself informed concerning, and shall render all services hereunder in 

accordance with, all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules, and regulations of the City and any 

Federal, State or local governmental entity having jurisdiction in effect at the time service is 

rendered. 

1.4 Licenses, Permits, Fees and Assessments. 

Consultant shall obtain at its sole cost and expense such licenses, permits and approvals as 

may be required by law for the performance of the services required by this Agreement. Consultant 

shall have the sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments and taxes, plus applicable penalties 

and interest, which may be imposed by law and arise from or are necessary for the Consultant’s 

performance of the services required by this Agreement, and shall indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless City, its officers, employees or agents of City, against any such fees, assessments, taxes, 

penalties or interest levied, assessed or imposed against City hereunder.  

1.5 Familiarity with Work. 

By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants that Consultant (i) has thoroughly 

investigated and considered the scope of services to be performed, (ii) has carefully considered 

how the services should be performed, and (iii) fully understands the facilities, difficulties and 

restrictions attending performance of the services under this Agreement. If the services involve 

work upon any site, Consultant warrants that Consultant has or will investigate the site and is or 

will be fully acquainted with the conditions there existing, prior to commencement of services 

hereunder. Should the Consultant discover any latent or unknown conditions, which will materially 

affect the performance of the services hereunder, Consultant shall immediately inform the City of 

such fact and shall not proceed except at Consultant’s risk until written instructions are received 

from the Contract Officer. 

1.6 Care of Work. 

The Consultant shall adopt reasonable methods during the life of the Agreement to furnish 

continuous protection to the work, and the equipment, materials, papers, documents, plans, studies 

and/or other components thereof to prevent losses or damages, and shall be responsible for all such 

damages, to persons or property, until acceptance of the work by City, except such losses or 

damages as may be caused by City’s own negligence. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -3- 

1.7 Further Responsibilities of Parties. 

Both parties agree to use reasonable care and diligence to perform their respective 

obligations under this Agreement. Both parties agree to act in good faith to execute all instruments, 

prepare all documents and take all actions as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes 

of this Agreement. Unless hereafter specified, neither party shall be responsible for the service of 

the other. 

1.8 Additional Services. 

City shall have the right at any time during the performance of the services, without 

invalidating this Agreement, to order extra work beyond that specified in the Scope of Services or 

make changes by altering, adding to or deducting from said work. No such extra work may be 

undertaken unless a written order is first given by the Contract Officer to the Consultant, 

incorporating therein any adjustment in (i) the Contract Sum for the actual costs of the extra work, 

and/or (ii) the time to perform this Agreement, which said adjustments are subject to the written 

approval of the Consultant. Any increase in compensation of up to ten percent (10%) of the 

Contract Sum or $25,000, whichever is less; or, in the time to perform of up to one hundred eighty 

(180) days, may be approved by the Contract Officer. Any greater increases, taken either separately 

or cumulatively, must be approved by the City Council. It is expressly understood by Consultant 

that the provisions of this Section shall not apply to services specifically set forth in the Scope of 

Services. Consultant hereby acknowledges that it accepts the risk that the services to be provided 

pursuant to the Scope of Services may be more costly or time consuming than Consultant 

anticipates and that Consultant shall not be entitled to additional compensation therefor. City may 

in its sole and absolute discretion have similar work done by other contractors. No claims for an 

increase in the Contract Sum or time for performance shall be valid unless the procedures 

established in this Section are followed.  

1.9 Special Requirements. 

Additional terms and conditions of this Agreement, if any, which are made a part hereof 

are set forth in the “Special Requirements” attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein 

by this reference. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of Exhibit “B” and any other 

provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit “B” shall govern. 

ARTICLE 2. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

2.1 Contract Sum. 

Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Consultant the 

amounts specified in the “Schedule of Compensation” attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and 

incorporated herein by this reference. The total compensation for the initial three-year Term of this 

Agreement set forth in Section 3.4, including reimbursement for actual expenses, shall not exceed 

Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00) (the “Contract Sum”), unless 

additional compensation is approved pursuant to Section 1.8.  In the event the City exercises one 

or both of its options to extend the Term for the Extension Term(s) pursuant to Section 3.4, the 

compensation for each Extension Term shall not exceed Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars 

($75,000.00).   



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -4- 

2.2 Method of Compensation.  

The method of compensation may include: (i) a lump sum payment upon completion; (ii) 

payment in accordance with specified tasks or the percentage of completion of the services, less 

contract retention; (iii) payment for time and materials based upon the Consultant’s rates as 

specified in the Schedule of Compensation, provided that (a) time estimates are provided for the 

performance of sub tasks, (b) contract retention is maintained, and (c) the Contract Sum is not 

exceeded; or (iv) such other methods as may be specified in the Schedule of Compensation.  

2.3 Reimbursable Expenses. 

Compensation may include reimbursement for actual and necessary expenditures for 

reproduction costs, telephone expenses, and travel expenses approved by the Contract Officer in 

advance, or actual subcontractor expenses of an approved subcontractor pursuant to Section 4.5, 

and only if specified in the Schedule of Compensation. The Contract Sum shall include the 

attendance of Consultant at all project meetings reasonably deemed necessary by the City. 

Coordination of the performance of the work with City is a critical component of the services. If 

Consultant is required to attend additional meetings to facilitate such coordination, Consultant 

shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for attending said meetings. 

2.4 Invoices. 

Each month Consultant shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and 

expenses incurred during the preceding month in a form approved by City’s Director of Finance. 

By submitting an invoice for payment under this Agreement, Consultant is certifying compliance 

with all provisions of the Agreement. The invoice shall detail charges for all necessary and actual 

expenses by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, equipment, 

supplies, and sub-contractor contracts. Sub-contractor charges shall also be detailed by such 

categories. Consultant shall not invoice City for any duplicate services performed by more than 

one person.  

City shall independently review each invoice submitted by the Consultant to determine 

whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 

Agreement. Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Consultant 

which are disputed by City, or as provided in Section 7.3, City will use its best efforts to cause 

Consultant to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Consultant’s correct and undisputed 

invoice; however, Consultant acknowledges and agrees that due to City warrant run procedures, 

the City cannot guarantee that payment will occur within this time period. In the event any charges 

or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City to Consultant for 

correction and resubmission. Review and payment by City for any invoice provided by the 

Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any rights or remedies provided herein or any applicable 

law.  

2.5 Waiver. 

Payment to Consultant for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed 

to waive any defects in work performed by Consultant. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -5- 

ARTICLE 3. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 

3.1 Time of Essence. 

Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

3.2 Schedule of Performance. 

Consultant shall commence the services pursuant to this Agreement upon receipt of a 

written notice to proceed and shall perform all services within the time period(s) established in the 

“Schedule of Performance” attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by this 

reference. When requested by the Consultant, extensions to the time period(s) specified in the 

Schedule of Performance may be approved in writing by the Contract Officer but not exceeding 

one hundred eighty (180) days cumulatively. 

3.3 Force Majeure. 

The time period(s) specified in the Schedule of Performance for performance of the 

services rendered pursuant to this Agreement shall be extended because of any delays due to 

unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Consultant, 

including, but not restricted to, acts of God or of the public enemy, unusually severe weather, fires, 

earthquakes, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, 

litigation, and/or acts of any governmental agency, including the City, if the Consultant shall 

within ten (10) days of the commencement of such delay notify the Contract Officer in writing of 

the causes of the delay. The Contract Officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and 

extend the time for performing the services for the period of the enforced delay when and if in the 

judgment of the Contract Officer such delay is justified. The Contract Officer’s determination shall 

be final and conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall Consultant be entitled 

to recover damages against the City for any delay in the performance of this Agreement, however 

caused, Consultant’s sole remedy being extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

3.4 Term. 

Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this Agreement, this Agreement 

shall continue in full force and effect until completion of the services but not exceeding one (1) 

years from the date hereof, except as otherwise provided in the Schedule of Performance (Exhibit 

“D”).  

ARTICLE 4. COORDINATION OF WORK 

4.1 Representatives and Personnel of Consultant. 

The following principals of Consultant (“Principals”) are hereby designated as being the 

principals and representatives of Consultant authorized to act in its behalf with respect to the work 

specified herein and make all decisions in connection therewith: 

Donald Alan Sprague                                     Owner 

(Name) (Title) 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -6- 

  

(Name) (Title) 

  

(Name) (Title) 

It is expressly understood that the experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of the 

foregoing principals were a substantial inducement for City to enter into this Agreement. 

Therefore, the foregoing principals shall be responsible during the term of this Agreement for 

directing all activities of Consultant and devoting sufficient time to personally supervise the 

services hereunder. All personnel of Consultant, and any authorized agents, shall at all times be 

under the exclusive direction and control of the Principals. For purposes of this Agreement, the 

foregoing Principals may not be replaced nor may their responsibilities be substantially reduced 

by Consultant without the express written approval of City. Additionally, Consultant shall utilize 

only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall make 

every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and continuity of Consultant’s staff and 

subcontractors, if any, assigned to perform the services required under this Agreement. Consultant 

shall notify City of any changes in Consultant’s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to 

perform the services required under this Agreement, prior to and during any such performance. 

4.2 Status of Consultant.  

Consultant shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, or to incur any obligation, 

debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless 

such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in 

writing by City. Consultant shall not at any time or in any manner represent that Consultant or any 

of Consultant’s officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or 

agents of City. Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant’s officers, employees or agents, shall 

obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to 

City’s employees. Consultant expressly waives any claim Consultant may have to any such rights. 

4.3 Contract Officer. 

The Contract Officer shall be Bobby Grove, Community Services Superintendent, or such 

other person as may be designated by the City Manager. It shall be the Consultant’s responsibility 

to assure that the Contract Officer is kept informed of the progress of the performance of the 

services and the Consultant shall refer any decisions which must be made by City to the Contract 

Officer. Unless otherwise specified herein, any approval of City required hereunder shall mean the 

approval of the Contract Officer. The Contract Officer shall have authority, if specified in writing 

by the City Manager, to sign all documents on behalf of the City required hereunder to carry out 

the terms of this Agreement.  

4.4 Independent Consultant. 

Neither the City nor any of its employees shall have any control over the manner, mode or 

means by which Consultant, its agents or employees, perform the services required herein, except 

as otherwise set forth herein. City shall have no voice in the selection, discharge, supervision or 

control of Consultant’s employees, servants, representatives or agents, or in fixing their number, 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -7- 

compensation or hours of service. Consultant shall perform all services required herein as an 

independent contractor of City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent 

contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role. Consultant shall not at any 

time or in any manner represent that it or any of its agents or employees are agents or employees 

of City. City shall not in any way or for any purpose become or be deemed to be a partner of 

Consultant in its business or otherwise or a joint venturer or a member of any joint enterprise with 

Consultant. 

4.5 Prohibition Against Subcontracting or Assignment. 

The experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of Consultant, its principals and 

employees were a substantial inducement for the City to enter into this Agreement. Therefore, 

Consultant shall not contract with any other entity to perform in whole or in part the services 

required hereunder without the express written approval of the City. In addition, neither this 

Agreement nor any interest herein may be transferred, assigned, conveyed, hypothecated or 

encumbered voluntarily or by operation of law, whether for the benefit of creditors or otherwise, 

without the prior written approval of City. Transfers restricted hereunder shall include the transfer 

to any person or group of persons acting in concert of more than twenty five percent (25%) of the 

present ownership and/or control of Consultant, taking all transfers into account on a cumulative 

basis. In the event of any such unapproved transfer, including any bankruptcy proceeding, this 

Agreement shall be void. No approved transfer shall release the Consultant or any surety of 

Consultant of any liability hereunder without the express consent of City. 

ARTICLE 5. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

5.1 Insurance Coverages. 

The Consultant shall procure and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, in a form and 

content satisfactory to City, during the entire term of this Agreement including any extension 

thereof, the following policies of insurance which shall cover all elected and appointed officers, 

employees and agents of City: 

(a) General Liability Insurance (Coverage Form ISO CGL CG 00 01 or 

equivalent). A policy of comprehensive general liability insurance written on a per occurrence 

basis for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. The policy of insurance shall be in 

an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence or if a general aggregate limit is used, then 

the general aggregate limit shall be twice the occurrence limit.  

(b) Worker’s Compensation Insurance. A policy of worker’s compensation 

insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the laws of the State of California and which 

shall indemnify, insure and provide legal defense for the Consultant against any loss, claim or 

damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by 

or any persons retained by the Consultant in the course of carrying out the work or services 

contemplated in this Agreement, with Employer’s Liability insurance coverage limits of at least 

$1,000,000.00. 

(c) Automotive Insurance (Coverage Form ISO CA 00 01 including “any auto” 

and endorsement CA 0025 or equivalent). A policy of comprehensive automobile liability 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -8- 

insurance written on a per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage in an amount not less 

than $1,000,000. Said policy shall include coverage for owned, non-owned, leased, hired cars and 

any automobile. 

(d) Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance appropriate to the 

Consultant’s profession, as determined by the City’s Risk Manager, provided that the limits shall 

be no less than $1,000,000 per claim and no less than $1,000,000 general aggregate. This coverage 

may be written on a “claims made” basis, and must include coverage for contractual liability. The 

professional liability insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to 

claims based upon, arising out of or related to services performed under this Agreement. The 

insurance must be maintained for at least 5 consecutive years following the completion of 

Consultant’s services or the termination of this Agreement. During this additional 5-year period, 

Consultant shall annually and upon request of the City submit written evidence of this continuous 

coverage. 

(e) Subcontractors. Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds 

under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and certified endorsements for each 

subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall include all of the requirements stated herein. 

(f) Additional Insurance. Policies of such other insurance, as may be required 

in the Special Requirements in Exhibit “B”. 

(g) Broader Coverages and Higher Limits. Notwithstanding anything else 

herein to the contrary, if Consultant maintains broader coverages and/or higher limits than the 

minimums shown above, the City requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverages and/or 

higher limits maintained by Consultant. 

5.2 General Insurance Requirements.  

All of the above policies of insurance shall be primary insurance and shall name the City, 

its elected and appointed officers, employees and agents as additional insureds and any insurance 

maintained by City or its officers, employees or agents may apply in excess of, and not contribute 

with Consultant’s insurance. The insurer is deemed hereof to waive all rights of subrogation and 

contribution it may have against the City, its officers, employees and agents and their respective 

insurers. Moreover, the insurance policy must specify that where the primary insured does not 

satisfy the self-insured retention, any additional insured may satisfy the self-insured retention.  

All of said policies of insurance shall provide that said insurance may not be amended or 

cancelled by the insurer or any party hereto without providing thirty (30) days prior written notice 

by certified mail return receipt requested to the City. In the event any of said policies of insurance 

are cancelled, the Consultant shall, prior to the cancellation date, submit new evidence of insurance 

in conformance with Section 5.1 to the Contract Officer.  

No work or services under this Agreement shall commence until the Consultant has 

provided the City with Certificates of Insurance, additional insured endorsement forms or 

appropriate insurance binders evidencing the above insurance coverages and said Certificates of 

Insurance or binders are approved by the City. City reserves the right to inspect complete, certified 

copies of and endorsements to all required insurance policies at any time. Any failure to comply 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -9- 

with the reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches or warranties shall not 

affect coverage provided to City.  

All certificates shall name the City as additional insured (providing the appropriate 

endorsement) and shall conform to the following “cancellation” notice: 

CANCELLATION: 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE 

CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATED THEREOF, 

THE ISSUING COMPANY SHALL MAIL THIRTY (30)-DAY 

ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE TO CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

NAMED HEREIN. 

[to be initialed] ______________ 

Consultant Initials 

City, its respective elected and appointed officers, directors, officials, employees, agents 

and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities 

Consultant performs; products and completed operations of Consultant; premises owned, occupied 

or used by Consultant; or any automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Consultant. The 

coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City, and their 

respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. Consultant’s 

insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 

except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At 

the option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 

retentions as respects City or its respective elected or appointed officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers or the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigations, claim administration, defense expenses and claims. The Consultant agrees that the 

requirement to provide insurance shall not be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which 

the Consultant may be held responsible for the payment of damages to any persons or property 

resulting from the Consultant’s activities or the activities of any person or persons for which the 

Consultant is otherwise responsible nor shall it limit the Consultant’s indemnification liabilities as 

provided in Section 5.3.  

In the event the Consultant subcontracts any portion of the work in compliance with 

Section 4.5 of this Agreement, the contract between the Consultant and such subcontractor shall 

require the subcontractor to maintain the same policies of insurance that the Consultant is required 

to maintain pursuant to Section 5.1, and such certificates and endorsements shall be provided to 

City. 

5.3 Indemnification. 

To the full extent permitted by law, Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the City, its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) against, and will hold 

and save them and each of them harmless from, any and all actions, either judicial, administrative, 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -10- 

arbitration or regulatory claims, damages to persons or property, losses, costs, penalties, 

obligations, errors, omissions or liabilities whether actual or threatened (herein “claims or 

liabilities”) that may be asserted or claimed by any person, firm or entity arising out of or in 

connection with the negligent performance of the work, operations or activities provided herein of 

Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or invitees, or any individual or entity 

for which Consultant is legally liable (“indemnitors”), or arising from Consultant’s or indemnitors’ 

reckless or willful misconduct, or arising from Consultant’s or indemnitors’ negligent performance 

of or failure to perform any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement, and in 

connection therewith: 

(a) Consultant will defend any action or actions filed in connection with any of 

said claims or liabilities and will pay all costs and expenses, including legal costs and attorneys’ 

fees incurred in connection therewith; 

(b) Consultant will promptly pay any judgment rendered against the City, its 

officers, agents or employees for any such claims or liabilities arising out of or in connection with 

the negligent performance of or failure to perform such work, operations or activities of Consultant 

hereunder; and Consultant agrees to save and hold the City, its officers, agents, and employees 

harmless therefrom; 

(c) In the event the City, its officers, agents or employees is made a party to 

any action or proceeding filed or prosecuted against Consultant for such damages or other claims 

arising out of or in connection with the negligent performance of or failure to perform the work, 

operation or activities of Consultant hereunder, Consultant agrees to pay to the City, its officers, 

agents or employees, any and all costs and expenses incurred by the City, its officers, agents or 

employees in such action or proceeding, including but not limited to, legal costs and attorneys’ 

fees. 

Consultant shall incorporate similar indemnity agreements with its subcontractors and if it 

fails to do so Consultant shall be fully responsible to indemnify City hereunder therefore, and 

failure of City to monitor compliance with these provisions shall not be a waiver hereof. This 

indemnification includes claims or liabilities arising from any negligent or wrongful act, error or 

omission, or reckless or willful misconduct of Consultant in the performance of professional 

services hereunder. The provisions of this Section do not apply to claims or liabilities occurring as 

a result of City’s sole negligence or willful acts or omissions, but, to the fullest extent permitted 

by law, shall apply to claims and liabilities resulting in part from City’s negligence, except that 

design professionals’ indemnity hereunder shall be limited to claims and liabilities arising out of 

the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the design professional. The indemnity 

obligation shall be binding on successors and assigns of Consultant and shall survive termination 

of this Agreement.  

5.4 Sufficiency of Insurer. 

Insurance required by this Agreement shall be satisfactory only if issued by companies 

qualified to do business in California, rated “A-” or better in the most recent edition of Best Rating 

Guide, The Key Rating Guide or in the Federal Register, and only if they are of a financial category 

Class VII or better, unless such requirements are waived by the Risk Manager of the City (“Risk 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -11- 

Manager”) due to unique circumstances. If this Agreement continues for more than 3 years 

duration, or in the event the risk manager determines that the work or services to be performed 

under this Agreement creates an increased or decreased risk of loss to the City, the Consultant 

agrees that the minimum limits of the insurance policies may be changed accordingly upon receipt 

of written notice from the Risk Manager. 

ARTICLE 6. RECORDS, REPORTS, AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION 

6.1 Records. 

Consultant shall keep, and require subcontractors to keep, such ledgers, books of accounts, 

invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, reports, studies or other documents relating to the 

disbursements charged to City and services performed hereunder (the “books and records”), as 

shall be necessary to perform the services required by this Agreement and enable the Contract 

Officer to evaluate the performance of such services. Any and all such documents shall be 

maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be complete and 

detailed. The Contract Officer shall have full and free access to such books and records at all times 

during normal business hours of City, including the right to inspect, copy, audit and make records 

and transcripts from such records. Such records shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years 

following completion of the services hereunder, and the City shall have access to such records in 

the event any audit is required. In the event of dissolution of Consultant’s business, custody of the 

books and records may be given to City, and access shall be provided by Consultant’s successor 

in interest. Notwithstanding the above, the Consultant shall fully cooperate with the City in 

providing access to the books and records if a public records request is made and disclosure is 

required by law including but not limited to the California Public Records Act.  

6.2 Reports. 

Consultant shall periodically prepare and submit to the Contract Officer such reports 

concerning the performance of the services required by this Agreement as the Contract Officer 

shall require. Consultant hereby acknowledges that the City is greatly concerned about the cost of 

work and services to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. For this reason, Consultant agrees 

that if Consultant becomes aware of any facts, circumstances, techniques, or events that may or 

will materially increase or decrease the cost of the work or services contemplated herein or, if 

Consultant is providing design services, the cost of the project being designed, Consultant shall 

promptly notify the Contract Officer of said fact, circumstance, technique or event and the 

estimated increased or decreased cost related thereto and, if Consultant is providing design 

services, the estimated increased or decreased cost estimate for the project being designed. 

6.3 Ownership of Documents. 

All drawings, specifications, maps, designs, photographs, studies, surveys, data, notes, 

computer files, reports, records, documents and other materials (the “documents and materials”) 

prepared by Consultant, its employees, subcontractors and agents in the performance of this 

Agreement shall be the property of City and shall be delivered to City upon request of the Contract 

Officer or upon the termination of this Agreement, and Consultant shall have no claim for further 

employment or additional compensation as a result of the exercise by City of its full rights of 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -12- 

ownership use, reuse, or assignment of the documents and materials hereunder. Any use, reuse or 

assignment of such completed documents for other projects and/or use of uncompleted documents 

without specific written authorization by the Consultant will be at the City’s sole risk and without 

liability to Consultant, and Consultant’s guarantee and warranties shall not extend to such use, 

reuse or assignment. Consultant may retain copies of such documents for its own use. Consultant 

shall have the right to use the concepts embodied therein. All subcontractors shall provide for 

assignment to City of any documents or materials prepared by them, and in the event Consultant 

fails to secure such assignment, Consultant shall indemnify City for all damages resulting 

therefrom. Moreover, with respect to any documents and materials that may qualify as “works 

made for hire” as defined in 17 U.S.C. § 101, such documents and materials are hereby deemed 

“works made for hire” for the City.  

6.4 Confidentiality and Release of Information. 

(a) All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in 

performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the 

public domain or already known to Consultant. Consultant shall not release or disclose any such 

information or work product to persons or entities other than City without prior written 

authorization from the Contract Officer.  

(b) Consultant, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, 

without prior written authorization from the Contract Officer or unless requested by the City 

Attorney, voluntarily provide documents, declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, 

response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this 

Agreement. Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered “voluntary” provided 

Consultant gives City notice of such court order or subpoena.  

(c) If Consultant, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 

Consultant, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City 

shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and 

fees, including attorneys fees, caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant’s conduct. 

(d) Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, 

employees, agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of 

deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery 

request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work performed 

there under. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant or be present at 

any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with City and 

to provide City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 

Consultant. However, this right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by 

City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 

ARTICLE 7. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND TERMINATION  

7.1 California Law. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed both as to validity and to 

performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Legal actions 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -13- 

concerning any dispute, claim or matter arising out of or in relation to this Agreement shall be 

instituted in the Superior Court of the County of Los Angeles, State of California, or any other 

appropriate court in such county, and Consultant covenants and agrees to submit to the personal 

jurisdiction of such court in the event of such action. In the event of litigation in a U.S. District 

Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in the County of Los 

Angeles, State of California. 

7.2 Disputes; Default. 

In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the City shall 

not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Consultant for any work performed after 

the date of default. Instead, the City may give notice to Consultant of the default and the reasons 

for the default. The notice shall include the timeframe in which Consultant may cure the default. 

This timeframe is presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if 

circumstances warrant. During the period of time that Consultant is in default, the City shall hold 

all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on the invoices. In the 

alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or all of the outstanding invoices 

during the period of default. If Consultant does not cure the default, the City may take necessary 

steps to terminate this Agreement under this Article. Any failure on the part of the City to give 

notice of the Consultant’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City’s legal rights 

or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 

7.3 Retention of Funds. 

Consultant hereby authorizes City to deduct from any amount payable to Consultant 

(whether or not arising out of this Agreement) (i) any amounts the payment of which may be in 

dispute hereunder or which are necessary to compensate City for any losses, costs, liabilities, or 

damages suffered by City, and (ii) all amounts for which City may be liable to third parties, by 

reason of Consultant’s acts or omissions in performing or failing to perform Consultant’s 

obligation under this Agreement. In the event that any claim is made by a third party, the amount 

or validity of which is disputed by Consultant, or any indebtedness shall exist which shall appear 

to be the basis for a claim of lien, City may withhold from any payment due, without liability for 

interest because of such withholding, an amount sufficient to cover such claim. The failure of City 

to exercise such right to deduct or to withhold shall not, however, affect the obligations of the 

Consultant to insure, indemnify, and protect City as elsewhere provided herein. 

7.4 Waiver. 

Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiver by any 

party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other 

provision or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement. 

Acceptance by City of any work or services by Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any of 

the provisions of this Agreement. No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or remedy by 

a non-defaulting party on any default shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver. 

Any waiver by either party of any default must be in writing and shall not be a waiver of any other 

default concerning the same or any other provision of this Agreement.  



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -14- 

7.5 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative. 

Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this 

Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are cumulative and the exercise by either party 

of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same or 

different times, of any other rights or remedies for the same default or any other default by the 

other party. 

7.6 Legal Action. 

In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party may take legal action, in law or in 

equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to compel 

specific performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or injunctive relief, or to obtain any 

other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any contrary 

provision herein, Consultant shall file a statutory claim pursuant to Government Code Sections 

905 et. seq. and 910 et. seq., in order to pursue a legal action under this Agreement.  

7.7 Termination Prior to Expiration of Term. 

This Section shall govern any termination of this Contract except as specifically provided 

in the following Section for termination for cause. The City reserves the right to terminate this 

Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to Consultant, 

except that where termination is due to the fault of the Consultant, the period of notice may be 

such shorter time as may be determined by the Contract Officer. In addition, the Consultant 

reserves the right to terminate this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon sixty (60) 

days’ written notice to City, except that where termination is due to the fault of the City, the period 

of notice may be such shorter time as the Consultant may determine. Upon receipt of any notice 

of termination, Consultant shall immediately cease all services hereunder except such as may be 

specifically approved by the Contract Officer. Except where the Consultant has initiated 

termination, the Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for all services rendered prior to the 

effective date of the notice of termination and for any services authorized by the Contract Officer 

thereafter in accordance with the Schedule of Compensation or such as may be approved by the 

Contract Officer, except as provided in Section 7.3. In the event the Consultant has initiated 

termination, the Consultant shall be entitled to compensation only for the reasonable value of the 

work product actually produced hereunder. In the event of termination without cause pursuant to 

this Section, the terminating party need not provide the non-terminating party with the opportunity 

to cure pursuant to Section 7.2. 

7.8 Termination for Default of Consultant. 

If termination is due to the failure of the Consultant to fulfill its obligations under this 

Agreement, City may, after compliance with the provisions of Section 7.2, take over the work and 

prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and the Consultant shall be liable to 

the extent that the total cost for completion of the services required hereunder exceeds the 

compensation herein stipulated (provided that the City shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate such 

damages), and City may withhold any payments to the Consultant for the purpose of set-off or 

partial payment of the amounts owed the City as previously stated. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -15- 

7.9 Attorneys’ Fees. 

If either party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend or made a party to any 

action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action 

or proceeding, in addition to any other relief which may be granted, whether legal or equitable, 

shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees. Attorney’s fees shall include attorney’s fees on any 

appeal, and in addition a party entitled to attorney’s fees shall be entitled to all other reasonable 

costs for investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery and all other necessary costs 

the court allows which are incurred in such litigation. All such fees shall be deemed to have accrued 

on commencement of such action and shall be enforceable whether or not such action is prosecuted 

to judgment. 

ARTICLE 8. CITY OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES: NON-DISCRIMINATION 

8.1 Non-liability of City Officers and Employees. 

No officer or employee of the City shall be personally liable to the Consultant, or any 

successor in interest, in the event of any default or breach by the City or for any amount which 

may become due to the Consultant or to its successor, or for breach of any obligation of the terms 

of this Agreement. 

8.2 Conflict of Interest. 

Consultant covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall 

acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests 

of City or which would in any way hinder Consultant’s performance of services under this 

Agreement. Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no person 

having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or subcontractor 

without the express written consent of the Contract Officer. Consultant agrees to at all times avoid 

conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the 

performance of this Agreement.  

No officer or employee of the City shall have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in 

this Agreement nor shall any such officer or employee participate in any decision relating to the 

Agreement which affects her/his financial interest or the financial interest of any corporation, 

partnership or association in which (s)he is, directly or indirectly, interested, in violation of any 

State statute or regulation. The Consultant warrants that it has not paid or given and will not pay 

or give any third party any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement. 

8.3 Covenant Against Discrimination. 

Consultant covenants that, by and for itself, its heirs, executors, assigns, and all persons 

claiming under or through them, that there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of, 

any person or group of persons on account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, gender, sexual 

orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry or other protected class in the performance of 

this Agreement. Consultant shall take affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and 

that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, creed, religion, 

sex, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry or other protected class. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -16- 

8.4 Unauthorized Aliens. 

Consultant hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the Federal 

Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, and in connection 

therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein. Should Consultant so employ 

such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this Agreement, 

and should any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of unauthorized aliens, 

Consultant hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions 

imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by City. 

ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

9.1 Notices. 

Any notice, demand, request, document, consent, approval, or communication either party 

desires or is required to give to the other party or any other person shall be in writing and either 

served personally or sent by prepaid, first-class mail, in the case of the City, to the City Manager 

and to the attention of the Contract Officer (with her/his name and City title), City of Carson, 701 

East Carson, Carson, California 90745 and in the case of the Consultant, to the person(s) at the 

address designated on the execution page of this Agreement. Either party may change its address 

by notifying the other party of the change of address in writing. Notice shall be deemed 

communicated at the time personally delivered or in seventy-two (72) hours from the time of 

mailing if mailed as provided in this Section. 

9.2 Interpretation.  

The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaning of the 

language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of 

this Agreement or any other rule of construction which might otherwise apply. 

9.3 Counterparts.  

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such 

counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, whether the signatures are originals, 

electronic, facsimiles or digital.  All such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the 

same Agreement.  

9.4 Integration; Amendment.  

This Agreement including the attachments hereto is the entire, complete and exclusive 

expression of the understanding of the parties. It is understood that there are no oral agreements 

between the parties hereto affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels 

any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, between 

the parties, and none shall be used to interpret this Agreement. No amendment to or modification 

of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Consultant and by 

the City Council. The parties agree that this requirement for written modifications cannot be 

waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -17- 

9.5 Severability. 

In the event that any one or more of the phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or sections 

contained in this Agreement shall be declared invalid or unenforceable by a valid judgment or 

decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any 

of the remaining phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or sections of this Agreement which are 

hereby declared as severable and shall be interpreted to carry out the intent of the parties hereunder 

unless the invalid provision is so material that its invalidity deprives either party of the basic benefit 

of their bargain or renders this Agreement meaningless. 

9.6 Warranty & Representation of Non-Collusion. 

No official, officer, or employee of City has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 

Agreement, nor shall any official, officer, or employee of City participate in any decision relating 

to this Agreement which may affect his/her financial interest or the financial interest of any 

corporation, partnership, or association in which (s)he is directly or indirectly interested, or in 

violation of any corporation, partnership, or association in which (s)he is directly or indirectly 

interested, or in violation of any State or municipal statute or regulation. The determination of 

“financial interest” shall be consistent with State law and shall not include interests found to be 

“remote” or “non-interests” pursuant to Government Code Sections 1091 or 1091.5. Consultant 

warrants and represents that it has not paid or given, and will not pay or give, to any third party 

including, but not limited to, any City official, officer, or employee, any money, consideration, or 

other thing of value as a result or consequence of obtaining or being awarded any agreement. 

Consultant further warrants and represents that (s)he/it has not engaged in any act(s), omission(s), 

or other conduct or collusion that would result in the payment of any money, consideration, or 

other thing of value to any third party including, but not limited to, any City official, officer, or 

employee, as a result of consequence of obtaining or being awarded any agreement. Consultant is 

aware of and understands that any such act(s), omission(s) or other conduct resulting in such 

payment of money, consideration, or other thing of value will render this Agreement void and of 

no force or effect. 

Consultant’s Authorized Initials _______ 

9.7 Corporate Authority. 

The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that (i) such 

party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this 

Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing this Agreement, such party is formally 

bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the entering into this Agreement does not 

violate any provision of any other Agreement to which said party is bound. This Agreement shall 

be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties.  

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  -18- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 

and year first-above written. 

CITY: 

CITY OF CARSON, a municipal corporation 

  

Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 

 

Date: ____________________________ 

ATTEST: 

  

Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP 

  

Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney 

[brj] 

CONSULTANT: 

DONALD ALAN SPRAGUE, DBA DON’S 

AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES, a sole proprietorship  

By:  

Name: 

Title: 

 

                                                                        Address: 21901 Grant Avenue 

               Torrance, CA 90503 

 

Date: ____________________________  

Two corporate officer signatures required when Consultant is a corporation, with one signature required from 

each of the following groups: 1) Chairman of the Board, President or any Vice President; and 2) Secretary, any 

Assistant Secretary, Chief Financial Officer or any Assistant Treasurer. CONSULTANT’S SIGNATURES 

SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS 

MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR 

REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO CONSULTANT’S BUSINESS ENTITY.  



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  

 

On __________, 2024 before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 

basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 

acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 

his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 

executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 

and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

Signature: _____________________________________ 

 

 

OPTIONAL 

Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could 

prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 INDIVIDUAL 

 CORPORATE OFFICER 

 _______________________________ 

TITLE(S) 

 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 

    GENERAL 

 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 

 TRUSTEE(S) 

 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 

 OTHER_______________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 

SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 

(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 

NUMBER OF PAGES 

___________________________________ 

DATE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 

SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 

 

 
  

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 

document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  

 

On __________, 2024 before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 

basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 

acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 

his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 

executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 

and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

Signature: _____________________________________ 

 

 

OPTIONAL 

Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could 

prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 INDIVIDUAL 

 CORPORATE OFFICER 

 _______________________________ 

TITLE(S) 

 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 

    GENERAL 

 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 

 TRUSTEE(S) 

 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 

 OTHER_______________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 

SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 

(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 

NUMBER OF PAGES 

___________________________________ 

DATE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 

SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 

 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 

document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  A-1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

I. Consultant will perform the following Services on an on-call basis: 

A. Rental of audio, visual, sound, lighting, effects & atmosphere, stage and riser, and 

backline equipment, as detailed in Exhibit “C,” for City events, functions, and 

activities, including private events booked by patrons at the City’s Community 

Center, also known as the Carson Event Center (“Event Center”).  

1. The City anticipates requesting the on-call services primarily for events and 

functions held by patrons at the Event Center pursuant to facility use 

bookings/reservations made by the patrons with City approval/permits. 

When the patron requests rental of equipment or services that are within the 

Scope of Services of this Agreement in connection with an Event Center 

event or function booked by the patron, then if the City elects to utilize 

Consultant’s on-call services to fulfill the request, the Contract Officer will 

make a request to Consultant and Consultant will provide the City with a 

Task Proposal pursuant to Section II.A-B below,  and then City, if it sees fit 

to approve the Task Proposal, will charge the patron for the stated cost of 

the Consultant’s equipment and/or services. After the event has been 

completed, Consultant will invoice the City for the equipment and/or 

services stated in the approved Task Proposal and the City will then make 

payment to Consultant in accordance with Section 2.4 (Invoices). 

2. The City may also request on-call services from Consultant for City events, 

functions and/or activities, independent of any patron Event Center 

booking. 

B. Unless otherwise directed by the Contract Officer, Consultant shall perform the 

following services associated with the rental of its equipment for each event, 

function or activity pursuant to this Agreement, and the stated equipment rental 

rates in Section I of Exhibit “C” shall include such services:  

1. Setting up and testing the pre-ordered equipment commencing at least one 

hour prior to the event; 

2. Take-down (including disassembly and disconnection, with all other 

equipment and systems returned to the condition existing prior to the event) 

of the equipment, to completed within one hour after the event; and 

3. Consultant’s technician being present during set-up, and thereafter as 

requested by the Contract Officer until take-down is completed, to explain 

the use of the equipment and provide the required cabling to make the 

system work with the City and/or the Event Center patrons and their own 

equipment.  



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  A-2 

C. Consultant shall provide all technical services incidental to the City’s rental and use 

of equipment pursuant to subsection (B) of this Section I, including setup, testing 

and takedown of all equipment rented, at no extra charge, in that the costs of such 

technical services are included in the applicable rental rates set forth in Section I of 

Exhibit C.  Additional costs shall only be charged for special requests for labor of 

a different nature that is beyond the labor that is merely incidental or necessary to 

the equipment rental and use (including routine setup, testing, and takedown), and 

such special labor shall be performed at the labor rates specified in Section II of 

Exhibit C. However, the labor that may be authorized pursuant to this paragraph is 

limited to labor related to provision of technical services in connection with a given 

event, function or activity, and shall not include any permanent installation work.   

II. Consultant must perform all on-call Services in compliance with the following 

requirements: 

A. Each task shall be indicated by a written request produced by the Contract Officer 

with a description of the work to be performed, and the time desired for completion.  

All tasks shall be carried out in conformity with all provisions of this Agreement. 

B. Consultant must prepare a written description of the requested tasks including all 

components and subtasks; the costs to perform the task (“Task Budget”), using the 

itemized fees in Exhibit C, Schedule of Compensation, whenever a requested task 

is provided for in Exhibit C; an explanation of how the cost was determined; and, 

a schedule for completion of the task (“Task Completion Date”); which shall all 

collectively be referred to as the “Task Proposal.” 

C. Contract Officer shall in writing approve, modify or reject the Task Proposal, and 

may issue a Notice to Proceed. 

D. The task shall be performed at a cost not to exceed the Task Budget. 

E. Consultant shall complete the task and deliver all deliverables to Contract Officer 

by the Task Completion Date. 

III. All work product is subject to review and acceptance by the City, and must be revised 

by the Consultant without additional charge to the City until found satisfactory and 

accepted by City.  

IV. Consultant will utilize the following personnel to accomplish the Services:  

A. Donald Sprague, Owner/Operator/General Manager 

B. Subcontracted Technician as needed (subject to City approval per Section 4.5) 

 

 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  B-1 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 

(Superseding Contract Boilerplate)  

(added text shown in bold italics, deleted text shown in strikethrough font) 

I. Section 3.4 (Term) is amended as follows: 

“3.4 Term. 

Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this Agreement, this 

Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until completion of the services 

but not exceeding three (3) one (1) years from the date hereof, except as otherwise 

provided in the Schedule of Performance (Exhibit ‘D’) (“Term”). The City may, at 

its sole discretion, elect to extend the Term by up to two (2) years, in one (1) year 

increments (each, an “Extension Term”), at the same rates of compensation set 

forth in the Schedule of Compensation (Exhibit ‘C”), by providing Consultant a 

written notice of such election no less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 

of the Term or then-applicable Extension Term.” 

 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  C-1 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION 

I. The daily equipment rental rates (including all associated services as described in 

Section I of Exhibit “A”) for all available rental equipment are as follows, less an 

automatic 30% discount on all rentals of equipment listed below except for the 

equipment listed under the heading “Stage and Riser Listings”:  

 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  C-2 

 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  C-3 

 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  C-4 

 

As noted above, all listed equipment rentals except for the “Stage and Riser Listings” 

are subject to an automatic 30% discount off the listed rental rates. As an example, 

“50” Samsung” is listed under “Video Listings” at a rental rate of $150; after 

application of the 30% discount, the actual rental rate is $105, calculated as follows: 

$150 x 0.3 = $45; $150 - $45 = $105. 

Additional lighting and effects & atmosphere equipment items not listed above may 

be made available for rental in response to a given Task Proposal, subject to 

availability and at a negotiated rate approved by the Contract Officer.  

II. The hourly labor rates for services pursuant to Section I.C of Exhibit “A” are as 

follows: 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  C-5 

 

III. Within the budgeted amounts for each Task, and with the approval of the Contract 

Officer, funds may be shifted from one Task sub-budget to another so long as the 

Contract Sum is not exceeded per Section 2.1, unless Additional Services are 

approved per Section 1.8.  

IV. The City will compensate Consultant for the Services performed upon submission of 

a valid invoice. Each invoice is to include, to the extent applicable: 

A. Line items for all personnel describing the work performed, the equipment rented, 

and the applicable rental rate or hourly rate. 

B. Line items for all materials and equipment properly charged to the Services. 

C. Line items for all other approved reimbursable expenses claimed, with supporting 

documentation. 

D. Line items for all approved subcontractor labor, supplies, equipment, materials, and 

travel properly charged to the Services. 

V. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $225,000 for the initial three-

year Term as provided in Section 2.1 of this Agreement. 



 

01007.0001/1027362.3  D-1 

EXHIBIT “D” 

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE  

I. Consultant shall be available to perform the services on an on-call basis seven (7) days 

a week, between the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m., as necessary to accommodate 

both scheduled and last-minute events, including responding to last-minute event 

requests and providing equipment and personnel within an hour if needed. 

Consultant shall perform all services timely in accordance with the applicable 

approved Task Proposal. 

II. The Contract Officer may approve extensions for performance of the services in 

accordance with Section 3.2.  



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 17.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Joshua Boudreaux, Director of Human Resources  HR  Administration
 
Subject:          **REVISED** CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 24-103, AMENDING THE JOB
SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER POSITION (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On November 6, 2024, a joint review was conducted by AFSCME Local 1017 in collaboration with Human
Resources (HR) staff to assess the current classification specification for the following position, Assistant to the
City Manager. The primary objective of the review was to ensure that this classification accurately reflect the
evolving responsibilities, organizational needs, and strategic priorities of the City.

The review identified that the current job classification for this positions no longer fully aligns with the expanded
scope of duties, increasing complexity of tasks, and changing priorities within the City's operational and strategic
framework. As a result, updates to the classifications are recommended to better reflect the roles and
responsibilities of the Assistant to the City Manager position. 

II. RECOMMENDATION

WAIVE further reading and ADOPT the following Resolution No. 24-103, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE JOB CLASSIFICATION OF THE ASSISTANT TO THE CITY
MANAGER."

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action that City Council deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

In accordance with the City's Municipal Code, classification specifications must be approved by the City Council in
order to establish the job title, essential job duties, knowledge, skills and abilities, and qualification guidelines that
are required for each position. Therefore, an update to the Assistant City Manager job specifications is being
presented to the City Council for approval and adoption. 
 
11/19/24 Revision
Job Classification description revised to omit specific work group supervision. AFCSME 1017 has reviewed the
proposed revisions and is in agreement with these adjustments.  Updated exhibit No. 3 attached.   

V. FISCAL IMPACT

701 East Carson Street



There is no fiscal impact from the proposed resolution as this position was already approved in the adopted Fiscal
Year 2024-25 operating budget.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Resolution No. 24-103; Assistant to the City Manager
2. Original Assistant to the City Manager Classification Specification
3. Revised Assistant to the City Manager Classification Specification

 
 

 

 

Attachments

EXHIBIT NO. 1-Reso No 24-103; Assistant to the City Manager
EXHIBIT NO. 2-Assistant to the City Manager Classification Specification
EXHIBIT NO. 3 REVISED Assistant City Manager JD 11.18.24.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FEXHIBIT%20NO.%201-Reso%20No%2024-103%20Assitant%20to%20the%20City%20Manager%2011.7.pdf?alt=media&token=20c7c420-24e4-446a-902c-1ceba6dc3c51
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FEXHIBIT%20NO.%201-Reso%20No%2024-103%20Assitant%20to%20the%20City%20Manager%2011.7.pdf?alt=media&token=20c7c420-24e4-446a-902c-1ceba6dc3c51
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FEXHIBIT%20NO.%201-Reso%20No%2024-103%20Assitant%20to%20the%20City%20Manager%2011.7.pdf?alt=media&token=20c7c420-24e4-446a-902c-1ceba6dc3c51
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FAssistant%20to%20the%20City%20Manager%20Edit-Redlined%20%20VH%20with%20AFSCME%201017%20edits%2010.29.24%2011.7.pdf?alt=media&token=b78bb6a0-a9f0-4eff-80c4-72593d4f9c91
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FAssistant%20to%20the%20City%20Manager%20Edit-Redlined%20%20VH%20with%20AFSCME%201017%20edits%2010.29.24%2011.7.pdf?alt=media&token=b78bb6a0-a9f0-4eff-80c4-72593d4f9c91
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FAssistant%20to%20the%20City%20Manager%20Edit-Redlined%20%20VH%20with%20AFSCME%201017%20edits%2010.29.24%2011.7.pdf?alt=media&token=b78bb6a0-a9f0-4eff-80c4-72593d4f9c91
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FREVISED%20Assistant%20City%20Manager%20JD%2011.18.24.pdf?alt=media&token=f0b03782-25c8-4af9-bf20-fde61d899fac
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FREVISED%20Assistant%20City%20Manager%20JD%2011.18.24.pdf?alt=media&token=f0b03782-25c8-4af9-bf20-fde61d899fac
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6720174d4d40b3005b5d86b6%2FREVISED%20Assistant%20City%20Manager%20JD%2011.18.24.pdf?alt=media&token=f0b03782-25c8-4af9-bf20-fde61d899fac


EXHIBIT 1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-103 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE JOB CLASSIFICATION PLAN, 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-063, BY ADOPTING A NEW SALARY FOR 
ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER  

 
WHEREAS, Section 503 of the City’s Charter provides that the City Council shall determine, by 

ordinance or resolution, the amount and type of compensation to be paid to all City officers, department 
heads and employees; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Human Resources is authorized and directed under provisions of 
Sections 2797.1 of the Carson Municipal Code and Section II, Rule II of the City Personnel Rules to prepare 
and recommend position classification and compensation plans, after consultation with the affected 
Directors, which becomes effective upon approval by the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, Rule III of the City of Carson Personnel Rules provides that modification to the 

classification plan, embodied in Resolution No. 20-063, shall be made only after the authorized Human 
Resources staff members consults with the affected Directors and affected recognized employee 
organizations; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City has reviewed the needs and services of the City Manager’s office and 

determined that, to improve its services to the City of Carson and efficiency of the City Manager’s office, 
the City of Carson desires to adopt the classification specification of ASSISTANT TO THE 
CITY MANAGER to ensure the service and efficiencies.; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Director of Human Resources has consulted with the affected parties and has 

met and conferred with the representatives of the affected recognized employee organizations pursuant 
to its obligations under the MMBA, concerning the classification specification for the ASSISTANT 
TO THE CITY MANAGER. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2. The updated classification specification for the ASSISTANT TO THE CITY 
MANAGER, reflecting the current job roles and responsibilities. 

 
SECTION 3. In the event of any conflict between this Resolution and any prior City resolution 

relating to the subject matter hereof, this Resolution shall supersede and prevail over the prior resolution to 
the extent of the conflict. 



SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and deem 
it effective as of November 19th of 2024 the same shall be in force and effect. 

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of November 2024. 

 
 
 

  
Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES) SS: 
CITY OF CARSON) 

 
 
I, Khaleah Bradshaw, City Clerk of the City of Carson, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution, 
being Resolution No. 24-103, was passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Carson at its 
meeting held on November 19, 2024, by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES:               COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

 
NOES:          COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

 
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 
 

By:    
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 



CITY OF CARSON City Council Reso. No:  
Class Specification Bargaining Unit: AFSCME  1017 

FLSA: Exempt 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 
Job Summary: 
Under general direction of the City Manager, the position performs  executive level work and 
provides managerial support to the City Manager, by managing a variety of critical and/or sensitive 
matters, providing nuanced and advanced research, analysis, and reports, monitoring of 
legislative and other intergovernmental activities and acting as a liaison between the City 
Manager’s office, external entities, and the public to achieve successful results in support of the 
City’s mission, goals, policies and objectives.  

Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 
These functions are representative and may not be present in all positions in the class. 
Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind related duties and work 
assignments.This position assists the City Manager in the strategic and day-to-day management 
of the City and supervisory duties through the following responsibilities:  

1. Plans, organizes, and coordinates the activities of assigned functions, staff, programs, and
projects.

2. Exercises direction, supervision, training, coaching, evaluation, safety, and support for
employees.

3. Serves as project manager for designated projects both within the City Manager’s Office and
involving multiple departments or divisions.

4. Develops strategies and programs for implementing the City’s goals and objectives.
5. Participates with City Manager in framing the City's vision and strategies for accomplishing

organizational initiatives; advocates City, Federal, State, and regional cooperation where
opportunities exist to further the City's and region's goals.

6. Works closely with the City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Deputy City Manager, and
Department Directors on matters pertaining to assigned functions, programs, and projects.

7. Conducts major analytical and research assignments, and develops recommendations related
to a variety of administrative and operational issues with citywide impact.

8. Assists City Manager with certain assigned duties of the office, including support to the City
Council as appropriate, and participates with departments in accomplishment of activities
necessary for City operations.

9. Advises the City Manager of administrative details relative to day-to-day functions of City
government that are used as a basis for action by the City Manager, or for recommended
actions to be taken by the City Council.

10. May be assigned to monitor departmental activities.
11. Consults with legal counsel regarding potential legal matters; compiles and prepares data at

the request of legal counsel.
12. Develops and/or assists in the development of strategies to accomplish City goals and

objectives, including assisting other departments to address special issues and special
projects as assigned.

13. Provides guidance to City departments according to the directives of the City Manager;
coordinates activities of other departments and outside agencies.

14. Directs and participates in the preparation of various documents, including but not limited to
correspondence, reports, resolutions, ordinances, contracts, and presentation materials.

15. Researches, prepares, and presents oral and written reports to the public, the City Council,
Commissions, Committees, and Boards, and responds to resident inquiries.

   EXHIBIT  NO. 2



City of Carson               Page 2 of 3 
Assistant to the City Manager 
 
16. Monitors,  analyzes, and evaluates legislation and other intergovernmental activities impacting 

the City; prepares and/or coordinates appropriate responses to legislation impacting City 
operations and/or the community at large. 

17. Represents the City Manager’s Office at internal and external meetings, including conferences 
and interagency events. Maintains effective and extensive professional relationships with 
representatives of other local, state, and federal agencies to advance the legislative objectives 
of the City. 

18. Assists in the oversight and preparation of the City Council Agenda and support material; 
attends meetings of various Commissions and groups as assigned by the City Manager. 
Reviews City department items submitted for the City Council agenda. 

19. Prepares and writes public information material. 
20. Writes procedural manuals or instructions. 
21. Writes RFPs and/or RFQs for programs or professional services and oversees the 

procurement of materials and services as assigned. Performs contract compliance 
administration. 

22. Provides  oversight and input on the process of pursuing and securing various grant funding 
for the City. 

23. Completes evaluatons, PAFs, and perform supervisory duties as needed for City Council 
Aides, Housing Division, and Public Information Office (PIO).   

24. Performs related duties as required. 
  
Qualification Guidelines: 
A typical way to obtain the requisite qualifications to perform the duties of this class is as follows: 
 
Education and/or Experience: 
Bachelor’s degree in an occupationally related field and four (4) years full-time paid experience in 
a staff capacity analyzing and making recommendations for the solution of problems of 
organization, systems and procedures, program, budget or personnel including two (2) years in a 
lead or supervisory capacity.  Completion of a Master’s degree program is preferred.  Experience 
and/or education in a related field may be substituted on a year for year basis. 
 
Knowledge of: 
• Principles and practices of municipal government administration, including goal setting, 

program development, implementation and evaluation  
• Municipal governance structure, practices and policies 
• Pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, codes, and regulations 
• Organizational and management practices applicable to the analysis and evaluation of 

programs, policies and operational needs 
• Public agency budgetary, contract administration, and City-wide administrative practices  
• State and federal constitutional and statutory provisions relating to municipalities 
• Methods and techniques of research, analysis, and statistical and analytical report preparation 
• Methods and techniques of contract negotiation and administration 
• Customer service and public relations 
• English usage, spelling and grammar; principles of public speaking 

 
Skill and/or Ability to: 
• Develop alternative resolutions to problems and recommend a balanced use of strategic and 

administrative approaches in resolving issues.  
- Analyze, appraise, and organize facts, data, and information and present findings and 

recommendations in oral and written reports.  
- Manage a variety of complex and challenging projects simultaneously to completion 



City of Carson               Page 3 of 3 
Assistant to the City Manager 
 

- Exercise judgment, initiative, decisiveness, and creativity necessary in situations involving 
the direction, control and planning of multiple programs, and in critical or unexpected 
situations involving considerable risk or loss to the City. 

- Review, discuss, and advise regarding legislative and policy issues.  
- Interact with public officials; work cooperatively with employees, customers, clients, and 

the public.  
- Produce documents written in the English language using proper sentence structure, 

punctuation, grammar, and spelling.  
- Communicate orally in group, face-to-face, and one-on-one settings. 

 
License: 
Possession of a valid California Class C driver’s license.  Employees in this classification will be 
enrolled in the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Government Employer Pull Notice Program 
which confirms possession of a valid driver’s license and reflects driving record.  
 
Physical Requirements and Working Conditions: 
Employee accommodations for physical or mental disabilities will be considered on a case-by-
case basis.  Positions in this class normally: 
 
• Require vision (which may be corrected) to read small print. 
• Perform work which is primarily sedentary. 
• May be required to use personal vehicle in the course of employment. 
• Is subject to inside and outside environmental conditions. 
• May be required to attend periodic evening meetings and/or to travel within and out of City 

boundaries to attend meetings. 
• May be required to work evenings or weekends. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF CARSON   City Council Reso. No: 24-103 
Class Specification   Bargaining Unit: AFSCME 1017 

  FLSA: Exempt 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 

Job Summary: 

Under general direction of the City Manager, the position performs executive level work and 
provides managerial support to the City Manager, by managing a variety of critical and/or 
sensitive matters, providing nuanced and advanced research, analysis, and reports, monitoring 
of legislative and other intergovernmental activities and acting as a liaison between the City 
Manager’s office, external entities, and the public to achieve successful results in support of the 
City’s mission, goals, policies and objectives. 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 
These functions are representative and may not be present in all positions in the class. 
Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind related duties and work 
assignments. This position assists the City Manager in the strategic and day-to-day 
management of the City and supervisory duties through the following responsibilities: 

1. Plans, organizes, and coordinates the activities of assigned functions, staff, programs, and
projects.

2. Exercises direct supervision of subordinate staff, excluding individuals classified as
managers.  This includes assigning and reviewing work, conducting performance
evaluations, providing guidance, and training, and initiating disciplinary actions when
necessary.  The employee will oversee non-managerial personnel to ensure compliance
with policies, procedures and departmental objectives.

3. Serves as project manager for designated projects both within the City Manager’s Office and
involving multiple departments or divisions.

4. Develops strategies and programs for implementing the City’s goals and objectives.
5. Participates with City Manager in framing the City's vision and strategies for accomplishing

organizational initiatives; advocates City, Federal, State, and regional cooperation where
opportunities exist to further the City's and region's goals.

6. Works closely with the City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Deputy City Manager, and
Department Directors on matters pertaining to assigned functions, programs, and projects.

7. Conducts major analytical and research assignments, and develops recommendations
related to a variety of administrative and operational issues with citywide impact.

8. Assists City Manager with certain assigned duties of the office, including support to the City
Council as appropriate, and participates with departments in accomplishment of activities
necessary for City operations.

9. Advises the City Manager of administrative details relative to day-to-day functions of City
government that are used as a basis for action by the City Manager, or for recommended
actions to be taken by the City Council.

10. May be assigned to monitor departmental activities.
11. Consults with legal counsel regarding potential legal matters; compiles and prepares data at

the request of legal counsel.
12. Develops and/or assists in the development of strategies to accomplish City goals and

objectives, including assisting other departments to address special issues and special
projects as assigned.

Exhibit 3



13. Provides guidance to City departments according to the directives of the City Manager; 
coordinates activities of other departments and outside agencies. 

14. Directs and participates in the preparation of various documents, including but not limited to 
correspondence, reports, resolutions, ordinances, contracts, and presentation materials. 

15. Researches, prepares, and presents oral and written reports to the public, the City Council, 
Commissions, Committees, and Boards, and responds to resident inquiries. 

16. Monitors, analyzes, and evaluates legislation and other intergovernmental activities 
impacting the City; prepares and/or coordinates appropriate responses to legislation 
impacting City operations and/or the community at large. 

17. Represents the City Manager’s Office at internal and external meetings, including 
conferences and interagency events. Maintains effective and extensive professional 
relationships with representatives of other local, state, and federal agencies to advance the 
legislative objectives of the City. 

18. Assists in the oversight and preparation of the City Council Agenda and support material; 
attends meetings of various Commissions and groups as assigned by the City Manager. 
Reviews City department items submitted for the City Council agenda. 

19. Prepares and writes public information material. 
20. Writes procedural manuals or instructions. 
21. Writes RFPs and/or RFQs for programs or professional services and oversees the 

procurement of materials and services as assigned. Performs contract compliance 
administration. 

22. Provides oversight and input on the process of pursuing and securing various grant funding 
for the City. 

23. Completes evaluations, PAFs, and perform supervisory duties as needed for City Council 
Aides, Housing Division, and Public Information Office (PIO). 

24. Performs related duties as required. 
 
Qualification Guidelines: 
A typical way to obtain the requisite qualifications to perform the duties of this class is as 
follows: 
 
Education and/or Experience: 
Bachelor’s degree in an occupationally related field and four (4) years full-time paid experience 
in a staff capacity analyzing and making recommendations for the solution of problems of 
organization, systems and procedures, program, budget or personnel including two (2) years in 
a lead or supervisory capacity. Completion of a Master’s degree program is preferred. 
Experience and/or education in a related field may be substituted on a year for year basis. 
 
Knowledge of: 
• Principles and practices of municipal government administration, including goal setting, 

program development, implementation and evaluation 
• Municipal governance structure, practices and policies 
• Pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, codes, and regulations 
• Organizational and management practices applicable to the analysis and evaluation of 

programs, policies and operational needs 
• State and federal constitutional and statutory provisions relating to municipalities 
• Methods and techniques of research, analysis, and statistical and analytical report 

preparation 
• Methods and techniques of contract negotiation and administration 
• Customer service and public relations 



• English usage, spelling and grammar; principles of public speaking 
 
Skill and/or Ability to: 
• Develop alternative resolutions to problems and recommend a balanced use of strategic and 

administrative approaches in resolving issues. 
• Analyze, appraise, and organize facts, data, and information and present findings and 

recommendations in oral and written reports. 
• Manage a variety of complex and challenging projects simultaneously to completion 
• Exercise judgment, initiative, decisiveness, and creativity necessary in situations involving 

the direction, control and planning of multiple programs, and in critical or unexpected 
situations involving considerable risk or loss to the City. 

• Review, discuss, and advise regarding legislative and policy issues. 
• Interact with public officials; work cooperatively with employees, customers, clients, and the 

public. 
• Produce documents written in the English language using proper sentence structure, 

punctuation, grammar, and spelling. 
• Communicate orally in group, face-to-face, and one-on-one settings. 
 
License: 
Possession of a valid California Class C driver’s license. Employees in this classification will be 
enrolled in the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Government Employer Pull Notice Program 
which confirms possession of a valid driver’s license and reflects driving record. 
 
Physical Requirements and Working Conditions: 
Employee accommodations for physical or mental disabilities will be considered on a case-by-
case basis. Positions in this class normally: 
 
• Require vision (which may be corrected) to read small print. 
• Perform work which is primarily sedentary. 
• May be required to use personal vehicle in the course of employment. 
• Is subject to inside and outside environmental conditions. 
• May be required to attend periodic evening meetings and/or to travel within and out of City 

boundaries to attend meetings. 
• May be required to work evenings or weekends. 
 



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 18.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Dr. Arlington Rodgers, Director of Public Works  PW  Operations
 
Subject:          **REVISED** CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE
MAINTENANCE CONTRACT WITH LOS ANGELES COUNTY CONSERVATION CORPS, FOR WEED
ABATEMENT, REMOVAL OF MISCELLANEOUS DEBRIS, WITHIN THE CITY'S RIGHT OF WAY (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On October 3, 2023, the City Council awarded a one year Maintenance Contract to Los Angeles County
Conservation Corps for provision of weed abatement, removal of discarded items and removal of miscellaneous
debris within the City's public right of way.  The contract is for one year for a total contract sum of $433,379.89,
with a City option to extend the term by two additional one-year terms at $433,379.89 per extension term. The
award was made in response to IFB No. 23-17.
 
Staff is submitting Amendment 1 (Exhibit 1) to this maintenance contract, to extend the term of the Agreement by
one year ending November 20, 2025, for an additional $433,379.89 which will bring the total not to exceed
compensation to $866,759.78.

II. RECOMMENDATION

1. APPROVE Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for Contract Services by and between the City of Carson and
Los Angeles County Conservation Corps to extend the term of the agreement by one year and increase the
contract sum by $433,379.89 such that the total cost of the Contract Agreement does not exceed
$866,759.78.

2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute the amendment after approval as to form by the City Attorney.

III. ALTERNATIVES

1. DO NOT APPROVE Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for Contract Services.
2. DO NOT APPROVE the extension of the service contract.
3. TAKE another ACTION the City Council deems appropriate, consistent with the requirements of the law.

IV. BACKGROUND

701 East Carson Street



One of the functions of the Department of Public Works  is to address overgrown vegetation, illegal dumping and
miscellaneous debris within the City's public right of way.  Public Works controls weed growth with application of
weed control solution followed by its removal.  Miscellaneous debris that has gathered at various areas such as
tree wells, medians, sidewalks and roadways are picked up as part of the City's various ROW maintenance
programs. The department is also tasked with with addressing similar issues within areas that are part of the
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) right of way.  The City's Public Works Department is not
sufficiently staffed to be able to work simultaneously within the City's public right of way and address the
maintenance needs within Caltrans' right of way.  For that reason Los Angeles County Conservation Corps
supplements the efforts by providing an expertise of addressing the maintenance concerns the Caltrans
jurisdictions.

To address these concerns,  staff solicited competitive bids from qualified contractors to maintain and perform
weed abatement, litter, debris and graffiti removal services within the City's right of way including Caltrans right-of-
way (i.e. Freeway over/under passes, freeway on/off ramps etc.)  The City released IFB No. 23-17 which was
advertised on PlanetBids from August 10, 2023 to August 31, 2023.  Eight bids were received and were opened by
the Purchasing Division Manager at the City Clerk's office on August 31, 2023.  Los Angeles Conservation Corp was
determined to be the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder and was awarded the contract by City Council on
October 3, 2023. The contract is for one year for a total contract sum of $433,379.89, with a City option to extend
the term by two additional one-year terms at $433,379.89 for each extension term.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve proposed Amendment No. 1 to extend the term of the Agreement
by one year to November 20, 2025, to allow for the contractor to continue to provide the necessary services within
the City's public right of way for an additional not to exceed cost of $433,379.89. The total adjusted contract sum
will be $866,759.78.

11/19/24 Revision

Agenda packet cover sheet "recommendations" was corrected to match the previously published staff report
recommendations.  No other material revisions were made.  

V. FISCAL IMPACT

Although the proposed amendment is for a full calendar year, the one year period crosses over two City fiscal
years.  As such, one full year of funding for this contract is budgeted as follows: $300,000 in FY 2024/25 and the
remainder to be budged in FY 2025-26  in the amount of $134,000; via account number 101-80-840-281-6004.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Los Angeles County Conservation Corps Amendment No. 1
 
 

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit 1 LA Conservation Corp Amendment 1.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F671ad1cb0b6ec0005e41b862%2FExhibit%201%20LA%20Conservation%20Corp%20Amendment%201.pdf?alt=media&token=95e0731b-4770-4dab-afe6-a218677b64a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F671ad1cb0b6ec0005e41b862%2FExhibit%201%20LA%20Conservation%20Corp%20Amendment%201.pdf?alt=media&token=95e0731b-4770-4dab-afe6-a218677b64a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F671ad1cb0b6ec0005e41b862%2FExhibit%201%20LA%20Conservation%20Corp%20Amendment%201.pdf?alt=media&token=95e0731b-4770-4dab-afe6-a218677b64a9


 - 1 -  

01007.0001/784151.3  

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

TO AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 
(“Amendment No. 1”) by and between the CITY OF CARSON, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”) and LOS ANGELES CONSERVATION CORPS, INC., a California nonprofit 
corporation (“Consultant”) is effective as of the ______ day of ________________, 2024. 

RECITALS 

A. City and Consultant entered into that certain Agreement for Contractual Services 
dated November 21, 2023 (“Agreement”) whereby Consultant agreed to provide mowing, weed 
abatement, site clean-up, graffiti abatement, trash and debris removal, and basic tree well 
maintenance services (“Services”) for one (1) year for a total contract sum of $433,379.89, with a 
City option to extend the Term by two (2) additional one-year terms. 

B. The City and Consultant now desire to amend the Agreement to (1) extend the Term 
of the Agreement for an additional year consistent with the City Council’s original approval, and 
(2) increase the compensation by $433,379.89 to cover the costs of the Services for the next year, 
for a total adjusted not-to-exceed contract sum of $866,759.78.  

TERMS 

1. Contract Changes. The Agreement is amended as provided herein (new text is 
identified in bold italics, deleted text in strike through). 

A. Section 2.1 (Contract Sum) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read in its 
entirety as follows: 

“2.1 Contract Sum. 

Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Consultant 
the amounts specified in the “Schedule of Compensation” attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and 
incorporated herein by this reference. The total compensation, including reimbursement for 
actual expenses, shall not exceed Eight Four Hundred Sixty Six Thirty Three Thousand 
Seven Three Hundred Fifty Seventy Nine Dollars and Seventy Eight Eighty Nine Cents 
($866,759.78$433,379.89) (the “Contract Sum”), unless additional compensation is approved 
pursuant to Section 1.8. In the event City elects to exercise its options to extend the Term 
pursuant to Section 3.4 hereof, the Contract Sum will increase by an annual not to exceed 
amount of $433,379.89 for each the Extension Term, consistent with Exhibit “C.”” 

B. Section 3.4 (Term) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read in its entirety 
as follows: 

 

 



 - 2 -  

01007.0001/784151.3  

“3.4 Term. 

Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this Agreement, this 
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until completion of the services but not 
exceeding two one (21) years from the date hereof, except as otherwise provided in the 
Schedule of Performance (Exhibit “D”). The City may, at its sole discretion, elect to extend 
the Term by one two (12) additional one-year terms (each, an “Extension Term”). The not to 
exceed compensation for Services performed during the each Extension Term shall be 
consistent with the annual prices listed in Exhibit “C.”” 

C. Subsection IV. of Exhibit C (Schedule of Compensation) of the Agreement is 
hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

“IV. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed 
$866,759.78$433,379.89 as provided in Section 2.1 of this Agreement.” 

2. Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Amendment No. 1, 
all provisions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. From and 
after the date of this Amendment No. 1, whenever the term “Agreement” appears in the Agreement, 
it shall mean the Agreement, as amended by this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement. 

3. Affirmation of Agreement; Warranty Re Absence of Defaults. City and 
Consultant each ratify and reaffirm each and every one of the respective rights and obligations 
arising under the Agreement. Each party represents and warrants to the other that there have been 
no written or oral modifications to the Agreement other than as provided herein. Each party 
represents and warrants to the other that the Agreement is currently an effective, valid, and binding 
obligation. 

Consultant represents and warrants to City that, as of the date of this Amendment No. 1, 
City is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that there have been no events 
that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material default 
under the Agreement. 

City represents and warrants to Consultant that, as of the date of this Amendment No. 1, 
Consultant is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that there have been no 
events that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material 
default under the Agreement. 

4. Adequate Consideration. The parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and agree that 
they have each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the 
obligations they have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment No. 1. 

5. Authority. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto 
warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute 
and deliver this Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing this Agreement, such party 
is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the entering into this Agreement 
does not violate any provision of any other Agreement to which said party is bound. 



 - 3 -  

01007.0001/784151.3  

6. Counterparts. This Amendment No. 1 may be executed in any number of 
counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, 
whether the signatures are originals, electronic, facsimiles or digital.  All such counterparts shall 
together constitute but one and the same Amendment No. 1. 

 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 
  



 - 4 -  

01007.0001/784151.3  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment No. 1 on 
the date and year first-above written. 

CITY: 

CITY OF CARSON, a municipal corporation 

  
Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP 

  
Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney 
[rjl] 
 

CONSULTANT: 
 
LOS ANGELES CONSERVATION CORPS, INC., 
a California nonprofit corporation 
 
By:  

Name: Wendy Butts 
Title: CEO 

By:  
Name: Lloyd Wright 
Title: CFO 
 

Two corporate officer signatures required when Consultant is a corporation, with one signature required from 
each of the following groups: 1) Chairman of the Board, President or any Vice President; and 2) Secretary, any 
Assistant Secretary, Chief Financial Officer or any Assistant Treasurer. CONSULTANT’S SIGNATURES 
SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS 
MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR 
REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO CONSULTANT’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 



 

01007.0001/784151.3  

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  
 
On __________, 2024 before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 
and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 

OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could 
prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 
 CORPORATE OFFICER 

 _______________________________ 
TITLE(S) 

 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 
    GENERAL 

 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 
 TRUSTEE(S) 
 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
 OTHER_______________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 
SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 
_____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 

___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 

 

  

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document. 



 

01007.0001/784151.3  

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
 
On __________, 2024 before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 
and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 

OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could 
prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 
 CORPORATE OFFICER 

 _______________________________ 
TITLE(S) 

 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 
    GENERAL 

 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 
 TRUSTEE(S) 
 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
 OTHER_______________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 
SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 
_____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 

___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 

___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document. 



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 19.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Michael Whittiker, Community Services Director  CS  Community Services
 
Subject:          CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY FOR FIXED-ROUTE BUS
SERVICES BY ONE ADDITIONAL YEAR (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On September 27, 2021, Long Beach Public Transportation Company (“LBT”) entered into a three-year Contract
Services Agreement with the City to operate three new bus routes ("Agreement"). The Agreement provides for two
optional one-year extension terms that may be exercised upon the parties' mutual consent. Staff approached LBT
in April 2024 to exercise the first such extension. As contract rates were also up for negotiation, prolonged
deliberations necessitated approval of Amendment No. 1, extending the initial term through December 31, 2024
while preserving the two one-year extension periods. As new rates for the first one-year extension period have since
been finalized, staff is now seeking approval of Amendment No. 2 to extend the term of the Agreement by one year,
effective January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, in exchange for compensation as detailed below.

II. RECOMMENDATION

1. APPROVE proposed Amendment No. 2 to the Contract Services Agreement between the City of Carson and
Long Beach Public Transportation Company (Exhibit No. 1; “Amendment No. 2”).

2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2, following approval as to form by the City Attorney.

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action the City Council deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

The City provides fixed-route bus services to its residents and commuters from neighboring cities. On September
27, 2021, Long Beach Transit  entered into a three-year agreement with the City to operate three new bus routes
(Exhibit No. 2; “Agreement”). Routes 2, 4, and 8 operate every 40 minutes between 5:03 am and 7:20 pm during
weekdays, and from 10:18 am and 5:38 pm on Saturdays.

Route 2 serves areas between California State University Dominguez Hills, SouthBay Pavilion, City Hall, and Carson
High School. Its rise in ridership can be attributed to a growing number of students using public transit.

Route 4 serves the entirety of Carson St. and connects riders with the Metro A (Blue) line light rail station on Santa
Fe Ave. and Del Amo Blvd. Ridership on this route is consistently higher than Routes 2 and 8 combined.

Route 8 serves the entirety of 223rd St. and connects riders with Metro’s A (Blue) line light rail station on Pacific Pl.
and Wardlow Rd. As the area’s very first transit connection between west Carson and Long Beach, ridership on this
route has also steadily increased over time.

701 East Carson Street



The parties have the option to extend the initial term by two additional one-year terms.  Staff engaged LBT in April
2024 to exercise such extensions. As contract rates were also up for negotiation, prolonged deliberations
necessitated approval of Amendment No. 1, which extended the initial term through December 31, 2024 at the
existing rate of compensation while preserving the two full one-year optional extension periods and maintaining the
contract's other terms including its indemnification and insurance protections.

City staff and LBT have recently agreed to a new annual rate of $2,060,500 effective January 1, 2025, subject to
City Council approval of the proposed Amendment No. 2. The new rate reflects an increase of approximately 16.4%
over the original rate of $1,770,000. LBT attributed this increase to rises in labor costs. Should the City Council
approve the recommendation, LBT will be compensated in the amount of $2,060,500 for services rendered from
January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025. 

The proposed Amendment No. 2 also includes a provision to the effect that in the unlikely event the City's
Proposition A and C funding levels drop by 10% or more for next fiscal year compared to the current fiscal year, the
parties will reopen negotiations as to the rate of compensation and service levels for the period of July 1, 2025
through December 31, 2025, and may, but are not obligated to, enter into a further amendment to the Agreement to
effectuate a change to same. 

Looking ahead, both parties have discussed the possibility of entering into a further amendment for the second
option period commencing January 1, 2026 through June 30, 2027 at the same annual rate of $2,060,500 per year.
Both parties have also tentatively agreed to renegotiate this rate and service levels in the event the City’s
Proposition A and C funding levels drop by 10% or more.

The proposed contract extension is exempt from the competitive bidding requirements of the City’s purchasing
ordinance per Carson Municipal Code Section 2611(i)(7). 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact at this time. Should the City Council approve the recommendation, funds for the first six
months (January 1, 2025 – June 30, 2025 in the amount of $1,030,250) have been budgeted in FY 2024-25
Proposition A and C account nos. 218-90-940-180-6010 and 219-90-940-180-6010.

Funds for the remaining six months (July 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 in the amount of $1,030,250) will be
budgeted in FY 2025-26 Proposition A and C account nos. 218-90-940-180-6010 and 219-90-940-180-6010. 

VI. EXHIBITS

1. (Proposed) Amendment No. 2
2. Agreement
3. Amendment No. 1

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit No. 1 - Amendment No. 2.pdf
Exhibit No. 2 - LBT Contract.pdf
Exhibit No. 3 - Amendment No. 1.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20Amendment%20No.%202.pdf?alt=media&token=02c84ab9-6dba-4914-93f3-6cd180eeb80b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20Amendment%20No.%202.pdf?alt=media&token=02c84ab9-6dba-4914-93f3-6cd180eeb80b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20-%20Amendment%20No.%202.pdf?alt=media&token=02c84ab9-6dba-4914-93f3-6cd180eeb80b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%202%20-%20LBT%20Contract.pdf?alt=media&token=ba070e18-bea7-4714-bcfb-dff5b7928b0e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%202%20-%20LBT%20Contract.pdf?alt=media&token=ba070e18-bea7-4714-bcfb-dff5b7928b0e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%202%20-%20LBT%20Contract.pdf?alt=media&token=ba070e18-bea7-4714-bcfb-dff5b7928b0e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%203%20-%20Amendment%20No.%201.pdf?alt=media&token=7c7e4e2e-26f3-4723-9c77-e382a46f87a6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%203%20-%20Amendment%20No.%201.pdf?alt=media&token=7c7e4e2e-26f3-4723-9c77-e382a46f87a6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0d15a622140054f07b9e%2FExhibit%20No.%203%20-%20Amendment%20No.%201.pdf?alt=media&token=7c7e4e2e-26f3-4723-9c77-e382a46f87a6


01007.0001/1025828.3  

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
TO AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

 
THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

(“Amendment No. 2”) by and between the CITY OF CARSON, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”), and LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a California nonprofit 
mutual benefit corporation (“Long Beach Transit”), is effective as of the 1st day of January, 2025, 
except as otherwise provided herein. City and Long Beach Transit are sometimes hereinafter 
individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

A. City and Long Beach Transit entered into that certain Agreement for Contract 
Services dated September 27, 2021 ("Agreement"), whereby Long Beach Transit agreed to provide 
City with fixed-route public transit bus services as identified in Exhibit “A” (“Scope of Services”) 
of the Agreement (the “Services”). The Agreement, in Section 2.1, provides for a not-to-exceed 
Contract Sum of $5,310,000 for the initial three (3) year term, with annual compensation not to 
exceed $1,770,000 for each year of the initial three (3) year term. The Agreement, in Section 3.4, 
also provides for two subsequent one-year options that may be exercised by a duly approved and 
executed amendment to the Agreement entered into between the Parties.   

B. Effective September 27, 2024, City and Long Beach Transit entered into 
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement to extend the term until December 31, 2024, to facilitate 
continued performance of the Services by Long Beach Transit in exchange for compensation in 
the amount of $442,500 for the short-term extension period, and to increase the Contract Sum by 
$442,500 to authorize funding for the short-term extension period, thereby increasing the total not-
to-exceed Contract Sum to $5,752,500, with the two subsequent one-year options to extend the 
term remaining intact, except that the first option period, if exercised, would commence on January 
1, 2025, and the second option period, if exercised, would commence on January 1, 2026. 

C. City and Long Beach Transit now desire to further amend the Agreement, by this 
Amendment No. 2, to: (i) exercise the first one-year option to extend the term of the Agreement, 
thereby extending the term until January 1, 2026 (unless earlier terminated in accordance with 
Article 7); (ii) authorize funding in the amount of $2,060,500 for continuation of the current service 
schedule for the one-year extension period, thereby increasing the not-to-exceed Contract Sum to 
$7,813,000; (iii) adjust the specified pricing for optional Sunday service should City choose to add 
such services; (iv) include the possibility of renegotiation of (a) the compensation to Long Beach 
Transit for the services during the one-year extension period, and (b) level of services to be 
provided during such period, in the event the Proposition A and Proposition C funding received 
by the City drops by ten percent (10%) or more. Additionally, City and Long Beach Transit desire 
to correct an error in the Agreement concerning the description of Long Beach Transit’s nonprofit 
entity type.   

D. This Amendment No. 2 is made pursuant to Section 9.4 of the Agreement, as was 
Amendment No. 1.  



01007.0001/1025828.3  

E. Pursuant to Carson Municipal Code (“CMC”) Section 2611(i)(7), the City’s 
purchase of services from other governmental agencies that are not covered under a specific 
interagency agreement does not require compliance with the bidding provisions of the City’s 
purchasing ordinance (Chapter 6 of Article II of the CMC) so long as funds have been properly 
appropriated and such purchases conform with all other requirements of the City’s purchasing 
ordinance. The forgoing exemption is applicable to the City’s procurement of the services provided 
for in the Agreement, Amendment No. 1 and this Amendment No. 2. 

TERMS 

1. Contract Changes. The Agreement is amended as provided herein (new text is 
identified in bold italics, deleted text in strike through). 

 
 A. Long Beach Transit represents and warrants to City that Long Beach 

Transit is, and since the effective date of the Agreement has been, a California nonprofit 
mutual benefit corporation, and as such, the Agreement erroneously describes Long Beach 
Transit in the introductory paragraph as a “California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation,” and on the signature page as a “California public benefit nonprofit 
corporation.”  Based on the foregoing, City and Long Beach Transit agree that effective 
retroactively as of September 27, 2021, the aforementioned references in the Agreement to 
Long Beach Transit’s nonprofit entity type are amended to “Long Beach Public 
Transportation Company, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation.” 

 B. Section 2.1 (Contract Sum) of the Agreement is amended to read in its 
entirety as follows: 

“2.1 Contract Sum. 

Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Long 
Beach Transit the amounts specified in the “Schedule of Compensation” attached 
hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by this reference. The total 
compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, shall not exceed 
Seven Million Eight Hundred Thirteen Thousand Dollars ($7,813,000) Five 
Million Seven Hundred Fifty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($5,752,500) 
for the initial three-year term of this Agreement plus the extension periods through 
December 31, 2025 2024 (the “Contract Sum”). The annual compensation shall not 
exceed One Million Seven Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars ($1,770,000.00) for 
each year of the initial three-year term, and $442,500 for the extension period 
through December 31, 2024, and $2,060,500 for the one-year extension period 
from January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025.” 

 C. Section 3.4 (Term) of this Agreement is hereby amended to read in its 
entirety as follows: 

 “3.4 Term. Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect through 
December 31, 2025 2024, with one two subsequent one-year options that may be 



01007.0001/1025828.3  

exercised by a duly approved and executed amendment to this Agreement entered 
into between the Parties, with the first option (if exercised) commencing January 1, 
2026 2025. 

 D. Exhibit “C” (Schedule of Compensation) of the Agreement is hereby 
amended to ready in its entirety as set forth in the Exhibit “C” attached hereto. 

2. Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by Amendment No. 1 and 
this Amendment No. 2, all provisions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force 
and effect. From and after the date of this Amendment No. 2, whenever the term “Agreement” 
appears in the Agreement, it shall mean the Agreement, as amended by Amendment No. 1 and this 
Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement. 

3. Affirmation of Agreement; Warranty Re Absence of Defaults. City and Long 
Beach Transit each ratify and reaffirm each and every one of the respective rights and obligations 
arising under the Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that there have been 
no written or oral modifications to the Agreement other than as provided herein. Each Party 
represents and warrants to the other that the Agreement, as amended by Amendment No. 1 and 
this Amendment No. 2, is currently an effective, valid, and binding obligation. 

Long Beach Transit represents and warrants to City that, as of the date of this Amendment 
No. 2, City is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that there have been no 
events that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material 
default under the Agreement. 

City represents and warrants to Long Beach Transit that, as of the date of this Amendment 
No. 2, Long Beach Transit is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that there 
have been no events that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute 
a material default under the Agreement. 

4. Adequate Consideration. The Parties irrevocably stipulate and agree that they 
have each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations 
they have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment No. 2. 

5. Authority. The persons executing this Amendment No. 2 on behalf of the Parties 
warrant that (i) such Party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute 
and deliver this Amendment No. 2 on behalf of said Party, (iii) by so executing this Amendment 
No. 2, such Party is formally bound to the provisions of this Amendment No. 2, and (iv) the 
entering into this Amendment No. 2 does not violate any provision of any other agreement to 
which said Party is bound. 

6. Counterparts. This Amendment No. 2 may be executed in any number of 
counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, 
whether the signatures are originals, electronic, facsimiles or digital.  All such counterparts shall 
together constitute but one and the same Amendment No. 2. 

[Signatures on the following page]  



01007.0001/1025828.3  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment No. 2 on the 
date(s) and year set forth below, with express intent that this Amendment No. 2 shall be effective 
as of the date first-above written, except as otherwise provided herein. 

CITY: 

CITY OF CARSON, a municipal corporation 

  
Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 
 
Date: ____________________, 2024 

ATTEST: 

  
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP 

  
Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney 
[brj] 

LONG BEACH TRANSIT: 
 
LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
COMPANY, a California nonprofit mutual benefit 
corporation 
 
 
By:   

Name: Kenneth A. McDonald 
Title: President/CEO 
 

Date: _____________________, 2024 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: ________________________________ 

Vincent C. Ewing 
General Counsel 
Address: 4801 Airport Plaza Dr., 8th Floor 
                Long Beach, CA 90815 

 
  



01007.0001/1025828.3  

EXHIBIT “C” 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION 

I. Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base Services at the flat annual rate of 
$1,770,000 (i.e., per 12 months of service) for the initial three-year term of this 
Agreement (the “Base Services Rate”). Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base 
Services at the flat rate of $442,500 for the extension period commencing upon the 
conclusion of initial three-year term of this Agreement and continuing through 
December 31, 2024.  Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base Services at the flat rate 
of $2,060,500 for the one-year extension period commencing on January 1, 2025 and 
continuing through December 31, 2025. 

II. The additional or enhanced service options specified in Section I.E of Exhibit “A”, if 
and when authorized pursuant to said Section I.E during the term of this Agreement, 
shall be performed at the following flat annual rates (i.e., per 12 months of service, 
with actual compensation due for any relevant billing period prorated as necessary 
based on the timing of authorization): 

A. Add Sunday service (Saturday hours) to Base Services: add  $164,500 (+/- the rate 
of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to Base 
Services Rate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should addition of this service be 
authorized pursuant to Section I.E of Exhibit “A” for the one-year extension 
period commencing on January 1, 2025 and continuing through December 31, 
2025, the flat annual rate to add this service would be $237,800 (subject to 
proration as necessary to correspond to any authorization to add this service for 
a portion of the one-year extension period).  

B. Add one additional hour of service on weekdays to Base Services: add $122,400 
(+/- the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually 
to Base Services Rate. 

C. Add one additional hour of service on Saturdays to Base Services: add $25,200 (+/- 
the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to 
Base Services Rate. 

III. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $7,813,000 $5,752,500 for the 
initial  three-year term of this Agreement plus the extension periods through 
December 31, 2025 2024, as provided in Section 2.1 of this Agreement. 

IV. The City and Long Beach Transit shall reopen negotiations as to the rates of 
compensation specified in this Exhibit “C” and the level of services provided by Long 
Beach Transit to the City pursuant to Exhibit “A” for the service period from July 1, 
2025 through December 31, 2025, and may, but are not obligated to, enter into an 
amendment to the Agreement related to the same pursuant to Section 9.4 of the 
Agreement, if the Proposition A and Proposition C funding collectively received by the 
City for Fiscal Year 2025-26 drops by ten percent (10%) or more compared to Fiscal 
Year 2024-25.  



CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT

By and Between

CITY OF CARSON

and

LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY



AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARSON AND

LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES(herein “Agreement”) is made and
entered into this 27th day of September, 2021 by and between the CITY OF CARSON,a California
municipal corporation (“City”) and LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (“Long Beach Transit”). City and Long Beach
Transit may bereferred to, individually or collectively, as “Party” or “Parties.”

RECITALS

A. City has sought the performanceofthe services defined and described in Article 1
of this Agreement.

B. Long Beach Transit is ready, willing and able to perform the services defined and
described in Article 1 of this Agreement.

es Pursuant to the City of Carson’s Municipal Code, City has authority to enter into
and execute this Agreement.

ay The Parties desire to formalize the selection ofLong Beach Transit for performance
of those services defined and described in Article 1 of this Agreement and desire that the terms of
that performance be as defined and described herein.

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS
 

NOW, THEREFORE,in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the

Parties and contained herein and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby

acknowledged,the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. SERVICES OF LONG BEACH TRANSIT

1.1 Scope of Services.

In compliance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement, Long Beach Transit shall
provide those services specified in the “Scope of Services” attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated herein by this reference, which maybereferred to herein as the “services”or “work”
hereunder. As a material inducementto the City entering into this Agreement, Long Beach Transit
represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience, and facilities necessary to
properly perform the services required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent, and

professional manner, andis experienced in performing the work and services contemplated herein.
Long Beach Transit shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability,
experience andtalent, perform all services described herein.

01007.0001/732285.10 -l-



1.2 Compliance with Law.

Long Beach Transit shall keep itself informed concerning, and shall render all services
hereunder in accordance with, all ordinances,resolutions, statutes, rules, grant requirements and

regulations of the City and any Federal, State or local governmentalentity having jurisdiction in

effect at the time service is rendered.

1.3 Licenses. Permits, Fees and Assessments.

Long Beach Transit shall obtain at its sole cost and expense such licenses, permits and

approvals as may be required by law for the performance of the services required by this

Agreement. Long Beach Transit shall have the sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments and

taxes, plus applicable penalties and interest, which may be imposed bylawandarise from orare

necessary for Long Beach Transit’s performanceofthe services required by this Agreement, and

shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, its officers, employees or agents of City, against

any such fees, assessments, taxes, penalties or interest levied, assessed or imposed against City
hereunder.

1.4 Special Requirements.

Additional terms and conditions of this Agreement, if any, which are made a part hereof

are set forth in the “Special Requirements”attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein
by this reference. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of Exhibit “B” and any other

provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit “B”shall govern.

1.5 No Franchise Rights.

Neither Long Beach Transit nor City intend by this Agreement to grant to Long Beach
Transit any franchise, right, or agreementto use the streets of the City of Carson,it being further

agreed and understood that whether or not Long Beach Transit has such franchise or is required

to have such a franchise is not the subject of this Agreement, and no term or provision of this

Agreementshall be used to prejudice the rights ofeither party in that regard.

ARTICLE 2. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

2.1 Contract Sum.

Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Long Beach

Transit the amounts specified in the “Schedule of Compensation” attached hereto as Exhibit “C”
and incorporated herein by this reference. The total compensation, including reimbursementfor

actual expenses, shall not exceed Five Million Three Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars

($5,310,000) for the initial three-year term of this Agreement (the “Contract Sum”). The annual
compensation shall not exceed One Million Seven Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars

($1,770,000.00) for each year ofthe initial three-year term.

01007.0001/732285.10 -2-



2.2 Invoices

On a quarterly basis, Long Beach Transitwill invoice the City for services rendered. Except

as provided in Section 7.3, City will use its best efforts to cause Long Beach Transit to be paid for

the services within 45 days of the submitted invoice; however, Long Beach Transit acknowledges

and agrees that due to City warrant run procedures, the City cannot guarantee that payment will

occur within this time period. Review and payment by City for any services provided by Long

BeachTransit shall not constitute a waiver of any default by Long Beach Transit or any rights or

remedies provided herein or any applicable law.

ARTICLE 3. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE

3.1 Time of Essence.

Timeis of the essence in the performanceof this Agreement.

3.2. Schedule of Performance.

Long Beach Transit shall commencethe services pursuant to this Agreement uponreceipt

of a written notice to proceed and shall perform all services within the time period(s) established

in the “Schedule of Performance”attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by this

reference.

3.3 Force Majeure.

The time period(s) specified in the Schedule of Performance for performance of the

services rendered pursuant to this Agreement shall be extended because of any delays due to

unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of Long Beach

Transit, including, but not restricted to, acts of God or of the public enemy, unusually severe

weather, fires, earthquakes, floods, epidemics, pandemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes,

freight embargoes, wars,litigation, and/or acts of any governmental agency, including the City, if

City or Long Beach Transit shall within thirty (30) days ofthe commencementof such delay notify

the other Party’s contract representative in writing of the causes of the delay. The Parties shall

ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and extend the time for performing the servicesfor the
period of the enforced delay when andif in the judgmentofthe Parties such delayis justified. In

no eventshall Long Beach Transit be entitled to recover damages against the City for any delayin

the performance of this Agreement, however caused, Long Beach Transit’s sole remedy being
extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. During the delay, Long Beach Transit shall

not render services to the City. Long Beach Transit shall not invoice City for, and shall not be

entitled to, any compensationorfixed costs from City for the duration of the delay period.

3.4 Term.

Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this Agreement, this Agreement

shall continuein full force and effect until completion of the services but not exceeding aninitial

term of three (3) years, with two subsequent one-year options that may be exercised by a duly
approved and executed amendmentto this Agreement entered into betweentheParties.

01007.0001/732285.10 -3-



ARTICLE 4. COORDINATION OF WORK

4.1] Representatives and Personnel ofLong Beach Transit.

Kenneth A. McDonald, President and CEO andorhis designees (“Principals”) are hereby
designated as being the principals and representatives of Long Beach Transit authorized to act on

its behalf with respect to the work specified herein and makeall decisions in connection therewith.

It is expressly understood that the experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of the

foregoing principals were a substantial inducement for City to enter into this Agreement.

Therefore, the foregoing principals shall be responsible during the term of this Agreement for

directing all activities of Long Beach Transit and devoting sufficient time to personally supervise

the services hereunder. All personnel of Long Beach Transit, and any authorized agents, shall at

all times be under the exclusive direction and control of the Principals. For purposes of this

Agreement, the foregoing Principals may not be replaced nor may their responsibilities be

substantially reduced by Long Beach Transit without prior notice to City. Long Beach Transit

shall notify City of any changes in Long Beach Transit’s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned

to perform the services required under this Agreement, prior to and during any such performance.

4.2 Status of Long Beach Transit.
 

Long Beach Transit shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, or to incur any

obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or

otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise

expressly conferred in writing by City. Long Beach Transit shall not at any time or in any manner

represent that Long Beach Transit or any of Long Beach Transit’s officers, employees, or agents

are in any mannerofficials, officers, employees or agents of City. Neither Long Beach Transit, nor

any of its officers, employees or agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any

other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees. Long Beach Transit expressly
waives any claim Long Beach Transit may have to any suchrights.

4.3 Contract Officer.

The City of Carson’s Contract Officer shall be the Director of Community Services, or

such other person as may be designated by the City Manager. It shall be Long Beach Transit’s

responsibility to assure that the Contract Officer is kept informed of the progress of the

performanceof the services. Long Beach Transit shall refer any decisions which must be made by

City to the Contract Officer. Unless otherwise specified herein, any approval of City required

hereunder shall mean the approval of the Contract Officer. The Contract Officer shall have

authority, if specified in writing by the City Manager,to sign all documents on behalf of the City
required hereunderto carry out the terms of this Agreement.

4.4 Independent Contractor.

Neither the City nor any ofits employees shall have any control over the manner, modeor
meansby which Long BeachTransit, its agents or employees, perform the services required herein,

except as otherwise set forth herein. City shall have no voice in the selection, discharge,

supervision or control of Long Beach Transit’s employees, representatives or agents, orin fixing

their number, compensation or hours of service. Long Beach Transit shall perform all services

01007.0001/732285.10 4.



required herein as an independent contractor of City and shall remain at all times as to City a

wholly independent contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role. City

shall not in any way or for any purpose becomeor be deemedto be a partner ofLong Beach Transit
in its business or otherwise or a joint venturer oramemberofanyjoint enterprise with Long Beach

Transit.

4.5 Prohibition Against Subcontracting or Assignment.

The experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of Long Beach Transit, its principals
and employees were a substantial inducementfor the City to enter into this Agreement. Therefore,

Long BeachTransit shall not contract with any other entity to perform in whole or in part the

services required hereunder without the express written approval of the City. In addition, neither

this Agreement nor any interest herein may be transferred, assigned, conveyed, hypothecated or
encumbered voluntarily or by operation of law, whetherforthe benefit of creditors or otherwise,

without the prior written approval of City. No approvedtransfer shall release Long Beach Transit

or any surety of Long BeachTransit of any liability hereunder without the express consentof City.

ARTICLE 5. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

5.1 Insurance Coverages.

 

Long Beach Transit shall procure and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, in a form and
content satisfactory to City, during the entire term of this Agreement including anyextension

thereof, the following policies of insurance whichshall coverall elected and appointed officers,

employees and agentsofCity:

(a) General Liability Insurance (Occurrence Form CG0001 or equivalent). A

policy of comprehensive commercial generalliability insurance written on a per occurrencebasis

for products and completed operations, bodily injury, personal and advertising injury and property
damage. Thepolicy of insuranceshall be in an amountnotless than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence

or if a general aggregate limit is used, theneither the general aggregate limit shall apply separately
to the services Long Beach Transit shall render under this agreement (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or

the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

(b) Worker’s Compensation Insurance. A policy of worker’s compensation

insurance in such amountas will fully comply with the laws of the State of California and which

shall indemnify, insure and provide legal defense for Long Beach Transit against any loss, claim

or damagearising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed

by or any persons retained by Long Beach Transit in the course of carrying out the services

contemplated in this Agreement, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with a limit of no less than

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(c) Automotive Insurance (Form CA 0001 (Ed 1/87) including “any auto” and

endorsement CA 0025 or equivalent). A policy of comprehensive automobileliability insurance

written on a peroccurrencebasis for bodily injury and property damage in an amountnotless than

$2,000,000. Said policy shall include coverage for owned, non-owned, leased, hired cars and any

automobile.

 

01007.0001/732285.10 -5-



(d) Subcontractors. Long Beach Transit shall include all subcontractors as
insureds underits policies or shall furnish separate certificates and certified endorsements for each

subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall include all of the requirements stated herein.

(e) Additional Insurance. Policies of such other insurance, as may be required
in the Special Requirements in Exhibit “B”.

5.2 General Insurance Requirements.

All of the abovepolicies of insurance shall be primary insurance and shall name the City,

its elected and appointed officers, employees and agents as additional insureds and any insurance

maintained by City orits officers, employees or agents may applyin excessof, and not contribute

with Long Beach Transit’s insurance. The insurer is deemed hereof to waive all rights of

subrogation and contribution it may have against the City, its officers, employees and agents and

their respective insurers. Moreover, the insurance policy must specify that where the primary

insured does not satisfy the self-insured retention, any additional insured may satisfy the self-

insured retention. If Long Beach Transit maintains broader coverage and/orhigher limits than the
minimumsshownin Section 5.1 above, the City requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage
and/or the higherlimits maintained by Long Beach Transit. Any available insurance proceedsin excess
of the specified minimumlimits of insurance and coverageshall be available to the City.

All of said policies of insurance shall provide that said insurance may not be amended or
cancelled by the insurer or any party hereto without providing thirty (30) daysprior written notice

by certified mail return receipt requested to the City. In the event anyof said policies of insurance
are cancelled, Long Beach Transit shall, prior to the cancellation date, submit new evidence of

insurance in conformance with Section 5.1 to the Contract Officer.

No work or services under this Agreement shall commence until Long Beach Transit has

provided the City with Certificates of Insurance, additional insured endorsement forms or

appropriate insurance binders evidencing the above insurance coverages andsaid Certificates of

Insurance or binders are approved by the City. City reserves the right to inspect complete, certified
copies of and endorsementsto all required insurance policies at any time. Any failure to comply

with the reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches or warranties shall not
affect coverage provided to City.

All certificates shall name the City as additional insured (providing the appropriate
endorsement) and shall conform to the following “cancellation”notice:

CANCELLATION:

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE

CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATED THEREOF,

THE ISSUING COMPANY SHALL MAIL THIRTY (30)-DAY

ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE TO CERTIFICATE HOLDER
NAMEDHEREIN.

[to be initialed] Ky o
Long Béach Transit Initials

01007.0001/732285.10 -6-

 



City, its respective elected and appointed officers, directors, officials, employees, agents

and volunteers are to be covered as additional insuredsasrespects:liability arising out ofactivities

Long BeachTransit performs; products and completed operations ofLong Beach Transit; premises

owned, occupied or used by Long Beach Transit; or any automobiles owned, leased, hired or

borrowed by Long Beach Transit. The coverage shall contain nospecial limitations on the scope
of protection afforded to City, and their respective elected and appointed officers, officials,
employees or volunteers. Long Beach Transit’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured

against whom claim is madeorsuit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s
liability.

Any deductibles orself-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. Long

Beach Transit agrees that the requirement to provide insurance shall not be construed as limiting

in any way the extent to which Long Beach Transit may be held responsible for the payment of

damagesto any personsor property resulting from Long Beach Transit’s activities or the activities

of any person or persons for which Long Beach Transit is otherwise responsible norshall it limit

Long Beach Transit’s indemnification liabilities as provided in Section 5.3.

In the event Long Beach Transit subcontracts any portion of the work in compliance with

Section 4.5 of this Agreement, the contract between Long Beach Transit and such subcontractor

shall require the subcontractor to maintain the same policies of insurance that Long Beach Transit

is required to maintain pursuant to Section 5.1, and suchcertificates and endorsementsshall be

providedto City.

5.3 Indemnification.

To the full extent permitted by law, Long Beach Transit agrees to indemnify, defend and

hold harmlessthe City, its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) against, and will

hold and save them and each of them harmless from, any and all actions, either judicial,

administrative, arbitration or regulatory claims, damages to persons or property, losses, costs,

penalties, obligations, errors, omissionsorliabilities whether actual or threatened (herein “claims

or liabilities”) that may be asserted or claimed by any person, firm or entity arising outoforin

connection with the negligent performanceof the work,operationsoractivities provided herein of
Long BeachTransit,its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or any individualor entity for
which Long Beach Transit is legally liable (“indemnitors”), or arising from Long Beach Transit’s

or indemnitors’ reckless or willful misconduct, or arising from Long Beach Transit’s or

indemnitors’ negligent performance of or failure to perform any term, provision, covenant or

condition of this Agreement, and in connection therewith:

(a) Long BeachTransit will defend any action or actions filed in connection

with anyofsaid claimsorliabilities and will pay all costs and expenses, including legal costs and

attorneys’ fees incurred in connection therewith;

(b) Long Beach Transit will promptly pay any judgment rendered against the

City, its officers, agents or employees for any such claims or liabilities arising out of or in

connection with the negligent performance of or failure to perform such work, operations or
activities of Long Beach Transit hereunder; and Long Beach Transit agrees to save and hold the

City, its officers, agents, and employees harmless therefrom;

01007.0001/732285.10 -7-



(c) In the event the City, its officers, agents or employees is madea party to

any action or proceeding filed or prosecuted against Long BeachTransit for such damagesor other
claimsarising out ofor in connection with the negligent performance oforfailure to perform the
work, operation or activities of Long Beach Transit hereunder, Long Beach Transit agrees to pay

to the City, its officers, agents or employees, any and all costs and expenses incurred bythe City,

its officers, agents or employees in such action or proceeding, including but notlimited to, legal
costs and attorneys’ fees.

Should anyliability or sanctions be imposed against City pursuant to 8 U.S.C.A §§1101 et

seq. arising from Long Beach Transit’s employmentpractices or the status of individuals used by
Long Beach Transit to provide services pursuant to this Agreement, Long Beach Transit hereby

agreesto and shall reimburse City for the cost ofall such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together
with any and all costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred byCity.

Long BeachTransit shall incorporate similar indemnity agreements with its subcontractors
andif it fails to do so Long Beach Transit shall be fully responsible to indemnify City hereunder

therefore, and failure of City to monitor compliance with these provisions shall not be a waiver
hereof. This indemnification includes claimsorliabilities arising from any negligent or wrongful

act, error or omission,or reckless or willful misconduct of Long BeachTransit in the performance

of professional services hereunder. The provisions of this Section do not apply to claims or

liabilities occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence or willful acts or omissions, but, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, shall apply to claimsand liabilities resulting in part from City’s

negligence, except that design professionals’ indemnity hereundershall be limited to claims and
liabilities arising out of the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the design

professional. The indemnity obligation shall be binding on successors and assigns of Long Beach
Transit and shall survive termination of this Agreement.

5.4 Sufficiency of Insurer.

Insurance required by this Agreementshall be satisfactory only if issued by companies

qualified to do business in California, rated “A”or better in the most recentedition of Best Rating
Guide, The Key Rating Guideorin the Federal Register, and only if they are of a financial category

Class VII or better, unless such requirements are waived by the Risk Managerof the City (“Risk
Manager”) due to unique circumstances. If this Agreement continues for more than 3 years

duration, or in the event the risk manager determines that the work or services to be performed
under this Agreementcreates an increased or decreasedrisk of loss to the City, Long Beach Transit

agrees that the minimum limits ofthe insurance policies may be changed accordingly uponreceipt

of written notice from the Risk Manager.

ARTICLE 6. RECORDS, REPORTS, AND RELEASE OF
INFORMATION

6.1 Reports.

Long Beach Transit shall periodically prepare and submit to the Contract Officer such
reports concerning the performance ofthe services required by this Agreement as the Contract
Officer shall require. Long Beach Transit hereby acknowledgesthat the City is greatly concerned

01007.0001/732285.10 -8-



about the cost of work and services to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. Forthis reason,

Long Beach Transit agrees that ifLong Beach Transit becomes awareofany facts, circumstances,

techniques, or events that may or will materially increase or decrease the cost of the work or

services contemplated herein, Long Beach Transit shall promptly notify the Contract Officer of

said fact, circumstance, technique or event and the estimated increased or decreasedcostrelated
thereto.

ARTICLE 7. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND

TERMINATION

7.1 California Law.

This Agreementshall be interpreted, construed and governed both as to validity and to

performanceof the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Legal actions

concerning any dispute, claim or matter arising out of or in relation to this Agreementshall be

instituted in the Superior Court of the County of Los Angeles, State of California, or any other

appropriate court in such county, and Long Beach Transit covenants and agrees to submitto the

personal jurisdiction of such court in the event of such action. In the eventof litigation in a U.S.
District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in the County of

Los Angeles, State of California.

7.2 Disputes; Default.

In the event that Long Beach Transit is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the

City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Long BeachTransit for any

work performedafter the date of default. Instead, the City may give notice to Long Beach Transit

ofthe default and the reasonsforthe default. The notice shall include the timeframe in which Long

Beach Transit may cure the default. This timeframe is presumptively thirty (80) days, but may be

extended, though not reduced, if circumstances warrant. During the period oftime that Long Beach

Transit is in default, the City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed
with payment onthe invoices. In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay

someorall of the outstanding invoices during the period of default. If Long Beach Transit does

not cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under this

Article. Anyfailure on the part ofthe City to give notice of Long Beach Transit’s default shall not
be deemedto result in a waiverof the City’s legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision

of this Agreement.

73 Resolution of Disputed Invoices/Claims.

Within 90 daysofthe effective date of this Agreement, the Parties’ contract representatives

will establish a mutually agreeable dispute resolution process and related terms/provisions that

would apply in the event City disputes an invoice submitted by Long Beach Transit on the basis

that it does not accurately reflect services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. The foregoing

dispute resolution process and related provisions would also apply with respect to any andall

amounts for which City may beliable to third parties by reason of Long Beach Transit’s acts or

omissionsin performingorfailing to perform Long Beach Transit’s obligation under Article 5 of
this Agreement, including butnotlimited to, for (i) amounts of any claims made bya third party,

01007.0001/732285.10 -9-



the amounts or validity of which is disputed by Long Beach Transit, or (ii) any indebtedness that

may exist which shall appear to be the basis for a claim oflien.

7A Waiver.

Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant ofthis

Agreementshall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiverby any

party of any breach ofthe provisions of this Agreementshall not constitute a waiver of any other

provision or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement.
Acceptance by City of any work or services by Long BeachTransit shall not constitute a waiver

of any ofthe provisions of this Agreement. No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or

remedy by a non-defaulting party on any default shall impair such right or remedy or be construed
as a waiver. Any waiverbyeither party of any default must be in writing and shall not be a waiver
of any other default concerning the sameorany otherprovision of this Agreement.

75 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.

Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this

Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are cumulative and the exercise byeither party

of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same or

different times, of any other rights or remedies for the same default or any other default by the
otherparty.

7.6 Legal Action.

In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party may take legalaction, in law orin

equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to compel
specific performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or injunctiverelief, or to obtain any
other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement.

7.7 Termination Prior to Expiration of Term.

This Section shall govern any termination of this Contract except as specifically provided
in the following Section for termination for cause. The City reserves the right to terminate this

Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon ninety (90) days’ written notice to Long Beach

Transit, except that where termination is due to the fault of Long Beach Transit, the period of
notice may be such shorter time as may be determined by the Contract Officer. In addition, Long

Beach Transit reserves the right to terminate this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon

ninety (90) days’ written notice to City, except that where termination is due to the fault of the

City, the period of notice may be such shorter time as Long Beach Transit may determine. Upon

receipt of any notice of termination, Long Beach Transit shall immediately cease all services

hereunder except such as may be specifically approved by the Contract Officer. Long Beach

Transit shall be entitled to compensation for all services rendered priorto the date of receipt of the

notice of termination and for any services authorized by the Contract Officer thereafter in

accordance with the Schedule of Compensation or such as may be approved by the Contract

Officer, except as provided in Section 7.3. In the event of termination without cause pursuant to

this Section, the terminating party need not provide the non-terminating party with the opportunity
to cure pursuant to Section 7.2.

01007.0001/732285.10 -10-



78 Termination for Default ofLong Beach Transit.

If termination is dueto the failure ofLong Beach Transit to fulfill its obligations underthis

Agreement, City may, after compliance with the provisions of Section 7.2, take over the work and

prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and Long BeachTransitshall be liable

to the extent that the total cost for completion of the services required hereunder exceeds the
compensationherein stipulated (provided that the City shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate such

damages), and City may withhold any payments to Long Beach Transit for the purpose ofset-off

or partial payment of the amounts owed the City as previously stated.

7.9 Attorneys’ Fees.

If either party to this Agreementis required to initiate or defend or made a party to any

action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement,the prevailing partyin suchaction

or proceeding, in addition to any other relief which may be granted, whetherlegal or equitable,

shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees. Attorney’s fees shall include attorney’s fees on any

appeal, and in addition a party entitled to attorney’s fees shall be entitled to all other reasonable

costs for investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery andall other necessary costs

the court allows which are incurred in suchlitigation.

ARTICLE 8. CITY OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES: NON-

DISCRIMINATION

8.1 Non-liability of City Officers and Employees.

Noofficer or employee ofthe City shall be personally liable to Long Beach Transit, or any

successorin interest, in the event of any default or breach by the City or for any amount which

may becomedue to Long Beach Transitor to its successor, or for breach of any obligation of the

terms of this Agreement.

8.2 Conflict of Interest.

City and Long Beach Transit each covenant that neither it, nor any ofits officers or

employees, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any

manner with the interests of the other or which would in any way hinder Long Beach Transit’s

performanceofservices under this Agreement. Long Beach Transit further covenantsthat in the

performanceof this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an

officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the Contract

Officer. Long Beach Transit agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of

any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the performance of this Agreement.

Noofficer or employee of the City shall have any financialinterest, direct or indirect, in

this Agreementnorshall any such officer or employee participate in any decisionrelating to the

Agreement whichaffects her/his financial interest or the financial interest of any corporation,

partnership or association in which (s)heis, directly or indirectly, interested, in violation of any
State statute or regulation. Long Beach Transit warrants that it has not paid or given and will not

pay orgive anythird party any moneyor otherconsideration for obtaining this Agreement.

01007.0001/732285.10 -I1-



ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9.1 Notices.

Any notice, demand, request, document, consent, approval, or communicationeither party

desires or is required to give to the other party or any other personshall be in writing and either
served personally or sent by prepaid,first-class mail, in the case of the City, to the City Manager

and to the attention of the Contract Officer (with her/his name andCity title), City of Carson, 701
East Carson, Carson, California 90745 and in the case of Long BeachTransit, to the person(s) at
the address designated on the execution page of this Agreement, copy to Long Beach Transit

General Counsel. Either party maychangeits address by notifying the other party of the change

of address in writing. Notice shall be deemed communicated atthe time personally delivered or in

seventy-two (72) hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this Section.

9.2 Interpretation.

The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaningof the
language used andshall not be construed for or against either party by reason ofthe authorship of

this Agreementor any otherrule of construction which might otherwise apply.

9.3 Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of whichshall be deemedto be an
original, and such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.

9.4 Integration: Amendment.

This Agreement including the attachments hereto is the entire, complete and exclusive

expression of the understanding of the parties. It is understood that there are no oral agreements

between the parties hereto affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels
any andall previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, between

the parties, and noneshall be used to interpret this Agreement. No amendmentto or modification
of this Agreementshall be valid unless made in writing and approved by Long BeachTransit and

by the City Council, except as otherwise providedherein. The parties agree that this requirement
for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waivershall be void.

9.5 Severability.

In the event that any one or moreofthe phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs,orsections

contained in this Agreement shall be declared invalid or unenforceable by a valid judgment or

decree of a court of competentjurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any

of the remaining phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or sections of this Agreement which are

hereby declared as severable and shall be interpreted to carry out the intent ofthe parties hereunder
unlessthe invalid provision is so materialthatits invalidity deprives eitherparty ofthe basic benefit
of their bargain or renders this Agreement meaningless.

01007.0001/732285.10 -12-



9.6 Warranty & Representation of Non-Collusion.

Noofficial, officer, or employee of City has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement, norshall any official, officer, or employee of City participate in any decision relating

to this Agreement which may affect his/her financial interest or the financial interest of any

corporation, partnership, or association in which (s)he is directly or indirectly interested, or in

violation of any corporation, partnership, or association in which (s)he is directly or indirectly

interested, or in violation of any State or municipal statute or regulation. The determination of

“financial interest” shall be consistent with State law and shall not include interests found to be

“remote” or “non-interests” pursuant to Government Code Sections 1091 or 1091.5. Long Beach

Transit warrants and representsthat it has notpaid or given, and will not pay or give, to any third

party including, but not limited to, any City official, officer, or employee, any money,

consideration, or other thing ofvalue as a result or consequence of obtaining or being awarded any

agreement. Long Beach Transit further warrants and represents that (s)he/it has not engaged in any

act(s), omission(s), or other conductorcollusion that would result in the payment of any money,

consideration, or other thing of value to any third party including, but not limited to, any City

official, officer, or employee, as a result of consequence of obtaining or being awarded any

agreement. Long Beach Transit is aware of and understands that any such act(s), omission(s) or

other conduct resulting in such payment of money, consideration, or other thing of value will

render this Agreementvoid and ofno forceoreffect.

Long Beach Transit’s Authorized ils8A

9.7 Corporate Authority.

The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrantthat(1) such

party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this

Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing this Agreement, such party is formally

bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the entering into this Agreement does not

violate any provision of any other Agreementto which said party is bound. This Agreementshall

be binding upontheheirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns ofthe parties.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

01007.0001/732285.10 -|3-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF,the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and yearfirst-above written.

 

ATTEST: Vee
  

( a a SS
CH, Oe ie Llc é VA ‘

et
CAB ISy C1)
 

/ »John W.Carroll, Sr., Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVEDAS TO FORM:

ALES YNDER, LLP

  

 

[BRJ]
Sunns-kK.oe CityAttorney

01007.0001/732285.10

CITY:

CITY OF CARSON,a municipal corporation

 Oe
Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor

/

y Che K

LONG BEACH TRANSIT:

LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

COMPANY,a California public benefit nonprofit

corporation

ABett:
Kenneth A. McDonald, President and CEO

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By. 2
Vincent-C-Ewing

General Counsel

Address: 1963 E. Anaheim St.
Long Beach, CA 90813

-]4-



EXHIBIT “A”

SCOPE OF SERVICES

I. Long Beach Transit will perform the following Services:

A. Long BeachTransit will perform fixed-route public transit bus services as detailed
in this Section.

B. Long Beach Transit will operate the three fixed routes depicted below (identified

as routes 2, 4 and 8) within the City, at the times and frequencies indicated below:

  
   

  

VictoriaEEleldmae [_}
LeU ELY

  University

e
o
s
o
n
b
i
s

  

W
I
Z
I
S
U
A
A

yo
rG
un
ny
y,

  
  

SI
NU

LU
LO

R]

T
U
O
N
O
,

 

    

 

Carson
|| Civic Ctr  

  

 

Carson §

     

3
Sepulveda  

4
RI

UR
S

  

   

   

   
  

 

=
°
2
a

oO
Q

Pacific .
3

Coast Hwy im] Pacific Coast Hwy

aesila me)malo
elu) |   

 

  
Service Span

  

5:05am - 7:30em 10:15am - 6:00em | No Service 40 | 40 No Service

4 5:15am - 7:45em | 10:35am5:45m | No Service 40 | 40 No Service

10:30am - 5:50pm | No Service 40 | 40 | No Service

 

I] seers

01007.0001/732285.10 A-1



C. Operation of the fixed routes at the times and frequencies set forth in subsection
(B), above (the “Base Services”), will require six (6) buses.

D. [Reserved]

E. City may increase service levels beyond the Base Services subject to a City

Manager-approved and Long Beach Transit-approved written amendment to this

Agreement, executed by both Parties, to take advantage of any or all of the
following additional or enhanced service options available from Long Beach
Transit:

L. Add Sundayservice (Saturday hours of operation) to Base Services;

2. Add one additional hourof service* on weekdays to Base Services;

3. Add oneadditional hour of service* on Saturdays to Base Services;

The City Council hereby authorizes anyorall of the foregoing increases subject to

approval and execution of the necessary amendment to this Agreementby the City

Managerif and when such increase is deemed appropriate by the City Manager.

Additional costs for increased or enhanced services pursuantto this subsection (E)

are as specified in Section II of Exhibit “C.” Any contract amendmentto increase

or enhance services pursuant to this subsection shall require a corresponding

increase to the contract sum provisions of this Agreement, including Section 2.1

and Section II] of Exhibit “C,” based on the rates set forth in Section II of Exhibit

“C.” Similarly, if, after any increase(s) or enhancement(s) of services pursuantto

this subsection, Long Beach Transit or City wish to terminate such increased or
enhanced services and/or return services back to the Base Services, such action

shall require a City Manager-approved written amendment to this Agreement,
executed by both Parties (City Manager may execute on behalf of City), prior to

taking effect.

*The timing of the additional hour of service shall be determined mutually by parties and

agreed uponat the time of entering into the relevant amendmentto this Agreement.

F. Further increases, additions or enhancements to the services, including the

following, may be authorized subject to a City Council and Long BeachTransit-

approved and duly executed written amendment to this Agreement between the

Parties:

1. Increase service frequency of Base Services from 40 minutes to 30 minutes.

2. Expand the service routes of the Base Services to provide access to key

destinations such as Carson HS, South Bay Pavilion, Harbor Gateway, LA

Harbor College, and UCLA Harbor Medical Center.

3. Provide enhanced connections to regional high-capacity transit, including

the J (Silver) Line and the A (Blue) Line.

01007.0001/732285.10 A-2



IL.

4. Complement existing regional transit services provided by other regional

providers,

5. Extend service span to align with other LBT services.

6. Serve priority transit arterials identified by the City of Carson.

7. Add additional service hours, implement Sunday service, or adjust service

frequency for the aforementioned potential expanded services.

All buses utilized for services pursuant to this Agreement shall be provided and
operated by Long Beach Transit, and shall be ADA-accessible at all times.

Additional ADA-accessible buses shall be provided by. Long Beach Transit as

necessary to accommodate any increased or enhanced services authorized pursuant

to subsection (E), above, and to replace and continue services in the event of a

breakdown, as detailed in subsection (I), below. For the avoidance of doubt,

“ADA,” as used in this Agreement, means and refers to the Americans with

Disabilities Act of 1990.

All of the services required under this Agreementwill be performed by Long Beach

Transit or approved subcontractors underits supervision, andall personnel engaged

in the work shall be duly qualified to perform such services.

Long Beach Transit shall provide towing and replacement buses as soon as

reasonably practicable in the event of a vehicle breakdown. No request for towing

of any vehicle pursuant to this Agreementshall be made by City, nor shall any such

request be required for Long Beach Transit to perform the aforementioned

obligations.

Long BeachTransit shall be responsible for providing adequate trainingto its staff

to ensure proper operation and maintenance of system vehicles. All drivers
providing the services under this Agreement shall possess a Commercial Driver's

license (CDL), Medical Examiner's Certificate and any other required certificates.

Long Beach Transit shall maintain and implement a policy of drug and alcohol

testing for its employees as required for compliance withall laws, regulations, and

grant program requirements asstated in Section 1.2.

Long Beach Transit will collect and retain all fares and will count and record the

ridership or numberof passengers using theservices.

Vehicle Operation and Maintenance:

1. At all times, Long Beach Transit shall maintain all components of each

vehicle as stated in section 1.2.

In the event City or Long Beach Transit, for any reason, determine that there is a

need to reduce the hours of operation of anyorall the fixed routes below the base

01007.0001/732285.10 A-3



Til.

hours of operation specified in this Agreement for the Base Services without

completely suspending services, then such reduction in service hours may be

effectuated via a City Manager-approved and Long Beach Transit-approved written

amendmentto this Agreement, executed by both Parties (City Manager may execute

on behalf of City), prior to the reduction taking effect.

All of the services required under this Agreementwill be performed by LBT or under

its supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be qualified to perform

suchservices. LBT reserves the right to determine the assignmentof its employees to

the performance ofLBT’s services under this Agreement. In the event City's Contract

Officer determines there is a need to exclude any employee of LBT from performing

services for City under this Agreement, the Parties agree to work together in good

faith to find a mutually agreeable solution, provided no action shall be taken that

would violate any federal, state or local law or regulation, including any applicable

labor agreement between LBTandbusoperators.

01007.0001/732285.10 A-4



EXHIBIT “B”

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

(Superseding Contract Boilerplate)

(added text shownin bolditalics, deleted text shownin strikethrough)

01007.0001/732285.10 B-1



EXHIBIT “C”

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION

I. Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base Services at the flat annual rate of

$1,770,000 (i.e., per 12 months of service) for the initial three-year term ofthis
Agreement(the “Base Services Rate”).

Il. The additional or enhancedservice options specified in Section I.E of Exhibit “A”,if

and whenauthorized pursuantto said Section I.E during the term of this Agreement,

shall be performed at the following flat annualrates (i-e., per 12 monthsofservice,

with actual compensation due for any relevant billing period prorated as necessary

based on the timing of authorization):

A. Add Sundayservice (Saturday hours) to Base Services: add $164,500 (+/- the rate

of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to Base

Services Rate.

B. Add one additional hour of service on weekdays to Base Services: add $122,400

(+/- the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually
to Base Services Rate.

G Add one additional hour of service on Saturdays to Base Services: add $25,200 (+/-
the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to

Base Services Rate.

Il. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $5,310,000 for the initial

three-year term of this Agreement, as provided in Section 2.1 of this Agreement.

01007.0001/732285.10 C-1



EXHIBIT “D”

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE

L Long Beach Transit shall perform all Services timely in accordance with the following

schedule:

A. BaseServices:service to the public is provided in accordance with the schedule set

01007.0001/732285.10

forth in Section I.B of Exhibit “A.”

Long Beach Transit shall provide as requested service performancereports to the

City suchas:

Ridership;

On-Time Performance;

Adherenceto the Plan Schedule;

Complaints or Compliments of Service;

Security Statistics;

Revenue Data.

D-1



LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY/ CITY OF CARSON BusService

Agreement, Section 7.3 Dispute Resolution Process A “Sop7 ow
Resolution of Disputed Invoices/Claims.

This agreementis entered into underSection 7.3 (“Resolution of Disputed Invoices/Claims”) of
the Contract Services Agreement entered into by andss the City of Carson and Long Beach
Public Transportation Company, effective September~7 2021 (“Contract”), and is deemed
incorporated into the Contract by reference as thoughfully set forth in the Contract at Section
7.3. LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANYis hereinafter referred to as "LBT" and

the CITY OF CARSON is hereinafter referred to as "Carson". Collectively, LBT and Carson

are referred to hereinafteras the "Parties". Individually, LBT and Carson hereinafterare referred to as the
"Party", or as a "Party".

Notwithstanding Section 7.2 of the Contract, any dispute, claim, or controversy that may arise
betweentheParties that is within the scope of Section 7.3 of the Contract (“Dispute”)shall be
resolved as herein provided. Prior to the initiation of any legal action pursuant to Section 7.6 of
the Contract, the Parties shall first attempt to resolve their Dispute informally, in a timely and
cost-effective manner,as follows:

1. Ifa Party has a Dispute with the other Party, the disputing Party shall give written notice

thereof within five (5) business days following identification of the cause of the Dispute

to LBT's President and CEO and Carson's City Manager, which notice shall describe the

Dispute and recommend corrective action to be taken by the other

Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure of a Party to give notice of a Dispute

within the foregoing timeframeshall not, in andofitself, constitute a waiverof any claim

orlegal right or remedy relatedto the Dispute, nor a waiver of any default or anyprovision

of the Contract. Nothing in this agreementis intended to alter any applicable statute of

limitations. “Business days”as used in this agreementshall exclude Fridays and holidays

observed by Carsonor LBT.

a. While the Dispute is pending, and provided the Contract remainsin effect and has

not been terminated pursuant to Section 7.7 or 7.8, and services for the relevant

period have not been suspended pursuant to Section 3.3, Carson will continue

paying LBT's invoices for services rendered pursuant to the Contract and LBTwill

continue providing services pursuant to the Contract. With respectto the first type

of dispute identified in Section 7.3 of the Contract, i.e., where Carson disputes an

invoice submitted by LBT on the basis that it does not accurately reflect services

rendered pursuantto the Contract, Carson doesn't have the right to retain funds

that are subject to the Dispute and that come due pursuantto LBT's invoices while

the Dispute is pending (the “Disputed Payments”), provided LBT’s President/CEO,

uponbeingnotified of the Dispute, in good faith affirms to Carson’s City Manager

that LBT reasonably believes the Disputed Payments accurately reflect services

rendered pursuant to the Contract. LBT doesn't have the right to stop services

pursuant to the Contract while the Dispute is pending, provided the Contract

remainsin effect and has not been terminated pursuantto Section 7.7 or 7.8, and

services for the relevant period have not been suspendedpursuantto Section 3.3.



LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY/ CITY OF CARSON BusService

Agreement, Section 7.3 Dispute Resolution Process

2. LBT's President and CEO and Carson's City Managershall, within eight (8) business days

of receiving written notice of the Dispute (“Resolution Deadline”), meet and conferin a

good faith attemptto resolve it. Other persons may beincluded in the meet and confer

process as deemed necessary by LBT's President and CEO and Carson's City Manager.

3. Ifthe Parties are unable to resolvethe Disputeat least in principle prior to the Resolution

Deadline, either Party may pursue a legal action pursuant to Section 7.6 of the

Agreement.If the Parties agree in principle but do not have sufficient time to effectuate

final approval of such agreementprior to the Resolution Deadline, then provided each

Party acts diligently and in good faith to finalize the agreement, a reasonable time period

not exceedingthirty (30) days beyond the Resolution Deadline shall be allowed tofinalize

such agreementprior to either Party pursuing a legal action thereon.

4. The prevailing party in a legal action regarding the Dispute shall be entitled to recover

reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in accordance with Section 7.9 of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, on the date and year first-below written, the Parties hereto have

executed and agreed to this LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY / CITY OF

CARSONBusService Agreement, Section 7.3 Dispute Resolution Process.

 

 

APPROVED AS, TO FORM:

ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP

| ~ 7 ~~

Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney
 

LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a California public benefit nonprofit

corporation

Ko |
Kenneth A“twicDonald, President and CEO
 

Date: /P{ 26 2021



LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY/ CITY OF CARSON BusService

Agreement, Section 7.3 Dispute Resolution Process

APPROVEDAS TO FORM:

aeg- -

Vincent C. Ewing, General CounSel



AMENDMENT NO. 1 
TO AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 
("Amendment No. l ") by and between the CITY OF CARSON, a California municipal corporation 
("City"), and LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a California nonprofit 
mutual benefit corporation ("Long Beach Transit"), is effective as of the 27th day of September, 
2024. City and Long Beach Transit are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as "Party" 
and hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. City and Long Beach Transit entered into that certain Agreement for Contract
Services dated September 27, 2021 ("Agreement"), whereby Long Beach Transit agreed to provide 
City with fixed-route public transit bus services as identified in Exhibit "A" ("Scope of Services") 
of the Agreement (the "Services"). The Agreement, in Section 2.1, provides for a not-to-exceed 
Contract Sum of $5,310,000 for the initial three (3) year term, with annual compensation not to 
exceed $1,770,000 for each year of the initial three (3) year term. The Agreement, in Section 3.4, 
also provides for two subsequent one-year options that may be exercised by a duly approved and 
executed amendment to the Agreement entered into between the Parties. 

B. Pursuant to Carson Municipal Code ("CMC") Section 261 l(i)(7), the City's
purchase of services from other governmental agencies that are not covered under a specific 
interagency agreement does not require compliance with the bidding provisions of the City's 
purchasing ordinance (Chapter 6 of Article II of the CMC) so long as funds have been properly 
appropriated and such purchases conform with all other requirements of the City's purchasing 
ordinance. The forgoing exemption is applicable to the City's procurement of the services provided 
for in the Agreement and this Amendment No. 1. 

C. City and Long Beach Transit now desire to amend the Agreement, by this
Amendment No. 1, to extend the tenn until December 31, 2024, to facilitate continued 
perfonnance of the Services by Long Beach Transit in exchange for compensation in the amount 
of $442,500 for this short-term extension period, and to increase the Contract Sum by $442,500 to 
authorize funding for this short-term extension period, thereby increasing the total not-to-exceed 
Contract Sum to $5,752,500, with the two subsequent one-year options to extend the term 
remaining intact, except that the first option period, if exercised, would commence on January 1, 
2025, and the second option period, if exercised, would commence on January 1, 2026. 

TERMS 

1. Contract Changes. The Agreement is amended as provided herein (new text is
identified in bold italics, deleted text in strike through). 

A. Section 2.1 (Contract Sum) of the Agreement is amended to read in its
entirety as follows: 

01007.0001 ll001896.4 



"2.1 Contract Sum. 

Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Long 
Beach Transit the amounts specified in the "Schedule of Compensation" attached 
hereto as Exhibit "C" and incorporated herein by this reference. The total 
compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, shall not exceed Five 
Million Seven Hundred Fifty-Two Tltousand Five Hundred Dollars ($5,752,500) 
Fi:Ye Million Tmee H1:1ndred Ten Tho1:1saRd Dollars ($5,310,000) for the initial 
three-year tenn of this Agreement plus tlte extension period through December 
31, 2024 (the "Contract Sum"). The annual compensation shall not exceed One 
Million Seven Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars ($1,770,000.00) for each year 
of the initial three-year tenn and $442,500 for the extension period through 
December 31, 2024." 

B. Section 3.4 (Term) of this Agreement is hereby amended to read in its
entirety as follows: 

"3.4 Tenn. Unless earlier tenninated in accordance with Article 7 of this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect tffittl. through 
December 31, 2024 eompletion of the serviees 01:tt not eKeeediHg ftfl initial term of 
thfee (3) years, with two subsequent one-year options that may be exercised by a 
duly approved and executed amendment to this Agreement entered into between 
the Parties, with the.first option (if exercised) commencing January 1, 2025. 

C. Exhibit "C" (Schedule of Compensation) of the Agreement is hereby
amended to ready in its entirety as set forth in the Exhibit "C" attached hereto. 

2. Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Amendment No. 1,
all provisions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. From and 
after the date of this Amendment No. 1, whenever the term "Agreement" appears in the Agreement, 
it shall mean the Agreement, as amended by this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement. 

3. Affirmation of Agreement; Warranty Re Absence of Defaults. City and Long
Beach Transit each ratify and reaffirm each and every one of the respective rights and obligations 
arising under the Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that there have been 
no written or oral modifications to the Agreement other than as provided herein. Each Party 
represents and warrants to the other that the Agreement, as amended by this Amendment No. 1, is 
currently an effective, valid, and binding obligation. 

Long Beach Transit represents and warrants to City that, as of the date of this Amendment 
No. 1, City is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that there have been no 
events that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material 
default under the Agreement. 

City represents and warrants to Long Beach Transit that, as of the date of this Amendment 
No. 1, Long Beach Transit is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that there 
have been no events that, with the passing oftime or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute 
a material default under the Agreement. 

01007.0001/1001896.4 



4. Adequate Consideration. The Parties irrevocably stipulate and agree that they
have each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations 
they have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment No. 1. 

5. Authority. The persons executing this Amendment No. 1 on behalf of the Parties
warrant that (i) such Party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute 
and deliver this Amendment No. 1 on behalf of said Party, (iii) by so executing this Amendment 
No. 1, such Party is formally bound to the provisions of this Amendment No. 1, and (iv) the 
entering into this Amendment No. 1 does not violate any provision of any other agreement to 
which said Party is bound. 

6. Counterparts. This Amendment No. 1 may be executed in any number of
counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, 
whether the signatures are originals, electronic, facsimiles or digital. All such counterparts shall 
together constitute but one and the same Amendment No. 1. 

[Signatures on the following page] 

0 I 007.0001 ii 001896.4 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment No. 1 on the date(s) and year set forth below, with express intent that this Amendment No. 1 shall be effective as of the date first-above written. 

Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney [brj; pks] 

01007 000111001896.4 

CITY: 

CITY OF CARSON, a municipal corporation 
-�,.,__.,..)Y� �L a Davis-Holmes, Mayor
Date: /!) /7 /4.. JI

, . 

, 2024 
---

LONG BEACH TRANSIT: 

LONG BEACH PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a California public benefit nonprofit corporation 
� Nam . r. Kenneth A. McDonald Title: President/CEO 

Date: _________ , 2024 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By<��-Vincen;: General Counsel Address: 4801 Airport Plaza Dr. 8th Floor Long Beach, CA 90815 



EXHIBIT "C" 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION 

I. Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base Services at the flat annual rate of
$1,770,000 (i.e., per 12 months of service} for the initial three-year term of this
Agreement (the "Base Services Rate"). Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base
Services at tlte flat rate of $442,500 for the extension period commencing upon the
conclusion of initial three-year term of this Agreement and continuing tlrrougl,
December 31, 2024.

II. The additional or enhanced service options specified in Section I.E of Exhibit "A", if
and when authorized pursuant to said Section I.E during the term of this Agreement,
shall be performed at the following flat annual rates (i.e., per 12 months of service,
with actual compensation due for any relevant billing period prorated as necessary
based on the timing of authorization):

A. Add Sunday service (Saturday hours) to Base Services: add $164,500 (+/- the rate
of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to Base
Services Rate.

B. Add one additional hour of service on weekdays to Base Services: add $122,400
{+/- the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually
to Base Services Rate.

C. Add one additional hour of service on Saturdays to Base Services: add $25,200 ( • /
the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to
Base Services Rate.

III. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $5,752,500 SS,310,000 for the
initial three-year term of this Agreement plus the extension period through December
31, 2024, as provided in Section 2.1 of this Agreement.

0 I 007.0001 /I 001896.4 



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 20.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Michael Whittiker, Community Services Director  CS  Parks & Recreation
 
Subject:          CONSIDER APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CONTRACT SERVICES AGREMENT WITH
LIGHTHOUSE4KIDS, INC. (FORMERLY, THE LIGHTHOUSE-HOME FOR MEDICALLY FRAGILE CHILDREN)
(CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On October 20, 2020, City Council awarded an Agreement for Contract Services, for an initial three-year term with
two one-year extensions, to The Lighthouse-Home for Medically Fragile Children to provide snacks and lunch
during the summer and for afternoon programs at the City’s parks (Exhibit No. 1). The initial term of the Agreement
was for the period of December 3, 2020, through December 2, 2023. In November 2023, City Council approved
Amendment No. 1 to the agreement (Exhibit No. 2). Since commencement of the Agreement, the vendor continues
to do an outstanding job providing this service and has been an excellent partner. During the Covid-19 Pandemic
where, under a separate service contract, The Lighthouse offered over 76,000 meals for the Grab-and-Go program.
In both cases, The Lighthouse provided these services at no cost, as the vendor receives its funding through the
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Food and Nutrition Service. Staff is seeking City Council approval
of Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement in order to exercise the City’s second of two one-year options to extend the
term of the Agreement and to correct the name of the vendor as used in the Agreement to Lighthouse 4Kids, Inc.,
dba the Lighthouse (Exhibit No. 3). This action will extend the term of the Agreement for the period of December 3,
2024, through December 2, 2025, enabling the vendor to continue providing the services during this extension
period without any interruption in services. 

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

1.  APPROVE the proposed Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement (Exhibit No. 3); and
2. AUTHORIZE the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2, following approval as to form by the City Attorney.

III. ALTERNATIVES

 TAKE another action the City Council deems appropriate

IV. BACKGROUND

701 East Carson Street



On April 21, 2009, the City of Carson entered into an agreement with Lighthouse to provide free snacks and lunch to
children participating in Kids Club and Summer Day Camp program at the City’s parks. At the time that the contract
was executed, a sunset date was not included in the agreement; therefore, the development of a new contact was
required. A five-year agreement was prepared and presented to City Council on December 3, 2019. The City Council
declined to approve the contract at that time, and instead directed staff to release an RFP for this service and
authorized a one-year agreement in the interim. On September 3, 2020, an RFP was released inviting interested
firms to submit a proposal to provide meal and snack services during the summer and for the City’s after school
programs - Kids Club, Summer Day Camp, and 3-in-1 Enrichment. Specifically, vendors would be required to provide
950 lunches on 49 serving days, 600 snacks on 49 days, and 675 suppers on184 days. A total of five (5) proposals
were submitted by the RFP’s closing date, September 24, 2020, at the following per year pricing:

• The Lighthouse-Home for Medically Fragile Children - $0

• Tender Loving Care Catering- $545,777.50

• Choura Venue Services- $1,083,300

• Girlshood- $1,584,417

• Challenging Minds- $1,748,540

After careful review and evaluation of the bids, The Lighthouse-Home for Medically Fragile Children was identified
as the lowest and most responsible bidder, and was awarded the Agreement. The Lighthouse was established in
2006, and provides an array of programs and services to support medically fragile, low income, and at-risk youth.
The organization receives its funding from the USDA Food and Nutrition Service, which enables Lighthouse to
provide this service at no cost. During atypical summer, Lighthouse has served over 32,000 snacks and more than
28,000 lunches to program participants. The snacks and meals are distributed at various sites, including parks and
recreation centers. As this service is provided at no cost, the City has been permitted to keep program fees low and
affordable for the most economically challenged Carson youth. In the fifteen years that the City has worked with
this organization, Lighthouse continues to be an excellent partner. The non-profit has a vast amount of experience,
is knowledgeable of City procedures, is very familiar with City locations and programs, and accepts many
additional responsibilities, including administration of required reports and staff training. During the Covid-19
pandemic, Carson partnered with The Lighthouse through a separate service contract to provide over 76,000 free
meals for the Grab-and-Go program. Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Amendment
No. 2, which would authorize the extension and correct the vendor’s name as used in the Agreement to The
Lighthouse 4Kids, Inc., dba the Lighthouse. The recommended action will allow The Lighthouse to continue
providing snacks and meals to the City’s summer and after school programs for another year at no cost.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

 There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund with this contract, as this service is offered free of charge to
participants of the selected programs.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Agreement with Lighthouse Home for Medically Fragile Children Inc.
2. Amendment No. 1 to Agreement Lighthouse4Kids Inc.
3. Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement for  Lighthouse4Kids Inc.

 
 

 

 



Attachments

Agreement with Lighthouse Home for Medically Fragile Children Inc.pdf
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement Lighthouse4Kids Inc.pdf
Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement for  Lighthouse4Kids Inc.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FAgreement%20with%20Lighthouse%20Home%20for%20Medically%20Fragile%20Children%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=8123c5a3-0b75-4785-95d8-6f4c244bbf5d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FAgreement%20with%20Lighthouse%20Home%20for%20Medically%20Fragile%20Children%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=8123c5a3-0b75-4785-95d8-6f4c244bbf5d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FAgreement%20with%20Lighthouse%20Home%20for%20Medically%20Fragile%20Children%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=8123c5a3-0b75-4785-95d8-6f4c244bbf5d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FAmendment%20No.%201%20to%20Agreement%20Lighthouse4Kids%20Inc.%20TG.pdf?alt=media&token=d5c843ba-8faa-4389-8c3b-015cf11ed601
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FAmendment%20No.%201%20to%20Agreement%20Lighthouse4Kids%20Inc.%20TG.pdf?alt=media&token=d5c843ba-8faa-4389-8c3b-015cf11ed601
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FAmendment%20No.%201%20to%20Agreement%20Lighthouse4Kids%20Inc.%20TG.pdf?alt=media&token=d5c843ba-8faa-4389-8c3b-015cf11ed601
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FProposed%20Amendment%20No.%202%20to%20Agreement%20for%C2%A0%20Lighthouse4Kids%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=2ce6ccf9-1495-4434-9495-00e1c10a1404
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FProposed%20Amendment%20No.%202%20to%20Agreement%20for%C2%A0%20Lighthouse4Kids%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=2ce6ccf9-1495-4434-9495-00e1c10a1404
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733c62e186c4500542d1719%2FProposed%20Amendment%20No.%202%20to%20Agreement%20for%C2%A0%20Lighthouse4Kids%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=2ce6ccf9-1495-4434-9495-00e1c10a1404


CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT

By and Between

CITY OF CARSON

and

THE LIGHTHOUSE -HOME FOR MEDICALLY FRAGILE CHILDREN, INC., 
DBA THE LIGHTHOUSE



AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARSON AND

THE LIGHTHOUSE - HOME FOR MEDICALLY FRAGILE CHILDREN, INC., 

DBA THE LIGHTHOUSE

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES ( herein " Agreement") is made and

entered into this 3rd day of December, 2020 by and between the CITY OF CARSON, a California
municipal corporation (" City") and THE LIGHTHOUSE - HOME FOR MEDICALLY FRAGILE

CHILDREN, INC., a California domestic nonprofit corporation, dba THE LIGHTHOUSE

Consultant"). City and Consultant are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as " Party" and
hereinafter collectively referred to as the " Parties." 

RECITALS

A. City has sought, by issuance of a Request for Proposals or Invitation for Bids, the
performance of the services defined and described particularly in Article l of this Agreement. 

B. Consultant, following submission of a proposal or bid for the performance of the
services defined and described particularly in Article 1 of this Agreement, was selected by the City
to perform those services. 

C. Pursuant to the City ofCarson' s Municipal Code, City has authority to enter into and
execute this Agreement. 

D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Consultant for performance of those

services defined and described particularly in Article I of this Agreement and desire that the terms of
that performance be as particularly defined and described herein. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the
Parties and contained herein and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SERVICES OF CONSULTANT

1. 1 Scope of Services. 

In compliance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Consultant shall provide

those services specified in the " Scope of Services" attached hereto as Exhibit " A" and incorporated

herein by this reference, which may be referred to herein as the " services" or " work" hereunder. As a
material inducement to the City entering into this Agreement, Consultant represents and warrants
that it has the qualifications, experience, and facilities necessary to properly perform the services
required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent, and professional manner, and is

experienced in performing the work and services contemplated herein. Consultant shall at all times
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services
described herein. Consultant covenants that it shall follow the highest professional standards in

performing the work and services required hereunder and that all materials will be both of good

01007 0001 r6745201 4- 



quality as well as fit for the purpose intended. For purposes of this Agreement, the phrase " highest
professional standards" shall mean those standards ofpractice recognized by one or more first-class
firms performing similar work under similar circumstances. 

1. 2 Consultant' s Proposal. 

The Scope of Service shall include the Consultant' s scope of work or bid which shall be

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. In the event of any
inconsistency between the terms of such proposal and this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement
shall govern. 

1. 3 Compliance with Law. 

Consultant shall keep itself informed concerning, and shall render all services hereunder in
accordance with, all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules, and regulations of the City and any
Federal, State or local governmental entity having jurisdiction in effect at the time service is
rendered. 

1. 4 Licenses, Permits, Fees and Assessments. 

Consultant shall obtain at its sole cost and expense such licenses, permits and approvals as

may be required by law for the performance of the services required by this Agreement. Consultant
shall have the sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments and taxes, plus applicable penalties
and interest, which may be imposed by law and arise from or are necessary for the Consultant' s
performance of the services required by this Agreement, and shall indemnify, defend and hold
harmless City, its officers, employees or agents of City, against any such fees, assessments, taxes, 
penalties or interest levied, assessed or imposed against City hereunder. 

1. 5 Familiarity with Work. 

By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants that Consultant ( i) has thoroughly
investigated and considered the scope ofservices to be performed, (ii) has carefully considered how
the services should be performed, and ( iii) fully understands the facilities, difficulties and restrictions
attending performance of the services under this Agreement. If the services involve work upon any
site, Consultant warrants that Consultant has or will investigate the site and is or will be fully
acquainted with the conditions there existing, prior to commencement ofservices hereunder. Should
the Consultant discover any latent or unknown conditions, which will materially affect the
performance of the services hereunder, Consultant shall immediately inform the City of such fact
and shall not proceed except at Consultant' s risk until written instructions are received from the

Contract Officer. 

1. 6 Care of Work. 

The Consultant shall adopt reasonable methods during the life of the Agreement to furnish
continuous protection to the work, and the equipment, materials, papers, documents, plans, studies

and/ or other components thereof to prevent losses or damages, and shall be responsible for all such

damages, to persons or property, until acceptance of the work by City, except such losses or damages
as may be caused by City' s own negligence. 

01007,0001/ 6745203 - 2- 



1. 7 Further Responsibilities of Parties. 

Both parties agree to use reasonable care and diligence to perform their respective obligations

under this Agreement. Both parties agree to act in good faith to execute all instruments, prepare all

documents and take all actions as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes of this
Agreement. Unless hereafter specified, neither party shall be responsible for the service of the other. 

1. 8 Additional Services. 

City shall have the right at any time during the performance of the services, without
invalidating this Agreement, to order extra work beyond that specified in the Scope of Services or
make changes by altering, adding to or deducting from said work. No such extra work may be
undertaken unless a written order is first given by the Contract Officer to the Consultant, 
incorporating therein any adjustment in ( i) the Contract Sum for the actual costs of the extra work, 
and/ or ( ii) the time to perform this Agreement, which said adjustments are subject to the written

approval of the Consultant. Any increase in compensation of up to ten percent ( 10%) of the Contract

Sum or $25, 000, whichever is less; or, in the time to perform of up to one hundred eighty ( 180) days, 
may be approved by the Contract Officer. Any greater increases, taken either separately or
cumulatively, must be approved by the City Council. It is expressly understood by Consultant that
the provisions of this Section shall not apply to services specifically set forth in the Scope of
Services. Consultant hereby acknowledges that it accepts the risk that the services to be provided
pursuant to the Scope of Services may be more costly or time consuming than Consultant anticipates
and that Consultant shall not be entitled to additional compensation therefor. City may in its sole and
absolute discretion have similar work done by other contractors. No claims for an increase in the
Contract Sum or time for performance shall be valid unless the procedures established in this Section

are followed. 

1. 9 Snecial Requirements. 

Additional terms and conditions of this Agreement, ifany, which are made a part hereof are
set forth in the " Special Requirements" attached hereto as Exhibit " B" and incorporated herein by
this reference. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of Exhibit " B" and any other

provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit " B" shall govern. 

ARTICLE 2. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

2. 1 Contract Sum. 

Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Consultant the
amounts specified in the " Schedule of Compensation" attached hereto as Exhibit " C" and

incorporated herein by this reference. The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual
expenses, shall not exceed Zero Dollars ($ 0. 00) ( the " Contract Sum"). The Parties acknowledge that

Consultant is providing the services at no cost to City. 

2. 2 Method of Compensation. 

The method of compensation may include: ( i) a lump sum payment upon completion; ( ii) 

payment in accordance with specified tasks or the percentage of completion of the services, less

01007, 00011674520. 3 - 3- 



contract retention; ( iii) payment for time and materials based upon the Consultant' s rates as specified

in the Schedule of Compensation, provided that ( a) time estimates are provided for the performance

of sub tasks, ( b) contract retention is maintained, and (c) the Contract Sum is not exceeded; or (iv) 

such other methods as may be specified in the Schedule of Compensation. 

2. 3 Reimbursable Expenses. 

Compensation may include reimbursement for actual and necessary expenditures for
reproduction costs, telephone expenses, and travel expenses approved by the Contract Officer in
advance, or actual subcontractor expenses of an approved subcontractor pursuant to Section 4. 5, and

only if specified in the Schedule ofCompensation. The Contract Sum shall include the attendance of
Consultant at all project meetings reasonably deemed necessary by the City. Coordination of the
performance of the work with City is a critical component of the services. If Consultant is required
to attend additional meetings to facilitate such coordination, Consultant shall not be entitled to any
additional compensation for attending said meetings. 

2. 4 Invoices. 

Each month Consultant shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and
expenses incurred during the preceding month in a form approved by City' s Director of Finance. By
submitting an invoice for payment under this Agreement, Consultant is certifying compliance with
all provisions of the Agreement. The invoice shall detail charges for all necessary and actual
expenses by the following categories: labor (by sub -category), travel, materials, equipment, supplies, 
and sub -contractor contracts. Sub -contractor charges shall also be detailed by such categories. 
Consultant shall not invoice City for any duplicate services performed by more than one person. 

City shall independently review each invoice submitted by the Consultant to determine
whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this

Agreement. Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Consultant which
are disputed by City, or as provided in Section 7. 3, City will use its best efforts to cause Consultant
to be paid within forty- five ( 45) days of receipt of Consultant' s correct and undisputed invoice; 
however, Consultant acknowledges and agrees that due to City warrant run procedures, the City
cannot guarantee that payment will occur within this time period. In the event any charges or
expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City to Consultant for
correction and resubmission. Review and payment by City for any invoice provided by the
Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any rights or remedies provided herein or any applicable
law. 

2. 5 Waiver. 

Payment to Consultant for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed

to waive any defects in work performed by Consultant. 

ARTICLE 3. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE

3. 1 Time of Essence. 

Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

01007. 00 0 11674 5 2 0. 3 - 4- 



3. 2 Schedule of Performance. 

Consultant shall commence the services pursuant to this Agreement upon receipt of a written

notice to proceed and shall perform all services within the time period( s) established in the

Schedule of Performance" attached hereto as Exhibit " D" and incorporated herein by this reference. 
When requested by the Consultant, extensions to the time period( s) specified in the Schedule of
Performance may be approved in writing by the Contract Officer but not exceeding one hundred
eighty ( 180) days cumulatively. 

3. 3 Force Majeure. 

The time period( s) specified in the Schedule of Performance for performance of the services

rendered pursuant to this Agreement shall be extended because of any delays due to unforeseeable
causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Consultant, including, but not
restricted to, acts of God or of the public enemy, unusually severe weather, fires, earthquakes, 
floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, litigation, and/ or

acts of any governmental agency, including the City, if the Consultant shall within ten ( 10) days of
the commencement of such delay notify the Contract Officer in writing of the causes of the delay. 
The Contract Officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and extend the time for
performing the services for the period of the enforced delay when and if in the judgment of the
Contract Officer such delay is justified. The Contract Officer' s determination shall be final and
conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall Consultant be entitled to recover

damages against the City for any delay in the performance of this Agreement, however caused, 
Consultant' s sole remedy being extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

3. 4 Term. 

Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this Agreement, this Agreement

shall continue in full force and effect until completion of the services but not exceeding one ( 1) years
from the date hereof, except as otherwise provided in the Schedule of Performance Exhibit " D" . 

ARTICLE 4. COORDINATION OF WORK

4. 1 Representatives and Personnel of Consultant_ 

The following principals of Consultant (" Principals") are hereby designated as being the
principals and representatives of Consultant authorized to act in its behalf with respect to the work

specified herein and make all decisions in connection therewith: 

Lisa Amos Executive Director

Name) Title) 

Sarah Jackson Progam Director

Name) Title) 

Mary Ran ae Executive Secretary
Name) Title) 

It is expressly understood that the experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of the
foregoing principals were a substantial inducement for City to enter into this Agreement. Therefore, 

01007 4001. 674520 3 - 5- 



the foregoing principals shall be responsible during the term of this Agreement for directing all
activities ofConsultant and devoting sufficient time to personally supervise the services hereunder. 
All personnel of Consultant, and any authorized agents, shall at all times be under the exclusive
direction and control of the Principals. For purposes of this Agreement, the foregoing Principals may
not be replaced nor may their responsibilities be substantially reduced by Consultant without the
express written approval of City. Additionally, Consultant shall utilize only competent personnel to
perform services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall make every reasonable effort to
maintain the stability and continuity of Consultant' s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to
perform the services required under this Agreement. Consultant shall notify City ofany changes in
Consultant' s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to perform the services required under this
Agreement, prior to and during any such performance. 

4. 2 Status of Consultant. 

Consultant shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, or to incur any obligation, 
debt or Iiability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless
such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in
writing by City. Consultant steal l not at any time or in any manner represent that Consultant or any of
Consultant' s officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents
of City. Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant' s officers, employees or agents, shall obtain any
rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City' s
employees. Consultant expressly waives any claim Consultant may have to any such rights. 

4. 3 Contract Officer. 

The Contract Officer shall be Gloria Marroquin, Community Services Program Manager. It
shall be the Consultant' s responsibility to assure that the Contract Officer is kept informed of the
progress of the performance of the services and the Consultant shall refer any decisions which must
be made by City to the Contract Officer. Unless otherwise specified herein, any approval of City
required hereunder shall mean the approval of the Contract Officer. The Contract Officer shall have

authority, if specified in writing by the City Manager, to sign all documents on behalf of the City
required hereunder to carry out the terms of this Agreement. 

4.4 Independent Consultant. 

Neither the City nor any of its employees shall have any control over the manner, mode or
means by which Consultant, its agents or employees, perform the services required herein, except as
otherwise set forth herein. City shall have no voice in the selection, discharge, supervision or control
of Consultant' s employees, servants, representatives or agents, or in fixing their number, 
compensation or hours of service. Consultant shall perform all services required herein as an

independent contractor of City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent
contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role. Consultant shall not at any time
or in any manner represent that it or any of its agents or employees are agents or employees of City. 
City shall not in any way or for any purpose become or be deemed to be a partner of Consultant in its
business or otherwise or a joint venturer or a member of any joint enterprise with Consultant. 

01007, 0001/ 674520 3 - 6- 



4. 5 Prohibition Against Subcontracting or Assignment. 

The experience, knowledge, capability and reputation of Consultant, its principals and
employees were a substantial inducement for the City to enter into this Agreement. Therefore, 
Consultant shall not contract with any other entity to perform in whole or in part the services
required hereunder without the express written approval of the City. In addition, neither this

Agreement nor any interest herein may be transferred, assigned, conveyed, hypothecated or
encumbered voluntarily or by operation of law, whether for the benefit of creditors or otherwise, 
without the prior written approval of City. Transfers restricted hereunder shall include the transfer to
any person or group of persons acting in concert of more than twenty five percent ( 25%) of the

present ownership and/ or control of Consultant, taking all transfers into account on a cumulative
basis. In the event of any such unapproved transfer, including any bankruptcy proceeding, this
Agreement shall be void. No approved transfer shall release the Consultant or any surety of

Consultant of any liability hereunder without the express consent of City. 

ARTICLE 5. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

5. 1 Insurance Coverages_ 

The Consultant shall procure and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, in a form and content

satisfactory to City, during the entire term of this Agreement including any extension thereof, the
following policies of insurance which shall cover all elected and appointed officers, employees and
agents of City: 

a) General Liability Insurance ( Occurrence Form CGO001 or equivalent). A

policy of comprehensive general liability insurance written on a per occurrence basis for bodily
injury, personal injury and property damage. The policy of insurance shall be in an amount not less
than $ 1, 000, 000. 00 per occurrence or if a general aggregate limit is used, then the general aggregate

limit shall be twice the occurrence limit. 

b) Worker' s Compensation Insurance. A policy of worker' s compensation
insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the laws of the State of California and which
shall indemnify, insure and provide legal defense for the Consultant against any loss, claim or
damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by or
any persons retained by the Consultant in the course of carrying out the work or services
contemplated in this Agreement. 

c) Automotive Insurance ( Form CA 0001 ( Ed 1187) including " any auto' and
endorsement CA 0025 orequivalent). A policy of comprehensive automobile liability insurance
written on a per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage in an amount not less than

1, 000,000. Said policy shall include coverage for owned, non -owned, leased, hired cars and any
automobile. 

d) Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance appropriate to the
ConsuItant' s profession. This coverage may be written on a " claims made" basis, and must include
coverage for contractual liability. The professional liability insurance required by this Agreement
must be endorsed to be applicable to claims based upon, arising out of or related to services
performed under this Agreement. The insurance must be maintained for at least 5 consecutive years

01007. 0001/ 674520. 3 - 7- 



following the completion ofConsultant' s services or the termination of this Agreement. During this
additional 5 -year period, Consultant shall annually and upon request of the City submit written
evidence of this continuous coverage. 

e) Subcontractors. Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under

its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and certified endorsements for each subcontractor. 
All coverages for subcontractors shall include all of the requirements stated herein. 

f) Additional Insurance. Policies of such other insurance, as may be required in
the Special Requirements in Exhibit " B". 

5. 2 General Insurance Requirements. 

All ofthe above policies of insurance shall be primary insurance and shall name the City, its
elected and appointed officers, employees and agents as additional insureds and any insurance
maintained by City or its officers, employees or agents may apply in excess of, and not contribute
with Consultant' s insurance. The insurer is deemed hereof to waive all rights of subrogation and

contribution it may have against the City, its officers, employees and agents and their respective
insurers. Moreover, the insurance policy must specify that where the primary insured does not satisfy
the self-insured retention, any additional insured may satisfy the self-insured retention. 

All of said policies of insurance shall provide that said insurance may not be amended or
cancelled by the insurer or any party hereto without providing thirty (30) days prior written notice by
certified mail return receipt requested to the City. In the event any of said policies of insurance are
cancelled, the Consultant shall, prior to the cancellation date, submit new evidence of insurance in
conformance with Section 5. 1 to the Contract Officer. 

No work or services under this Agreement shall continence until the Consultant has provided

the City with Certificates of Insurance, additional insured endorsement forms or appropriate
insurance binders evidencing the above insurance coverages and said Certificates of Insurance or
binders are approved by the City. City reserves the right to inspect complete, certified copies of and
endorsements to all required insurance policies at any time. Any failure to comply with the reporting
or other provisions of the policies including breaches or warranties shall not affect coverage
provided to City. 

All certificates shall name the City as additional insured ( providing the appropriate

endorsement) and shall conform to the following "cancellation" notice: 

CANCELLATION: 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE

CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATED THEREOF, 

THE ISSUING COMPANY SHALL MAIL THIRTY ( 30) -DAY

ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE TO CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NAMED HEREIN. 

to be initialed] 

Co It t Initials

01007-0001/ 674520 3 - 8- 



City, its respective elected and appointed officers, directors, officials, employees, agents and
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities
Consultant performs; products and completed operations of Consultant; premises owned, occupied

or used by Consultant; or any automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Consultant. The
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope ofprotection afforded to City, and their
respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. Consultant' s insurance

shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At the
option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions
as respects City or its respective elected or appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers or
the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration, defense expenses and claims. The Consultant agrees that the requirement to provide

insurance shall not be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which the Consultant may be
held responsible for the payment of damages to any persons or property resulting from the
Consultant' s activities or the activities of any person or persons for which the Consultant is
otherwise responsible nor shall it limit the Consultant' s indemnification Iiabilities as provided in

Section 5. 3. 

In the event the Consultant subcontracts any portion of the work in compliance with Section
4.5 ofthis Agreement, the contract between the Consultant and such subcontractor shall require the

subcontractor to maintain the same policies of insurance that the Consultant is required to maintain

pursuant to Section 5. 1, and such certificates and endorsements shall be provided to City. 

5. 3 Indemnification. 

To the full extent permitted by law, Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
harmless the City, its officers, employees and agents (" Indemnified Parties") against, and will hold

and save them and each of them harmless from, any and all actions, either judicial, administrative, 
arbitration or regulatory claims, damages to persons or property, losses, costs, penalties, obligations, 
errors, omissions or liabilities whether actual or threatened ( herein " claims or liabilities") that may

be asserted or claimed by any person, firm or entity arising out of or in connection with the negligent
performance of the work, operations or activities provided herein of Consultant, its officers, 

employees, agents, subcontractors, or invitees, or any individual or entity for which Consultant is
legally liable (" indemnitors"), or arising from Consultant' s or indemnitors' reckless or willful
misconduct, or arising from Consultant' s or indemnitors' negligent performance of or failure to
perform any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement, and in connection therewith: 

a) Consultant will defend any action or actions filed in connection with any of
said claims or liabilities and will pay all costs and expenses, including legal costs and attorneys' fees
incurred in connection therewith; 

b) Consultant will promptly pay any judgment rendered against the City, its
officers, agents or employees for any such claims or liabilities arising out of or in connection with
the negligent performance of or failure to perform such work, operations or activities of Consultant

01007. 00011574520. 3



hereunder; and Consultant agrees to save and hold the City, its officers, agents, and employees
harmless therefrom; 

c) In the event the City, its officers, agents or employees is made a party to any
action or proceeding filed or prosecuted against Consultant for such damages or other claims arising
out ofor in connection with the negligent performance of or failure to perform the work, operation

or activities of Consultant hereunder, Consultant agrees to pay to the City, its officers, agents or
employees, any and all costs and expenses incurred by the City, its officers, agents or employees in
such action or proceeding, including but not limited to, legal costs and attorneys' fees. 

Consultant shall incorporate similar indemnity agreements with its subcontractors and if it
fails to do so Consultant shall be fully responsible to indemnify City hereunder therefore, and failure
of City to monitor compliance with these provisions shall not be a waiver hereof. This
indemnification includes claims or liabilities arising from any negligent or wrongful act, error or
omission, or reckless or willful misconduct of Consultant in the performance of professional services

hereunder. The provisions of this Section do not apply to claims or liabilities occurring as a result of
City' s sole negligence or willful acts or omissions, but, to the fullest extent permitted by law, shall
apply to claims and liabilities resulting in part from City' s negligence, except that design
professionals' indemnity hereunder shall be limited to claims and liabilities arising out of the
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the design professional. The indemnity obligation
shall be binding on successors and assigns of Consultant and shall survive termination of this
Agreement. 

5. 4 Sufficiency of Insurer. 

Insurance required by this Agreement shall be satisfactory only if issued by companies
qualified to do business in California, rated " A" or better in the most recent edition of Best Rating
Guide, The Key Rating Guide or in the Federal Register, and only if they are of a financial category
Class VII or better, unless such requirements are waived by the Risk Manager of the City (" Risk

Manager") due to unique circumstances. If this Agreement continues for more than 3 years duration, 

or in the event the risk manager determines that the work or services to be performed under this

Agreement creates an increased or decreased risk of loss to the City, the Consultant agrees that the
minimum limits of the insurance policies may be changed accordingly upon receipt of written notice
from the Risk Manager. 

ARTICLE 6. RECORDS, REPORTS, AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION

6. 1 Records. 

Consultant shall keep, and require subcontractors to keep, such ledgers, books of accounts, 
invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, reports, studies or other documents relating to the
disbursements charged to City and services performed hereunder (the " books and records"), as shall

be necessary to perform the services required by this Agreement and enable the Contract Officer to
evaluate the performance of such services. Any and all such documents shall be maintained in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be complete and detailed. The
Contract Officer shall have full and free access to such books and records at all times during normal
business hours of City, including the right to inspect, copy, audit and make records and transcripts

01007. 0001/ 6745203 - 10- 



from such records. Such records shall be maintained for a period of three ( 3) years following
completion of the services hereunder, and the City shall have access to such records in the event any
audit is required. In the event of dissolution of Consultant' s business, custody of the books and
records may be given to City, and access shall be provided by Consultant' s successor in interest. 
Notwithstanding the above, the Consultant shall fully cooperate with the City in providing access to
the books and records if a public records request is made and disclosure is required by law including
but not limited to the California Public Records Act. 

6. 2 Reports, 

Consultant shall periodically prepare and submit to the Contract Officer such reports
concerning the performance of the services required by this Agreement as the Contract Officer shall
require. Consultant hereby acknowledges that the City is greatly concerned about the cost of work
and services to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. For this reason, Consultant agrees that if

Consultant becomes aware of any facts, circumstances, techniques, or events that may or will
materially increase or decrease the cost of the work or services contemplated herein or, ifConsultant
is providing design services, the cost of the project being designed, Consultant shall promptly notify
the Contract Officer of said fact, circumstance, technique or event and the estimated increased or

decreased cost related thereto and, ifConsultant is providing design services, the estimated increased
or decreased cost estimate for the project being designed. 

6.3 Ownership of Documents. 

All drawings, specifications, maps, designs, photographs, studies, surveys, data, notes, 

computer files, reports, records, documents and other materials ( the " documents and materials") 

prepared by Consultant, its employees, subcontractors and agents in the performance of this
Agreement shall be the property of City and shall be delivered to City upon request of the Contract
Officer or upon the termination of this Agreement, and Consultant shall have no claim for further

employment or additional compensation as a result of the exercise by City of its full rights of

ownership use, reuse, or assignment of the documents and materials hereunder. Any use, reuse or
assignment of such completed documents for other projects and/ or use of uncompleted documents

without specific written authorization by the Consultant will be at the City' s sole risk and without
liability to Consultant, and Consultant' s guarantee and warranties shall not extend to such use, reuse
or assignment. Consultant may retain copies of such documents for its own use. Consultant shall
have the right to use the concepts embodied therein. All subcontractors shall provide for assignment

to City of any documents or materials prepared by them, and in the event Consultant fails to secure
such assignment, Consultant shall indemnify City for all damages resulting therefrom. Moreover, 
Consultant with respect to any documents and materials that may qualify as " works made for hire" 
as defined in 17 U.S. C. § 101, such documents and materials are hereby deemed " works made for
hire" for the City. 

6. 4 Confidentiality and Release of Information. 

a) All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the

public domain or already known to Consultant. Consultant shall not release or disclose any such

01007. 00011674520. 3 -) 1- 



information or work product to persons or entities other than City without prior written authorization
from the Contract Officer. 

b) Consultant, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, 

without prior written authorization from the Contract Officer or unless requested by the City
Attorney, voluntarily provide documents, declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, 
response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this
Agreement. Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered " voluntary" provided
Consultant gives City notice of such court order or subpoena. 

c) If Consultant, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Consultant, 
provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have the
right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and fees, including
attorneys fees, caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant' s conduct. 

d) Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, 

employees, agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of
deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery request, 
court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work performed there
under. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant or be present at any
deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with City and to
provide City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by
Consultant. However, this right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by
City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 

ARTICLE 7. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND TERMINATION

7. 1 California Law. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed both as to validity and to
performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Legal actions

concerning any dispute, claim or matter arising out of or in relation to this Agreement shall be
instituted in the Superior Court of the County of Los Angeles, State of California, or any other
appropriate court in such county, and Consultant covenants and agrees to submit to the personal
jurisdiction of such court in the event of such action. In the event of Iitigation in a U. S. District

Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in the County of Los Angeles, 
State of California. 

7. 2 Disputes: Default. 

In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the City shall not
have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Consultant for any work performed after the
date ofdefault. Instead, the City may give notice to Consultant of the default and the reasons for the
default. The notice shall include the timeframe in which Consultant may cure the default. This
timeframe is presumptively thirty ( 30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if
circumstances warrant. During the period of time that Consultant is in default, the City shall hold all
invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on the invoices. In the

alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or all of the outstanding invoices

01007. 00011674520. 3 - 12- 



during the period of default. If Consultant does not cure the default, the City may take necessary
steps to terminate this Agreement under this Article. Any failure on the part ofthe City to give notice
of the Consultant' s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City' s legal rights or any
rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 

7. 3 Retention of Funds. 

Consultant hereby authorizes City to deduct from any amount payable to Consultant (whether
or not arising out of this Agreement) ( i) any amounts the payment of which may be in dispute
hereunder or which are necessary to compensate City for any losses, costs, liabilities, or damages
suffered by City, and ( ii) all amounts for which City may be liable to third parties, by reason of
Consultant' s acts or omissions in performing or failing to perform Consultant' s obligation under this
Agreement. In the event that any claim is made by a third party, the amount or validity of which is
disputed by Consultant, or any indebtedness shall exist which shall appear to be the basis for a claim
of lien, City may withhold from any payment due, without liability for interest because of such
withholding, an amount sufficient to cover such claim. The failure of City to exercise such right to
deduct or to withhold shall not, however, affect the obligations of the Consultant to insure, 

indemnify, and protect City as elsewhere provided herein. 

7.4 Waiver. 

Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement
shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiver by any party of any
breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision or a
waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement. Acceptance by
City of any work or services by Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of
this Agreement. No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or remedy by a non -defaulting
party on any default shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver. Any waiver by
either party of any default must be in writing and shall not be a waiver of any other default
concerning the same or any other provision of this Agreement. 

7. 5 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative. 

Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this
Agreement, the rights and remedies ofthe parties are cumulative and the exercise by either party of
one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different
times, of any other rights or remedies for the same default or any other default by the other party. 

7. 6 Legal Action. 

In addition to any other rights or remedies, either party may take legal action, in law or in
equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to compel specific
performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or injunctive relief, or to obtain any other
remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any contrary provision
herein, Consultant shall file a statutory claim pursuant to Government Code Sections 905 et. seq. and
910 et. seq., in order to pursue a legal action under this Agreement. 

01007, 0001/ 674520. 3 . 11- 



7. 7 Termination Prior to Expiration of Term. 

This Section shall govern any termination of this Contract except as specifically provided in
the following Section for termination for cause. The City reserves the right to terminate this Contract
at any time, with or without cause, upon thirty ( 30) days' written notice to Consultant, except that
where termination is due to the fault of the Consultant, the period ofnotice may be such shorter time
as may be determined by the Contract Officer. In addition, the Consultant reserves the right to
terminate this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon sixty ( 60) days' written notice to
City, except that where termination is due to the fault of the City, the period ofnotice may be such
shorter time as the Consultant may determine. Upon receipt of any notice of termination, Consultant
shall immediately cease all services hereunder except such as may be specifically approved by the
Contract Officer. Except where the Consultant has initiated termination, the Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for all services rendered prior to the effective date of the notice of

termination and for any services authorized by the Contract Officer thereafter in accordance with the
Schedule of Compensation or such as may be approved by the Contract Officer, except as provided
in Section 7.3. In the event the Consultant has initiated termination, the Consultant shall be entitled

to compensation only for the reasonable value of the work product actually produced hereunder. In
the event of termination without cause pursuant to this Section, the terminating party need not

provide the non -terminating party with the opportunity to cure pursuant to Section 7. 2. 

7. 8 Termination for Default of Consultant. 

If termination is due to the failure of the Consultant to fulfill its obligations under this

Agreement, City may, after compliance with the provisions of Section 7. 2, take over the work and
prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and the Consultant shall be liable to the
extent that the total cost for completion of the services required hereunder exceeds the compensation

herein stipulated ( provided that the City shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate such damages), and
City may withhold any payments to the Consultant for the purpose of set- off or partial payment of
the amounts owed the City as previously stated. 

7. 9 Attorneys' Fees. 

If either party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend or made a party to any action
or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or
proceeding, in addition to any other relief which may be granted, whether legal or equitable, shall be
entitled to reasonable attorney' s fees. Attorney' s fees shall include attorney' s fees on any appeal, and
in addition a party entitled to attorney' s fees shall be entitled to all other reasonable costs for
investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery and all other necessary costs the court
allows which are incurred in such litigation. All such fees shall be deemed to have accrued on

commencement of such action and shall be enforceable whether or not such action is prosecuted to

judgment. 

ARTICLE 8. CITY OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES: NON- DISCRIMINATION

8. 1 Non -liability of City Officers and Employees. 

No officer or employee of the City shall be personally liable to the Consultant, or any
successor in interest, in the event of any default or breach by the City or for any amount which may

01007. 0001 `674520. 3 - 14- 



become due to the Consultant or to its successor, or for breach of any obligation of the terms of this
Agreement. 

8. 2 Conflict of Interest. 

Consultant covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall
acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests of
City or which would in any way hinder Consultant' s performance ofservices under this Agreement. 
Consultant further covenants that in the performance ofthis Agreement, no person having any such
interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express
written consent ofthe Contract Officer. Consultant agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or

the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the performance of this
Agreement. 

No officer or employee of the City shall have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement nor shall any such officer or employee participate in any decision relating to the
Agreement which affects her/ his financial interest or the financial interest of any corporation, 

partnership or association in which (s) he is, directly or indirectly, interested, in violation ofany State
statute or regulation. The Consultant warrants that it has not paid or given and will not pay or give

any third party any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement. 

8. 3 Covenant A ainst Discrimination. 

Consultant covenants that, by and for itself, its heirs, executors, assigns, and all persons
claiming under or through them, that there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of, any
person or group ofpersons on account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, gender, sexual orientation, 

marital status, national origin, ancestry or other protected class in the performance of this
Agreement. Consultant shall take affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that

employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, creed, religion, sex, 
gender, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry or other protected class. 

8. 4 Unauthorized Aliens. 

Consultant hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the Federal
Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U. S. C. A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, and in connection

therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein. Should Consultant so employ
such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/ or services covered by this Agreement, 
and should any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of unauthorized aliens, 
Consultant hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions
imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorneys' fees, incurred by City. 

ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9. 1 Notices. 

Any notice, demand, request, document, consent, approval, or communication either party
desires or is required to give to the other party or any other person shall be in writing and either
served personally or sent by prepaid, first- class mail, in the case of the City, to the City Manager and

01007, 0001/ 674520. 3 - 15- 



to the attention of the Contract Officer ( with her/ his name and City title), City of Carson, 701 East
Carson, Carson, California 90745 and in the case of the Consultant, to the person( s) at the address

designated on the execution page of this Agreement. Either party may change its address by
notifying the other party of the change ofaddress in writing. Notice shall be deemed communicated
at the time personally delivered or in seventy- two ( 72) hours from the time of mailing if mailed as
provided in this Section. 

9. 2 Interpretation. 

The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaning of the
language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of
this Agreement or any other rule of construction which might otherwise apply. 

9. 3 Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original, and such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

9. 4 Integration; Amendment. 

This Agreement including the attachments hereto is the entire, complete and exclusive
expression of the understanding of the parties. It is understood that there are no oral agreements
between the parties hereto affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels any
and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, between the
parties, and none shall be used to interpret this Agreement. No amendment to or modification of this

Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Consultant and by the City
Council. The parties agree that this requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that

any attempted waiver shall be void. 

9. 5 Severability. 

In the event that any one or more of the phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or sections
contained in this Agreement shall be declared invalid or unenforceable by a valid judgment or decree
of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any of the
remaining phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or sections of this Agreement which are hereby
declared as severable and shall be interpreted to carry out the intent of the parties hereunder unless
the invalid provision is so material that its invalidity deprives either party of the basic benefit oftheir
bargain or renders this Agreement meaningless. 

9. 6 Warranty & Representation of Non -Collusion. 

No official, officer, or employee of City has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement, nor shall any official, officer, or employee of City participate in any decision relating to
this Agreement which may affect his/ her financial interest or the financial interest of any
corporation, partnership, or association in which ( s) he is directly or indirectly interested, or in
violation of any corporation, partnership, or association in which ( s) he is directly or indirectly
interested, or in violation of any State or municipal statute or regulation. The determination of

Financial interest" shall be consistent with State law and shall not include interests found to be

01007, 00011674520. 3 - 16- 



remote" or " non -interests" pursuant to Government Code Sections 1091 or 1091. 5. Consultant

warrants and represents that it has not paid or given, and will not pay or give, to any third party
including, but not limited to, any City official, officer, or employee, any money, consideration, or
other thing of value as a result or consequence of obtaining or being awarded any agreement. 
Consultant further warrants and represents that (s) he/ it has not engaged in any act(s), omission( s), or
other conduct or collusion that would result in the payment of any money, consideration, or other

thing ofvalue to any third party including, but not limited to, any City official, officer, or employee, 
as a result of consequence ofobtaining or being awarded any agreement. Consultant is aware of and
understands that any such act( s), omission( s) or other conduct resulting in such payment of money, 
consideration, or other thing of value will render this Agreement void and of no force or effect. 

Consultant' s Authorized Initial / 1

9. 7 Corporate Authority. 

The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that ( i) such
party is duly organized and existing, ( ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this
Agreement on behalf of said party, ( iii) by so executing this Agreement, such party is formally
bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and ( iv) the entering into this Agreement does not violate
any provision of any other Agreement to which said party is bound. This Agreement shall be binding
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

01007. 00011674520. 3 -- 



L WTF,NM WHEREOF, t1m pales h= t3 Pave tEds 1 F= mnak cstfzr- d&:( s) 

and ya s) set faith bduw, i n that dis Agra= ant. be effcaim an Deoemb-- 

3r

APPROVED AS TO FORK

AL HUE & 
W

YNDM LLP

Smny K &&=L City Atlorncy
BRJI

it 1

ecewtlpe. r 2[ , 2MO

CONSMTA1 '= 

THE LIGHTHOUSE HOME FOR MEDICALLY

FRAGILE CHILDREN, INC. 

6y:2 Lisa

Title= Presid= WExecutive Director

r: P

Date: lb - Ig , 2020

Address- 30845 Buming Tree Drive
Canyon Lake, CA 92587

Two corpmrate aiBCer s4patmres regoired when Coasattamt is a corporation, with we sipature required from each of the

fagowinggroaps: l) Chairman oftheBoard. President orany Vice aad2) Secretary, a" AWsb tSecretary. Chief
Fina cial Officer or any Assislaut Treasurer. CONSULTANTS SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND
APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF
INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONSAPPLICABLETO CONSULTANTS BUSINESS ENTITY. 

nium 0MV67ts2D3 - 19- 



CALIFORNIA ALL- PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

R1tlel's10r. 
COUNTY OF b6 ' A . 

On OCT I'9 2020 before me, A1, T_ , ,{ personally appeared( 1ji , proved to me on the

basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( g) whose namesks) is/ am subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that * e/ she/ tJerexecuted the same in h46/ her/ Oreir authorized capacity( fes), and that by4 is/ her44& i-r
signature( on the instrument the person($), or the entity upon behalf of which the person( 4 acted, executed the
instrument. 

1 certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true
and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
paroPuN t. aG"

N1111
otary Public - Californiaor

Riverside County

Signature:
Commission p 2274141

My Comm. EApires Jan 30, 2023

OPTIONAL

Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could
prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT

INDIVIDUAL

CORPORATE OFFICER

10
TITLE( S) 

PARTNER( S)  LIMITED

GENERAL

ATTORNEY- IN- FACT

TRUSTEE( S) 

GUARDIAN/ CONSERVATOR

OTHER

SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 

NAME OF PERSON( S) OR ENTITY( IES)) 

01007 04011674520,3

TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT

NUMBER OF PAGES

DATE OF DOCUMENT

SIGNER( S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Q r v4asfd% 
COUNTY OF LGEL-ES

On / D , 2020 before me, L 1 SA- Am o5 personally appeared , proved to me on the

basis f satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) whose names( s) islare subscrib d to th within instrument and
acknowledged to me that Wshelthey executed the same in# is/ hcrAhemir-authorized capacity( ies), and that by his/ her/ their
signature( s) on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the persolix acted, executed the
instrument. 

1 certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true
and correct..` °' • LISA AMOS

4r COMM # 2322918 z
WITNESS my nd and cial seal. ° s : RIVERSIDE County

California Notary Publi
Signatur .+ c swn° Comm Exp March 1, 2024

OPTIONAL

Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could
prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER

INDIVIDUAL

CORPORATE OFFICER

TITLE( S) 

PARTNER( S)  LIMITED

GENERAL

ATTORNEY- IN- FACT

TRUSTEE( S) 

GUARDIAN/ CONSERVATOR

OTHER

SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 

NAME OF PERSON( S) OR ENTITY( IES)) 

01007. 0001/ 674520. 3

DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT

eb r r ua - i
TITLE & OR TYPE OF DOC ENT

NUMBER OF PAGES

DATE OF DOCUMENT

SIGNER( S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE



I. 

EXHIBIT " A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant will perform the following Services: 

A. GENERAL OVERVIEW - MEAL AND SNACK SERVICES FOR SUMMER
AND AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS

Contractor shall provide, on an as -needed basis, food services (preparation and delivery of
lunch and supper meals and snacks) for the City' s youth Summer and Afterschool programs
in accordance with this Exhibit " A." Services shall be provided in an unbiased and

professional manner and in compliance with applicable USDA nutritional requirements for

Child Food Programs for ages 6- 13, as may be amended from time to time ( see Federal
Register Vol. 81, No. 29, available at https:/ iwww.govinfo. aov/ content/ pkg/ FR- 2016- 04- 
25/ pdf/2016- 09412.nd(). 

It is estimated that during non- COVID pandemic/ emergency times, Consultant will be
required to prepare and deliver approximately 28, 000 lunches and 32, 000 snacks
cumulatively during the summer months ( i. e. per Summer Program year, beginning in mid- 
June and continuing through mid-August) and 20, 000 suppers and 24, 000 snacks

cumulatively during the school year ( i.e. per Afterschool Program year, beginning in mid- 
August and continuing through mid-June) pursuant to this Agreement. However, as provided
in more detail in subsection ( B) of this Section 1, these figures are merely estimates, and

actual services will be based on City' s need, as determined and requested by the Contract
Officer. As of the effective date of this Agreement, it is unknown how the continued effects

ofthe COVID pandemic will affect the foregoing estimates. All services shall be performed
in accordance with this Exhibit " A," including but not limited to the " Specifications" set
forth in subparagraph ( 13)( 7) of this Section I, below. 

B. DESCRIPTION OF FOOD DISTRIBUTION SERVICES

The following table enumerates the Summer and Afterschool Program
locations to which meals and snacks may be required to be delivered
pursuant to this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement ( the " Centers"): 

Location Address

Anderson Park 19101 S. Wilmington Avenue, Carson, CA

90746

Calas Park 1000 E. 220th Street, Carson, CA 90745

Carriage Crest Park 23800 S. Figueroa Street, Carson, CA 90745

Carson Park 21411 S. Orrick Avenue, Carson, CA 90745

Del Amo Park 703 E. Del Amo Boulevard, Carson, CA

90746

01007. 00011674520 3 A- 1



2. 

Dolphin Park 21205 Water Street, Carson, CA 90745

Dominguez Park 21330 Santa Fe Avenue, Carson, CA 90810

James M. Foisia Park 23410 Catskill Avenue, Carson, CA 90745

Hemingway Park 700 E. Gardena Boulevard, Carson, CA 90746

Mills Park 1340 E. Diamondale Drive, Carson, 90746

Stevenson Park 17400 Lysander Drive, Carson, CA 90746

Veterans Park 22400 Moneta Avenue, Carson, CA 90745

The City reserves the right to add or remove Centers by request of the
Contract Officer and without the need for amendment to this Agreement. The

Contract Officer shall notify Consultant of any such changes not less than
one week prior to the first required date of service to the adjusted list of
Centers. 

Requirement Contract. 

a) This Agreement is a requirement contract for the services specified

herein. The quantities of meals or food services specified hereinabove

are estimates only, and no meals or food services are purchased
hereby. City shall not be obligated to place any minimum amount or
number of orders for meals or food services. The utilization of

Consultant for the services pursuant to this Agreement will be

dependent upon the needs and requirements of the City, as

determined by the Contract Officer. Failure of City to order services
in the amounts or quantities estimated herein shall not constitute a

basis for any compensation payment or adjustment under this
Agreement. 

b) City shall not be limited to the estimates specified herein in ordering
meals or food services from Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. 

Services shall be provided as necessary to meet the needs of the

City' s Summer and Afterschool Programs with respect to lunch and
supper meals and snacks, as determined and requested by the
Contract Officer. 

c) City may issue orders requiring delivery of meals and snacks by
Consultant at multiple Centers simultaneously. 

d) All services shall be provided in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations prescribed by the United States Department of

Agriculture (" USDA") and the California Department of Education

CDE") ( including, without limitation, applicable regulatory

guidance provided at https:// www.cde.ca. gov/ ls.,'nu/ cc), as may be
amended from time to time. 

01007. 0001/ 674520. 3 A- 2



3. Pricing. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the services will be
provided by Consultant using grant funding from the USDA food and
nutrition service, which grant program is administered by CDE, and that the
services will thus be provided at no cost to the City pursuant to this
Agreement. As such, the Parties acknowledge and agree that Consultant is

bound to comply with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and
requirements as necessary to continue its access to such grant funding
throughout the term of this Agreement, and that Consultant is subject to

auditing by CDE or other applicable State authorities for compliance with
such grant requirements. In the event that compliance with any such
regulation or requirement conflicts with any provision of this Agreement
such that Consultant' s compliance with such requirement would constitute a

default under this Agreement, Consultant shall notify the Contract Officer of
the nature of the conflict as soon as reasonably possible, and the Parties will
cooperate reasonably toward entering into a mutually agreeable amendment
to this Agreement that will facilitate Consultant' s ability to comply with the
applicable regulation( s) or grant requirement( s). The Parties acknowledge

and agree that Consultant will be considered an authorized sponsor of the

City pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of Consultant maintaining or
re -applying for said grant funding as may be necessary throughout the term
of this Agreement. 

4. Provision of Meals and Snacks; Menu Change Procedure. Consultant

shall provide meals and snacks on a daily basis while Summer and
Afterschool programs are in effect, in accordance with the schedule set forth

in Section I of Exhibit " D." Deviation from said schedule shall be permitted

only upon authorization of the Contract Officer. The Contract Officer may
periodically request menu changes or special dietary accommodations (e.g., 
vegetarian meals). When an emergency or unforeseen situation prevents
Consultant from providing or delivering a specified type of food or meal
component contemplated by a monthly menu provided pursuant to Section
IILA of this Exhibit, Consultant' s Contract Representative shall notify the
Contract Officer of the issue as soon as reasonably possible, and the two
officers shall cooperate reasonably toward finding and selecting a mutually
agreeable temporary substitution. 

5. Orders for Delivery of Meals and Snacks. Delivery ofall meals and snacks
will be provided by Consultant pursuant to and in accordance with orders
placed by the City, via its Contract Officer ( or his or her designee). The

Contract Officer will order meals and snacks on Tuesday of the week

preceding the week ofdelivery. Orders will be placed for the total number of
days in the relevant week ( i. e. the week subsequent to the week during which
the order is placed), and will include breakdown totals for each Center and

each type of meal or snack. The City reserves the right to increase or
decrease the number of meals and snacks ordered upon 24 hours' advance

notice to Consultant ( or less if mutually agreed upon between the Contract
Officer and Consultant' s Contract representative). 

01007.0001/ 674520.3 A- 3



fi. NoncompIiance. The City reserves the right to inspect and determine the
quality of all food provided or delivered pursuant to this Agreement and to
reject any meals or snacks that do not comply with this Agreement. 
Consultant shall not be permitted to make unauthorized menu changes, 

deliver incomplete meals, deliver meals outside the specified delivery time
period, or deliver meals that do not comply with the specifications or other
applicable provisions set forth in this Agreement. The City reserves the right
to obtain meals from other sources if meals are rejected due to any of the

foregoing reasons, and Consultant shall be responsible for any cost incurred
by City in doing so. The Contract Officer or City representative inspecting
shall notify Consultant in writing, for any meals rejected, of the number of
meals rejected and the reasons for rejection. 

7. Specifications. 

a) Packaging. 

i) Hot meal unit packaging shall be suitable for maintaining
meals in accordance with local health standards. Containers

and overlay shall have an airtight closure, be of non- toxic
material, and be capable of withstanding temperatures of
400° F ( 204° C) or higher. 

ii) Cold meal unit or unnecessary -to -heat containers and overlay
shall be plastic or paper and be of non- toxic material. 

iii) Cartons - each carton shall be labeled, and the label shall

include: 

A) The processor' s ( plant) name and address; 

B) Item identity and meal type; 

C) Date of production; and

D) Quantity of individual units per carton. 

iv) All meals shall be delivered with the following non- food
items: condiments, straws, napkins, single service ware, etc. 

b) Food Preparation. Meals shall be prepared under properly controlled
temperatures and assembled not more than 24 hours prior to delivery. 

c) Food Specifications. Meals shall consist of five ( 5) food components: 

one ( 1) grain, one ( 1) protein, one ( 1) fruit, one ( 1) vegetable, and

one ( 1) dairy. Snacks shall consist of two ( 2) of the foregoing five
5) food components. Portions shall be as specified by USDA/ CDE

regulations or grant requirements and as required in this Agreement. 

01007. 00011674520. 3 A-4



All meat and meat products, except sausage products, shall have been

slaughtered, processed, and manufactured in plants inspected under a

USDA -approved inspection program, and shall bear the appropriate

seal. Upon delivery, all meat and meat products must be sound, 
sanitary, and free of objectionable odors or signs of deterioration. 
Options for vegetarian and special diet meals will be made available

upon request. 

d) Product Specifications. " Milk and milk products" are defined as

fluid types of pasteurized flavored or unflavored whole milk or

low fat milk, or skim milk or cultured buttermilk, which meets State

and local standards for such milk..." All milks and milk products

provided or delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall conform to the

foregoing definitions. 

Delivery Requirements. 

a) Deliveries shall be made by Consultant to the applicable Center( s) 
and in accordance with the applicable order from the City. 

b) All meals and snacks ordered shall be delivered, unloaded, and placed

in the kitchen of the designated Center by the time( s) specified in the
order. 

c) Adequate refrigeration or heating shall be provided during
transportation and delivery to ensure the wholesomeness of all meals
and snacks at delivery in accordance with applicable federal, state
and local regulations and grant requirements. 

d) Any changes in transportation costs arising from any adjustment to
the list ofCenters will be borne by Consultant and not charged to the
City. 

e) On field trip days, Consultant may be required, at no additional cost
to City, to deliver meals and snacks to the Centers at alternate
delivery times, as may be requested by the Contract Officer, in order
to facilitate transportation of the meals and snacks to the field trip
locations by City and/or program participants. 

f) The Contract Officer, upon 24 hours' advance notice to Consultant, 

may require Consultant to prepare and deliver meals to be distributed
to children at special events outside of the regular schedule or Centers

specified in this Agreement. 

Equipment. Consultant shall provide the following items of equipment and
supplies to Centers as needed, pursuant to request of the Contract Officer and

at no additional cost to City: ( i) documentation binder; ( ii) food thermometer; 

iii) refrigerator thermometer; ( iv) hot box warmer; and ( v) refrigerator. 

01007.00011674520.3 A- 5



10. Trainings. Consultant shall conduct training sessions for City staff, annually
or at other intervals as requested by the Contract Officer, for the purpose of
training City staff to properly serve and distribute meals prepared or
delivered by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, and to properly
document same in accordance with applicable federal, state and local

regulations and grant requirements. 

11. Food Tasting. As requested by the Contract Officer, Consultant shall
facilitate periodic food tasting by City of meals and snacks to be provided
pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. Supervision and Inspection. Consultant shall provide management

supervision at all times while providing the services, and shall maintain

constant/ regular quality control inspections to check for portion size, 
appearance, and packaging, in addition to the quality of all food products and
components provided pursuant to this Agreement. 

13. Record Keeping

a) Consultant shall prepare three ( 3) transport records - one for

Consultant, one for Center personnel, and one for the Contract

Officer. Transport records shall be itemized to show the number of

meals/ snacks of each type delivered to each Center. Designees of the

City at each Center will check the adequacy of the delivery and the
meals before signing the transport record. 

b) Consultant shall maintain adequate transport records, purchase order

records, production records, delivery records, and inspection records
as necessary to document compliance with this Agreement and
applicable laws and regulations. 

c) The books and records of Consultant pertaining to the services
provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be available for City
review and inspection, upon request of the Contract Officer and at

any reasonable time and place, for a period of three ( 3) years from the
date of expiration or termination this Agreement, or until the final

resolution of any audits or inspections of Consultant conducted by
applicable state and federal authorities, whichever is later. 

d) Consultant shall provide reports on meals provided or delivered as

requested by the Contract Officer for City presentations. 

14. Inspection of Facility

a) The City ( without limitation as to applicable CDE and USDA

inspection rights) has the right, but not the obligation, to inspect the

facilities where meals or snacks are prepared or delivered pursuant to

this Agreement without notice at any time, and to be present during

01007. 00011674520. 3 A- 6



preparation and delivery meals and snacks pursuant to this
Agreement. 

b) The Parties acknowledge and agree that Consultant' s facilities are

subject to periodic inspections for compliance with USDA/ CDE

regulations and/or other applicable laws and regulations by the
USDA, the CDE/any other agency designated to inspect meal quality
for the State, and applicable local health authorities. 

c) Consultant shall arrange for the meals and snacks it prepares pursuant

to this Agreement to be periodically inspected by the applicable local
health department or an independent agency to determine bacteria
levels in the meals and snacks being prepared, transported, and
delivered. Such levels shall conform to the standards which are

applied by the applicable local health authority with respect to the
level of bacteria which may be present in meals served by other
establishments in the local jurisdiction. 

d) Upon commencement of this Agreement, Consultant shall provide

City with a copy of its health certification for all food service
facilities in which it will prepare meals and/ or snacks pursuant to this

Agreement. 

15. Number of Meals and Delivery Times. Consultant shall provide/deliver the
exact number ofmeals requested/ ordered. Counts of meals will be made at all

applicable Centers before meals are accepted. Damaged or incomplete meals

shall not be included for purposes of determining compliance with this
paragraph. 

16. Emergencies. In the event of unforeseen emergency circumstances
preventing Consultant from performing the services, notwithstanding

anything in Section 3. 3 of this Agreement to the contrary, Consultant shall, as
soon as reasonably possible, notify the Contract Officer in writing of the
following: ( a) any on- time performance or delivery that is rendered
impossible by the emergency circumstances; ( b) the circumstance( s) 

precluding such performance or delivery; and ( c) whether and to what extent
subsequent services or deliveries will be affected. In such event, City may
secure meals and snacks by other means to replace Consultant' s services for
the duration of the emergency period or the period in which Consultant is
unable to perform, and Consultant shall reimburse the City for the cost of the
meals and snacks secured by the City by such other means. 

I!_ As part of the Services, Consultant will prepare and deliver the following tangible work
products to the City: 

A. See Exhibit D, Section II

01007.40011674520 3 A- 7



III. In addition to the requirements of Section 6.2, during performance of the Services, 
Consultant will keep the City appraised of the status of performance by delivering the
following status reports: 

A. Monthly menus, inclusive of meal selections and any component substitutions. 

B. Detailed reports at the conclusion of each program year ( separately for Summer
Program and Afterschool Program years if requested by the Contract Officer), or

more frequently as requested by the Contract Officer, demonstrating the number of
meals provided ( itemized by lunches, suppers and snacks) for the relevant program
year along with the dollar value of the meals provided. 

IV. All work product is subject to review and acceptance by the City, and must be revised
by the Consultant without additional charge to the City until found satisfactory and
accepted by City. 

V. Consultant will utilize the following personnel to accomplish the Services: 

A. Lisa Amos, Executive Director

B. Sarah Jackson, Program Director

C. Mary Range, Secretary

D. Subcontractors: 

City recognizes that Consultant will use subcontractors to provide the
prepackaged food Consultant delivers to City pursuant to this Agreement. 
Consultant is solely responsible for the subcontractors' preparation, handling, 
and transportation of food products that Consultant delivers to City pursuant
to this Agreement. 

2. Preferred Meal Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Revolution Foods, 

Inc., a Delaware corporation, are authorized subcontractors hired by
Consultant to prepare and deliver food pursuant to this Agreement. 

01007.00011674520. 3 A- 



EXHIBIT cc$ H

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Superseding Contract Boilerplate) 

added text shown in bold italics. deletions in strikethrough): 

I. Section 1. 8 ( Additional Services) is stricken in its entirety because this is a zero -cost
contract and the Contract Officer shall not expand Consultant' s services beyond those that

may be provided pursuant to Exhibit " A." 

II. Section 2. 2 ( Method of Compensation) is stricken in its entirety because this is a zero - 
cost contract. 

III. Section 2.3 ( Reimbursable Expenses) is stricken in its entirety because this is a zero - 
cost contract. 

IV. Section 2. 4 ( Invoices) is stricken in its entirety because this is a zero -cost contract. 

V. Section 3. 4 ( Term) is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

3. 4 Term

Unless earlier terminated in accordance with Article 7 of this Agreement, this

Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until completion of the services but

not exceeding three ( 3) ene-( 1-) years from the date hereof, except as otherwise

provided in the Schedule of Performance ( Exhibit 1131). At City' s option, and upon
execution of a written amendment ( duly approved by City) to this Agreement, the
initial three- year term may be extended by tip to two ( 2) one-year extension
periods." 

VI. Section 7. 2 ( Disputes; Default) is hereby amended to read in its entirety as
follows: 

7. 2 Disputes; Default

In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the City
shall not have any obligation or duty to compensate
Consultant for any work performed after the date of default. Instead, the City may
give notice to Consultant of the default and the reasons for the default. The notice

shall include the timeframe in which Consultant may cure the default. This
timeframe is presumptively thirty ( 30) days, but may be extended, though not
reduced, if circumstances warrant. Pufing ! he period ef time that Gensultan! is in
default, the / ity shall hold all inveiees and _sh ll; Arlhan the deafuk : ff-ed pfeeeed

If

Consultant does not cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate
this Agreement under this Article. Any failure on the part of the City to give notice

01007.00011674520 3 B- 1



of the Consultant' s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City' s
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement." 

VII. Section 7. 7 ( Termination Prior to Expiration of Term) is hereby amended to
read in its entirety as follows: 

7. 7 Termination Prior to Expiration of Term. 

This Section shall govern any termination of this Contract except as specifically
provided in the following Section for termination for cause. The City reserves the
right to terminate this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon thirty (30) 
days' written notice to Consultant, except that where termination is due to the fault of

the Consultant, the period of notice may be such shorter time as may be determined
by the Contract Officer. In addition, the Consultant reserves the right to terminate
this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon sixty (60) days' written notice
to City, except that where termination is due to the fault of the City, the period of
notice may be such shorter time as the Consultant may determine. Upon receipt of
any notice of termination, Consultant shall immediately cease all services hereunder
except such as may be specifically approved by the Contract Officer. Regardless
which Party initiates termination of this Agreement, the Consultant shall not be
entilled to compensation for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. ENeept

where the Gensultant h—es in-it-i-sted- ieFminatien, the Consultant shall be entitled to

In the event of

termination without cause pursuant to this Section, the terminating party need not
provide the non -terminating party with the opportunity to cure pursuant to Section
7. 2." 

VIII. Section 7.8 ( Termination for Default of Consultant) is hereby amended to read in its
entirety as follows: 

7. 8 Termination for Default of Consultant. 

If termination is due to the failure of the Consultant to fulfill its obligations under

this Agreement, City may, after compliance with the provisions of Section 7. 2, take
over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and

tl. el. d ...,......., meats to the Consultant fthe puTese ef se: effer- paAial payment

of the a .., ts owed the Gity a pFevieusly
slated." 

01007. 00011674520. 3 $- 2



EXHIBIT " C" 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION

I. Consultant shall perform the following tasks at the following rates: 

UNIT TOTAL

MEAL TYPE ESTIMATED ESTIMATED PRICE PRICE

SERVINGS NUMBER OF COST COST

PER DAY SERVING TO TO

DAYS CITY) CITY) 

A. Lunch 950 49 0 0

B. Snack 600 49 0 0

C. Supper 675 184 0 0

Grand 0* 

Total

Consultant is funded by grants, and provides and delivers pre- packaged meals and snacks to
the City at no cost for City to distribute to children in its Summer and Afterschool programs. 

II. A retention of ten percent ( 10%) shall be held from each payment as a contract

retention to be paid as part of the final payment upon satisfactory completion of
services. NOT APPLICABLE

III. Within the budgeted amounts for each Task, and with the approval of the Contract

Officer, funds may be shifted from one Task sub -budget to another so long as the
Contract Sum is not exceeded per Section 2. 1, unless Additional Services are approved

per Section 1. 8. NOT APPLICABLE

IV. The City will compensate Consultant for the Services performed upon submission of a
valid invoice. Each invoice is to include: 

NOT APPLICABLE

V. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $ 0. 00, as provided in Section

2. 1 of this Agreement. 

VI. The ConsuItant' s billing rates for all personnel are attached as Exhibit C- 1. 

NOT APPLICABLE

01007.0001/ 674520.3 - 1



EXHIBIT " D" 

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE

I. Consultant shall perform all services timely in accordance with the following schedule: 

Days of Performance Times of Performance

A. Task A (Lunches) Mondays through Fridays** Per Contract Officer Request

B. Task B ( Snacks) Mondays through Fridays** Per Contract Officer Request

C. Task C ( Suppers) Mondays through Fridays** Per Contract Officer Request

Meals and snacks are to be made available to City by Consultant each day while Summer
and Afterschool Programs are in effect, unless otherwise requested by the Contract Officer. 
Summer Programs generally run from mid- June to mid- August. Afterschool Programs
generally run from mid- August to mid- June. Deliveries of meals and snacks shall be made
only pursuant to City orders, on such days and times as specified in the relevant order. 

II. Consultant shall deliver the following tangible work products to the City in accordance
with the schedule set forth in Section I of this Exhibit " D": 

A. Approved Lunches ( 5 components) 

B. Approved Snacks ( 2 components) 

C. Approved Suppers ( 5 components) 

D. All required serving utensils and condiments, as provided in this Agreement. 

III. The Contract Officer may approve extensions for performance of the services in
accordance with Section 3. 2. 

01007. 0001/ 674520 3 D- 1



ACOR ID® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE IMMIDDMYYYI

12/ 1/ 2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERS), AUTHORiZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such andorsement( s). 

PRODUCER

HAUSER

5905 E. Galbraith Rd, Ste 9000
Cincinnati OH 45236

241 CT Nan_q Santho
PHONE FAX

A14, m9 Extlh 513- 745- 9200 Arc No): 

ADDRESS: nsanlh0 thehause rou . cam
INSURER( S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC 0

INSURER A : Travelers Property Casualty CO of America 25674

INSURER 13; Accetance Indemnity Insurance CompanyINSURED REVOFOO- 01

Revolution Foods, Inc. 
965 3rd 5t iNSURERC: Pennsylvania Manufacturers Association Insurance C 12262

INSURER[): Oakland CA 94607

INSURER E: 

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: RR7755717 REVISION NLIMBER- 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE SEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE I POLICY NUMBER MAOI QCDYIYYYY MOM1uDDYlY£YYif LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y -630 - 2R300867 - TIL - 20 811/ 2020 8/ 1/ 2021 1 EACHOCCURRENCE 51. 000. 000

1. 2/ 10/ 2020

TO 1tEir EO
CLAIMS - MADE  OCCUR PREM SES IEa ocrenca) S100. 000w

MED EXP IAny onepersom $ 5.000

PERSONAL 8 ADV IN. L RY _ $ 1. 000000

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE s2. 000000

POLICY  jEC7 LOC PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AUG S 2. 000. 000

OTHER 5

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 810 -2R307936 -20- 14- G 8/ 1/ 2020 811/ 2021
COMBINED SINGLELIMIT

I S1000, ODOEa accident) 

BODILY INJURY ( Per person, SANY AUTO

BODILYINJURY( Peracadent% 5

JX

AUTO5OWNEDSCHEDULED
NLYAUTOSHIREDX NON -OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE S

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per

accidentHired/NanOwn X HNO DED $ 1K
B X UMBRELLA LIAR X OCCUR EMM000035000 811! 2020 811/ 2021 EACH OCCURRENCE S 2, 000, 000

AGGREGATE S2. 000. 000EXCESS LIAR CLAIMS -MADE

DED RETENTIONS S

C WORKERS COMPENSATION 2020751265495 8/ 1/ 2020 811! 2021 ' X i PER OTH. 

LAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y 1 N II

TAT ' € R _ 

ANYPROPRIETORAIARTNERIEXECUTIVEE L EACH ACCIDENT S 1, 000. 000
OFFICERI1VIEMBEREXCLUDED4 F- 1 NIA
Mandatory In NN) E L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE, S 1, 000.000

It yyes, descnbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT I S 1. 000. 000

i I

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS I VEHICLES ( ACORO 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is requiredl
Lighthouse, City of Carson, its elected and appointed officers, employees, volunteers and agents are included as an additional insured with respects to General
Liability and Auto Liability coverage as requested by written contract subject to policy terms, conditions and exclusions Waiver of Subrogation In favor of
additional insured as respects General Liability, Auto Liability and Workers Compensation coverage as required by written contract subject to policy terms, 
conditions, and exclusions where applicable by state law. Coverage is on a primary and non- contributory basis as required by written contract subject to policy
terms, conditions and exclusions, 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

1988- 2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 ( 2016103) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
r THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

The City of Carson
701 E Carson Street

AUTHORI7EDREPRE5ENTATIVE
Carson CA 90745

1. 2/ 10/ 2020

1988- 2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 ( 2016103) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CITY OF CARSON

701 E. CARSON STREET

CARSON, CA 90745

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

Date. September 20, 2020

Solicitation Number and Title: RFP 20-026 Meal and Snack Services for Summer and Afterschool Programs

Opening Date and Time: September 24, 2020105: 00 PM

A response to the solicitation was suhmitted by: 

Challenging Minds $ 1, 748, 540. 00

Choura Venue 1, 083,300.00

Girlshood 1, 584, 417. 00

Tenderlovin care 545, 777. 50

The Lighthouse 0

Responses were evaluated according to the criteria stated in the solicitation. We announce our intent to award a contract
to: 

The Lighthouse

We would like to thank you for your time and efforts in preparing a response to this solicitation. 

Protests must comply with the requirements of the Carson Municipal Code Sections 2613. You are reminded that
any protests of this decision must be submitted to the City Clerk in writing and hand delivered or sent by certified
U. S. mail, return receipt requested within five ( 5) calendar days after the issuance of this notice. Protest documents
shall include the following information: 

1) Name, address, business telephone, email, and fax number of the protestor; 

2) Identify the procurement or project under protest by name, solicitation number, and submission date; 

3) Contain a concise statement of the grounds for protest and the facts supporting such grounds, including all
supporting documentation ( documentation submitted after filing will not be reviewed); and

4) State the form of relief requested. 

The successful company is instructed not to begin work, purchase materials, or enter into subcontracts relating to the
project until both the recipient and city sign the contract. 

We appreciate your interest in doing business with the City of Carson. 

Sincerely, 

Aaade uang

Purchasing Manager

Rev 2018 01 23





























CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 21.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Reata Kulcsar, Energy and Sustainability Officer    
 
Subject:          CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CHARGEPOINT AGREEMENT AND A PURCHASE ORDER TO
CHARGEPOINT FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY EQUIPMENT AND NETWORK SERVICES (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

The Charge Ready Transport Program (CRT), offered by Southern California Edison (SCE), aims to expand the
electrification transportation sector. It does this by installing the necessary electric infrastructure for charging plug-
in buses, medium- and heavy-duty trucks, forklifts, and other non-road cargo handling equipment. Additionally, the
program provides rebates for the purchase of charging stations.

Under the CRT Program, SCE will perform infrastructure work on the utility side as well as specific work on the
customer side of the meter at no cost to the City. This work includes electrical design, permitting, construction, and
installation of electrical equipment such as transformers, switchgear, meters, cabinets, underground conduits,
conductors, and other related components at the site. SCE will own and maintain the electrical equipment they
install through the program to ensure that it remains in good working condition.

The City Council has already approved the Charge Ready Transport Program Participation Agreement and concept
plans for this project. The City is responsible for procuring, installing, and maintaining the Electric Vehicle (EV)
charging equipment for ten years. 

The cost for the purchase, installation, commissioning, network, extended warranty, and other ancillary services for
four EV charging stations is $68,948.50 plus tax. However, the requested purchase order amount is not to exceed
$100,000 to account for other equipment and services that the City may need for other City-owned and operated EV
charging equipment.    

Additionally, the City is eligible for a charging equipment rebate estimated at $12,600. SCE is expected to provide
the city with this rebate after the charging equipment is installed and commissioned.

 

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

701 East Carson Street



1. APPROVE the ChargePoint Quotation and AUTHORIZE the City Manager to execute the Quotation subject to
approval as to form by the City Attorney. 

2. APPROVE the ChargePoint Master Services and Subscription Agreement incorporated by reference into the
Quotation.

3. APPROVE ChargePoint Terms and Conditions of Purchase incorporated by reference into the Quotation. 
4. APPROVE ChargePoint Support Services Terms and Conditions incorporated by reference into the Quotation. 
5. APPROVE ChargePoint Installation, Commissioning, and Activation Scope and Terms incorporated by

reference into the Quotation.
�. APPROVE ChargePoint Terms of Services for ChargePoint Accounts.
7. AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Manager to issue a Purchase Order to ChargePoint in an amount not to exceed

$100,000.00.

III. ALTERNATIVES

 TAKE another action the City Council deems appropriate, consistent with the requirements of the law.
 

IV. BACKGROUND

The City Council has approved participation in SCE's Charge Ready Transport Program, which provides no-cost
electrical infrastructure for new EV charging stations. As part of this program, the City must select a network
provider and EV charger from SCE's list of approved options. ChargePoint is one of the approved network providers
and has submitted a quote to the City for four EV chargers, which includes installation, commissioning, a five-year
parts and labor extended warranty, remote technical support, five-year cloud subscription service, and other
necessary ancillary services.

The quotation (Exhibit No. 1) includes several terms and conditions incorporated by reference and must be
accepted to proceed with the purchase. These agreements/terms and conditions which are not to be separately
executed because they are considered to be part of the quotation, are attached as Exhibits 2 to 5. While the
agreements contain standard boilerplate language from ChargePoint and are generally one-sided, ChargePoint is
willing to discuss potential changes. However, this process may take some time, so staff will return to the Council
with an amendment/addendum to the terms and conditions once this effort is complete.

If an amendment/addendum cannot be reached, the City Council should be aware of potential issues related to the
following provisions:

1. ChargePoint’s liability will not exceed the subscription fees paid by City in the 12 months prior to the event
giving rise to the liability. The subscription fee amount for a 12-month period is estimated at $2,500.00.

2. In order for ChargePoint to deliver services, ChargePoint has entered into at least one contract with a wireless
carrier. The City is required to indemnify the wireless service carrier(s) against any claim for libel, slander, or
any property damage, personal injury or death, in connection with use or failure to use the wireless service
except where the claim results from the carrier’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. In reality, however,
the likelihood of City needing to indemnify the wireless carrier seems marginal at best.

3. The City is required to indemnify ChargePoint against claims resulting from or arising out of City’s actual or
alleged use of the ChargePoint services.

4. In the event of a dispute, venue is in Santa Clara, California. City anticipates this will be revised to Los Angeles
County.

5. There’s no obligation for ChargePoint to indemnify City including for claims that may be brought by a third
party for intellectual property infringement associated with use of technology deployed for subscription
services. IP infringement indemnity is one of the key protections City will seek to obtain through an
amendment/addendum because claims of such nature could amount to tens of millions of dollars or more.

�. There's no obligation for ChargePoint to provide insurance protecting City against intellectual property
infringement claims. This too will be one of the primary protections City will seek to obtain through an
amendment/addendum.



The Terms of Service for ChargePoint Accounts (Exhibit No. 6) are included in this staff report. These terms pertain
to accessing and using ChargePoint applications and services related to credit card transactions on their website.

The City is currently using ChargePoint products and services at its facilities for various projects and programs. To
succeed in our electrification efforts, City staff believes maintaining a consistent selection of products and
networks across all City-operated facilities is in the best interest of the City.

The City will utilize the Sourcewell Procurement Contract #042221 (Exhibit No. 7), and ChargePoint, Inc. will provide
the same terms, conditions, and pricing outlined in the Sourcewell procurement contract to the City of Carson.

A purchasing waiver (Exhibit No. 8) is also included, as detailed in Section 2611(g) of the City’s Municipal Code
(CMC) allows City, through its Purchasing Manager, to dispense with competitive bidding processes to purchase
materials, supplies, equipment, or services by utilizing a cooperative purchasing program engaged in by any local,
county, State, or Federal public entity or entities, even if the contracts and implementing agreements entered into by
the participating entity or association under those cooperative purchasing programs were not entered into
pursuant to a process that resulted in the contract being awarded to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder
under CMC 2610(i); provided, that the selected bidder was selected in compliance with the competitive bidding or
proposal process requirements of any participating entity or association within three years of City’s approval of the
City contract entered into with the selected bidder via cooperative purchasing. The City Council has made a
determination that the benefits to City of utilizing cooperative purchasing outweigh any incremental higher price
that may be paid by City in certain instances as a result of not soliciting directly utilizing the lowest responsible and
responsive bidder standard under CMC 2610(i). 

The plan and procurement strategy for the four EV chargers designated for our bus fleet has been discussed and
approved by both the Director of Public Works and the Director of Community Services. They are in support of
moving forward with the project.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

SCE will design and install the underground infrastructure necessary for the EV charging stations at no cost to the
City. The total cost for the purchase, installing, commissioning, and networking of the above ground EV charging
stations is not expected to exceed $100,000.  This project was identified in the 2024-2025 5-year Capital
Improvement Plan, and funding is available in account no.  246-80-820-904-8008 for this expenditure. 

Additionally, a rebate for the charging equipment is available and estimated at $12,600. This rebate will be paid to
the City after the charging equipment is installed and commissioned. 

VI. EXHIBITS

1. ChargePoint Quotation.
2. ChargePoint Master Services and Subscription Agreement.
3. ChargePoint Terms and Conditions of Purchase.
4. ChargePoint Support Services Terms and Conditions. 
5. ChargePoint Installation, Commissioning, and Activation Scope and Terms.
�. ChargePoint Terms of Services for ChargePoint Accounts.
7. Sourcewell Procurement Contract #042221. 
�. City of Carson - Purchasing Waiver.

 
 

 

 



Attachments

Exhibit No. 1 - Quote.pdf
Exhibit No. 2 - ChargePoint-MSSA.pdf
Exhibit No. 3 - ChargePoint - Purchase Terms Conditions.pdf
Exhibit No. 4 - ChargePoint Support Services Terms Conditions.pdf
Exhibit No. 5 - ChargePoint-Install-Comm-Activate-Scope.pdf
Exhibit No. 6 - ChargePoint CC Terms.pdf
Exhibit No. 7 - Sourcewell Contract 042221.pdf
Exhibit No. 8 - Purchasing Waiver - 042221-CPI.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20Quote.pdf?alt=media&token=9e39424f-4474-4b19-af1a-1136fe9d532c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20Quote.pdf?alt=media&token=9e39424f-4474-4b19-af1a-1136fe9d532c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%201%20Quote.pdf?alt=media&token=9e39424f-4474-4b19-af1a-1136fe9d532c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%202%20-%20ChargePoint-MSSA-EN-US.pdf?alt=media&token=f694643c-caae-4dae-b7ca-34fdf6df42b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%202%20-%20ChargePoint-MSSA-EN-US.pdf?alt=media&token=f694643c-caae-4dae-b7ca-34fdf6df42b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%202%20-%20ChargePoint-MSSA-EN-US.pdf?alt=media&token=f694643c-caae-4dae-b7ca-34fdf6df42b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%203%20-%20ChargePoint%20-Purchase-Terms-Conditions.pdf?alt=media&token=e8f7230e-74b8-4d9a-9938-70b1acad2ecf
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%203%20-%20ChargePoint%20-Purchase-Terms-Conditions.pdf?alt=media&token=e8f7230e-74b8-4d9a-9938-70b1acad2ecf
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%203%20-%20ChargePoint%20-Purchase-Terms-Conditions.pdf?alt=media&token=e8f7230e-74b8-4d9a-9938-70b1acad2ecf
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%204%20-%20ChargePointSupport%20ServicesTermsConditions.pdf?alt=media&token=1a0b62b0-818f-422a-9a04-939ef09c362a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%204%20-%20ChargePointSupport%20ServicesTermsConditions.pdf?alt=media&token=1a0b62b0-818f-422a-9a04-939ef09c362a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%204%20-%20ChargePointSupport%20ServicesTermsConditions.pdf?alt=media&token=1a0b62b0-818f-422a-9a04-939ef09c362a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%205%20-%20ChargePoint-Install-Comm-Activate-Scope-Ts%26Cs-NA.pdf?alt=media&token=4e71a01e-ac70-4325-a59d-4f4b48741a52
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%205%20-%20ChargePoint-Install-Comm-Activate-Scope-Ts%26Cs-NA.pdf?alt=media&token=4e71a01e-ac70-4325-a59d-4f4b48741a52
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%205%20-%20ChargePoint-Install-Comm-Activate-Scope-Ts%26Cs-NA.pdf?alt=media&token=4e71a01e-ac70-4325-a59d-4f4b48741a52
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%206%20-ChargePoint%20CC%20Terms.pdf?alt=media&token=f5d711b1-e449-4f47-88ac-bfe915756929
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%206%20-ChargePoint%20CC%20Terms.pdf?alt=media&token=f5d711b1-e449-4f47-88ac-bfe915756929
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%206%20-ChargePoint%20CC%20Terms.pdf?alt=media&token=f5d711b1-e449-4f47-88ac-bfe915756929
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%207%20-SourcewellContract%20042221.pdf?alt=media&token=261dabd8-0fd2-4bfe-852d-ee9cff371eec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%207%20-SourcewellContract%20042221.pdf?alt=media&token=261dabd8-0fd2-4bfe-852d-ee9cff371eec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%207%20-SourcewellContract%20042221.pdf?alt=media&token=261dabd8-0fd2-4bfe-852d-ee9cff371eec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%208%20-Purchasing%20Waiver%20-%20042221-CPI%20JT.pdf?alt=media&token=6b874739-470f-4c37-805e-9fd3c1da8493
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%208%20-Purchasing%20Waiver%20-%20042221-CPI%20JT.pdf?alt=media&token=6b874739-470f-4c37-805e-9fd3c1da8493
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6733d71e186c4500542d6206%2FExhibit%20No.%208%20-Purchasing%20Waiver%20-%20042221-CPI%20JT.pdf?alt=media&token=6b874739-470f-4c37-805e-9fd3c1da8493


   

Quotation
 
Driving a Better Way™  
chargepoint.com \i2\  
  
Sales Representative: Drew Blake Quote Number: Q-494773-1
E-Mail: drew.blake@chargepoint.com Date: 10/31/2024
Telephone: Expires On: 11/29/2024
 Approved Payment Term: Net 30
  
Primary Contact: Reata Kulcsar  
  
  
Bill To Address

         

 \i1\

The City of Carson
701 E Carson Street
Carson California 90745-2257
United States
 

Ship To Address

          

  \i1\

City of Carson
City of Carson - Building B
18620 S. BROADWAY
Receiving Warehouse
Carson California 90248
United States
 

 
 
 

Product Name Product Description Qty Regular
Unit Price

Disc% Customer
Unit Price

Total
Price

CPE250C-625-CCS1-
200A-CHD

ChargePoint Express 250 Station,
NA, DC Station, 62.5 kW, 2x Power
Module, 1x CCS1 200A cable, 1x
CHAdeMO 140A cable, ChargePoint
Signage, 254mm (10") Touch Display,
Contactless credit card and RFID
reader, Cellular/Wifi, UL Listed, 2 year
Parts Warranty

1 USD
31,250.00

20 USD
25,000.00

USD
25,000.00

Product Name Product Description Qty List Price Disc% Unit Price Total
Price

DC-UNIVERSAL-CMT-
METRIC

Required metal bracket to align
conduits and mounting bolts for DC
power delivery products when cable
entrance is from below. This bracket
is to be installed into the foundation
before the concrete pad is poured.
 Metric Units.  Required for CPE250,
CPE280 and Power Link series.

1 USD 0.00 0 USD 0.00 USD 0.00

© 2024 ChargePoint, Inc.
 240 East Hacienda Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008 USA
 
ChargePoint CONFIDENTIAL

Page 1 of 6

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT NO. 042221-CPI



   

Product Name Product Description Qty List Price Disc% Unit Price Total
Price

CPE250-ASSURE-5 5 prepaid years of ChargePoint
Assure for CPE250 station. Includes
Parts and Labor Warranty, Remote
Technical Support, On-Site Repairs
when needed, Unlimited Configuration
Changes, and Reporting.

1 USD
13,650.00

0 USD
13,650.00

USD
13,650.00

CPSUPPORT-ACTIVE ChargePoint's Activation service
ensures a seamless EV charging
station setup, from order to activation.
Activation includes station owner and
installer onboarding, quality installation
validation, early station performance
support, and provisions stations on
our network, ensuring a smooth and
reliable deployment experience. Priced
per station. Does not apply to CPF50
stations. For activating 10-or-more
stations per site call ChargePoint sales.

1 USD
249.00

0 USD
249.00

USD
249.00

© 2024 ChargePoint, Inc.
 240 East Hacienda Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008 USA
 
ChargePoint CONFIDENTIAL

Page 2 of 6



   

Product Name Product Description Qty List Price Disc% Unit Price Total
Price

CPE250-INSTALL-
COMMISSIONING

This service includes both the
Installation and Commissioning
of the Express CPE250 charging
station. Customers must work
with their contractor to perform all
construction (the ‘make ready’)
up to the point where stations can
be bolted down and connected.
ChargePoint will then perform the on-
site validation of electrical capacity,
transformers, panels, breakers,
wiring, cellular coverage so that
they meet all ChargePoint and local
code requirements, then install and
commission the station. Before
installation can begin, ChargePoint
requires the customer’s ‘make ready’
contractor to submit evidence of
adherence to ChargePoint’s standards
and specifications. In addition to
verifying and testing the installation,
Commissioning also ensures the
station is connected to the ChargePoint
network, completing software
updates and pairing configuration if
applicable. In parallel, the ChargePoint
Activations team will configure the
station and apply policies according
to the customer’s specifications.
A final Commissioning Report will
be provided to the customer. Note
that if Commissioning cannot be
performed due to site or installation
deficiencies for which ChargePoint
is not responsible, the customer will
incur a rescheduling fee to cover
redeployment costs. Priced per
Express CPE250 station.

1 USD
4,530.00

0 USD
4,530.00

USD
4,530.00

© 2024 ChargePoint, Inc.
 240 East Hacienda Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008 USA
 
ChargePoint CONFIDENTIAL

Page 3 of 6



   

Product Name Product Description Qty List Price Disc% Unit Price Total
Price

CPCLD-ENTERPRISE-
DC-5

5 year Enterprise Cloud Plan for
DC Stations. Subscription includes
advanced station management
features such as: Custom Video
uploads, and Automatic Software
Updates, driver and fleet management
features including: Access Control,
24x7 Driver Support, and Pricing &
Automatic Payment Collection, as
well as advanced energy and power
management features which include:
Time of Use Power Sharing and
Energy Management APIs. Real-time
dashboards and reports provided for
applicable features including 15 min
meter data readings and associated
advanced energy reports. Station
Activation purchase required. Priced
per port.

1 USD
5,400.00

0 USD
5,400.00

USD
5,400.00

CPCLD-FLEETENT-5 Fleet Enterprise Cloud Plan
subscription. Includes advanced
station management features such
as: Automatic Software Updates,
fleet management features including:
Access Control and Pricing &
Automatic Payment Collection, as
well as advanced energy and power
management features which include:
Time of Use Power Sharing and
Energy Management APIs. Real-time
dashboards and reports provided for
applicable features including 15 min
meter data readings and associated
advanced energy reports.

3 USD
2,160.00

0 USD
2,160.00

USD
6,480.00

CPF-ACTIVE ChargePoint's Activation service
ensures a seamless EV charging
station setup, from order to activation.
Activation includes station owner and
installer onboarding, quality installation
validation, early station performance
support, and provisions stations on
our network, ensuring a smooth and
reliable deployment experience. Priced
per CPF50 station.

3 USD
100.00

0 USD
100.00

USD
300.00

© 2024 ChargePoint, Inc.
 240 East Hacienda Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008 USA
 
ChargePoint CONFIDENTIAL

Page 4 of 6



   

Product Name Product Description Qty List Price Disc% Unit Price Total
Price

CPF-INSTALL-
COMMISSIONING

Customer works with their own
contractor to perform all construction
up to the point where the stations
can be bolted down and connected.
ChargePoint will then engage an
authorized ChargePoint Partner to
install the station on the prepared
site and commission the station. This
includes validating that the electrical
capacity, transformers, panels,
breakers, wiring, cellular coverage
and station installation all meet
ChargePoint published requirements
and local codes. Upon successful
commissioning, the customer will be
eligible to obtain warranty coverage
under a ChargePoint Maintenance
plan, sold separately. Priced per CPF
station.

3 USD
1,260.00

0 USD
1,260.00

USD
3,780.00

CPF50-L18-PEDMNT-
CMK6-GW-USA

CPF50, USA, AC Station, 1x Type
1, 50A, 1 Phase, 5.5m/18', 1.8m/6'
Cable Mgt, Pedestal, RFID, Cellular/
WIFI, Vodafone e-SIM, UL, 2 YR Parts
Warranty, Defaults to Essential cloud
plan (T&Cs apply – see (1) MSSA
and (2) cloud plan data sheet includes
supplemental T&Cs) at USD $140/yr,
paid separately and in arrears, if an
alternate cloud plan is not purchased.

3 USD
1,795.00

10 USD
1,615.50

USD
4,846.50

CPF-ASSURE5 5 prepaid years of ChargePoint
Assure for CPF station. Includes
Parts and Labor Warranty, Remote
Technical Support, On-Site Repairs
when needed, Unlimited Configuration
Changes, and Reporting.

3 USD
600.00

0 USD
600.00

USD
1,800.00

   

 Quote Total: USD 66,035.50

 Shipping Fee: USD 2,913.00

 Grand Total: USD 68,948.50

   

 

 

© 2024 ChargePoint, Inc.
 240 East Hacienda Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008 USA
 
ChargePoint CONFIDENTIAL

Page 5 of 6



   

Quote Acceptance

+ Invoices are due and payable as per agreed payment terms.

+ Each Assure and Cloud Plan subscription will commence one hundred eighty (180) days from invoice date.
+ Customer to be invoiced at time of shipment. 
+ All prices are FCA ChargePoint warehouse(s).
+ Sales tax in applicable states and shipping costs will be applied at time of invoicing.
+ Pricing does not include installation or mounting services unless specifically quoted above.
+ Customer confirms that the shipping and billing information provided in this Quotation is accurate for ChargePoint’s shipping and
invoicing purposes.
+ The following ChargePoint terms and conditions are incorporated in this Quotation by reference in their entirety: (i) ChargePoint
Master Services and Subscription Agreement found at ChargePoint Master Services and Subscription Agreement | ChargePoint ; (ii)
ChargePoint Terms and Conditions of Purchase found at ChargePoint Terms and Conditions | ChargePoint ;(iii) ChargePoint Support
Services Terms and Conditions found at: https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services/ ; and (iv) ChargePoint Deployment and
Consulting Services Terms and Conditions found at https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services/
+ ChargePoint’s sale of products/services is expressly conditioned on Customer’s acceptance of ChargePoint terms and conditions
stated or referenced in this Quotation. Any conflicting or inconsistent terms stated or referenced in any Customer purchase order or any
such document are excluded and will not be binding and notice of objection to them is hereby given.
+ This signed Quotation will act as a purchase order for the products/services detailed above and creates a binding contract between
ChargePoint and Customer. 
The above terms govern this Quotation unless Customer has separate written agreement(s) executed by Customer and ChargePoint to
govern the products/services referenced in this Quotation.
 
By signing this Quotation, I hereby acknowledge that I am an authorized signatory and have read and agree to all the terms
and conditions of this Quotation.

Signature : \s1\ Title : \t_1\

Name (Print) : \FN_1\ Date : \d1\

Company Name : \CompanyName_1\   

Accounts Payable Contact Name : \AccountPayableContactName_1\   

Accounts Payable Contact E-Mail : \AccountsPayableContactEmail_1\  

Requested Ship Date : \dsrequestedshipdate_1\   

© 2024 ChargePoint, Inc.
 240 East Hacienda Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008 USA
 
ChargePoint CONFIDENTIAL

Page 6 of 6

https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/mssa/
https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/termsandconditions
https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services/
https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services/


5.30.24 Version  

CHARGEPOINT® 
MASTER SERVICES AND SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 

 
IMPORTANT: THIS MASTER SERVICES AND SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN YOU OR THE CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP OR OTHER LEGAL ENTITY YOU REPRESENT 
(“SUBSCRIBER”) AND THE APPLICABLE CHARGEPOINT ENTITY OR ENTITIES (“CPI”) WHICH CAN BE FOUND IN 

SECTION 11.4 BELOW. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. BY USING ANY OF THE CHARGEPOINT SERVICES, YOU 
INDICATE YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE WITH ANY OF THESE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS, DO NOT USE ANY CHARGEPOINT SERVICES. 

IF YOU ARE ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF A CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP OR 
OTHER LEGAL ENTITY, THAT ENTITY REPRESENTS THAT YOU HAVE AUTHORITY TO BIND SUCH ENTITY 
TO THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE SUCH AUTHORITY TO BIND SUCH ENTITY TO 
THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS, YOU MAY NOT ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND SUCH ENTITY MAY 
NOT USE THE CHARGEPOINT SERVICES. 

1. AGREEMENT. 

1.1 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement governs the following activities: 

(a) Provisioning of Subscriber’s Charging Station(s), if any, on ChargePoint; 

(b) Activation and use of the ChargePoint Services on Subscriber’s Charging Station(s), if 
any; 

(c) Subscriber’s use of the APIs as part of the ChargePoint Services; 

(d) Each grant of Rights by Subscriber; and 

(e) Each grant of Rights by a third party to Subscriber. 

1.2 EXHIBITS AND PRIVACY POLICY. This Agreement includes the CPI Privacy Policy, as 
amended from time to time, and the following Exhibits, which are made a part of, and are hereby 
incorporated into, this Agreement by reference. 

Exhibit 1: Flex Billing Terms 
Exhibit 2: API Terms 
Exhibit 3: Terms Regarding Granting and Receipt of Rights 

 

In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement on the one hand, and the Privacy Policy 
or any Exhibit on the other hand, this Agreement shall govern. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in 
any Exhibit or the Privacy Policy shall have the same meaning as in this Agreement. 

 
2. DEFINITIONS. The following terms shall have the definitions set forth below when used in this 
Agreement: 

2.1 “Affiliate” means any entity which directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is 
under common control with the subject entity. “Control”, for purposes of this definition, means direct or 
indirect ownership or control of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting interests of the subject entity. 

2.2 "APIs" means, individually or collectively, the application programming interfaces which 
are made available to Subscriber from time to time, as and when updated by CPI. 

2.3 “ChargePoint Connections” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the applicable data 
sheet. The term ChargePoint Connections shall also mean any successor service provided by CPI. 

https://www.chargepoint.com/privacy/


Page 2 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

2.4 “ChargePoint®” means the open-platform network of electric vehicle charging stations 
and the vehicle charging applications the network delivers, that is operated and maintained by CPI (as 
defined below) in order to provide various services to, among others, Subscriber and its employees. 

2.5 “ChargePoint Services” means, collectively, the various cloud services offerings 
(including, without limitation, APIs and application Cloud Plans) made available for subscription by CPI. 

2.6 “ChargePoint Application” means any of the applications established and maintained by 
CPI which will allow Subscriber to access ChargePoint Services. 

2.7 “Charging Station” means the electric vehicle charging station(s) purchased by 
Subscriber, whether manufactured by CPI or by a CPI authorized entity, which are registered and activated 
on ChargePoint. 

2.8 "Content" means all data collected or maintained by CPI in connection with the operation 
of ChargePoint. 

2.9 “CPI Marks” means the various trademarks, service marks, trade names, logos, domain 
names, and other distinctive brand features and designations used in connection with ChargePoint and/or 
CPI manufactured Charging Stations, including without limitation, ChargePoint. 

2.10 “CPI Property” means (i) ChargePoint, (ii) the ChargePoint Services (including all Content), 
(iii) all data generated or collected by CPI in connection with the operation of ChargePoint and 
ChargePoint Services, (iv) the CPI Marks, (v) the ChargePoint Cards, and (vi) all other CPI-supplied material 
developed or provided by CPI for Subscriber use in connection with the ChargePoint Services. 

2.11 “Documentation” means written information (whether contained in user or technical 
manuals, product materials, specifications or otherwise) pertaining to ChargePoint Services and/or 
ChargePoint and made available from time to time by CPI to Subscriber in any manner (including on-line). 

2.12 “Effective Date” means the earliest of (a) the effective date of Subscriber’s initial quote 
for the ChargePoint Station and/or ChargePoint Services associated with this Agreement; (b) the date that 
Subscriber electronically accepts this Agreement, or (c) the date of Subscriber’s first use of the 
ChargePoint Services. 

2.13 “Intellectual Property Rights” means all intellectual property rights, including, without 
limitation, patents, patent applications, patent rights, trademarks, trademark applications, trade names, 
service marks, service mark applications, copyrights, copyright applications, franchises, licenses, 
inventories, know-how, trade secrets, Subscriber lists, proprietary processes and formulae, all source and 
object code, algorithms, architecture, structure, display screens, layouts, inventions, development tools 
and all documentation and media constituting, describing or relating to the above, including, without 
limitation, manuals, memoranda and records. 

2.14 “Malicious Code” means viruses, worms, time bombs, Trojan horses and all other forms 
of malicious code, including without limitation, malware, spyware, files, scripts, agents or programs. 

2.15 “Party” means each of CPI and Subscriber. 

2.16 “PII” means personally identifiable information regarding Subscriber or a User (e.g., 
name, address, email address, phone number or credit card number) that can be used to uniquely identify, 
contact or locate Subscriber or such User. 

2.17 “Provisioning” means activating Charging Stations, warrantees and Cloud Plans on 
ChargePoint. 

2.18 “Rights” means the rights, authorizations, privileges, actions, information and settings 
within the ChargePoint Services which a Rights Grantor grants to an Rights Grantee, to enable such Rights 



Page 3 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

Grantee to access, obtain and use certain portions of the ChargePoint Services and certain information 
available therein in the course of providing services to or on behalf of such Rights Grantor in connection 

with one or more of the Rights Grantor’s Charging Stations. A Rights Grantor shall be deemed to have 
granted Rights to the entity that will be responsible for creating Subscriber’s account and Provisioning 
Subscriber’s Charging Stations. Such deemed grant may be terminated by Subscriber at any time. 

2.19 “Cloud Plan(s)” means subscription plans to the ChargePoint Services which are offered 
and sold by CPI from time to time, which vary according to their features, privileges and pricing.  Each 
Cloud Plan may be referred to as a “Subscription”.  

2.20 “Subscriber Content and Services” means any content and/or services that a Subscriber 
provides or makes available to Users and/or the general public in connection with the ChargePoint 
Services, other than Content, ChargePoint Services and CPI Property. 

2.21 “Subscriber Marks” means the various trademarks, service marks, trade names, logos, 
domain names, and other distinctive brand features and designations used by Subscriber in connection 
with its business and/or Charging Stations. 

2.22 “Subscription Fees” means the fees payable by Subscriber for subscribing to any 
ChargePoint Services. 

2.23 “Taxes” shall mean all present and future taxes, imposts, levies, assessments, duties or 
charges of whatsoever nature including without limitation any withholding taxes, sales taxes, use taxes, 
service taxes, value added or similar taxes at the rate applicable for the time being imposed by any 
national or local government, taxing authority, regulatory agency or other entity together with any penalty 
payable in connection with any failure to pay or any delay in paying any of the same and any interest 
thereon. 

2.24 “User” means any person using a Charging Station. 

3. AVAILABLE CHARGEPOINT SERVICES & CLOUD PLANS. A description of the various ChargePoint 
Services and Cloud Plans currently available for subscription is located on the CPI website. CPI may make 
other ChargePoint Services and/or Cloud Plans available from time to time, and may amend the features 
or benefits offered with respect to any ChargePoint Service or Cloud Plan at any time and from time to 
time. Subscription Fees are based on Subscriber’s choice of Cloud Plan and not on actual usage of the 
Subscription. 

4. CPI’S RESPONSIBILITIES AND AGREEMENTS. 

4.1 OPERATION OF CHARGEPOINT. CPI agrees to provide and shall be solely responsible for: 
(i) provisioning and operating, maintaining, administering and supporting ChargePoint and related 
infrastructure (other than Subscriber’s Charging Stations and infrastructure for transmitting data from 
Charging Stations to any ChargePoint operations center); (ii) provisioning and operating, maintaining, 
administering and supporting the ChargePoint Applications; and (iii) operating ChargePoint in compliance 
with all applicable laws. CPI will protect the confidentiality and security of PII in accordance with all 
applicable laws and regulations and the CPI Privacy Policy and acknowledges that it is responsible for the 
security of “cardholder data” (as that term is defined for purposes of the Payment Card Industry – Data 
Security Standards), if any, that CPI possesses, otherwise stores, processes or transmits on behalf of 
Subscriber or for any impact, if any, on the security of Subscriber’s cardholder data environment. 

4.2 LIMITATIONS ON RESPONSIBILITY. CPI shall not be responsible for, and makes no 
representation or warranty with respect to the following: (i) specific location(s) or number of Charging 
Stations now, or in the future, owned, operated and/or installed by persons other than Subscriber, or the 
total number of Charging Stations that comprise ChargePoint; (ii) continuous availability of electrical 
service to any of Subscriber’s Charging Stations; (iii) continuous availability of any wireless or cellular 



Page 4 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

communications network or Internet service provider network necessary for the continued operation by 
CPI of ChargePoint; (iv) availability of or interruption of the ChargePoint Network attributable to 
unauthorized intrusions; and/or (v) charging stations that are not registered with and activated on the 
ChargePoint Network. 

5. SUBSCRIBER’S RESPONSIBILITIES AND AGREEMENTS. 

5.1 GENERAL. 

(a) All use of ChargePoint and ChargePoint Services by Subscriber, its employees and 
agents and its grantees of Rights shall comply with this Agreement and all of the rules, limitations and 
policies of CPI set forth in the Documentation. All ChargePoint Services account details, passwords, keys, 
etc. are granted to Subscriber solely for Subscriber’s own use (and the use of its grantees of Rights), and 
Subscriber shall keep all such items secure and confidential. Subscriber shall prevent, and shall be fully 
liable to CPI for, any unauthorized access to or use of ChargePoint or ChargePoint Services via Subscriber’s 
Charging Stations, ChargePoint Services account(s) or other equipment. Subscriber shall immediately 
notify CPI upon becoming aware of any such unauthorized use. 

(b) Subscriber shall be solely responsible for: (i) Provisioning of its Charging Stations, if 
any; (ii) keeping Subscriber’s contact information, email address for the receipt of notices hereunder, and 
billing address for invoices both accurate and up to date; (iii) updating on the applicable ChargePoint 
Application, within five (5) business days, the location to which any of Subscriber’s Charging Stations are 
moved; (iv) the maintenance, service, repair and/or replacement of Subscriber’s Charging Stations as 
needed, including informing CPI of the existence of any Charging Stations that are non-operational and 
not intended to be replaced or repaired by Subscriber; and (v) compliance with all applicable laws. 

(c) Subscriber shall deliver in full all benefits promised to Users by Subscriber in exchange 
for such Users connecting with Subscriber using ChargePoint Connections. 

5.2 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SUBSCRIBER. Subscriber represents and 
warrants to CPI that: (i) it has the power and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement and 
shall have the power and authority to install the Charging Stations and any other electrical vehicle charging 
products which are registered and activated on the ChargePoint Network); (ii) the electrical usage to be 
consumed by Subscriber’s Charging Stations will not violate or otherwise conflict with the terms and 
conditions of any applicable electrical purchase or other agreement including, without limitation, any 
lease, to which Subscriber is a party; and (iii) it has not installed or attached and will not install or attach 
Charging Stations on or to infrastructure not owned by Subscriber without proper authority, or in a 
manner that will block any easement or right of way. 

5.3 CHARGEPOINT CARDS. Subscriber may be permitted by CPI, in CPI's sole discretion, to 
obtain CPI-provisioned radio-frequency identification cards ("ChargePoint Cards") which enable the 
individual card recipients to access and use ChargePoint. Subscriber may distribute such ChargePoint 
Cards to individuals, and each individual ChargePoint Card recipient is responsible for activating his or her 
ChargePoint Card on ChargePoint directly with CPI on the CPI web site. In no event will Subscriber create 
any separate ChargePoint accounts for any ChargePoint Card recipients or other third parties, nor will 
Subscriber create anonymous ChargePoint accounts associated with any ChargePoint Card. 

5.4 USE RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS. Subscriber shall not: 

(a) sell, resell, license, rent, lease or otherwise transfer the ChargePoint Services or any 
Content therein to any third party; 



Page 5 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

(b) interfere with or disrupt the ChargePoint Services, servers, or networks connected to 
the ChargePoint Services, or disobey any requirements, procedures, policies, or regulations of networks 
connected to the ChargePoint Services; 

(c) restrict or inhibit any other user from using and enjoying the ChargePoint Services or 
any other CPI services; 

(d) attempt to gain unauthorized access to the ChargePoint Network or the ChargePoint 
Services or related systems or networks or any data contained therein, or access or use ChargePoint or 
ChargePoint Services through any technology or means other than those provided or expressly authorized 
by CPI; 

(e) create any ChargePoint Services user account by automated means or under false or 
fraudulent pretenses, or impersonate another person or entity on ChargePoint, or obtain or attempt to 
obtain multiple keys for the same URL; 

(f) reverse engineer, decompile or otherwise attempt to extract the source code of the 
ChargePoint Services or any part thereof, or any Charging Station, except to the extent expressly 
permitted or required by applicable law; 

(g) create derivative works based on any CPI Property; 

(h) remove, conceal or cover the CPI Marks or any other markings, labels, legends, 
trademarks, or trade names installed or placed on the Charging Stations or any peripheral equipment for 
use in connection with Subscriber’s Charging Stations; 

(i) use or permit use, by an act or omission, ChargePoint’s trademarks or other intellectual 
property in any manner that degrades, disparages or reflects adversely on ChargePoint or its business or 
reputation or that would be detrimental to the ChargePoint trademarks or their associated goodwill; 

(j) except as otherwise expressly permitted by this Agreement or in any applicable data 
sheet relating to a ChargePoint Service, copy, frame or mirror any part of the ChargePoint Services or 
ChargePoint Content, other than copying or framing on Subscriber’s own intranets or otherwise solely for 
Subscriber’s own internal business use and purposes; 

(k) access ChargePoint, any ChargePoint Application or the ChargePoint Services for the 
purpose of monitoring their availability, performance or functionality, or for any other benchmarking or 
competitive purpose, or for any improper purpose whatsoever, including, without limitation, in order to 
build a competitive product or service or copy any features, functions, interface, graphics or “look and 
feel;” 

(l) use any robot, spider, site search/retrieval application, or other device to retrieve or 
index any portion of the ChargePoint Services or Content or collect information about ChargePoint users 
for any unauthorized purpose; 

(m) upload, transmit or introduce any Malicious Code to ChargePoint or ChargePoint 
Services; 

(n) use any of the ChargePoint Services if Subscriber is a person barred from such use 
under the laws of the United States, Canada, or of any other jurisdiction; or 

(o) use the ChargePoint Services to upload, post, display, transmit or otherwise make 
available (A) any inappropriate, defamatory, obscene, or unlawful content; (B) any content that infringes 
any patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary right of any party; (C) any messages, 
communication or other content that promotes pyramid schemes, chain letters, constitutes disruptive 
commercial messages or advertisements, or is prohibited by applicable law, the Agreement or the 
Documentation. 



Page 6 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

5.5 CONTENT. 

(a) ChargePoint Content (including but not limited to Charging Station data and status) is 
provided for planning purposes only. Subscriber may find that various events may mean actual Charging 
Station conditions (such as availability or pricing) differ from what is set forth in the Content. In addition, 
certain Charging Station-related Content, including Charging Station name and use restrictions, is set by 
the Charging Station owner and is not verified by CPI. Subscriber should exercise judgment in Subscriber’s 
use of the Content. 

 
(b) Certain Content may be provided under license from third parties and is subject to 

copyright and other intellectual property rights of such third parties. Subscriber may be held liable for any 
unauthorized copying or disclosure of such third party-supplied Content. Subscriber’s use of such Content 
may be subject to additional restrictions set forth in the Documentation. 

(c) Subscriber shall not copy, modify, alter, translate, amend, or publicly display any of 
the Content except as expressly permitted by the Documentation. Subscriber shall not present any portion 
of the Content in any manner, that would (i) make such Content false, inaccurate or misleading, 
(ii) falsify or delete any author attributions or labels of the origin or source of Content, or (iii) indicate or 
suggest that the Charging Station locations provided as part of the Content are anything other than 
ChargePoint® Network Charging Stations. 

 
(d) Subscriber shall not remove, obscure, or alter in any manner any proprietary rights 

notices (including copyright and trademark notices), warnings, links or other notifications that appear in 
the ChargePoint Service. 

 
6. SUBSCRIPTION FEES AND PAYMENT TERMS. 

6.1 SUBSCRIPTION FEES. If Subscriber is invoiced for the Services, Subscriber shall pay all 
Subscription Fees within thirty (30) days of its receipt of CPI’s invoice. All payments shall be made in U.S. 
Dollars (or, if Subscriber is located in Canada, Canadian Dollars) by check, wire transfer, ACH payment 
system or other means approved by CPI or if applicable, as described in CPI’s credit card policy. Customer 
may not offset any amounts due to CPI hereunder against amounts due to Customer under this Agreement 
or any other agreement. Subscription fees payable to CPI do not include any Taxes imposed thereon, and 
Subscriber is responsible for any and all such Taxes. All such Taxes shall be set forth on the invoice 
provided by CPI to Subscriber; provided that, CPI’s failure to include any such Tax on an invoice shall not 
relieve Subscriber’s liability therefor. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, all payment 
obligations under this Agreement are non- cancelable and non-refundable. 

6.2 LATE PAYMENTS. Late payments shall be subject to a charge equal to the lesser of (i) one 
and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) the maximum rate permitted by law. Subscriber will 
reimburse CPI for attorneys’ fees and other expenses reasonably incurred by CPI in the collection of any 
late payments. If any amount owing by Subscriber under this Agreement is more than thirty (30) days 
overdue, CPI may, without otherwise limiting CPI’s rights or remedies, (a) terminate this Agreement, (b) 
suspend the use by Subscriber of the ChargePoint Services until such amounts are paid in full, and/or (c) 
condition future ChargePoint Service renewals and other Subscriber purchases on payment terms other 
than those set forth herein; provided that CPI shall not exercise any such rights if Subscriber has 
reasonably disputed such charges and is cooperating diligently in good faith to resolve the dispute. 

7. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS AND LICENSES. 

7.1 CPI PROPERTY. As between CPI and Subscriber, CPI retains and reserves all right, title and 
interest (including all related Intellectual Property Rights) in and to the CPI Property and any 



Page 7 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

improvements thereto. No rights are granted to Subscriber in the CPI Property hereunder except as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

7.2 SUBSCRIBER PROPERTY. As between CPI and Subscriber, Subscriber retains and reserves 
all right, title and interest (including all related Intellectual Property Rights) in and to (i) all Subscriber 
Marks and (ii) all Subscriber Content and Services (collectively, the “Subscriber Property”). No rights are 
granted to CPI in the Subscriber Property hereunder except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

7.3 LIMITED LICENSE TO SUBSCRIBER. CPI hereby grants to Subscriber a royalty-free, non- 
assignable, non-transferable, and non-exclusive license to use the CPI Property solely in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement (including without limitation all limitations and restrictions on such use) to 
the extent necessary for Subscriber to access, use and receive the ChargePoint Services as permitted 
herein. 

7.4 LIMITED LICENSE TO CPI. Subscriber hereby grants to CPI a non-assignable, non- 
transferable, and non-exclusive license to use the Subscriber Property solely in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement (including without limitation all limitations and restrictions on such use) to the extent 
necessary for CPI to provide the ChargePoint Services. CPI may utilize the Subscriber Marks to advertise 
that Subscriber is using the ChargePoint Services. The foregoing license includes a perpetual and 
irrevocable right of CPI to reproduce, adapt, modify, translate, publicly perform, publicly display and 
distribute all Subscriber Content and Services submitted, posted or displayed by Subscriber in the 
ChargePoint Services, solely for the purpose of enabling CPI to operate, market and promote the 
ChargePoint Services, and to index and serve such Subscriber Content and Services as search results 
through ChargePoint Services. CPI shall have a royalty-free, worldwide, transferable, sublicensable, 
irrevocable perpetual license to use or incorporate in the ChargePoint Services any suggestions, 
enhancement requests, recommendations or other feedback provided by Subscriber or Subscriber Rights 
Grantees relating to the ChargePoint Services. 

7.5 ADDITIONAL TERMS REGARDING CPI MARKS. 

(a) USE LIMITATIONS. Subscriber shall display the CPI Marks in connection with 
Subscriber Charging Stations as required in this Agreement during the term of Subscriber’s Cloud Plan. 
Subscriber shall not use any of the CPI Marks for or with any products other than its Charging Stations. 
From time to time, CPI may provide updated CPI Mark usage guidelines on the ChargePoint Application or 
elsewhere in the Documentation, and Subscriber shall thereafter comply with such updated guidelines. For 
any use of the CPI Mark not authorized by such guidelines, or if no such guidelines are provided, then for 
each initial use of the CPI Mark, Subscriber must obtain CPI’s prior written consent, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed, and after such consent is obtained, Subscriber may use the CPI Mark 
in the approved manner. All use by Subscriber of CPI's Marks (including any goodwill associated therewith) 
will inure to the benefit of CPI. 

(b) PROHIBITIONS. Subscriber shall not use or display any CPI Mark (or any likeness 
of a CPI Mark): 

(i) as a part of the name under which Subscriber’s business is conducted or in 
connection with the name of a business of Subscriber or its Affiliates; 

(ii) in any manner that (x) implies a relationship or affiliation with CPI other than 
as described under the Agreement, (y) implies any sponsorship or endorsement by CPI, or (z) can be 
reasonably interpreted to suggest that any Subscriber Content and Services has been authored by, or 
represents the views or opinions of CPI or CPI personnel; 



Page 8 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

(iii) in any manner intended to disparage CPI, ChargePoint, or the ChargePoint 
Services, or in a manner that is misleading, defamatory, infringing, libelous, disparaging, obscene or 
otherwise objectionable to CPI; 

(iv) in any manner that violates any law or regulation; or 
 

(v) that is distorted or altered in any way (including squeezing, stretching, 
inverting, discoloring, etc.) from the original form provided by CPI; or  

 
(vi)  on any Charging Station that, after ten (10) days’ written notice from 

ChargePoint, continues to malfunction or is otherwise improperly maintained in a manner that 
ChargePoint reasonably determines reflects poorly on ChargePoint or is likely to cause harm to 
ChargePoint’s brand, reputation or business.  If any Charging Station continues to malfunction or is 
otherwise improperly maintained as such, in addition to any other remedies available to it under this 
Agreement or under applicable law, ChargePoint shall have the right to have the Charging Station not 
discoverable or visible by the general public, including but not limited to ChargePoint account holders, on 
any interface (e.g., mobile application) that accesses the ChargePoint Network.   

 

(c) NO REGISTRATION OF CPI MARKS. Subscriber shall not, directly or indirectly, 
register or apply for, or cause to be registered or applied for, any CPI Marks or any patent, trademark, 
service mark, copyright, trade name, domain name or registered design that is substantially or confusingly 
similar to a CPI Mark, patent, trademark, service mark, copyright, trade name, domain name or registered 
design of CPI, or that is licensed to, connected with or derived from confidential, material or proprietary 
information imparted to or licensed to Subscriber by CPI. At no time will Subscriber challenge or assist 
others to challenge the CPI Marks (except to the extent such restriction is prohibited by law) or the 
registration thereof by CPI. 

(d) REMOVAL OF CPI MARKS FROM SUBSCRIBER CHARGING STATIONS.  If at any 
time Subscriber fails to comply with any of the prohibitions set forth in Section 7.5(b) or any restrictions 
set forth in Section 5.4, ChargePoint shall have the right, in addition to any other remedies available to it 
under this Agreement or under applicable law, upon five (5) days’ written notice to Subscriber, to itself or 
through a third-party representative, without notice to or additional permission from Subscriber, enter 
Subscriber’s premises for the purpose of removing or covering any or all CPI Marks, which may include 
covering the Subscriber Charging Station in its entirety. 

 

(e) TERMINATION AND CESSATION OF USE OF CPI MARKS. Upon termination of this 
Agreement, Subscriber will immediately discontinue all use and display of all CPI Marks. 

8. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY. 

8.1 DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES. CHARGEPOINT AND THE CHARGEPOINT SERVICES ARE 
PROVIDED “AS IS” AND “AS AVAILABLE” FOR SUBSCRIBER’S USE, WITHOUT WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, 
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR 
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, CPI DOES 
NOT WARRANT THAT (A) SUBSCRIBER’S USE OF THE CHARGEPOINT SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, 
TIMELY, SECURE, FREE FROM ERROR, OR MEET SUBSCRIBER’S REQUIREMENTS; (B) ALL CONTENT AND 
OTHER INFORMATION OBTAINED BY SUBSCRIBER FROM OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE CHARGEPOINT 
SERVICES WILL BE ACCURATE AND RELIABLE; (C) ALL DEFECTS IN THE OPERATION OR FUNCTIONALITY OF 
THE CHARGEPOINT SERVICES WILL BE CORRECTED. ALL CONTENT OBTAINED THROUGH THE 
CHARGEPOINT SERVICES IS OBTAINED AT SUBSCRIBER’S OWN DISCRETION AND RISK, AND SUBSCRIBER 



Page 9 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

WILL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE TO SUBSCRIBER’S COMPUTER SYSTEM OR OTHER 
DEVICE, LOSS OF DATA, OR ANY OTHER DAMAGE OR INJURY THAT RESULTS FROM THE DOWNLOAD OR 
USE OF ANY SUCH CONTENT. 

8.2 EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND RELATED DAMAGES. REGARDLESS OF WHETHER 
ANY REMEDY SET FORTH HEREIN FAILS OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OR OTHERWISE, IN NO EVENT WILL 
CPI BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOST REVENUE OR PROFIT, LOST OR DAMAGED DATA, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, 
LOSS OF CAPITAL, OR FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, 
HOWEVER CAUSED AND REGARDLESS OF THE THEORY OF LIABILITY OR WHETHER ARISING OUT OF THE 
USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE CHARGEPOINT NETWORK, ANY CHARGEPOINT SERVICES, THIS 
AGREEMENT, A GRANT OR RECEIPT OF RIGHTS OR OTHERWISE OR BASED ON ANY EXPRESSED, IMPLIED 
OR CLAIMED WARRANTIES BY SUBSCRIBER NOT SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT. 

8.3 ELECTRICAL, CELLULAR AND INTERNET SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS. Neither CPI nor 
Subscriber shall have any liability whatsoever to the other with respect to damages caused by: (i) electrical 
outages, power surges, brown-outs, utility load management or any other similar electrical service 
interruptions, whatever the cause; (ii) interruptions in wireless or cellular service linking Charging Stations 
to ChargePoint; (iii) interruptions attributable to unauthorized ChargePoint Network intrusions; (iv) 
interruptions in services provided by any Internet service provider not affiliated with CPI; or (v) the 

inability of a Charging Station to access ChargePoint as a result of any change in product offerings 
(including, without limitation, the any network upgrade or introduction of any “next generation” services) 
by any wireless or cellular carrier. This includes the loss of data resulting from such electrical, wireless, 
cellular or Internet service interruptions. 

8.4 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CPI’s aggregate liability under this Agreement shall not exceed 
aggregate Subscription Fees paid by Subscriber to CPI in the twelve (12) calendar months prior to the 
event giving rise to the liability. 

8.5 CELLULAR CARRIER LIABILITY. IN ORDER TO DELIVER THE CHARGEPONT SERVICES, CPI 
HAS ENTERED INTO CONTRACTS WITH ONE OR MORE UNDERLYING WIRELESS SERVICE CARRIERS (THE 
“UNDERLYING CARRIER”). SUBSCRIBER HAS NO CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE UNDERLYING 
CARRIER AND SUBSCRIBER IS NOT A THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY OF ANY AGREEMENT BETWEEN CPI AND 
THE UNDERLYING CARRIER. SUBSCRIBER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT THE UNDERLYING CARRIER 
HAS NO LIABILITY OF ANY KIND TO SUBSCRIBER, WHETHER FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, 
NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY IN TORT OR OTHERWISE. SUBSCRIBER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS THE UNDERLYING CARRIER AND ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS AGAINST ANY AND 
ALL CLAIMS, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION CLAIMS FOR LIBEL, SLANDER, OR ANY PROPERTY 
DAMAGE, PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, ARISING IN ANY WAY, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, IN CONNECTION 
WITH USE, FAILURE TO USE, OR INABILITY TO USE THE WIRELESS SERVICES EXCEPT WHERE THE CLAIMS 
RESULT FROM THE UNDERLYING CARRIER’S GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT. THIS 
INDEMNITY WILL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT. SUBSCRIBER HAS NO PROPERTY 
RIGHT IN ANY NUMBER ASSIGNED TO IT, AND UNDERSTANDS THAT ANY SUCH NUMBER CAN BE 
CHANGED. SUBSCRIBER UNDERSTANDS THAT CPI AND THE UNDERLYING CARRIER CANNOT GUARANTEE 
THE SECURITY OF WIRELESS TRANSMISSIONS, AND WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY LACK OF SECURITY 
RELATING TO THE USE OF THE CHARGEPOINT SERVICES. 

8.6 ADDITIONAL RIGHTS. BECAUSE SOME STATES OR JURISDICITONS DO NOT ALLOW THE 
LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES AND/OR THE DISCLAIMER OF 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 8, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE LIMITATIONS MAY 
NOT APPLY; PROVIDED THAT, IN SUCH INSTANCES, CPI’S LIABILTY AND/OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES 



Page 10 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

GRANTED IN SUCH CASES SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. 

9. TERM, RENEWAL AND TERMINATION. 

9.1 TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and 
shall continue until the expiration of all of Subscriber’s Cloud Plans. 

9.2 CLOUD PLAN TERM. Each Cloud Plan acquired by Subscriber shall commence as follows: 
Each Cloud Plan acquired for use with a new Charging Station will commence on ninety (90) days from the 
date the subscription plan is invoiced. Upon expiration of the original term, this Agreement will renew 
automatically for the successive term originally purchased at the list price applicable thereto, subject to 
increases and Subscriber’s right to terminate below. Should the renewal be cancelled and subsequently 
be requested to be reinstated by Subscriber, reinstatement will be subject to the payment of Subscription 
Fees for any lapse period plus reasonable reinstatement fee. If, however, at any time after the original 
term Subscriber wishes to terminate a Cloud Plan that has been automatically renewed, Subscriber may do 
so by providing CPI thirty (30) days’ written notice of cancellation and CPI will issue Subscriber a pro-rata 
refund of any funds paid for periods from the effective date of cancellation to the end of the auto-renewed 
term.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, there shall no pro-rata refunds allowed on automatic renewals for 
plans of multiple years.  Renewals of Cloud Plans will commence on the date of the expiration of the 
Subscription being renewed. Each Subscriber Cloud Plan shall continue for the applicable duration thereof, 
unless this Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with its terms. If Subscriber has elected or is 
required, as the case may be, to pay by credit card as provided in this Agreement or if applicable, as 
described in CPI’s credit card policy, the renewal will be charged to Subscriber’s payment method (credit 
card) on file, which may include any payment method automatically updated by Subscriber’s issuing bank. 
If Subscriber’s credit card is declined, invalid, or payment is not made by the issuer of Subscriber’s credit 
card on Subscriber’s Subscription Date, without further notice CPI reserves the right to automatically 
recharge the payment method until payment is received, the payment method is updated, or the Service 
is discontinued for nonpayment. 

 

9.3 TERMINATION BY CPI. 

(a) This Agreement may be immediately terminated by CPI: (i) if Subscriber is in material 
breach of any of its obligations under this Agreement, and has not cured such breach within thirty (30) 
days (or within five (5) days in the case of any payment default) of Subscriber’s receipt of written notice 
thereof; (ii) Subscriber becomes the subject of a petition in bankruptcy or any other proceeding related 
to insolvency, receivership, liquidation or an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iii) upon the 
determination by any regulatory body that the subject matter of this Agreement is subject to any 
governmental regulatory authorization or review that imposes additional costs of doing business upon 
CPI; or (iv) as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement. Regardless of whether Subscriber is then in 
breach, CPI may, in its reasonable discretion, determine that it will not accept any renewal by Subscriber of 
its subscription to ChargePoint Services. In such case, this Agreement shall terminate upon the later of the 
expiration of all of Subscriber’s subscriptions to ChargePoint Services. 

(b) CPI may in its discretion suspend Subscriber’s continuing access to the ChargePoint 
Services or any portion thereof if (A) Subscriber has breached any provision of this Agreement, or has 
acted in manner that indicates that Subscriber does not intend to, or is unable to, comply with any 
provision of this Agreement; (B) such suspension is required by law (for example, due to a change to the 
law governing the provision of the ChargePoint Services); or (c) providing the ChargePoint Services to  
Subscriber could create a security risk or material technical burden as reasonably determined by CPI. 

9.4 TERMINATION BY SUBSCRIBER. 



Page 11 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

This Agreement may be immediately terminated by Subscriber without prejudice to any 
other remedy of Subscriber at law or equity: (i) if CPI is in material breach of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, and has not cured such breach within thirty (30) days of the date of its receipt of written 
notice thereof, (ii) CPI becomes the subject of a petition in bankruptcy or any other proceeding related to 
insolvency, receivership, liquidation or an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or (iii) upon providing 
thirty (30) days prior written notice. 

9.5 REFUND OR PAYMENT UPON TERMINATION. Upon any termination of this Agreement 
for cause by Subscriber pursuant to Section 9.4(i)or by CPI pursuant to Section 9.3(a)(iii), CPI shall refund 
to Subscriber a pro-rata portion of any pre-paid Subscription Fees based upon the remaining Cloud Plan 
term. Upon any termination for any other reason, Subscriber shall not be entitled to any refund of any 
Subscription Fees as a result of such termination. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, in no 
event shall any termination relieve Subscriber of any unpaid Subscription Fees due CPI for the Cloud Plan 
term in which the termination occurs or any prior Cloud Plan term. 

9.6 SURVIVAL. Those provisions dealing with the Intellectual Property Rights of CPI, 
limitations of liability and disclaimers, restrictions of warranty, Applicable Law and those other provisions 
which by their nature or terms are intended to survive the termination of this Agreement will remain in 
full force and effect as between the Parties hereto regardless of the termination of this Agreement. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION. Subscriber hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold CPI, its officers,  
directors, agents, affiliates, distribution partners, licensors and suppliers harmless from and against any 
and all claims, actions, proceedings, costs, liabilities, losses and expenses (including, but not limited to, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively, “Claims”) suffered or incurred by such indemnified parties 
resulting from or arising out of Subscriber’s actual or alleged use (directly, or through a grantee of Rights 
by Subscriber) of the ChargePoint Services, ChargePoint or Subscriber Content and Services. Subscriber 
will cooperate as fully as reasonably required in the defense of any claim. CPI reserves the right, at its own 
expense, to assume the exclusive defense and control of any matter subject to indemnification by 
Subscriber. 

 

11. GENERAL.  

11.1 AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION. CPI reserves the right to modify this Agreement from 
time to time. CPI will provide notice of each such modification to Subscriber. Subscriber’s continued use 
of the ChargePoint Services following such notice will constitute an acceptance of the modified 
Agreement. 

11.2 WAIVER. The failure of either Party at any time to enforce any provision of this Agreement 

shall not be construed to be a waiver of the right of such Party to thereafter enforce that provision or any other 
provision or right. 

11.3 FORCE MAJEURE. Except with respect to payment obligations, neither CPI nor Subscriber 
will be liable for failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder due to causes beyond such party’s 
reasonable control and occurring without its fault or negligence, including but not limited to fire, flood, 
earthquake or other natural disaster (irrespective of such Party’s condition of any preparedness 
therefore); war, embargo; riot; strike; labor action; any lawful order, decree, or other directive of any 
government authority that prohibits a Party from performing its obligations under this Agreement; 
material shortages; shortage of transport; and failures of suppliers to deliver material or components in 
accordance with the terms of their contracts. 

11.4  GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The ChargePoint entity 
entering into this Agreement, the address to which Subscriber should direct notices under this Agreement, 



Page 12 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

the governing law, and place of jurisdiction, shall be determined according to where the Subscriber is 
domiciled: 

If Subscriber is 
domiciled in: 

The CPI Entity 
entering into 
this Agreement 
is: 

Notices should 
be addressed to: 

Governing law 
is: 

Place of 
jurisdiction: 

Forum: 

The United 
States of 
America 

ChargePoint, 
Inc., a Delaware 
corporation 

Attn: Legal 
Department 
ChargePoint, Inc. 
254 E Hacienda 
Ave 
Campbell, CA 
95008 

California and 
controlling 
United States 
federal law  

Santa Clara, 
California, U.S.A. 

Judicial 
Arbitration and 
Mediation 
Services, Inc. 
(JAMS) 

Canada ChargePoint 
Canada, Inc., a 
British Columbia 
corporation 

Attn: Legal 
Department 
ChargePoint, Inc. 
254 E Hacienda 
Ave 
Campbell, CA 
95008 

British Columbia 
and controlling 
Canadian federal 
law  

Vancouver, 
British Columbia, 
Canada 

ADR Institute of 
Canada 

 

This Agreement, and any disputes related to this Agreement, will be governed by the applicable Governing 
Laws above, without regard to conflicts of laws rules or the United Nations Convention on the International 
Sale of Goods. 

Except with respect to any matter relating to Subscriber’s violation of the intellectual property rights of CPI, 
any disputes, actions, claims or causes of action arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall 
be submitted to and finally settled by arbitration using the English language in accordance with the 
Arbitration Rules and Procedures of the applicable Forum above then in effect, by one or more commercial 
arbitrator(s) with substantial experience in the industry and in resolving complex commercial contract 
disputes. Judgment upon the award so rendered may be entered in a court having jurisdiction or application 
may be made to such court for judicial acceptance of any award and an order of enforcement, as the case 
may be. All claims shall be brought in the parties’ individual capacity, and not as a plaintiff or class member 
in any purported class or representative proceeding. With respect to any matter relating to the intellectual 
property rights of CPI, such claim may be litigated in a court of competent jurisdiction. The prevailing party 
in any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party shall have the right to institute an action in any court of proper 
jurisdiction for injunctive relief. 

 

11.5 NOTICE REGARDING CLAIMS TO REGULATORY COMPLIANCE MECHANISMS. The use of 
certain ChargePoint Charging Stations may be eligible to generate clean fuels credits, low-carbon fuel 
standard credits, renewable fuels credits, emissions reduction units, carbon offsets, allowances, 



Page 13 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

renewable fuel and/or obligation certificates, or similar regulatory compliance instruments, collectively 
(“Regulatory Compliance Mechanisms”), used to comply with applicable federal, state, provincial,  
international or regional emissions, low-carbon fuel, and/or renewable fuel compliance programs. CPI and 
Subscriber may be eligible to claim title to Regulatory Compliance Mechanisms, however, only one Party 
can claim title.  Should Subscriber choose to claim regulatory title, assuming Subscriber may be eligible to 
do so, Subscriber must opt-in to the applicable program and fulfill all ongoing administrative and reporting 
obligations required of program participants, including recurring verification and/or auditing 
requirements. CPI intends to claim title to applicable Regulatory Compliance Mechanisms, assuming CPI 
may be eligible to do so; however, CPI will not claim title to specific Regulatory Compliance Mechanisms 
that Subscriber has opted to claim. Subscriber agrees that it will provide CPI with written notice of its 
intent to claim specific Regulatory Compliance Mechanisms within ten (10) days of the Effective Date. If 
Subscriber does not currently intend to claim regulatory title, but desires to do so at any time in the future, 
Subscriber may, by providing written notice to CPI, elect to claim title to Regulatory Compliance 
Mechanisms resulting from the use of ChargePoint Charging Stations thirty (30) days or more after the 
date of such notice. Subscriber represents and warrants to CPI that, in the absence of providing written 
notice, Subscriber will not claim any Regulatory Compliance Mechanisms and hereby designates that right 
to CPI. All notices shall be provided by email to CPI at lcfsnotification@chargepoint.com.   

11.6 NOTICE REGARDING RIN DATA. For Subscriber’s located in the United States, CPI will 
participate in an application to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) to permit vehicle 
charging data (“Charging Data”) collected by CPI from centrally networked charging stations to be utilized 
in a process to generate  Renewable Identification Numbers (“RIN)” under the Renewable Fuel Standard. 
CPI must establish its exclusive right to utilize the Charging Data and the associated environmental 
attributes underlying the charging events represented by the Charging Data (Charging Data and such 
environmental attributes referred to collectively as, the “RIN Data”) for the purposes of RIN generation. 
Subscriber confirms that it will not pursue utilizing RIN Data for the purposes of RIN generation and that, 
as between Subscriber and CPI, CPI has the exclusive right to use the RIN Data for the purpose of RIN 
generation. 

11.7 NOTICES. Other than the notices required in Sections 11.5 and 11.6, any notice required 
or permitted by this Agreement shall be sent (a) if by CPI, via electronic mail to the address indicated by 
Subscriber in Subscriber’s ChargePoint Services account; or (b) if by Subscriber, via electronic mail to 
mssa@chargepoint.com. 

 

11.8 INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. Subscriber acknowledges that damages for improper use of the 
ChargePoint Services may be irreparable; therefore, CPI is entitled to seek equitable relief, including but 
not limited to preliminary injunction and injunction, in addition to all other remedies. 

11.9 SEVERABILITY. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, if any term or condition 
of this Agreement or the application thereof to either Party will to any extent be determined jointly by the 
Parties or by any judicial, governmental or similar authority, to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 
of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to this Agreement, the Parties or 
circumstances other than those as to which it is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, will not be 
affected thereby.  

11.10 ASSIGNMENT. Subscriber may not assign any of its rights or obligations hereunder, 
whether by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of CPI (not to be 
unreasonably withheld). In the event of any purported assignment in breach of this Section, CPI shall be 
entitled, at its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement upon written notice given to Subscriber. 
Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective 

mailto:lcfsnotification@chargepoint.com
mailto:mssa@chargepoint.com
mailto:mssa@chargepoint.com


Page 14 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

successors and permitted assigns. CPI may assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement. 

11.11 NO AGENCY OR PARTNERSHIP. CPI, in the performance of this Agreement, is an 
independent contractor. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, CPI shall maintain complete 
control over its employees, its subcontractors and its operations. No partnership, joint venture or agency 
relationship is intended by CPI and Subscriber to be created by this Agreement. Neither Party has any right 
or authority to assume or create any obligations of any kind or to make any representation or warranty 
on behalf of the other Party, whether express or implied, or to bind the other Party in any respect 
whatsoever. 

11.12 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) contains the 
entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes and 
cancels all previous and contemporaneous agreements, negotiations, commitments, understandings, 
representations and writings. All purchase orders issued by Subscriber shall state that such purchase 
orders are subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and contain no other term other 
than the type of Cloud Plan, the number of Charging Stations for which such Cloud Plan is ordered, the 
term of such Cloud Plans and applicable Subscription Fees. To the extent of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any purchase order, the Agreement shall prevail. 
Notwithstanding any language to the contrary therein, no terms or conditions stated in any other 
documentation shall be incorporated into or form any part of this Agreement, and all such purported 
terms and conditions shall be null and void. 

11.13 COPYRIGHT POLICIES. It is CPI's policy to respond to notices of alleged copyright 
infringement that comply with applicable international intellectual property law (including, in the United 
States, the Digital Millennium Copyright Act) and to terminate the accounts of repeat infringers. 

11.14 THIRD PARTY RESOURCES. The ChargePoint Services may include hyperlinks to other 
websites or resources. CPI has no control over any web sites or resources that are provided by companies 
or persons other than CPI. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that CPI is not responsible for the 
availability of any such web sites or resources, CPI does not endorse any advertising, products or other 
materials on or available from such web sites or resources, and CPI is not liable for any loss or damage 
that may be incurred by Subscriber as a result of any reliance placed by Subscriber on the completeness, 
accuracy or existence of any advertising, products, or other materials on, or available from, such websites 
or resources. 

11.15 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute but one and the same 
document. 

11.16 ENGLISH LANGUAGE AGREEMENT GOVERNS. Where CPI has provided Subscriber with a 
translation of the English language version of this Agreement, Subscriber agrees that the translation is 
provided for Subscriber’s convenience only and that the English language version of this Agreement 
governs Subscriber’s relationship with CPI. If there is any conflict between the English language version of 
this Agreement. It is the express wish of the Parties that this Agreement and all related documents, 
including notices and other communications, be drawn up in the English language only. Il est la volonté 
expresse des parties que cette convention et tous les documents s’y rattachant, y compris les avis et les 
autres communications, soient rédigés et signés en anglais seulement. 

 

 
 

 



Page 15 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

FLEX BILLING TERMS 
 
 

 
This Exhibit sets forth certain additional terms and conditions (“Flex Billing Terms”) pursuant to which 
Subscriber may charge Users fees for the use of Subscriber’s Charging Stations. In order to charge such 
fees, Subscriber must subscribe to a Cloud Plan that includes CPI’s management, collection and/or 
processing services related to such fees (“Flex Billing”). 

1. DEFINITIONS. The following additional defined terms shall apply to these Flex Billing Terms: 

1.1 “CPI Fees” means a fee, currently equal to ten percent (10%) of Session Fees, charged for 
a particular Session. CPI Fees are charged by CPI in exchange for its collection and processing of Session 
Fees on behalf of Subscriber. CPI will provide Subscriber with thirty (30) days prior written notice (which 
may include, without limitation, notice provided by CPI through its regular newsletter to Subscriber) of 
any increase in CPI Fees. 

1.2 “Net Session Fees” means the total amount of Session Fees collected on behalf of the 
Subscriber by CPI, less CPI Fees and Taxes, if any, required by law to be collected by CPI from Users in 
connection with the use of Charging Stations. Except as required by law, Subscriber shall be responsible 
for the payment of all Taxes incurred in connection with use of Subscriber’s Charging Stations. 

1.3 “Session” or “Charging Session” means the period of time during which a User uses 
Subscriber’s Charging Station to charge his or her electric vehicle for a continuous period of time not less 
than two (2) minutes commencing when a User has accessed such Charging Station and ending when such 
User has terminated such access. 

1.4 “Session Fees” means the fees set by the Subscriber for a Charging Session, inclusive of 
any applicable Taxes. 

2. FLEX-BILLING SERVICE FOR CHARGING STATIONS. 

2.1. SESSION FEES. Subscriber shall have sole authority to determine and set Session Fees. 
Subscriber shall be solely responsible for determining and charging Session Fees in compliance with all 
applicable laws and regulations (including without limitation any restriction on Subscriber’s use of per- 
kWh pricing). Subscriber acknowledges that CPI is not responsible for informing Subscriber of applicable 
laws or changes thereto, and CPI will not be liable to Subscriber or any third party for any alleged or actual 
failure of Subscriber to comply with such applicable laws and regulations. 

 

2.2 DEDUCTIONS FROM SESSION FEES. In exchange for CPI collecting Session Fees on behalf 
of the Subscriber, the Subscriber hereby authorizes CPI to deduct from all Session Fees collected: (i) CPI 
Fees and (ii) to the extent required by Section 3, applicable Taxes. 

 
2.3 PAYMENT TO SUBSCRIBER OF NET SESSION FEES. Unless directed otherwise by 

Subscriber in writing (email will be sufficient) or electronic form, CPI will remit Net Session Fees to 
Subscriber, not less than monthly , provided that the amount due to Subscriber hereunder is at least fifty 
U.S. dollars (50) (or, if Subscriber is located in Canada fifty Canadian dollars). Notwithstanding, the 
foregoing, CPI shall remit any unpaid Net Session Fees, regardless of the amount, to Subscriber at least 
annually, unless directed otherwise by Subscriber in writing (email will be sufficient) or electronic form, 
and within thirty (30) days of the expiration or termination 



Page 16 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

of this Agreement. All payments shall be made by electronic payment. In order to facilitate such payments, 
Subscriber agrees to maintain Subscriber’s current bank information, into Subscriber’s ChargePoint 
Services (customer facing portal), to enable electronic remittance of the Net Session Fees. If the Subscriber 
requests payment in a manner other than electronic payment (e.g., check), Subscriber agrees to bear the 
reasonable costs related to such request. 

3. TAXES. If applicable, Subscriber is responsible for setting pricing on a Tax-inclusive basis. CPI is not 
responsible for remittance of any Taxes on behalf of Subscriber and Subscriber shall be responsible to 
report and remit any and all applicable Taxes assessable based on Charging Sessions whether state, 
federal, provincial or otherwise; provided that CPI is solely responsible for all Taxes assessable based on 
CPI’s income, property and employees. Where CPI is required by law to collect and/or remit the Taxes for 
which Subscriber is responsible, the appropriate amount shall be invoiced to Subscriber and deducted by 
CPI from Session Fees, unless Subscriber has otherwise provided CPI with a valid tax or regulatory 
exemption certificate or authorization from the appropriate taxing or regulatory authority. 



Page 17 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 
API TERMS 

 

This Exhibit sets forth certain additional terms and conditions (“API Terms”) governing Subscriber’s use of 
the APIs in connection with Subscriber’s use of the ChargePoint Services. The API Terms are part of the 
Agreement, and all such use of the APIs remains subject to the Agreement terms. 

 
1. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS. The following additional definitions shall apply to the API Terms. 

 

1.1 "API Implementation" means a Subscriber software application or website that uses any 
of the APIs to obtain and display Content in conjunction with Subscriber Content and Services. 

 
1.2 “API Documentation” means all Documentation containing instructions, restrictions or 

guidelines regarding the APIs or the use thereof, as amended and/or supplemented by CPI from time to 
time. 

 

1.3 “CPI Site Terms” means the Terms and Conditions displayed on CPI’s website, governing 
use of CPI’s website and the ChargePoint Services by visitors who are not Cloud Plan subscribers. 

 
2. API USE. Subscriber may use the APIs as and to the extent permitted by Subscriber’s Cloud Plan 
and the API Documentation, subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

 

2.1 AVAILABLE APIs AND FUNCTION CALLS. The APIs give Subscriber access to information 
through a set of function calls. The particular APIs and API function calls made available by CPI from time 
to time (and the Content available through such APIs and function calls) will be limited by Subscriber’s 
Cloud Plan, and Subscriber’s particular Cloud Plan may not include all APIs and function calls then available 
from CPI. 

 

2.2 USE AND DISPLAY OF CONTENT. Subscriber is permitted to access, use and publicly 
display the Content with Subscriber Content and Services in Subscriber’s API Implementation, subject to 
the following requirements and limitations. 

(a) All Charging Station locations provided to Subscriber as part of the Content shall be 
clearly identified by Subscriber in Subscriber’s API Implementation as ChargePoint® Network Charging 
Stations and shall contain the Brand Identifiers required by the API Documentation. In no event shall 
Subscriber’s API Implementation identify or imply that any Charging Station is a part of any network of 
charging stations other than ChargePoint. 

 

(b) Subscriber shall keep the Content used by Subscriber’s API Implementation current 
with Content obtained with the APIs to within every forty eight (48) hours. 

 
(c) Content provided to Subscriber through the APIs may contain the trade names, 

trademarks, service marks, logos, domain names, and other distinctive brand features of CPI’s business 
partners and/or other third party rights holders of Content indexed by CPI, which may not be deleted or 
altered in any manner. 

 
(d) Subscriber shall not: 



Page 18 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

(i) pre-fetch, cache, or store any Content, except that Subscriber may store limited 
amounts of Content for the purpose of improving the performance of Subscriber’s API Implementation if 
Subscriber does so temporarily, securely, and in a manner that does not permit use of the Content outside 
of the ChargePoint Service; 

 
(ii) hide or mask from CPI the identity of Subscriber’s service utilizing the APIs, 

including by failing to follow the identification conventions listed in the API Documentation; or 
 

(iii) defame, abuse, harass, stalk, threaten or otherwise violate the legal rights (such 
as rights of privacy and publicity) of others. 

 
2.3 REQUIRED INFORMATION. Subscriber must: 

 
(a) display to all viewers and users of Subscriber’s API Implementation the link to the CPI 

Site Terms and Conditions as presented through the ChargePoint Services or described in the 
Documentation; 

 
(b) explicitly state in the use terms governing Subscriber’s API Implementation that, by 

using Subscriber’s API Implementation, such viewers and users are agreeing to be bound by the CPI Site 
Terms; and 

 
(c) include in Subscriber’s API Implementation, and abide by, a privacy policy complying 

will all applicable laws; and 
 

(d) comply with all applicable laws designed to protect the privacy and legal rights of users 
of Subscriber’s API Implementation. 

 
2.4 REPORTING. Subscriber must implement reporting mechanisms, if any, that CPI requires 

in the API Documentation. 
 

3. CPI BRANDING REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS. 
 

3.1 MANDATORY CPI BRANDING. Subject to Section 3.2 below and the restrictions on use of 
CPI Marks set forth in the Agreement, Subscriber agrees that each page comprising Subscriber’s API 
Implementation will include a ChargePoint logo and will state that Subscriber’s application or website is 
provided, in part, through the ChargePoint Services. 

 

3.2 RESTRICTIONS. Subscriber shall not: 
 

(a) display any CPI Mark as the most prominent element on any page in Subscriber’s API 
Implementation or Subscriber’s website (except as used in connection with the display of Charging 
Stations); or 

 

(b) display any CPI Mark anywhere in Subscriber’s API Implementation or on Subscriber’s 
website if Subscriber’s API Implementation or website contains or displays adult content or promotes 
illegal activities, gambling, or the sale of tobacco or alcohol to persons under twenty-one (21) years of 
age. 



Page 19 of 19 
5.30.24 Version 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 
TERMS REGARDING GRANTING OF RIGHTS 

 

This Exhibit sets forth certain additional terms and conditions applicable to Rights Grantors and Rights 
Grantees regarding the granting of Rights (“Rights Terms”). The Rights Terms are part of the Agreement, 
and all use of the ChargePoint Services permitted pursuant to the Rights Terms remains subject to the 
Agreement. 

 

1. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS. The following additional definitions shall apply. 
 

1.1 “Rights Grantor” means Subscriber. 

1.2 “Rights Grantee” means any person to whom Subscriber has granted Rights. For purposes 
of this Agreement, a Subscriber shall be deemed to have granted Rights to the entity assisting Subscriber 
with creating its account and initiating Subscriber’s access to Services. 

2. TERMS. This Section governs Subscriber’s granting of Rights as a Rights Grantor. 
 

2.1 LIMITED RIGHTS. A Rights Grantee’s right to access and use the ChargePoint Services for and 
on behalf of a Rights Grantor is limited to the specific Rights granted by such Rights Grantor to such Rights 
Grantee. Such Rights may be limited according to the Cloud Plan(s) subscribed to by Subscriber. Subscriber may 
revoke Rights, or any portion thereof, it has granted to a Rights Grantee at will and such Rights will thereafter 
by terminated with respect to such Rights Grantee. In no event may Subscriber grant Rights in excess of those 
provided to it through the Cloud Plan(s) to which it has subscribed. 

 
2.2 RESPONSIBILITY FOR AUTHORIZED USER. All use of the ChargePoint Services by a Rights 

Grantee exercising Rights granted by Subscriber shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement 
(including without limitation Subscriber’s indemnification obligation pursuant to Section 10 thereof). 
Subscriber shall be responsible for the actions, omissions, or performance of such Rights Grantee while 
exercising any such Rights, as if such action, omission or performance had been committed by Subscriber 
directly. 

 

2.3 NO AGREEMENT. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the ChargePoint Services merely 
enable a Rights Grantor to extend Rights to Rights Grantees. The mere extension of such Rights by a Rights 
Grantor to a Rights Grantee does not constitute an agreement between Rights Grantor and the Rights Grantee 
with respect to the granted Rights or the exercise of such Rights by the Rights Grantee. CPI does not, either 
through the terms of the Agreement or the provision of ChargePoint Services undertake to provide any such 
agreement. It is the responsibility of the Rights Grantor and the Rights Grantee to enter into such an agreement 
on terms mutually acceptable to each. CPI expressly undertakes no liability with respect to such an agreement 
and Rights Grantor fully and unconditionally releases CPI from any liability arising out of such an agreement. 

Further Rights Grantor agrees to indemnify and hold CPI, its officers, directors, agents, affiliates, distribution 
partners, licensors and suppliers harmless from and against any and all claims, actions, proceedings, costs, 
liabilities, losses and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively, 
“Claims”) suffered or incurred by such indemnified parties resulting from or arising out of such agreement. 



Revised 3.4.2024 1  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
PURCHASE 

 

1. Placement of Orders. 

 
A. Purchase of Products. These Terms and Conditions of Purchase (“Terms”) govern the 
purchase of (i) ChargePoint’s hardware products, including without limitation, electric vehicle 
charging station(s) (“ChargePoint Hardware”), and/or (ii) third party-provided hardware sold by 
ChargePoint (“Third Party Hardware”) (subsections A(i) and A(ii) herein are collectively defined 
as “Products”) by you or the legal entity you represent (“Company”) from the applicable 
ChargePoint entity as defined in Section 7.G below (“ChargePoint”). ChargePoint and Company 
are collectively defined as “Parties,” and each are individually a “Party.” Company’s purchase 
of Products from ChargePoint shall be legally binding by a written Accepted Order specifying the 
quantity and model of Products to be purchased and requested delivery schedule (which, absent 
agreement between the Parties, shall be a date that is no less than sixty (60) days after the date 
of the applicable Accepted Order). Company’s purchase of Products is subject to the terms and 
conditions described in these Terms. In the event there are terms and conditions in the Accepted 
Order that conflict with these Terms, then these Terms will supersede and control in such event. 
Company acknowledges and agrees its purchase of Third Party Hardware may be subject to 
additional terms and conditions and/or different warranty coverage than the Warranty (as defined 
below) – see https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services (“Third Party Warranty 
Terms”) for further details.  

 
B. Acceptance of Purchase Orders. All purchase orders, and modifications to purchase 
orders, for Products are subject to acceptance or rejection by ChargePoint in its sole discretion. 
No purchase order shall be legally binding on ChargePoint until it is accepted in writing by 
ChargePoint (“Accepted Order”). ChargePoint agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to 
notify Company of Accepted Order(s) or rejection of purchase orders within ten (10) business days 
after receipt thereof. Accepted Orders are non-cancelable, non-returnable, and non-refundable. 

 
C. Refusal of Purchase Orders. ChargePoint may withhold shipments of Products to 
Company if Company exceeds its applicable credit limit (if any), has not provided prepayment (if 
applicable), is in violation of its payment obligations to ChargePoint, and/or otherwise is in 
material breach of these Terms. 

 
D. Stations Require Subscription to Cloud Services. Products are designed to work with 
ChargePoint’s cloud-based services (“Cloud Services”). Company’s access to and use of Cloud 
Services requires its acceptance of the then-current version of ChargePoint’s Master Services 
and Subscription Agreement, which may be updated from time to time by ChargePoint.  

 
2. Delivery 

 
A. Shipping Costs; Terms. All shipment of Products, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
Parties in writing, shall be FCA ChargePoint’s warehouse. Notwithstanding the foregoing, certain 
Products, including without limitation Third Party Hardware, may ship directly from the 
manufacturer of such Products or from a third party as authorized by such manufacturer. In such 
cases, shipping shall be FCA applicable third party’s warehouse. Company is responsible for all 
costs of shipping, transportation, insurance, warehousing, and other charges and costs 

https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services


Revised 3.4.2024 2  

associated with the shipment of Products to Company. All shipping dates are approximate and 
are based upon prompt receipt of all necessary information from Company. In no event shall 
ChargePoint be liable for any costs related to the delay in delivery of the Products. Company's 
sole remedy for any material delay in delivery of the Products is to cancel the applicable order. 

 
B. Transfer of Title. Delivery of Products to Company shall be completed upon delivery of 
the Products to Company's freight forwarder. Risk of loss and damage to Products shall pass to 
Company upon the delivery of such Products to such freight forwarder. ChargePoint shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to deliver Products ordered by Company on the scheduled 
delivery date. All claims for non-conforming shipments must be made in writing to ChargePoint 
within twenty (20) days of the passing of the risk of loss and damage, as described above. Any 
claims not made within such period shall be deemed waived and released. 

 
C. Substitutions. ChargePoint shall have the right to make substitutions and modifications to 
Products, including without limitation, the specifications of Products to be delivered pursuant to 
the applicable Accepted Order; provided that, such substitutions or modifications will not 
materially affect the Product's form, fit, function, or safety specifications. 

 
3. Invoicing and Payment 

 
A. Invoicing. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties, ChargePoint shall issue an 
invoice to Company on or after the date it ships the ordered Products; provided that, ChargePoint 
may condition Accepted Order(s) on such credit and/or prepayment terms that ChargePoint 
determines, in its sole discretion, is necessary for such Accepted Order(s), including without 
limitation, Company’s prior payment history and/or the quantity size of the order. If there is any 
change to the applicable credit and/or prepayment terms, no purchase order or acceptance 
thereof will be effective until Company has consented to such changes in writing thereto. If 
Company causes a delay in delivery, ChargePoint may issue its invoice at any time on or after 
the scheduled delivery date. 

 
B. Payment Terms. ChargePoint will invoice Company at time of shipment of the Products. 
All invoices shall be paid within thirty (30) days of Company’s receipt thereof. Invoices not paid 
when due are subject to interest at the rate of one and one- half percent (1.5%) per month or, if 
less, the highest rate allowed under applicable law. All non-credit shipments, or shipments in 
excess of Company’s available credit line, if any, shall be prepaid prior to shipment. 

C. No Right of Set-Off; No Right of Return. Invoiced amounts are not subject to reduction by 
set-off or otherwise without the express written permission of ChargePoint. All sales are final, 
and Company shall have no right of return; provided that, ChargePoint shall comply with its 
obligations under the Warranty (as defined below). 

 
D. Taxes, Duties, Etc. All amounts due to ChargePoint under these Terms and/or any 
applicable Accepted Orders are net of any duties, any sales, use, excise, value-added, 
withholding, or similar tax of any kind and any and all other fees and charges of any nature 
(collectively, “Taxes”) imposed by the United States, Canada or any foreign, state or local 
governmental entity, country or regional authority, or instrumentality thereof on the purchase, 
shipment, use or sale of the Products by or to Company, other than taxes measured by 
ChargePoint's income, corporate franchise, or personal property ownership. Where applicable, 
ChargePoint shall bill Company for the full amount of such taxes and shall include such amount 



Revised 3.4.2024 3  

as a separate line item on the invoice(s) sent to the Company; provided that, ChargePoint’s failure 
to so bill the Company shall not relieve Company from the obligation to pay any Tax described 
in this section. 

 
E. Payment Currency. All amount payable under these Terms shall be paid in United States 
dollars or if Company is located in Canada, then Canadian dollars. If Company is located outside 
of the United States, Company agrees to take all necessary actions required, including without 
limitation, registration of these Terms and application for permission to make payments to 
ChargePoint hereunder, with the appropriate government authorities in the Company’s 
jurisdiction, or such other institution or official, and to take such other measures as may be 
necessary to comply with any government currency controls in effect in Company's jurisdiction, 
as soon as reasonably practicable after Company’s acceptance of these Terms. Company shall 
remit payment to ChargePoint, at Company’s option (i) via wire, ACH transfer, or other form of 
electronic payment (acceptable to ChargePoint) to an account designated by ChargePoint in 
writing from time to time or (ii) by check, made out to ChargePoint, Inc. 

 
F. All Orders Subject to Credit Approval. All orders are subject to credit approval by 
ChargePoint. The amount of credit or terms of payment may be changed or credit withdrawn by 
ChargePoint in its reasonable discretion, without advance notice. ChargePoint may, in its 
discretion, (i) withhold further manufacture, performance or shipment; (ii) require immediate cash 
payments for past and future shipments or performance; (iii) require other security satisfactory 
to ChargePoint before further manufacture, performance or shipment is made; and/or (iv) may, 
if shipment has been made, recover Products from the carrier pending receipt of such 
assurances. 

 
G. Provisions Relating to Shipments in Lots. If the applicable Accepted Order requires or 
authorizes delivery of Products in separate lots, shipments or milestones to be separately 
accepted by Company, Company may only refuse such portion of a lot, shipment or milestone 
that fails to comply with the requirements of such purchase order. Company may not refuse to 
receive any lot or portion thereof for failure of any other lot or portion or a lot to be delivered or 
to comply with these Terms, unless such right of refusal is expressly provided for on the face 
hereof. Company shall pay for each lot in accordance with these Terms. Products held for 
Company are at Company’s sole risk and expense. 

 
H. Prices do not include Freight, Etc. Except to the extent expressly stated in the applicable 
Accepted Order(s), ChargePoint’s prices do not include any freight, storage, insurance, taxes, 
excises, fees, duties, or other government charges related to the goods, and Company shall pay 
such amounts or reimburse ChargePoint for any amounts ChargePoint pays. If Company claims 
a tax or other exemption or direct payment permit, it shall provide ChargePoint with a valid 
exemption certificate or permit and indemnify, defend, and hold ChargePoint harmless from any 
taxes, costs and penalties arising out of same. ChargePoint’s prices include the costs of its 
standard domestic packing, only. Any deviation from this standard packing (domestic or export), 
including U.S. Government sealed packing, shall result in extra charges. To determine such 
extra charges, Company should consult with ChargePoint’s sales offices. Any increases, 
changes, adjustments, or surcharges (including without limitation, fuel surcharges) which may 
be in connection with the freight charges, rates or classification included as part of these Terms, 
shall be for Company’s account. 

 
I. Disputes. If Company disputes any portion or all of an invoice issued by ChargePoint, 



Revised 3.4.2024 4  

then it shall notify ChargePoint in writing of the amount in dispute and the reason for its 
disagreement within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of such invoice. The undisputed portion of 
any issued invoice shall be paid when due, and finance charges on any unpaid portion shall 
accrue, from the date due until the date of payment, to the extent that such amounts are finally 
determined to be payable to ChargePoint. 

 
J. Remedies upon Payment Default. If Company breaches these Terms, then ChargePoint 
may, in addition to any other rights or remedies it may have at law or otherwise and subject to 
any cure rights of Company, declare the entire balance of Company’s account immediately due 
and payable or foreclose any security interest in the delivered Products. If any unpaid balance 
is referred for collection, Company agrees to pay ChargePoint, to the extent permitted by 
applicable law, reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to all damages otherwise available, whether 
or not litigation is commenced or prosecuted to final judgment, pay any court costs or expenses 
incurred by ChargePoint and any finance charges accrued on any unpaid balance owed by 
Company. 

 
K. Suspended Shipments. ChargePoint reserves the right to suspend further shipments of 
Products if Company is more than thirty (30) days late in payment of an undisputed invoice. 
ChargePoint reserves the right to terminate any order and/or shipment of Products if Company 
is more than sixty (60) days late in payment of an undisputed invoice. 

 
4. Installation 

 
Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, Company shall be responsible, as 

between the Parties, for arranging for the installation and provisioning of the Products and any 
associated costs thereof. At Company’s request, ChargePoint may provide the names and 
contact information of one or more installers of Products; provided that, in providing such 
information ChargePoint makes no representation or warranty of any kind, nor does it undertake 
any liability, with respect to or regarding the quality of any installation or other services performed 
by any such installer. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY AGREED TO IN WRITING BETWEEN THE 
PARTIES, CHARGEPOINT IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR, AND WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR, 
THE QUALITY OF ANY INSTALLATION AND/OR PROVISIONING SERVICES OF THE 
PRODUCTS OR ANY CLAIM IN ANY WAY RELATING TO OR RESULTING FROM SUCH 
SERVICES. 

Certain Products may require an onsite review and confirmation that the installation of 
Company’s purchased Product(s) meet all ChargePoint specifications (“Commissioning”).  
Company’s purchase of Commissioning is subject to and governed by the terms and conditions 
for Commissioning, which may be found at https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-
consulting-services .  

 
5. Warranties/Limitation of Liability 

 
A. Warranty. ChargePoint Hardware is covered by the terms and conditions of 
ChargePoint’s Standard Parts Warranty (“Warranty”) and Third Party Hardware is covered by 
the terms and conditions of Third Party Warranty Terms, both may be found at 
https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services. The applicable terms and conditions of the 
Warranty and Third Party Warranty Terms are hereby incorporated by reference into these 
Terms. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, Third Party Hardware is covered by 
the terms and conditions of the warranty of the manufacturer of the applicable Third Party 

https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services
https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services
https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services


Revised 3.4.2024 5  

Hardware, as described in the Third Party Warranty Terms.  

 
B. Post-Warranty Maintenance. Company acknowledges and agrees that to obtain Warranty-
related and/or other maintenance services for ChargePoint Hardware after the expiration of the 
Warranty-related coverage for purchased ChargePoint Hardware, Company must purchase 
extended warranties and/or maintenance agreements 180 days prior to the expiration of the 
initial Warranty from either directly from ChargePoint or an authorized ChargePoint reseller or 
distributor. If the initial Warranty has expired more than 180 days, then Company will need to 
contact ChargePoint for eligibility requirements to purchase extended warranties and/or 
maintenance agreements for ChargePoint Hardware. 

 
C. Disclaimer of Warranties. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION 5, 
NEITHER CHARGEPOINT NOR ANY OF ITS SUPPLIERS MAKES ANY WARRANTY WITH 
RESPECT TO THE PERFORMANCE OF THE PRODUCTS, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, 
STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE. CHARGEPOINT AND ITS SUPPLIERS EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIM ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS BY THE PRODUCTS, 
OR MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. CHARGEPOINT 
DOES NOT WARRANT UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE OPERATION OF PRODUCTS. 

 
D. Limitation of Liability. 

 

i. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED IN THESE 
TERMS, EXCEPT FOR A PARTY’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, IN NO 
EVENT SHALL CHARGEPOINT OR ITS SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE TO COMPANY FOR ANY 
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING 
OUT OF THESE TERMS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREUNDER, 
WHETHER FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING  NEGLIGENCE), OR 
OTHERWISE, AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH PARTY OR ITS AGENTS HAVE BEEN 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

 
ii. COMPANY’S SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH BY CHARGEPOINT OF ITS 

OBLIGATIONS OR WARRANTIES UNDER THESE TERMS SHALL BE LIMITED TO, AT 
CHARGEPOINT’S OPTION, REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF THOSE PRODUCTS TO 
WHICH SUCH BREACH IS APPLICABLE OR REFUND BY CHARGEPOINT OF ALL OR A 
PART OF THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE NON-CONFORMING PRODUCTS. 

 
E. Warranty Exclusions. Warranty and Third Party Warranty Terms are subject to certain 
exclusions as more fully described in the respective documents. COMPANY HAS BEEN 
INFORMED AND UNDERSTANDS THAT, IN THE EVENT ANY SUCH EXCLUSION 
BECOMES APPLICABLE, ALL APPLICABLE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
CONTAINED IN THESE TERMS SHALL IMMEDIATELY BECOME NULL AND VOID. 

 
F. Exclusive Remedies. THE REMEDIES CONTAINED IN SECTION 5 ARE COMPANY’S 
SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AND ARE IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER RIGHTS OR 
REMEDIES COMPANY MAY HAVE AGAINST CHARGEPOINT WITH RESPECT TO 
NONCONFORMANCE OF THE PRODUCTS. 

 



Revised 3.4.2024 6  

6. Intellectual Property 
 
A. Restrictions on Use. Company shall not: (i) create derivative works based on the 
Products, (ii) copy, frame or mirror any part or content of the Products, (iii) reverse engineer any 
Products, and/or (iv) access or use the Products for any improper purpose whatsoever, including 
without limitation, to (1) build a competitive product or service, and/or (2) copy any features, 
functions, interface, graphics or “look and feel” of the Products. 

 
B. Ownership of Intellectual Property. As between the Parties, all right, title and interest in 
and to any intellectual property related in any way to the ChargePoint Hardware is, and shall 
remain, the exclusive property of ChargePoint. For these purposes, the term “intellectual 
property” shall mean, all of a Party’s patents, patent applications, patent rights, copyrights, moral 
rights, algorithms, devices, application programming interfaces, databases, data collections, 
diagrams, inventions, methods and processes (whether or not patentable), know-how, trade 
secrets, trademarks, service marks and other brand identifiers, network configurations and 
architectures, proprietary information, protocols, schematics, specifications, software (in any 
form, including source code and executable code), techniques, interfaces, URLs, web sites, 
works of authorship, and all other forms of technology, in each case whether or not registered 
with a governmental entity or embodied in any tangible form and all rights and forms of protection 
of a similar nature to any of the foregoing or having equivalent effect anywhere in the world in 
any way arising prior to or during the term of these Terms. 
 

7. General 

 
A. Attorneys’ Fees. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce these Terms, the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses in addition 
to any other relief to which the prevailing Party is otherwise entitled. 

 
B. Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be liable hereunder by reason of any failure or delay 
in the performance of its obligations hereunder on account strikes, shortages, riots, insurrection, 
fires, flood, storm, explosion, acts of God, war, governmental action, labor conditions, 
earthquakes, or any other cause which is beyond the reasonable control of such Party. 

 
C. Waiver. The failure of either Party to require performance by the other Party of any 
provision hereof shall not affect such Party’s full right to require such performance at any time 
thereafter, nor shall the waiver by either Party of a breach of any provision hereof be taken or 
held to be a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
D. Severability. If any provision of these Terms shall become unenforceable or invalid under 
any applicable law or be so held by applicable court decision, such unenforceability or invalidity 
shall not render these Terms unenforceable or invalid as a whole, and, in such event, such 
provision shall be changed and interpreted as to best accomplish the objectives of such 
provisions within the limits of applicable law or applicable court decisions. 

 
E. Assignment. The rights and liabilities of the Parties hereto shall bind and inure to the 
benefit of their successors, executors or administrators; provided however, that neither 
ChargePoint nor Company may assign or delegate these Terms or any of its licenses, rights or 
duties under these Terms, whether by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written 
consent of the other Party in its reasonable discretion; provided however, that Company and 



Revised 3.4.2024 7  

ChargePoint shall each be entitled to assign these Terms to an affiliate or to its successor in 
interest by way of merger, acquisition of substantially all of the assets of assignor or any similar 
event (collectively, “Acquisition Transactions”). Notwithstanding any Acquisition Transaction, 
Company shall not assign these Terms to any competitor of ChargePoint without ChargePoint’s 
prior written consent, which shall be subject to its sole discretion. Any attempted assignment in 
violation of this provision shall be void. 

 
F. Notices. Any notice, request, demand or other communication by these Terms required 
or permitted to be given by one part to the other shall be given in writing by email with 
confirmation of receipt, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, fax or courier 
addressed to such other Party or delivered to the address for each Party set forth below their 
respective signatures, or at such other fax, email address or office address as may be given from 
time to time by either of the Parties. 

 
G. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Dispute Resolution. The ChargePoint entity entering 
into these Terms with the Company, the address to which Company should direct notices under 
these Terms, the applicable governing law, and applicable place of jurisdiction, shall be 
determined according to where Company is domiciled as follows: 

 

 
If Company 
is domiciled 
in: 

ChargePoint 
Entity 
entering into 
these Terms 
with 
Company: 

Notices 
should be 
addressed to: 

Governing law: Place of 
jurisdiction: 

Forum: 

The United 
States of 
America 

ChargePoint, 
Inc., a 
Delaware 
corporation 

Attn: Legal 
Department 
ChargePoint, 
Inc. 254 E 
Hacienda Ave 
Campbell, CA 
95008 

California and 
controlling 
United States 
federal law 

Santa Clara, 
California, U.S.A. 

Judicial 
Arbitration 
and 
Mediation 
Services, Inc. 
(JAMS) 

Canada ChargePoint 
Canada, Inc., 
a British 
Columbia 
corporation 

TBD British 
Columbia and 
controlling 
Canadian 
federal 
law 

Vancouver, 

British Columbia, 
Canada 

ADR 

Institute of 
Canada 

 

These Terms, and any disputes related to these Terms, will be governed by the applicable 
“Governing law” referenced above, without regard to conflicts of laws rules or the United Nations 
Convention on the International Sale of Goods. 

 

Except with respect to any matter relating to Company’s violation of the intellectual property 
rights of ChargePoint, any disputes, actions, claims or causes of action arising out of or in 
connection with these Terms shall be submitted to and finally settled by arbitration using the 
English language in accordance with the Arbitration Rules and Procedures of the applicable 
Forum above then in effect, by one or more commercial arbitrator(s) with substantial experience 



Revised 3.4.2024 8  

in the industry and in resolving complex commercial contract disputes. Judgment upon the award 
so rendered may be entered in a court having jurisdiction or application may be made to such 
court for judicial acceptance of any award and an order of enforcement, as the case may be. All 
claims shall be brought in the Parties’ individual capacity, and not as a plaintiff or class member 
in any purported class or representative proceeding. With respect to any matter relating to the 
intellectual property rights of ChargePoint, such claim may be litigated in a court of competent 
jurisdiction. The prevailing Party in any dispute arising out of these Terms shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party shall have the right to institute an action in any court 
of proper jurisdiction for injunctive relief. 

 
H. Entire Agreement. These Terms and the attachments hereto (if any) constitute the entire 
agreement between the Parties regarding its subject matter. It supersedes, and its terms govern, 
all prior proposals, agreements, or other communications between the Parties, oral or written, 
regarding such subject matter. These Terms shall not be modified unless done so in a writing 
signed by an authorized representative of each Party. 

 
I. English Language Governs. Where ChargePoint has provided Company with a 
translation of the English language version of these Terms, Company agrees that such 
translation is provided for its convenience only and that the English language version of these 
Terms governs Company’s relationship with ChargePoint. If there is any conflict between the 
applicable translation and the English language version of these Terms, it is the express wish of 
the Parties these Terms and all related documents, including notices and other communications, 
be drawn up in the English language only. Il est la volonté expresse des Parties que cette 
convention et tous les documents s’y rattachant, y compris les avis et les autres 
communications, soient rédigés et signés en anglais seulement. 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

1 
 

 

CHARGEPOINT ASSURE  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

ChargePoint Assure (“Assure”) is a full service and support program offered by the applicable ChargePoint 

entity found in Section 15 below (“ChargePoint”). Assure is designed specifically for your electric vehicle 

charging station purchased from ChargePoint or its representatives and qualified for Assure coverage 

(“Charging Station”). With your Assure coverage, ChargePoint and its operations and maintenance 

partners (“O&M Partners”) will provide the parts, labor, and other services indicated in these Assure Terms 

and Conditions of Service (“Agreement”). Published specifications for the Charging Stations are available 

via your ChargePoint account or upon request of ChargePoint or its representatives. For all purposes 

hereunder, “you” or “your” includes any of your employees, officers, agents, contractors or parties under 

your control or common control. 

1. WHAT IS COVERED: With Assure, ChargePoint agrees to do each of the following, for so long as you 

purchase and maintain an Assure subscription. For further information please visit 

https://chargepoint.com/products/service.   

a. Parts: 

• Ensure all parts are provided, as necessary, to correct any defect in the materials or 

workmanship of a Charging Station in a prompt and professional matter.  

• Each Charging Station shall be corrected so that the Charging Station functions in line with 

that Charging Station’s published specifications. For avoidance of doubt, such correction 

shall be limited to the Charging Station itself and not any issue related to installation or 

electrical infrastructure.  

b. Service and Labor: 

• Except as otherwise provided, ensure that all labor is performed, on-site if necessary, to 

correct any defect in the materials or workmanship of the Charging Station in a prompt and 

professional manner. 

• Ensure that labor is performed for repairs caused by vandalism or auto accidents that affect 

the Charging Stations functionality.  For avoidance of doubt, labor is only covered for repairs 

required to enable the Charging Station to function.  Parts are not covered for repairs 

required due to vandalism or auto accidents.  

ChargePoint Support Services



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

2 
 

• Provide remote, automated monitoring of your Charging Station and perform triage with 

respect to any Charging Station that may be defective. 

• Coordinate all repairs necessary to have your Charging Station back up and running. 

• Ensure that you are provided a response no later than one business day from the date 

ChargePoint becomes aware of an issue. 

• Ensure onsite repairs begin within one business day from the delivery of any parts required 

to fix your Charging Station. 

• Provide a standard monthly summary and quarterly detailed station usage and performance 

metrics.  

c. Charging Station Uptime Objective: 

• A 98% annual station uptime objective,  which means the percentage of time that a Charging 

Station can dispense energy during the 12-month period from the latter of the (i) activation 

of the applicable Charging Station; or (ii) start of your Service Term; provided that, such 

uptime objective is subject to the exclusions described in Section 6 (Exclusions from 

Coverage) herein.  Any failure by Charging Stations to maintain the aforementioned annual 

station uptime objective shall not a constitute a breach of this Agreement by ChargePoint. 

For the avoidance of doubt, the aforementioned annual station uptime objective does not 

apply to ChargePoint’s cloud services.  

2. WHAT IS NOT COVERED: ChargePoint undertakes no responsibility with respect to repairing, replacing, 

monitoring, or servicing anything other than your Charging Stations. This means, for example, that 

ChargePoint is not responsible for the physical mounting and electrical wiring of your Charging Stations or 

for the performance of any cellular or Wi-Fi repeaters or other devices installed in connection with your 

Charging Stations, including but not limited to any Skid Mounts. Additionally, Assure is not available for 

testing Charging Stations on non-commercially available vehicles. Assure labor is provided on an as 

available basis, per the requirements of Section 1 above.  

3. FURTHER COSTS: If ChargePoint finds that the unit was not functioning, and is not otherwise covered by 

Assure subscription, than ChargePoint has the right to bill back for all costs incurred related to the warranty 

service (“Bill Back Costs”). For avoidance of doubt Bill Back Costs can include costs for investigation, 

equipment rental, engineering, travel, and other reasonable expenses that ChargePoint is required to 

spend to address a claim under Assure.  

4. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES: In order to perform its obligations under Assure, ChargePoint needs your 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

3 
 

cooperation. Specifically, you agree to: 

a. Provide reasonable access to ChargePoint or its designee as necessary for the performance of 

ChargePoint’s obligations. 

b. Permit ChargePoint to access the Charging Stations remotely by maintaining a separately 

purchased ChargePoint’s cloud Services subscription necessary for remote access. 

c. Maintain your premises in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 

d. Keep the areas in which Charging Stations are located in a clean, safe and orderly condition, to at 

least the same standard as you customarily use to maintain the remainder of your premises. 

e. Promptly notify ChargePoint of any suspected defect with a Charging Station. ChargePoint must 

have reasonable access to the Charging Station, including access to your requisite personnel, to 

address the service required.  

5. COMMISSIONING: ChargePoint will provide Assure service to your Charging Stations provided you have 

satisfied the Commissioning requirements provided herein. “Commissioning” means the process of 

validating that a Charging Station is operational and installed in accordance with ChargePoint’s 

specifications. 

a. If you or your certified ChargePoint installer perform Commissioning, you are responsible for 

ensuring your Charging Stations are installed in accordance with the product specifications, 

including but not limited to any site preparation, installation, and/or commissioning guides, 

published by ChargePoint (“Product Specifications”). ChargePoint reserves the right to perform a 

site audit to assess installation quality. ChargePoint may charge you for any costs associated with 

responding to an issue caused by your failure to install your Charging Stations in accordance with 

the Product Specifications discovered while performing Commissioning or any time after your 

Assure subscription has commenced. ChargePoint may suspend your Assure coverage until such 

installation defect has been remedied.  

b. All ChargePoint DC charging equipment requires Commissioning to be performed by ChargePoint, 

or an O&M Partner designated by ChargePoint, prior to ChargePoint providing Assure services or 

meeting its commitments under this Agreement. 

c. If your Assure Pro service, standard Assure service, ChargePoint’s standard warranty, or 

ChargePoint’s extended parts warranty (as applicable) for your Charging Stations has been expired 

for more than 180 days, to ensure that such Charging Stations have been installed and maintained 

in accordance with the applicable Product Specifications, a site readiness inspection by 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

4 
 

ChargePoint or a ChargePoint O&M Partner may be required in order to renew Assure on those 

Charging Stations. Any such site readiness inspection or work necessary to bring the Charging 

Stations into compliance with the Product Specifications may be at your cost. 

d. Any relocation of your Charging Station from its original installation location (including but not 

limited to any approved transfer pursuant to Section 12 of this Agreement) will require a new 

Commissioning before the commencement or resumption of your Assure coverage for that 

Charging Station.  

6. EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE: Except as expressly provided otherwise under this Agreement, 

ChargePoint’s obligations under ChargePoint Assure shall not apply to defects or service repairs resulting 

from the following: 

a. Cosmetic damage such as scratches and dents. 

b. Normal aging or fading of colors due to exposure to the elements. 

c. Abuse, vandalism, damage or other problems caused by accidents or negligence (including but not 

limited to physical damage from being struck by a vehicle), or use of the Charging Station in a way 

other than as specified in the applicable Charge Point documentation. 

d. Installation, alteration, modification or relocation of the Charging Station that was not approved in 

writing by ChargePoint or Commissioned as provided in Section 5. 

e. Use of the Charging Station with software, interfacing, parts or supplies not supplied by 

ChargePoint. 

f. Vehicle to Charging Station interoperability or communication issues. 

g. Damage resulting from extreme power surge, extreme electromagnetic field or any other acts of 

nature. 

h. Force Majeure Event or unforeseeable circumstances beyond ChargePoint’s reasonable control 

that prevent ChargePoint from performing its obligations under Assure. 

In addition, ChargePoint’s obligations under ChargePoint Assure shall not apply to any Charging Station 

that was not installed pursuant to the provisions of Section 5 of this Agreement. 

7. CONTACT INFORMATION: If at any time turning the term of your coverage of ChargePoint Assure you 

believe you have defective Charging Equipment, contact Customer Service at the Customer Service number 

provided to you by your Account Executive, and follow any mutually agreed upon issue reporting 

procedures. 

8. SERVICE TERM: Each Assure subscription that you purchase for a Charging Station will commence ninety 

(90) days from the invoice date and will last for the subscription length selected in an applicable order (the 

“Service Term”). For greater certainty, to the extent an applicable Charging Station is delivered, installed, 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

5 
 

and activated before the Service Term commences as described above, your Charging Stations will 

nevertheless have coverage under Assure and the Service Term will start at the expiration of the ninety 

(90) day period referenced above.   

9. RENEWAL: Upon expiration of your initial Service Term, your Assure coverage will renew automatically for 

successive one-year terms at the list price of the original Service Term, subject to increases and your right 

to terminate below (each a “Renewal Term”). Should the Renewal Term be cancelled and subsequently 

requested to be reinstated, reinstatement will be subject to the payment of fees for any lapse period, plus 

reasonable reinstatement fees. If, however, you wish to terminate your Assure coverage under a Renewal 

Term, you may do so by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of cancellation and ChargePoint will issue 

a pro-rata refund of any funds paid from the effective date of cancellation to the end of the applicable 

Renewal Term. Renewal Terms will commence on the date of the expiration of the original Service Term.  

10. PAYMENTS: ChargePoint will send you an invoice for your Assure coverage on or after the date the 

applicable Charging Stations are shipped to you. Payment is due within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. 

If you have purchased extended Assure coverage and have chosen the annual payment option, ChargePoint 

will invoice each annual payment on the anniversary date of your Assure coverage. All payments shall be 

made in U.S. Dollars (or if you are located in Canada, Canadian dollars) and may be made by check, wire 

transfer, ACH payment system or other means approved by ChargePoint. You may not offset any amounts 

due to ChargePoint hereunder against amounts due to you under this Agreement or any other agreement. 

Fees payable to ChargePoint do not include any Taxes, and you are responsible for any and all such Taxes. 

All payment obligations under this Agreement are non-cancelable and non-refundable. Late payments shall 

be subject to a charge equal to the lesser of (i) one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) the 

maximum rate permitted by law. You will reimburse ChargePoint for attorneys’ fees and other expenses 

reasonably incurred by ChargePoint in the collection of any late payments. If any amount owing by you 

under this Agreement is more than thirty (30) days overdue, ChargePoint may, without otherwise limiting 

ChargePoint’s rights or remedies, (a) terminate this Agreement or (b) refuse to provide Assure coverage 

until ChargePoint has received payment in full. 

11. TERMINATION: You may terminate your Assure coverage without prejudice to any other remedy at law or 

equity: (i) if ChargePoint is in material breach of any of its obligations under Assure and has not cured such 

breach within thirty (30) days of the date of its receipt of written notice thereof or (ii) upon providing thirty 

(30) days prior written notice. Upon termination for cause pursuant to Section 11(i) or as provided for in 

Section 9 for a Renewal Term, ChargePoint will refund a pro-rata portion of the fees you paid for Assure. 

Upon any termination for any other reason, you will not be entitled to any refund of any fees paid.  

12. TRANSFERS: Your Assure coverage applies only to the Charging Stations and installation site for which it 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

6 
 

was purchased. Subject to Section 20 of this Agreement, if you sell or otherwise transfer your Charging 

Stations with an active Assure subscription to a third-party, and those Charging Stations are moved or 

otherwise transferred away from the original installation site, your Assure coverage may not be transferred 

without ChargePoint’s prior written consent. 

13. REPLACEMENT PARTS AND STATIONS: Replacement parts or Charging Stations that have been replaced 

(collectively “Replacement Parts”) that are provided by ChargePoint pursuant to your Assure coverage may 

be remanufactured or reconditioned parts or Charging Stations or, if the exact Charging Station is no longer 

manufactured by ChargePoint, a Charging Station with substantially similar functionality. Any Replacement 

Parts provided under your Assure coverage will become your property and all returned parts or returned 

Charging Stations, whether under warranty or not, will become the property of ChargePoint. Any 

Replacement Parts will be covered by Assure for the remainder of your Assure coverage or ninety (90) days 

from the date of delivery of such Replacement Parts, whichever is later. 

14. LIMITS ON LIABILITY: This section limits ChargePoint’s liability under Assure. Please read it carefully. 

a. CHARGEPOINT IS NOT LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR 

CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION LOST PROFITS, LOST BUSINESS, LOST 

DATA, LOSS OF USE, OR COST OF COVER INCURRED BY YOU ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO YOUR 

PURCHASE OR USE OF, OR INABILITY TO USE, THE CHARGING STATION, UNDER ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, 

WHETHER IN AN ACTION IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHER 

LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, EVEN IF CHARGEPOINT KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE 

POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. IN ANY EVENT, THE CUMULATIVE LIABILITY OF CHARGEPOINT FOR ALL 

CLAIMS WHATSOEVER RELATED TO PERFORMANCE BY CHARGEPOINT OF ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER 

CHARGEPOINT ASSURE WILL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE YOU PAID FOR ASSURE. THE LIMITATIONS SET FORTH 

HEREIN ARE INTENDED TO LIMIT THE LIABILITY OF CHARGEPOINT AND SHALL APPLY NOTWITHSTANDING 

ANY FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY. 

b. Some states or jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential 

damages, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to you.  

15.  GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The ChargePoint entity entering into this 

Agreement, the address to which you should direct notices under this Agreement, the governing law, and 

place of jurisdiction, shall be determined according to you are domiciled: 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

7 
 

If you are 
domiciled in: 

The 
ChargePoint 
Entity entering 
into this 
Agreement is: 

Notices should 
be addressed 
to: 

Governing law 
is: 

Place of 
jurisdiction: 

Forum: 

The United 
States of 
America 

ChargePoint, 
Inc., a 
Delaware 
corporation 

Attn: Legal 
Department 
ChargePoint, 
Inc. 
254 E Hacienda 
Ave 
Campbell, CA 
95008 

California and 
controlling 
United States 
federal law  

Santa Clara, 
California, 
U.S.A. 

Judicial 
Arbitration and 
Mediation 
Services, Inc. 
(JAMS) 

Canada ChargePoint 
Canada, Inc., a 
British 
Columbia 
corporation 

TBD British 
Columbia and 
controlling 
Canadian 
federal law  

Vancouver, 
British 
Columbia, 
Canada 

ADR Institute 
of Canada 

This Agreement, and any disputes related to this Agreement, will be governed by the applicable Governing 

Laws above, without regard to conflicts of laws rules or the United Nations Convention on the International 

Sale of Goods. 

Except with respect to any matter relating to your violation of the intellectual property rights of 

ChargePoint, any disputes, actions, claims or causes of action arising out of or in connection with this 

Agreement shall be submitted to and finally settled by arbitration using the English language in accordance 

with the Arbitration Rules and Procedures of the applicable Forum above then in effect, by one or more 

commercial arbitrator(s) with substantial experience in the industry and in resolving complex commercial 

contract disputes. Judgment upon the award so rendered may be entered in a court having jurisdiction or 

application may be made to such court for judicial acceptance of any award and an order of enforcement, 

as the case may be. All claims shall be brought in the parties’ individual capacity, and not as a plaintiff or 

class member in any purported class or representative proceeding. With respect to any matter relating to 

the intellectual property rights of ChargePoint, such claim may be litigated in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. The prevailing party in any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be entitled to reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party shall have the right to institute an 

action in any court of proper jurisdiction for injunctive relief. 

16. AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION: ChargePoint reserves the right to modify this Agreement from time to 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

8 
 

time. ChargePoint will provide notice of each such modification to you. Your continued use of Assure 

following such notice will constitute an acceptance of the modified Agreement. 

17. WAIVER: The failure of either party at any time to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed to be a waiver of the right of such party to thereafter enforce that provision or any other 

provision or right. 

18. FORCE MAJEURE: Except for your payment obligations under this Agreement, neither party will be liable 

for failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder due to causes beyond its reasonable control and 

occurring without its fault or negligence, including but not limited to fire, flood, earthquake, explosion, or 

other natural disaster (irrespective of the affected party’s condition of any preparedness therefore); war; 

terrorist act; epidemic; pandemic; quarantine; civil commotion; breakdown of communication facilities 

(including but not limited to utility, transmission or power failures); breakdown of web host; breakdown or 

act or omission of internet or other service provider; breakdown or act or omission of common carriers; 

embargo; riot; strike; labor action; changes in laws or regulations; any lawful order, decree, or other 

directive of any government authority; material shortages; shortage of transport; and failures of suppliers 

to deliver the required material or components (a “Force Majeure Event”). . 

19. SEVERABILITY: Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, if any term or condition of this Agreement 

or the application thereof to either party will to any extent be determined jointly by the parties or by any 

judicial, governmental or similar authority, to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, 

or the application of such term or provision to this Agreement, the parties or circumstances other than 

those as to which it is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, will not be affected thereby. 

20. ASSIGNMENT: Except as otherwise provided under this Agreement, you may not assign any of your rights 

or obligations hereunder, whether by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of 

ChargePoint. Notwithstanding, you may assign your rights and obligations under this Agreement upon 

notice to ChargePoint if you sell the property where the Charging Stations were installed, provided that 

any such purchasing entity assumes all rights and obligations under this Agreement; provided further that, 

the purchasing entity will not move or otherwise transfer the Charging Stations from original installation 

site. To the extent the purchasing entity desires to move or otherwise transfer the Charging Stations from 

the original installation site, Section 12 of this Agreement will apply. In the event of any purported 

assignment in breach of this Section 20, ChargePoint shall be entitled, at its sole discretion, to terminate 

this Agreement by providing written notice to you. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall bind and 

inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective successors and permitted assigns.  ChargePoint may 

assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement. 

21. NO AGENCY OR PARTNERSHIP: ChargePoint, in the performance of this Agreement, is an independent 



 

 
Version  7.17.2024 

9 
 

contractor. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, ChargePoint shall maintain complete 

control over its employees, its subcontractors, and its operations. No partnership, joint venture or agency 

relationship is intended by ChargePoint and you to be created by this Agreement. Neither party has any 

right or authority to assume or create any obligations of any kind or to make any representation or warranty 

on behalf of the other party, whether express or implied, or to bind the other party in any respect 

whatsoever. 

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to 

the subject matter hereof and supersedes and cancels all previous and contemporaneous agreements, 

negotiations, commitments, understandings, representations, and writings pertaining to such subject 

matter.  All purchase orders issued by you shall state that such purchase orders are subject to all of the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement and contain no other term other than the type of Assure coverage, 

the number of Charging Stations which Assure is ordered, the term of such Assure coverage, and applicable 

fees. To the extent of any conflict or inconsistency between this Agreement and any purchase order, the 

Agreement shall prevail. Notwithstanding any language to the contrary therein, no terms or conditions 

stated in any other documentation shall be incorporated into or form any part of this Agreement, and all 

such purported terms and conditions shall be null and void. 

23. COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute but one and the same document.  

24. ENGLISH LANGUAGE AGREEMENT GOVERNS: Where ChargePoint has provided you with a translation of 

the English language version of this Agreement, you agree that the translation is provided for your 

convenience only and that the English language version of this Agreement governs your relationship with 

ChargePoint. If there is any conflict between the English language version of this Agreement and a 

translated version, the English language version shall control. It is the express wish of the parties that this 

Agreement and all related documents, including notices and other communications, be drawn up in the 

English language only. Il est la volonté expresse des parties que cette convention et tous les documents s’y 

rattachant, y compris les avis et les autres communications, soient rédigés et signés en anglais seulement. 

25. FOR CUSTOMERS IN THE PROVINCE OF QUEBEC, CANADA ONLY. Customer confirms having first been 

presented with and given the opportunity to examine a version of this Agreement in French. The parties 

have expressly required that this Agreement and all related documents, including notices and other 

communications, be drawn up in English exclusively. Le client confirme avoir préalablement reçu et avoir 

eu l’opportunité de réviser une version en français de la présente convention. Les parties ont expressément 

exigé à ce que la présente convention ainsi que tous les documents qui s'y rattachent, incluant les avis et 

autres communications, soient rédigés en anglais exclusivement. 



 

Version: 3.18.24 (NA) 

Standard Parts Warranty  
 

Our Promise 
This Standard Parts Warranty (“Warranty”) is offered by the applicable ChargePoint entity or entities referenced under 

the “Additional Information” section below (“CHARGEPOINT”) pursuant to these terms and conditions for purchasers 

(“you” and “your”) of electric vehicle charging station-related hardware (“Hardware”) purchased from CHARGEPOINT 

or one of its authorized resellers for your own use and not for resale.  The Warranty is transferrable and is valid for 

U.S.A. and Canada only.  The Warranty may only be transferred in the event you are subject to a sale, acquisition, or 

other similar corporate transaction.  Additionally, such transfer must occur within three (3) months after the date of the 

commencement of the applicable warranty, as further described below. The Warranty does not apply to 

CHARGEPOINT’S Home Flex products or any of its successor offerings (see CHARGEPOINT’S website for the 

applicable warranty for those products). 

If you have purchased CHARGEPOINT Assure coverage and your applicable Hardware have been installed in 

accordance with the requirements for CHARGEPOINT Assure coverage, CHARGEPOINT will provide to you 

CHARGEPOINT Assure coverage and will, among other things, perform the monitoring, triage, coordination, 

and on-site repair or replacement services described in the CHARGEPOINT Assure Terms and Conditions of 

Service, which are separate from these terms and conditions. If you did not purchase CHARGEPOINT Assure 

coverage and/or do not comply with the installation requirements, then your applicable warranty coverage will 

be limited to that described herein.   

LIMITED TWO-YEARS PARTS WARRANTY:  Subject to the exclusions from warranty set forth below, 

CHARGEPOINT warrants that your (1) Hardware and/or (2) Hardware Accessory for your Hardware that you purchased 

from CHARGEPOINT, will be free from any defects in materials or workmanship for a period of two (2) years (“Warranty 

Period”). “Hardware Accessory” means the CHARGEPOINT-manufactured parts that are standalone and add-on 

parts that are used in connection with your charging station. Your Warranty Period for Hardware commences on the 

earlier to occur of (i) the date you activate your Hardware or (ii) six (6) months after the date your Hardware is shipped 

to you.  Your Warranty Period for Hardware Accessory start after the date the applicable Hardware Accessory is shipped 

to you.  If your Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory become defective during the Warranty Period, CHARGEPOINT 

will, upon written notice provided in accordance with these terms and conditions, either repair or replace, at 

CHARGEPOINT’s election, Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory.  The Warranty covers both parts and factory labor 

necessary to repair your Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory but does not include any on-site labor costs related to 

un-installing or repair of the defective Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory or reinstalling the repaired or replacement 

Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory. Notwithstanding anything otherwise in this Warranty, CHARGEPOINT warrants 

that the CHARGEPOINT-manufactured upgraded parts and/or accessories for your Hardware and/or Hardware 

Accessory that you purchase after the initial purchase of the applicable Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory will be 

free from any defects in materials or workmanship for a period of six (6) months. This six-month warranty coverage for 

the CHARGEPOINT-manufactured upgraded parts and/or accessories will commence on the date the items are 

shipped to or picked up by you. 

 

PURCHASE OF EXTENDED PARTS WARRANTY.  You may purchase, prior to the end of the Warranty Period, 

additional years of warranty coverage for your Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory beyond the Warranty Period 

(“Extended Parts Warranty”).  The terms and conditions of the Warranty shall govern the Extended Parts Warranty.   

Your purchase of Extended Parts Warranty includes CHARGEPOINT’s remote support service (“Remote Support”), 

as defined and governed in the separate Remote Support Terms and Conditions found at 

www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services (“Remote Support Agreement”). With respect to Remote Support, in the 

http://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services


 

Version: 3.18.24 (NA) 

event of any inconsistency or conflict between the Remote Support Agreement and this Warranty, the Remote Support 

Agreement will prevail and control over this Warranty. CHARGEPOINT will send you an invoice for the coverage for 

Extended Parts Warranty that you order. Payment is due within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. If you have 

purchased multiple years of the Extended Parts Warranty and have chosen the annual payment option, then 

CHARGEPOINT will invoice each annual payment on the anniversary date of your Extended Parts Warranty coverage. 

All payments shall be made in U.S. Dollars and may be made by check, wire transfer, ACH payment system or other 

means approved by CHARGEPOINT. Customer may not offset any amounts due to CHARGEPOINT hereunder against 

amounts due to Customer under this Agreement or any other agreement. Fees payable to CHARGEPOINT do not 

include any taxes and you are responsible for any and all such taxes. All payment obligations under the Extended Parts 

Warranty are non-cancelable and non-refundable. Late payments shall be subject to a charge equal to the lesser of (i) 

one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) the maximum rate. 

 

LIMITED OUT OF WARRANTY REPLACEMENT PARTS WARRANTY.  Subject to the exclusions from warranty 

coverage set forth below, CHARGEPOINT warrants that any replacement parts for your Hardware and/or Hardware 

Accessory that are no longer covered under the Warranty Period, or Extended Parts Warranty as applicable, at the 

time of your purchase from CHARGEPOINT (“Out of Warranty Replacement Parts”) will be free from any defects in 

materials or workmanship for a period of six (6) months (“Out of Warranty Replacement Parts Coverage Period”).  

Your Out of Warranty Replacement Parts Coverage Period commences on the date your Out of Warranty Replacement 

Part is installed to repair the applicable Hardware and/or Hardware Accessory.  If your Out of Warranty Replacement 

Part becomes defective during the Out of Warranty Replacement Parts Coverage Period, then CHARGEPOINT will, 

upon written notice provided in accordance with these terms and conditions, either repair or replace, at 

CHARGEPOINT’s sole discretion, the Out of Warranty Replacement Part.  The warranty that applies to your Out of 

Warranty Replacement Part covers the cost to replace your defective Out of Warranty Replacement Part and 

associated shipping costs but does not include any on-site labor costs related to un-installing or repair of the defective 

Out of Warranty Replacement Part or reinstalling the repaired or replacement for the Out of Warranty Replacement 

Part. 

Follow These Easy Steps to Obtain Warranty Service 
1. Contact CHARGEPOINT to activate your applicable warranty through the installation and activation process, if 

applicable, for your Hardware.  

2. If during the term of your applicable warranty you believe you have an item that ceases to properly function per 

CHARGEPOINT’S specifications (“Non-Functional Item”), then contact Customer Service at 

https://www.chargepoint.com/support and request warranty service from CHARGEPOINT.  At the time of your call, 

CHARGEPOINT will determine if your issue can be resolved remotely or will require a replacement item (“Replacement 

Item”). 

3. If your issue cannot be resolved remotely, to ensure prompt and proper diagnosis and repair physical on-site 

troubleshooting of suspected defects, and coordination with CHARGEPOINT, must be performed by an electrician at 

your sole expense.  If CHARGEPOINT determines that the defect appears to be covered by your applicable warranty 

and such warranty is still in effect, CHARGEPOINT will ship the Replacement Items to you or an electrician you 

designate. If CHARGEPOINT requires the return of the Non-Functional Item, CHARGEPOINT will provide to you a 

Return Material Authorization (“RMA”) number for you to reference when you return the Non-Functional Item for repair 

or replacement. You will be responsible for the receipt of Replacement Items and the return of the applicable Non-

Functional Item. As part of the applicable warranty service process, you will be asked for the following: 

a. A detailed description of the problems you are experiencing with the applicable item; 

https://www.chargepoint.com/support


 

Version: 3.18.24 (NA) 

b. The model number and serial number of the applicable item; 

c. Proof of purchase (such as a copy of the CHARGEPOINT invoice for the applicable item); and 

d. Shipping information 

4. CHARGEPOINT will ship you the Replacement Item, at no charge to you, along with any RMA instructions. You will be 

responsible for the on-site labor to un-install, repair, and reinstall your Replacement Item. 

5. Subject to CHARGEPOINT’S return policy referenced below, you may be required to ship the Non-Functional Item to 

CHARGEPOINT in accordance with any RMA instructions provided, including, without limitation, referencing the RMA 

number in the shipping documentation or on the shipping container.  The Non-Functional Item must be returned in a 

shipping container (e.g. shipping container for the Replacement Item) designed to prevent damage to those items.  All 

Non-Functional Items, whether covered under the applicable warranty or not, become the property of CHARGEPOINT. 

6. If you do not return the Non-Functional Item in accordance with CHARGEPOINT’S return policy referenced below, 

CHARGEPOINT may invoice you for the value of the Replacement Item.  

7. For more information on CHARGEPOINT’s return policy (“Return Policy”) as it applies to the applicable warranty 

service, please visit www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services. The Return Policy is incorporated by reference into 

these terms and conditions. 

 

IMPORTANT 
1. You are responsible for the proper installation and maintenance of the Hardware, Hardware Accessory, Replacement 

Item, and/or Out of Warranty Replacement Parts, including, without limitation, the de-installing of any such defective 

items sent to you.  

2. Any service or repairs beyond the scope of the applicable warranty above will be performed upon your approval at 

CHARGEPOINT’s then prevailing labor rates and other applicable charges. 

3. Hardware, Hardware Accessory, Replacement Items, and/or Out of Warranty Replacement Parts that are found by 

CHARGEPOINT not covered by the applicable warranty or otherwise ineligible for warranty service will be returned, 

repaired, or replaced, at your expense and at CHARGEPOINT’s standard charges, subject to your approval. 

4. Please read carefully through the detailed descriptions of the applicable warranties above, the EXCLUSIONS FROM 

LIMITED PRODUCT WARRANTY, and the LIMITATIONS ON WARRANTY AND LIABILITY on the following pages to 

assure that your Hardware is eligible for the applicable warranty service without additional cost to you. 

 

REPLACEMENT ITEMS 
You acknowledge that Replacement Items and/or Out of Warranty Replacement Parts provided by CHARGEPOINT 

under the applicable warranty may be remanufactured or reconditioned item. If the exact model of the applicable item 

is no longer manufactured by CHARGEPOINT, then the Replacement Item may be an item with substantially similar 

functionality.  Any Replacement Items will be warranted for the remaining duration of the original Warranty.  

 

EXCLUSIONS FROM WARRANTY 
IMPORTANT:  The applicable warranty on your Hardware, Hardware Accessory, Replacement Item, or Out of Warranty 

Replacement Part shall not apply to defects or service repairs resulting from the following: 

• Improper site preparation or maintenance, improper installation, lack of commissioning service (if applicable to your 

Hardware), cosmetic damage such as scratches and dents, or normal aging. 

http://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services


 

Version: 3.18.24 (NA) 

• Abuse, vandalism, damage or other problems caused by accidents, misuse or negligence (including but not limited to 

physical damage from being struck by a vehicle), or use of the item in a way other than as specified in the applicable 

CHARGEPOINT documentation. 

• Installation, alteration, disassembly, modification or relocation of the item that was not approved in writing by 

CHARGEPOINT or performed by CHARGEPOINT or by a certified CHARGEPOINT installer or service provider. 

• Use of the item with software, interfacing, parts or supplies not supplied by CHARGEPOINT. 

• Damage as a result of extreme power surge, extreme electromagnetic field or any acts of nature. 

• Any repeated or excessive damage caused by you or third parties, as determined by CHARGEPOINT in its sole 

discretion. 

• Vehicle to charger interoperability or communication issues. 

• Any other causes beyond the control of CHARGEPOINT. 

 

IN ADDITION:  The applicable warranty on your Hardware, Hardware Accessory, Replacement Item, or Out of Warranty 

Replacement Part shall not apply if the original identification markings (for example, serial numbers and trademarks) 

have been defaced, altered, or removed. THE APPLICABLE WARRANTY APPLIES ONLY TO YOUR HARDWARE, 

HARDWARE ACCESSORY, REPLACEMENT ITEMS, OR OUT OF WARRANTY REPLACEMENT PARTS AND NOT 

TO ANY CHARGEPOINT SERVICE PLAN.  CHARGEPOINT SPECIFICALLY DOES NOT WARRANT THAT ANY 

CHARGEPOINT SERVICES WILL BE ERROR FREE OR WILL OPERATE WITHOUT INTERRUPTION.   

 

LIMITATIONS ON WARRANTY AND LIABILITY 
NO AGENT OF CHARGEPOINT IS AUTHORIZED TO ALTER OR EXCEED THE APPLICABLE WARRANTY 

OBLIGATIONS OF CHARGEPOINT.  THE REMEDIES UNDER THE APPLICABLE WARRANTY ARE YOUR SOLE 

AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES. CHARGEPOINT MAKES NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OTHER 

THAN THE APPLICABLE WARRANTIES SET FORTH ABOVE.  ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT 

LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF DESIGN, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE 

(EVEN IF CHARGEPOINT HAS BEEN INFORMED OF SUCH PURPOSE) OR AGAINST INFRINGEMENT, ARE 

EXCLUDED TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW.  IF ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY CANNOT BE DISCLAIMED 

UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, SUCH IMPLIED WARRANTY SHALL BE LIMITED IN DURATION TO THE APPLICABLE 

WARRANTY PERIOD DESCRIBED ABOVE.  NO WARRANTIES APPLY AFTER EXPIRATION OF THE APPLICABLE 

WARRANTY PERIOD.  Some states or jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion of express or implied warranties or 

limitations on how long an implied warranty lasts, so the above limitation may not apply to you. 

CHARGEPOINT IS NOT LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL 

DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION LOST PROFITS, LOST BUSINESS, LOST DATA, LOSS OF USE, 

OR COST OF COVER INCURRED BY YOU ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO YOUR PURCHASE OR USE OF, 

OR INABILITY TO USE HARDWARES, HARDWARE ACCESSORIES, REPLACEMENT ITEMS, AND/OR OUT OF 

WARRANTY REPLACEMENT PARTS, UNDER ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION IN 

CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, 

EVEN IF CHARGEPOINT KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  IN ANY 

EVENT, THE CUMULATIVE LIABILITY OF CHARGEPOINT FOR ALL CLAIMS WHATSOEVER RELATED TO 

HARDWARES, HARDWARE ACCESSORIES, REPLACEMENT ITEMS, AND/OR OUT OF WARRANTY 

REPLACEMENT PARTS WILL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE YOU PAID FOR THE APPLICABLE ITEM. THE 

LIMITATIONS SET FORTH HEREIN ARE INTENDED TO LIMIT THE LIABILITY OF CHARGEPOINT AND SHALL 

APPLY NOTWITHSTANDING ANY FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY. Some states 

or jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential damages, so the above limitation 

or exclusion may not apply to you. 

 



 

Version: 3.18.24 (NA) 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
The ChargePoint entity entering into these terms and conditions with you, the address to which you should direct 

notices under these terms and conditions, the applicable governing law, and applicable place of jurisdiction, shall be 

determined according to where you are domiciled as follows:  

  
  

If you are 
domiciled 
in:  

ChargePoint 
Entity entering 
into these 
terms and 
conditions 
with you:  

Notices 
should be 
addressed 
to:  

Governing law:  Place of 
jurisdiction:  

Forum:  

The United 
States of 
America  

ChargePoint, 
Inc., a Delaware 
corporation  

Attn: Legal 
Department 
ChargePoint, 
Inc. 254 E 
Hacienda Ave 
Campbell, CA 
95008  

California and 
controlling 
United States 
federal law  

Santa Clara, 
California, U.S.A.  

Judicial 
Arbitration and 
Mediation 
Services, Inc. 
(JAMS)  

Canada  ChargePoint 
Canada, Inc., a 
British 
Columbia  
corporation  

TBD  British 
Columbia and 
controlling 
Canadian 
federal  
law  

Vancouver, British 
Columbia, 
Canada  

ADR Institute 
of Canada  

  

These terms and conditions, and any disputes related to these terms and conditions, will be governed by the 

applicable “Governing law” referenced above, without regard to conflicts of laws rules or the United Nations 

Convention on the International Sale of Goods.  

  

Except with respect to any matter relating to your violation of the intellectual property rights of CHARGEPOINT, 

any disputes, actions, claims or causes of action arising out of or in connection with these terms and conditions 

shall be submitted to and finally settled by arbitration using the English language in accordance with the Arbitration 

Rules and Procedures of the applicable Forum above then in effect, by one or more commercial arbitrator(s) with 

substantial experience in the industry and in resolving complex commercial contract disputes. Judgment upon the 

award so rendered may be entered in a court having jurisdiction or application may be made to such court for 

judicial acceptance of any award and an order of enforcement, as the case may be. All claims shall be brought in 

the parties’ individual capacity, and not as a plaintiff or class member in any purported class or representative 

proceeding. With respect to any matter relating to the intellectual property rights of CHARGEPOINT, such claim 

may be litigated in a court of competent jurisdiction. The prevailing party in any dispute arising out of these terms 

and conditions shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party 

shall have the right to institute an action in any court of proper jurisdiction for injunctive relief.   

 

The applicable warranties set forth in this document are the entire and exclusive agreement between you and 

CHARGEPOINT with respect to its subject matter, and any modification or waiver of any provision of this statement 

is not effective unless expressly set forth in writing by an authorized representative of CHARGEPOINT.   

 



  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

CHARGEPOINT REMOTE SUPPORT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

Remote Support is a remote-based maintenance and support service (“Remote Support”) for your Charging 
Equipment (defined below). For all purposes hereunder, “you” or “your” includes any of your employees, officers, 
agents, contractors or parties under your control or common control. With your Remote Support coverage, 
ChargePoint, Inc. (“ChargePoint”) will provide Remote Support subject to the terms and conditions of this 
agreement (“Agreement”).   
 
1. Defined Terms: 

 
a. Acknowledgement: means the earlier of (i) ChargePoint confirming an Incident based on Proactive 

Monitoring, or (ii) you report an Incident to ChargePoint’s technical support with sufficient information for 
ChargePoint to confirm the Incident, and such Incident is verified by Remote Support.   
 

b. Applicable Law: means any applicable and promulgated constitutional provisions, statutes, acts, codes, 
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, orders, decrees, rulings, judgments or decisions of a governmental 
authority or arbitral body with competent jurisdiction. 

 
c. Certification: means that you or your Technician have completed the Training and are compliant with 

ChargePoint’s requirements for on-site maintenance in connection with Remote Support for the applicable 
Charging Equipment model(s).  

 
d. Charging Equipment: means ChargePoint’s commercial-grade electric vehicle charging equipment 

offerings, e.g. CPF50, CT4000, CPE250, EXPP PL1, EXPP PB.  
 

e. Charging System: means the combination of Charging Equipment required to dispense a single charge (e.g., 
a charging station or a power block and a power link). 

 
f. Cloud Services: means any of ChargePoint’s cloud plans, e.g. Power, Commercial, and Enterprise, made 

available for subscription by ChargePoint through a separate agreement.  
 

g. Commissioning: means the process of ensuring charging station hardware is installed and operational in 
accordance with the Product Specifications. 

 
h. Cosmetic Impairment: means the occurrence of an Incident that (i) does not impair, limit, or modify the 

operation of the Charging Equipment, and (ii) does not prevent a Port from energizing a vehicle. 

 
i. Customer Damage: means (a) any Damage to Charging Equipment due to your action or inaction or (b) 

failure on your part to comply with any Customer Responsibilities as set forth in Section 3. 

 
j. Damage: means physical harm to the hardware components of any Charging Equipment which impairs, 

limits, or modifies (1) ChargePoint’s ability to provide Remote Support to such Charging Equipment; and/or 
(2) the operation or use of such Charging Equipment so as not to operate in conformance with its applicable 
Product Specifications. 

 
k. Defect: means any deficiency, whether latent or in the design, engineering, manufacturing, workmanship 

or materials used in any Charging Equipment causing it to fail to comply in all material respects with the 
Product Specifications, excluding for all purposes hereunder, any Software Defects. 

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

 
l. Extended Warranty: means ChargePoint’s Extended Parts Warranty (as defined in the Warranty) as 

described in the Warranty, a copy of which may be found here: 
https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/warranty-na  

 
m. Incident: means an occurrence of a service-related field issue with Charging Equipment identified by 

Remote Support or subsequently verified by Remote Support once you report an Incident. 

 
n. Partner Portal: means the online system made available by ChargePoint to you or your Maintenance 

Provider (as applicable) for the issuance, acceptance and closure of Work Orders to resolve and track Incidents 

requiring onsite intervention. 
 

o. Port: A charge connector or plug that is independently energizable (i.e., can dispense energy) at some 
power level, simultaneously or sequentially with another plug on the same dispenser. 

 
p. Proactive Monitoring: means ChargePoint’s ongoing remote monitoring and interpretation of station 

sensor data, signals, faults, and alarms to detect Incidents prior to or after they occur. 

 
q. Product Specifications: means the product specifications applicable to your Charging Equipment as 

published or made available by ChargePoint. 

 
r. Maintenance Provider: means a third-party maintenance provider selected by you that has completed the 

Training and who employs Technicians.  

 
s. Remote Diagnostic Time: means the period from Acknowledgement to (1) issuance of a Work Order 

signifying ChargePoint’s determination that onsite intervention is necessary; or (2) identify if the Incident is 
software-related. 

 
t. Replacement Parts: shall have the meaning provided in Section 13.  

 
u. Response Time: means the period from Acknowledgment to ChargePoint’s provision of a response and 

confirmation that ChargePoint has started troubleshooting & diagnosis. 
 

v. Spare Parts: means field replaceable parts required for repair of Charging Equipment.  

 
w. Software Defect: means any defect, deficiency or “bug” in any software service, source code or platform, 

used, installed, or referenced by any Charging Equipment in connection with its operation or performance.  

 
x. Service Levels: shall have the meaning provided in Section 1 of Exhibit 1.  

 
y. Service Level Table: shall have the meaning provided in Section 1 of Exhibit 1. 

 
z. Technician: means an employee of your Maintenance Provider who has completed the Training.   

 
aa. Third-Party Damage: means any Damage to Charging Equipment due to the action or inaction of a party 

other than ChargePoint or you, including any Damage due to vandalism, accidents, and natural disasters. 

 
bb. Training: means the required ChargePoint maintenance training and certification course, as indicated by 

ChargePoint on its online learning portal, for you and/or the Maintenance Provider to provide the onsite-
maintenance labor described in Section 5 (On-Site Maintenance).    

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

 
cc. Warranty: means ChargePoint’s current warranty terms and conditions, a copy of which may be accessed 

here: https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/warranty-na. 

 
dd. Work Order: means a set of written instructions identified by Remote Support to address required on-site 

maintenance and that is submitted by ChargePoint to you or your Maintenance Provider through the 
Partner Portal.  

 

2. CHARGEPOINT RESPONSIBILITIES:  With ChargePoint Remote Support, ChargePoint agrees to do each of the 
following: 

 
a. Provide Proactive Monitoring of your Charging Equipment. 

 
b. Perform remote diagnosis and troubleshooting, subject to the Service Levels, with respect to your Charging 

Equipment.   

 
c. For the avoidance of doubt, you acknowledge and agree that any Replacement Parts are not provided in 

connection with Remote Support, rather in accordance with any Warranty and/or Extended Warranty that 
is applicable for your Charging Equipment. 

 
d. In the event ChargePoint determines an Incident requires maintenance, then ChargePoint will issue a Work 

Order to you, or the Maintenance Provider, identified in the Partner Portal to address such Incident.  

 

3. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES: In order to perform its obligations under Remote Support, ChargePoint needs 
your cooperation. Specifically, you and/or your Maintenance Provider (as applicable) agree to: 
 
a. Comply with all Commissioning requirements in Section 4.   
b. Comply with all On-Site Maintenance requirements in Section 5. 
c. Purchase and maintain an active Cloud Services subscription and permit ChargePoint to remotely access 

the Charging Equipment as necessary for remote diagnostics and troubleshooting support. 
d. Purchase and maintain the same level of Service Levels for all the Charging Equipment components that 

make up your Charging System. 
e. Adhere to the instructions provided in any Work Order.  
f. Keep ChargePoint updated as to any changes to your contact information and/or Maintenance Provider 

that may affect ChargePoint’s ability to perform its obligations under this agreement.  
g. Provide prompt responses to ChargePoint employees or agents, as applicable, in connection with any 

follow-up, troubleshooting or requests for additional information in connection with any Incident response 
or Work Order.  

h. Keep the areas in which Charging Equipment are in a clean, safe, and orderly condition in accordance with 
reasonable commercial standards. 

i. Promptly notify ChargePoint of any suspected Defect with the Charging Equipment. 
 
Failure to carry out your responsibilities under this Section 3 may void, as determined in ChargePoint’s sole and 
reasonable discretion, ChargePoint’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement, including, without limitation, the 
Service Levels.  The determination of your compliance with the requirements set forth in this Section 3 shall be 
made solely by ChargePoint in its sole and reasonable discretion.. 

 
4. COMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS:  ChargePoint will provide Remote Support to your Charging Equipment, 

provided you have satisfied the Commissioning requirements provided herein.  

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

 
a. If you perform Commissioning, you are responsible for ensuring your Charging Equipment is installed in 

accordance with the Product Specifications published by ChargePoint. ChargePoint reserves the right to 
conduct onsite site readiness inspections. ChargePoint reserves the right to charge you for any costs 
associated with responding to an Incident caused by your failure to install your Charging Equipment in 
accordance with such Product Specifications discovered during any onsite site readiness inspections, while 
performing Commissioning, or during an Incident resolution. ChargePoint may suspend your Remote 
Support until such installation defect has been remedied.  

 
b. All ChargePoint DC Charging Equipment requires Commissioning by ChargePoint or an authorized 

commissioning partner designated by ChargePoint prior to ChargePoint providing Remote Support and 
performing its obligations under this Agreement.  

  
c. If your Remote Support, Assure Pro service, Assure service, Warranty, or Extended Warranty for your 

Charging Equipment has been expired for more than 180 days, a site readiness inspection by ChargePoint 
or a ChargePoint authorized partner may be required in order to renew Remote Support for the applicable 
Charging Equipment to ensure that such Charging Equipment was installed and operating in accordance 
with the applicable Product Specifications. Any such site readiness inspection or work necessary to bring 
Charging Equipment into compliance with the Product Specifications may be at your cost. 

 
d. Unless otherwise approved by ChargePoint in writing, any relocation of your Charging Equipment from its 

original installation location will require a new Commissioning by ChargePoint or a ChargePoint authorized 
partner.  

 

5. ON-SITE MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS: In order to perform on-site maintenance pursuant to a Work Order, 
you and/or Maintenance Provider must comply with the following: 
 

a. You shall designate a single maintenance contact, either an employee or Maintenance Provider, that will 
review and accept Work Orders through the Partner Portal. You are responsible for keeping this contact up 
to date. Any changes to your contact must be promptly updated in the Partner Portal. You are responsible 
for any issues, damages, or delays caused by your or your Maintenance Provider’s failure to provide current 
contact information in the Partner Portal. 
 

b. You and/or your Maintenance Provider must complete Training and have Certification in good standing. 
Any failure to Certify and/or maintain Certification on the part of you and/or your Maintenance Provider 
may result in ChargePoint’s inability to provide Remote Support. In the event of such failure, you will 
continue to be charged for Remote Support during your and/or Maintenance Provider’s failure to Certify 
and/or maintain Certification.  

 
c. Perform, or ensure your Maintenance Provider performs, any maintenance under this Agreement as 

provided in the applicable Work Order and according to the Product Specifications and your Training.  

 
d. You and/or Maintenance Provider are responsible for any on-site labor or maintenance requirements 

related to or arising from your Remote Support, including, without limitation, obtaining the necessary 
permits, licenses, certifications, insurance, and any payment of taxes. 

 
e. You must promptly address the issues identified in the applicable Work Order. ChargePoint will not provide 

any Remote Support for additional or subsequent Incidents to the affected Charging Equipment until the 
original issue identified in the applicable Work Order has been completed and you or your Maintenance 

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

Provider set the Work Order status on Partner Portal to completed. You are responsible for uploading any 
documentation required in the Work Order to the Partner Portal.  
 

f. You must contact ChargePoint once the onsite maintenance pursuant to a Work Order is completed so 
ChargePoint can validate that the Incident has been rectified and the applicable Work Order can be moved 
to closed status. 

 
6. EXCLUSIONS FROM REMOTE SUPPORT COVERAGE: In order to provide Remote Support, ChargePoint must be 

able to access and monitor your Charging Equipment. ChargePoint shall not be responsible for any failure to 
meet the Service Levels if ChargePoint is unable to provide Remote Support due to any of the following 
exclusions:  
 

 
a. Your failure to perform an obligation or requirement described in Sections 3 or 4, or your material, uncured 

breach of the Agreement. 
 

b. Equipment other than Charging Equipment, including, without limitation, switch gear, wiring, cellular or 
WiFi devices; are not subject to Remote Support. 

 
c. Damage occurring as a result of (i) improper site preparation or site maintenance, (ii) improper Charging 

Equipment installation, alteration, modification, or attempted repair of any Charging Equipment without a 
licensed and trained electrician approved in advance by ChargePoint, (iii) any physical relocation of the 
Charging Equipment, (iv) improper use or operation not in compliance with published ChargePoint 
maintenance or operation manuals, or (v) lack of proper Commissioning. 

 
d. Damage occurring as the result of repeated or prolonged abuse, misuse, or neglect of the Charging 

Equipment. 

 
e. Charging Equipment that may become inoperable due to your and/or Maintenance Provider’s failure to 

comply with the scope of work or instructions provided in the applicable Work Order. 
  

f. Any repeated or excessive Customer Damage or Third-Party Damage, as determined by ChargePoint in its 
sole discretion. 

 
g. Use of the Charging Equipment with any third-party software, interfacing, parts or supplies not supplied or 

approved, in writing by ChargePoint, in advance of use.  
 

h. Vehicle to charger interoperability or communication issues. ChargePoint will, in good faith, work with you 
and vehicle manufacturers to resolve vehicle-charger interoperability issues, provided, however, that such 
efforts will not be subject to the Service Levels. 

 
i. Damage to Charging Equipment resulting from an extreme power surge, extreme electromagnetic field, or 

any other acts of nature.  

 
j. Any Applicable Law, the effect of which would cause ChargePoint or any Charging Equipment to be 

noncompliant with such Applicable Law in the event ChargePoint provided any services in connection with 
an Incident as contemplated by this Agreement. 

 
k. Force Majeure Event or unforeseeable circumstances beyond ChargePoint’s reasonable control, and not 

due to the fault or negligence of ChargePoint, that prevents ChargePoint from performing its obligations 
under this Agreement. 

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

 
In addition, you acknowledge and agree that you are solely responsible for any work, including, without 
limitation, the on-site maintenance pursuant to a Work Order, performed by you and/or your Maintenance 
Provider under this Agreement. ChargePoint is in no way responsible or liable for such work. The determination 
of the occurrence of any of the exclusions from coverage as set forth in this Section 6 shall be made solely by 
ChargePoint in its reasonable discretion. 

 
7. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: You acknowledge and agree that in connection with the performance of its 

obligations under this Agreement, ChargePoint may use third-party agents and contractors separately engaged 
by ChargePoint. ChargePoint, in the performance of this Agreement, is an independent contractor. In 
performing its obligations under this Agreement, ChargePoint shall maintain complete control over its 
employees, its subcontractors, and its operations. No partnership, joint venture or agency relationship is 
intended by ChargePoint and you to be created by this Agreement. Neither party has any right or authority to 
assume or create any obligations of any kind or to make any representation or warranty on behalf of the other 
party, whether express or implied, or to bind the other party in any respect whatsoever. 
 

8. CONTACT INFORMATION:  If at any time turning the term of your coverage of ChargePoint Remote Support you 
believe you have Defective Charging Equipment, contact ChargePoint customer service at 
https://www.chargepoint.com/support.  
 

9. SERVICE TERM:  In the event you are purchasing Remote Support as a standalone service, i.e. without your 
purchase of Extended Warranty, each Remote Support subscription that you purchase for Charging Equipment 
will commence ninety (90) days from the invoice date and will last for the subscription length selected in an 
applicable order (the “Service Term”). In the event your Remote Support is provided through your Extended 
Warranty, your Remote Support will be coterminous with your Extended Warranty subscription. For greater 
certainty, to the extent applicable Charging Equipment is delivered, installed, and completes Commissioning 
before the Service Term commences as described above, the Charging Equipment will nevertheless have 
coverage under Remote Support and the Service Term will start at the expiration of the ninety (90) day period 
referenced above. 

 

10. RENEWAL: Upon expiration of the Service Term, your Remote Support coverage will renew automatically for 
successive one-year terms (each, a “Renewal Term”) on the date of expiration of the current Service Term at 
the then current list price of a one-year renewal term of Remote Support applicable to your Charging Equipment 
unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to 
the end of the then-current Service Term or Renewal Term, as applicable. If this Agreement is not renewed due 
to your written notice of non-renewal, and is subsequently requested to be reinstated, reinstatement will be 
subject to the payment of fees for any lapse period, plus reasonable reinstatement fees.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary herein, in the event ChargePoint discontinues Remote Support coverage for your 
Charging Equipment, your Remote Support subscription may not renewed. Additionally, ChargePoint may, in its 
reasonable discretion, determine that it will not accept any renewal by you of your Remote Support services.  

 
11. PAYMENTS:  In the event Remote Support service is provided through your Extended Warranty, the terms found 

in your Extended Warranty shall govern with respect to any invoice and payment terms. In the event you have 
purchased Remote Support as a standalone service, ChargePoint will send you an invoice for the ChargePoint 
Remote Support subscription or other fees under this Agreement on or after the date the applicable Charging 
Equipment is shipped to you. Payment is due within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. All payments shall be 
made by check, wire transfer, ACH payment system or other means approved by ChargePoint.  You may not set 
off any amounts due to ChargePoint hereunder against amounts due to you under this Agreement. Fees payable 
to ChargePoint do not include any applicable withholding, sales, use, or other similar fees or taxes imposed by 
any government (other than taxes on the net income of ChargePoint) (“Taxes”), and you are responsible for any 
and all such Taxes.  All payment obligations under this Agreement are non-cancelable and non-refundable.  Late 

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/
https://www.chargepoint.com/support


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

payments shall be subject to a charge equal to the lesser of (i) one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) 
the maximum rate permitted by Applicable Law.  You will reimburse ChargePoint for attorneys’ fees and other 
expenses reasonably incurred by ChargePoint in the collection of any late payments.  If any amount owing by 
you under this Agreement is more than thirty (30) days overdue, ChargePoint may, without otherwise limiting 
ChargePoint’s rights or remedies, (a) terminate this Agreement or (b) refuse to provide ChargePoint Remote 
Support coverage until ChargePoint has received payment in full. 
 

12. MOVES OR TRANSFERS:   Your Remote Support coverage applies only to the Charging Equipment for which it 
was purchased. If you sell or otherwise transfer your Charging Equipment with an active Remote Support 
subscription to a third-party in accordance with Section 23, or  that Charging Equipment is moved or otherwise 
transferred away from the original installation site, the Remote Support coverage may not be transferred 
without ChargePoint’s prior written consent. In the event ChargePoint does provide its prior written consent to 
move or transfer Charging Equipment from the original installation site, Commissioning will be required for such 
new installation site prior to the commencement or resumption of any Remote Support coverage.  

 
13. REPLACEMENT PARTS AND STATIONS:   If applicable, any Spare Parts shall be provided by ChargePoint in 

accordance with your Warranty or Extended Warranty. Spare Parts or Charging Equipment that have been 
replaced (collectively “Replacement Parts”) and are provided by ChargePoint pursuant to your Remote Support 
may be remanufactured or reconditioned Replacement Parts. If the exact Replacement Part is no longer 
manufactured by ChargePoint, then ChargePoint will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide 
Replacement Parts with substantially similar functionality to the defective Replacement Part. Any Replacement 
Parts provided under your Remote Support will become your property and all Replacement Parts returned to 
ChargePoint, whether under warranty or not, will become the property of ChargePoint. Any Replacement Parts 
will be covered by Remote Support for the remainder of your Remote Support coverage or ninety (90) days from 
the date of delivery of such Replacement Parts, whichever is later. 

 
14. INDEMNIFICATION. To the maximum extent allowed by law, you shall defend, indemnify, and hold ChargePoint, 

its officers, directors, agents, affiliates, distribution partners, licensors, and suppliers harmless from and against 
any and all claims, actions, proceedings, costs, liabilities, losses and expenses (including, but not limited to, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively, “Claims”) suffered or incurred by such indemnified parties resulting 
from or arising out of (a) your actual or alleged use of Remote Support; (b) your or your Maintenance Partner’s 
negligence or willful misconduct (including the negligence or willful misconduct of you or your Maintenance 
Partner’s agents, employees, or anyone for whom you or your Maintenance Partner are legally liable); (c) you 
or your Maintenance Partner’s breach of this Agreement; or (d) you or your maintenance Partner’s breach of 
Applicable Law.  ChargePoint reserves the right, at its own expense, to assume the exclusive defense and control 
of any matter subject to indemnification under this Agreement. 

 
15. LIMITS ON LIABILITY:  This Section limits ChargePoint’s liability under ChargePoint Remote Support.  Please read 

it carefully. 
 

a. CHARGEPOINT IS NOT LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION LOST PROFITS, LOST BUSINESS, LOST DATA, LOSS OF USE, OR 
COST OF COVER INCURRED BY YOU ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO YOUR PURCHASE OR USE OF REMOTE 
SUPPORT OR THE SERVICES CONTEMPLAED HEREUNDER, OR USE OF, OR INABILITY TO USE, THE CHARGING 
EQUIPMENT, UNDER ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, 
TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, EVEN IF CHARGEPOINT KNEW 
OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  THE SOLE AND CUMULATIVE LIABILITY 
OF CHARGEPOINT FOR ALL CLAIMS WHATSOEVER RELATED TO PERFORMANCE BY CHARGEPOINT OF ITS 
OBLIGATIONS UNDER REMOTE SUPPORT WILL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE YOU PAID FOR REMOTE SUPPORT 
FOR THE THEN-CURRENT ANNUAL PERIOD OF REMOTE SUPPORT COVERAGE. THE LIMITATIONS SET FORTH 

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

HEREIN ARE INTENDED TO LIMIT THE LIABILITY OF CHARGEPOINT AND SHALL APPLY NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY. 
 

b. Any failure on the part of ChargePoint to meet the Service Level shall not be considered a breach of this 
Agreement.  

 
16. TERMINATION:  You may terminate this Agreement without prejudice to any other remedy at law or equity if 

ChargePoint is in material breach of any of its obligations under this Agreement and has not cured such breach 
within thirty (30) days of the date of its receipt of written notice thereof. Upon termination for cause pursuant 
to Section 16, ChargePoint will refund a pro-rata portion of the fees you paid. Upon any termination for any 
other reason, you will not be entitled to a refund of any fees paid and will be responsible for any accrued and 
unpaid fees owed to ChargePoint.  

 
17. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION:    

 
The ChargePoint entity entering into this Agreement, the address to which you should direct notices under this 
Agreement, the governing law, and place of jurisdiction, shall be determined according to your domicile:  

  
  

This Agreement, and any disputes related to this Agreement, will be governed by the applicable governing laws 
above, without regard to conflicts of laws rules or the United Nations Convention on the International Sale of 
Goods. Except with respect to any matter relating to your violation of the intellectual property rights of 
ChargePoint, any disputes, actions, claims or causes of action arising out of or in connection with this Agreement 
shall be submitted to and finally settled by arbitration using the English language in accordance with the 
Arbitration Rules and Procedures of the applicable Forum set forth in the table above then in effect, by one or 
more commercial arbitrator(s) with substantial experience in the industry and in resolving complex commercial 
contract disputes. Judgment upon the award so rendered may be entered in a court having jurisdiction or 
application may be made to such court for judicial acceptance of any award and an order of enforcement, as 
the case may be. All claims shall be brought in the parties’ individual capacity, and not as a plaintiff or class 
member in any purported class or representative proceeding. With respect to any matter relating to the 
intellectual property rights of ChargePoint, such claims may be litigated in a court of competent jurisdiction. The 
prevailing party in any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
costs. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party shall have the right to institute an action in any court of proper 
jurisdiction for injunctive relief. 
 

18. NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be sent to you by ChargePoint via electronic 
mail to the address indicated by you in your ChargePoint Cloud Services account.  
 

If Subscriber are 
domiciled in: 

The ChargePoint 
Entity entering into 
this Agreement is: 

Notices should be 
addressed to: 

Governing law is: Place of jurisdiction: Forum: 

The United States of 
America  

ChargePoint, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation  

Attn: Legal 
Department  
ChargePoint, Inc.  
254 E Hacienda Ave  
Campbell, CA 95008  

California and 
controlling United 
States federal law   

Santa Clara, California, 
U.S.A.  

Judicial Arbitration 
and Mediation 
Services, Inc. (JAMS)  

Canada  ChargePoint Canada, 
Inc., a British Columbia 
corporation  

 Attn: Legal 
Department 
 ChargePoint, Inc. 
 254 E Hacienda Ave 

 Campbell, CA 95008 

British Columbia and 
controlling Canadian 
federal law   

Vancouver, British 
Columbia, Canada  

ADR Institute of 
Canada  

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

19. AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION: ChargePoint reserves the right to modify this Agreement from time to time. 
ChargePoint will provide notice of each such modification to you. Your continued use of Remote Support 
following such notice will constitute an acceptance of the modified Agreement. 

 
20. WAIVER:  The failure of either party at any time to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed to be a waiver of the right of such party to thereafter enforce that provision or any other provision 
or right. 

 
21. FORCE MAJEURE:  ChargePoint will not be liable for failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder due to 

causes beyond its reasonable control and occurring without its fault or negligence, including but not limited to 
fire, flood, earthquake or other natural disaster (irrespective of ChargePoint’s condition of any preparedness 
therefore); war; terrorist act; epidemic; pandemic; quarantine; civil commotion;  breakdown of communication 
facilities; breakdown of web host; breakdown of internet service provider; embargo; riot; strike; labor action; 
changes in laws or regulations; any lawful order, decree, or other directive of any government authority; 
material shortages; shortage of transport; and failures of suppliers to deliver the requisite material or 
components (a “Force Majeure Event”). 

 
22. SEVERABILITY.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, if any term or condition of this Agreement or 

the application thereof to either party will to any extent be determined jointly by the parties or by any judicial, 
governmental or similar authority, to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the 
application of such term or provision to this Agreement, the parties or circumstances other than those as to 
which it is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, will not be affected thereby. 

 
23. ASSIGNMENT.   Except as otherwise provided under this Agreement, you may not assign any of your rights or 

obligations hereunder, whether by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of 
ChargePoint. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may assign your rights and obligations under this Agreement 
upon notice to ChargePoint if you own and sell the real property where the Charging Equipment is installed, 
provided that any such purchasing entity assumes all your rights and obligations under this Agreement; provided 
further that, the purchasing entity does not violate any terms of this Agreement. In the event of any purported 
assignment in breach of this Section 23, ChargePoint shall be entitled, at its sole discretion, to terminate this 
Agreement by providing written notice to you. Any assignment under this Section 22 may necessitate updates 
to your contact information. ChargePoint is not responsible for any failure to meet its obligations under this 
Agreement caused by differences in such contact information arising from your assignment of this Agreement. 
Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. ChargePoint may assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement. 
 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) contains the entire agreement between 
the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes and cancels all previous and 
contemporaneous agreements, negotiations, commitments, understandings, representations and writings 
pertaining to such subject matter.  All purchase orders issued by you shall state that such purchase orders are 
subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and contain no other term other than the type of 
Remote Support coverage, the number of Charging Equipment for which Remote Support is ordered, the term 
of such Remote Support coverage, and applicable fees. To the extent of any conflict or inconsistency between 
this Agreement and any purchase order, the Agreement shall prevail. Notwithstanding any language to the 
contrary therein, no terms or conditions stated in any other documentation shall be incorporated into or form 
any part of this Agreement, and all such purported terms and conditions shall be null and void. 

 
25. ENGLISH LANGUAGE AGREEMENT GOVERNS. Where ChargePoint has provided you with a translation of the 

English language version of this Agreement, you agree that the translation is provided for your convenience only 
and that the English language version of this Agreement governs your relationship with ChargePoint. If there is 
any conflict between the English language version of this Agreement and a translated version, the English 

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

language version shall control. It is the express wish of the parties that this Agreement and all related 
documents, including notices and other communications, be drawn up in the English language only. Il est la 
volonté expresse des parties que cette convention et tous les documents s’y rattachant, y compris les avis et les 
autres communications, soient rédigés et signés en anglais seulement.  

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


  

Revised  November 2023 

ChargePoint, Inc. | 254 East Hacienda Ave | Campbell, CA 95008-6901 USA 
408.841.4500 or toll-free 877.370.3802 | info@chargepoint.com | www.chargepoint.com  

Copyright © 2023 ChargePoint, Inc. – All rights reserved.  
CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. 

 

Exhibit 1:  Service Level Terms 
 

1. SERVICE LEVEL OBLIGATIONS. ChargePoint will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide the Response 
Times, Remote Diagnostic Times, and time coverage periods described in the Service Level Table (collectively 
the “Service Levels”) in connection with Remote Support for the severity levels described in the following service 
level table (“Service Level Table”): 

  

Severity Level Description 

Service Level 

Standard  Critical  

1 – Outage 
Can’t charge (e.g., 

System Down) 

1 Business Day Response 

Time 

2 Business Day Remote 

Diagnostic Time 

24x7 time coverage 

1 Hour Response Time 

12 Hour Remote Diagnostic 

Time 

24x7 time coverage 

2 – Impairment 

Can charge but 

impaired, limited, or 

modified operation 

required (e.g., 

Reduced Power) 

2 Business Day Response 

Time 

3 Business Day Remote 

Diagnostic Time 

8x5 time coverage 

1 Business Day Response 

Time 

2 Business Day Remote 

Diagnostic Time 

8x5 time coverage 

3 – non-Critical 

All else (e.g., 

Inquiries, Cosmetic 

Impairment) 

3 Business Day Response 

Tim 

8x5 time coverage 

1 Business Day Response 

Time 

8x5 time coverage 

 
2. EXCLUSIONS FROM SERVICE LEVEL OBLIGATIONS. The Service Levels described in the Service Level Table are 

subject to the following exclusions: 

 
a. Exclusions described in Section 6 of this Agreement. 

 
b. Wait time by ChargePoint, before or after Acknowledgment, for you to provide ChargePoint additional 

information to qualify the issue, time to confirm dispatch, or time beyond the initial proposed dispatch date 
by ChargePoint. 

 
3. CONTACT INFORMATION. You shall provide contact information for communicating with, and providing timely 

and accurate information and feedback to, ChargePoint in connection with Remote Support. You may update 
the contact information through your ChargePoint Cloud Services account.  

mailto:info@chargepoint.com
http://www.chargepoint.com/


ChargePoint Return Policy for Warranty and Out-of-Warranty Parts 

The goal of ChargePoint’s return policy for in-warranty and out-of-warranty parts is to make it easy and 

fast for you (our customer) to repair or replace your ChargePoint charging stations and accessories, while 

reducing our impact to the environment and your costs by encouraging the return and refurbishment of 

Non-Functional Items whenever possible. 

This return policy applies to Non-Functional Items under Warranty, Extended Parts Warranty, and/or of 

Out of Warranty Replacement Parts replaced pursuant to the terms and conditions of ChargePoint’s 

Standard Parts Warranty found at: https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services (“Standard Parts 

Warranty”). This return policy also applies to Non-Functional Items related to your initial purchase of parts 

for out-of-warranty repairs. Unless otherwise defined in this return policy, defined terms used in this 

return policy are defined in the Standard Parts Warranty.   

Advance Replacement 

After you receive a Replacement Item through ChargePoint’s warranty service (as described in the 

Standard Parts Warranty), or through the purchase of a Replacement Item for out-of-warranty repairs, 

ChargePoint may require, in its discretion, you to return the Non-Functional Item. If ChargePoint requires 

you to return the Non-Functional Item, then ChargePoint will provide to you a Return Material 

Authorization (“RMA”) number for you to reference when you return the Non-Functional Item. Shipping 

charges, if any, will be described in the RMA instructions.  

Non-Return Policy 

1. Most of ChargePoint’s Replacement Items, when provided by ChargePoint and accompanied by 

an RMA for the Non-Functional Item, come with an associated charge assessed in case the Non-

Functional Item is not properly returned (“Non-Return Fee”). The Non-Return Fee reflects the 

value of the applicable Non-Functional Item, created by refurbishing it to comply with 

ChargePoint’s specifications.   

 

2. Non-Return Fees only apply to RMAs issued for repairs performed with labor provided by 

Customer, whether such labor is done by Customer or a third party authorized by Customer. If 

ChargePoint provides the labor for repairs, whether such labor is done by ChargePoint or a third 

party authorized by ChargePoint, then no Non-Return Fee will be assessed to Customer. 

 

3. Non-Return Fees are set at 50% of then-current retail price of the Replacement Item, unless 

determined otherwise by ChargePoint. Non-Return Fees are only invoiced if the Non-Functional 

item has not been returned in full (i.e. not all parts and components have been returned), or if the 

Non-Functional Item was returned to ChargePoint, but ChargePoint has determined that damage, 

due to your improper shipment packaging as part of the RMA, to the Non-Functional Item 

prevents ChargePoint from refurbishing such item.  

 

4. When you return the Non-Functional Item to ChargePoint, you are required to write the RMA 

number on the outside of your return package and/or in the space provided on the shipping label, 

and include a copy of our RMA form. If instructions that are provided with your RMA conflict with 



the instructions set forth in this return policy, then please follow the instructions provided with 

your RMA. 

 

5. When ChargePoint receives your Non-Functional item, ChargePoint will inspect it to verify that all 

parts have been returned and determine whether it can be refurbished and if not, whether the 

damage preventing refurbishment is due to improper packaging.  

 

6. The Non-Return Fee is refunded in full, minus any missing or misused parts, once the returned 

Non-Functional Item passes inspection. ChargePoint does not invoice for the Non-Return Fee until 

30 days after shipment of the Replacement Item if the Non-Functional Item is not returned, or 

upon failing inspection. If the Non-Functional Item is returned within 30 days after shipment of 

the Replacement Item and passes the inspection described in point 5 above, you will not be 

invoiced for the Non-Return Fee. Returned Non-Functional Items must be complete and free of 

damage due to improper packaging that prevents refurbishment for you not to be invoiced for the 

Non-Return Fee.  

 

7. Returns of Non-Functional Items are accepted within 30 days after your purchase (this return 

window may be modified, from time to time, by ChargePoint), or provision under the applicable 

warranty, of the Replacement Item. Non-Functional Items returned must be the same as the unit 

specified in the RMA document, usually the same as the Replacement Item or a predecessor 

version. 

Frequent Returned Non-Functional Item Rejection Causes 

The following are the most common reasons for ChargePoint to reject returned Non-Functional Items 

subject to the inspection described above. Please take care when returning your Non-Functional Items: 

• Missing parts; 

• Part number mismatch (Non-Functional Item returned does not match part number originally 

purchased, specified on the RMA); and/or 

• Not packaged in the manufacturer’s box for the original or replacement part, or other packaging 

that prevents damage in transit. 



Page 1 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

CHARGEPOINT MASTER SUPPORT SERVICES TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. Description of Support Services. These ChargePoint Master Support Services Terms and Conditions 
(“Agreement”) governs the provision of Support Services (defined below) by ChargePoint, Inc. 
(“ChargePoint”) to customer (“you” and “your”). Each subscription plan for Support Services  
(“Subscriptions”) provides Support Services-related coverage to you for the ChargePoint-covered 
charging stations and related hardware peripherals (“Hardware”) and may include a combination of 
remote support, parts and labor coverage, as further described in the applicable Support Scope and Terms. 
Each Subscription is offered by the applicable ChargePoint entity or entities referenced under “Entities” 
section below and is valid for US and Canada only. The scope of this Agreement is only for Support Services 
and does not include other services offered by ChargePoint (e.g., ChargePoint cloud plans) or products not 
described in the applicable Support Scope and Terms (e.g. ChargePoint’s Home Flex products or any of its 
successors). “Support Services” shall mean the service(s) provided to you subject to this Agreement and 
the applicable ChargePoint Support Services Scope and Terms (“Support Scope and Terms”) found at  
www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services. This Agreement and Support Scope and Terms may be 
amended from time to time by ChargePoint. 
 

2. Subscriptions. 
 

2.1 Service Term and Renewal. Each Subscription that you purchase will commence ninety (90) days 
after the invoice date of such Subscription and will continue for the term purchased via the applicable 
invoice or purchase order (“Service Term”). ChargePoint will send you an invoice for your Subscription 
on or after the date the applicable Hardware is shipped to you. Upon expiration of your initial Service 
Term, your Subscription will renew automatically for successive one-year periods (each a “Renewal 
Term”). Renewal Terms will commence on the date of the expiration of the initial Service Term or prior 
Renewal Term, as applicable 
 

2.2 Transfer. If you sell or divest yourself of the applicable Hardware and wish to transfer or otherwise 
assign in any manner the applicable Subscription a third party, then you must provide 60 days prior 
written notice to ChargePoint of such sale or divestiture of Hardware. Failure to provide such prior 
notice will void the applicable Subscription for any successor third party. 
 

2.3 Commencement. Your Hardware will be covered by the applicable Subscription starting after the 
Hardware has been delivered, installed, and activated (subject to the applicable requirements of 
ChargePoint) and until the end of the Service Term. Note that certain Hardware and corresponding 
Subscriptions may require you to fulfill certain activation obligations prior to the commencement of 
the applicable Support Services (for more details see the Installation, Commissioning and Activation 
Scope and Terms located at www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services) 
(“Deployment and Consulting Scope and Terms”). 
 

2.4 Term and Termination. This Agreement and applicable Support Scope and Terms shall remain in full 
force and effect until completion of Service Term or Renewal Term, subject to earlier termination as 
set forth below.   Either party may terminate this Agreement if the other party is in material breach of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement (which shall include without limitation any nonpayment by 
customer of fees due for Services) and has not cured such breach within thirty (30) days of the date of 
its receipt of written notice thereof. Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
written notice if any assignment is made of the other party's business for the benefit of creditors, or if 
a petition in bankruptcy is filed by or against the other party and has not been dismissed within 60 days 

http://www.chargepoint.com/legal/support-services
http://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services


Page 2 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

of such filing.  ChargePoint may terminate this Agreement upon written notice in the event that any law 
or regulation prevents or materially impedes the performance of Support Services. All sections of this 
Agreement which by their nature should survive termination and/or expiration of this Agreement shall 
survive such termination and/or expiration.  
 
If you exercise the termination rights described in this section, then you acknowledge and agree (a) 
you will be required to pay ChargePoint the full balance of fees you owe for the then-current 
Subscription; and (b) if you prepaid for the then-current Subscription, then you are not entitled to, and 
ChargePoint is not obligated to provide you in any manner, a refund of such prepayment. If you wish to 
terminate your Subscription pursuant to this section, ChargePoint will issue a pro-rata refund of any 
funds paid from the effective date of termination to the end of the applicable Service Term or Renewal 
Term. For termination for any other reason, you will not be entitled to any refund. 
 

2.5 Reinstatement Fee. If you terminate the applicable Subscription during a Renewal Term and wish to 
reinstate such Subscription at a later date, such reinstatement will be subject to the payment of fees 
for the time period that lapses after such termination and prior to the reinstatement, plus any 
reasonable reinstatement fees charged by ChargePoint. 
 

2.6 Payment. Payment for Subscriptions is due within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. All payment 
obligations are non-cancelable and non-refundable. Late payment shall be subject to a charge equal 
to the lesser of (i) one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) the maximum rate allowed by the 
applicable jurisdiction. You will reimburse ChargePoint for attorneys’ fees and other expenses 
reasonably incurred by ChargePoint in the collection of any late payments. If any amount is more than 
thirty (30) days overdue, ChargePoint may (a) terminate the applicable Subscription or (b) withhold 
Subscription coverage until ChargePoint has received payment in full. All payments shall be made in 
U.S. Dollars (or if you are based out of Canada, Canadian dollars) and may be made by wire transfer, 
ACH payment system or other means approved by ChargePoint. You may not offset any amounts due 
to ChargePoint hereunder against amounts due to you under this Agreement and/or Support Scope 
and Terms. Fees payable to ChargePoint do not include any taxes, and you are responsible for all such 
taxes. 
 

2.7 Purchase after Activation. If you wish to purchase a Subscription after the activation of the applicable 
Hardware, then you will need to provide ChargePoint written evidence that there are no outstanding 
repair or defect issues with such Hardware. Approval of the activation of Subscription, as described in 
this section, will be at ChargePoint’s sole discretion. 
 

2.8 Relocation of Hardware. Any relocation of Hardware from its original installation location (including, 
without limitation, to any approved transfer pursuant to Section 2.2) will require (a) re-Activation (as 
further described in the Deployment and Consulting Scope and Terms); and (b) re-Commissioning (as 
further described in separate the Deployment and Consulting Scope and Terms) if Hardware is a DC 
charging station. 
 

2.9 Maximum Service Term. ChargePoint will not sell or make available Subscriptions beyond the useful 
life of the applicable Hardware, i.e., 10 years after its initial activation. ChargePoint, in its sole 
discretion, may amend from time to time the calculation of the useful life of any Hardware. 
 

3. Support Services. 
 



Page 3 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

3.1 Coverage. If included in your applicable Subscription, ChargePoint will provide parts and/or labor 
coverage for the applicable Hardware. 
 

3.2 Covered Hardware. Unless otherwise described in the applicable Support Scope and Terms, only 
certain Hardware purchased from ChargePoint or an authorized ChargePoint distributor or reseller 
may receive Support Services. Please refer to the Scope and Terms for a list of Hardware covered by 
the applicable Subscription. 
 

3.3 Active Cloud Plan Requirement. Unless otherwise described in the applicable Support Scope and 
Terms, you must maintain an active ChargePoint cloud plan to receive Support Services. 
 

3.4 Replacement Parts. If the then-current Subscription provides “parts cost coverage” for replacement 
hardware components and/or Hardware that ChargePoint uses to repair and/or replace your defective 
Hardware (“Replacement Parts”), then Replacement Parts will be provided at no charge. You 
acknowledge and agree Replacement Parts may be remanufactured or reconditioned (a) hardware 
components of Hardware; or (b) Hardware if such Hardware is no longer manufactured; provided, that 
ChargePoint will use reasonable efforts to provide such Hardware that provides substantially similar 
functionality.  Any Replacement Parts provided to you via a Subscription will become your property 
and all parts and/or Hardware returned by you or your authorized representative to ChargePoint in 
connection with any Support Services will become the property of ChargePoint. 
 

3.5 Your Responsibilities. You agree to: (a) provide reasonable access to ChargePoint or its designee as 
necessary for the performance of ChargePoint’s obligations, including access to your requisite 
personnel and physical site, to address the required Support Services; (b) promptly provide accurate 
and complete information as requested by ChargePoint in connection with the provision of any 
Support Services; (c) maintain the physical site in which Hardware is located in accordance with all 
applicable laws, regulations and rules; and (d) keep the physical site in which Hardware is located in 
a clean, safe and orderly condition, to at least the same standard as you customarily use to maintain 
the remainder of your sites and/or premises. 
 

3.6 Exclusions. The following issues are not covered by Support Services:  
 
a. Damage and Misuse. Damage to Hardware caused by you and/or third parties, including, without 

limitation, abuse, negligence, vandalism, accidents, or any other events. In addition, any use of 
the Hardware in a manner that is not in compliance with the specifications of Hardware, as 
described in the applicable ChargePoint documentation. 

b. Cosmetic Damage. Cosmetic damage to Hardware such as scratches and dents. 
c. Normal Aging and Discoloration. Normal aging or discoloration of Hardware due to exposure to 

environmental elements. 
d. Unapproved Deployment or Alteration. Installation, operation, alteration, modification, or 

relocation of the Hardware or firmware incorporated in such Hardware that was not approved in 
writing by ChargePoint. 

e. Force Majeure. Force majeure events or unforeseeable circumstances beyond ChargePoint’s 
reasonable control that prevent ChargePoint from performing its Support Services-related 
obligations. 

f. Lack of Commissioning. DC charging station(s) that has not undergone Commissioning, as such 
term is described in Deployment and Consulting Scope and Terms. 

g. Fraudulent Actions. Fraudulent actions or omissions in connection with Support Services-
related requests, e.g. removal or alteration of the serial number of the applicable Hardware.  



Page 4 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

h. Unapproved Interfaces. Use of Hardware with software, interfaces, parts or supplies not 
approved in writing by ChargePoint. 

i. Interoperability. Vehicle-to-Hardware interoperability or communication issues, including, 
without limitation, testing on non-commercially available vehicles. 

j. Timely Notification. If you do not notify ChargePoint on a timely basis (as reasonably determined 
in ChargePoint’s discretion) of the Hardware-related issue (e.g. inability to dispense energy) or 
impairments (can charge but impaired, limited or modified safe operation of the charger is 
required) as soon as you first become aware of such issue. 

k. Certification. If the installation or maintenance of Hardware is performed by a technician not 
certified by ChargePoint. 

l. Hardware Not Covered by Support Services. ChargePoint takes no responsibility or liability with 
respect to repairing, replacing, monitoring, or servicing anything other than Hardware covered by 
a then-current Subscription. For example, ChargePoint is not responsible for the physical 
mounting and electrical wiring of Hardware, performance of any cellular or Wi-Fi repeaters 
connected to Hardware, or third-party hardware accessories installed with Hardware that are not 
covered by Support Services, including, without limitation, skid mounts. 

m. Customer Responsibilities. If by your action or inaction you do not comply with your 
responsibilities as described in Section 3.5. 

n. Cloud Issues. Issues related to your ChargePoint cloud services (e.g., Cloud Plan or Fleet Ops). 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, issues related to your software embedded within the applicable 
Hardware (e.g., firmware) are covered by the applicable Support Services. 

 
3.7 Service Levels 
 

a. Service Level Matrix. In connection with the applicable Subscription(s), ChargePoint will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to provide the support level objectives for Support Services 
(“Service Levels”) as set forth in the “Service Level Category” table below. For more details on 
which Service Levels apply to your Subscription, please refer to the applicable Support Scope and 
Terms. Any failure by ChargePoint to meet and/or maintain the Service Levels shall not constitute a 
breach of this Agreement. 

Service 
Level Category 

Standard Critical 

Severity 1 2 3 1 2 3 
Type of Hardware-
Related Issue Outage Impairment 

Non-
Critical Outage Impairment 

Non-
Critical 

Service 
Levels 

Response 
1 Business 

Day 
2 Business 

Days 
3 Business 

Days 
1 Hour 

1 Business 
Days 

2 
Business 

Days 

Diagnosis 2 Business 
Days 

3 Business 
Days 

- 12 Hours 2 Business 
Days 

- 

Resolution 
5 Business 

Days 
6 Business 

Days 
- 24 Hours 

5 Business 
Days 

- 

Annual 
Port Uptime 

98% - - 99% - - 

Part Delivery 
4 Business 

Days 
4 Business 

Days 
4 Business 

Days 
4 Business 

Days 
4 Business 

Days 

4 
Business 

Days 
 



Page 5 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

b. Definitions for Service Level Category Table. The following definitions apply to the defined terms 
used in the “Service Level Category” table above: 

 
i. Standard. This Service Level Category is applicable to the Subscription(s) as described in 

the applicable Support Scope and Terms. 
ii. Critical. This Service Level Category is applicable to the Subscription(s) as described in the 

applicable Support Scope and Terms. 
iii. Outage. Issues which completely prevent the Hardware from dispensing electricity (i.e. 

inoperable station). 
iv. Impairment. Issues that require a workaround to use the Hardware, but the Hardware is still 

able to dispense electricity (e.g., broken cable management kit). 
v. Non-Critical. Issues that do not constitute Outages or Impairments (e.g., general 

information requests, or Hardware-related wear and tear). 
vi. Acknowledgement. The earlier of (a) ChargePoint confirming an issue using proactive 

monitoring; or (b) you first report the applicable issue to ChargePoint’s technical support 
with all the necessary information required by ChargePoint to acknowledge to you the 
receipt of the reported, applicable issue outlined in the “Service Level Category” table. 

vii. Response. Time from Acknowledgement to ChargePoint’s provision of a response and 
confirmation that ChargePoint has started the troubleshooting and diagnosis of the 
applicable issue.  

viii. Diagnosis. Time from Acknowledgement to (i) when ChargePoint issues a work order that 
confirms that an onsite repair work is necessary; (ii) written confirmation from ChargePoint 
to you that the applicable issue can be remotely resolved; or (iii) when ChargePoint quotes 
you the cost of the applicable Replacement Part in connection with the onsite repair work.  

ix. Resolution. Time from Acknowledgement to a complete resolution of the Hardware-related 
issue, as determined by ChargePoint. 

x. Annual Port Uptime. The percentage of time that a port can dispense energy during the 12-
month period from the latter of the (i) activation of the applicable Hardware; or (ii) start of 
your Service Term; provided that, such uptime objective is subject to exclusions described in 
Section 3.8 herein. For the avoidance of doubt, Annual Port Uptime does not apply to 
ChargePoint’s cloud services. 

xi. Part Delivery. Time from Acknowledgement to the delivery to you or your authorized 
recipient of a Replacement Part. 

 
3.8 Service Level Exclusions 

 
a. Rescheduled Dispatches. Time between the initially proposed dispatch date from ChargePoint 

and the final dispatch date if rescheduled at your request. 
b. Inability to Service. Time between the initial visit and any follow-up visit if the follow-up is 

required due to your action or inaction preventing ChargePoint from resolving the issue. 
c. Other Exclusions. The applicable exclusions described in Section 3.6. 

 
4. Warranty; Other Disclaimers.  THE SUPPORT SERVICES ARE PROVIDED ON AN “AS IS” AND “AS 

AVAILABLE” BASIS. THIS IS THE FULL EXTENT OF WARRANTIES PROVIDED BY CHARGEPOINT UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT AND THE APPLICABLE SUPPORT SCOPE AND TERMS. NO OTHER CHARGEPOINT 
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSOR IMPLIED, IS INCLUDED OR 
INTENDED BY THIS AGREEMENT, THE APPLICABLE SUPPORT SCOPE AND TERMS, OR IN ANY PROPOSAL, 
CONTRACT, REPORT, STATEMENT OF WORK OR OTHER DOCUMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE SUPPORT 
SERVICES THAT IS PROVIDED BY CHARGEPOINT, AND CHARGEPOINT SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL 



Page 6 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

OTHER SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING THE WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT 
AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE. 
 

5. Limitation of Liability. REGARDLESS OF WHETHER ANY REMEDY SET FORTH HEREIN FAILS OF ITS 
ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OR OTHERWISE, IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOST 
REVENUE OR PROFIT, LOST OR DAMAGED DATA, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF CAPITAL, OR FOR 
SPECIAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED AND 
REGARDLESS OF THE THEORY OF LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE BASED ON ANY EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
CLAIMED WARRANTIES NOT SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT.  EXCEPT FOR : (I) A PARTY’S 
GROSS NEGLIGENCE, WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, OR CLAIMS OF PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH; (II) A 
PARTY’S BREACH OF ITS CONFIDENTIALITY  OBLIGATIONS; OR (III) A PARTY’S INFRINGEMENT OR 
MISAPPROPRIATION OF THE OTHER PARTY’S INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS, IN NO EVENT SHALL 
EITHER PARTY’S LIABILITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT (IN YOUR CASE, IN ADDITION TO THE FEES AND 
EXPENSES PAYABLE BY YOU IN CONNECTION WITH THE APPLICABLE SUBSCRIPTION) EXCEED THE TOTAL 
FEES AND EXPENSES DUE AND PAYABLE BY YOU IN CONNECTION WITH THE APPLICABLE SUBSCRIPTION 
(I.E. SUPPORT SERVICES) GIVING RISE TO THE LIABILITY. 

 
6. Intellectual Property Rights.  

 
6.1 “Your IP” means your pre-existing or independently developed intellectual property rights. 

 
6.2 “ChargePoint IP” means (a) ChargePoint’s pre-existing or independently developed intellectual 

property rights, (b) ChargePoint’s templates and tools used to provide Support Services, (c) ideas, 
concepts, techniques, models, and know-how created or co-created or developed or co-developed 
by ChargePoint during or in connection with the performance of Support Services, (d) all reports, 
evaluations, findings, data and reports provided by ChargePoint to you in the performance of Support 
Services (collectively, “Materials”), and (e) all intellectual property rights in the foregoing or in any 
derivative works of the foregoing; provided, that ChargePoint IP excludes any Your IP incorporated in 
the Materials. 
 

6.3 As between the parties, (a) you own all right, title and interest in and to Your IP, and (b) ChargePoint 
owns all right, title and interest in and to the ChargePoint IP.  Neither party is granted any right, title nor 
interest in the other party’s pre-existing intellectual property rights, either express or implied, under 
this Agreement or applicable Support Scope and Terms. Each party reserves all rights not specifically 
granted to the other party under this Agreement or applicable Support Scope and Terms, and no 
licenses or other rights to a party’s intellectual property rights are granted by implication, estoppel or 
otherwise.  Neither party shall use trademarks or logos of the other party, for the provision of the 
Support Services or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the other party.  
 

6.4 Notwithstanding the above provisions in this section, ChargePoint shall have the right to use, 
reproduce, and disclose the Materials (without attribution to you).  ChargePoint shall be free to provide 
material similar to Materials to third parties whose needs may be similar to your requirements, without 
violating its confidentiality obligations hereunder to you.   
 

7. Feedback.  “Feedback” shall mean any feedback, comments, suggestions or other input provided by you 
in connection with the Support Services.  You shall be under no obligation to provide Feedback and shall 
not provide any Feedback that violates the rights of any third party.  You hereby grant to ChargePoint a non-
exclusive, perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, worldwide license (with the right to sublicense) to use, 
modify, prepare derivative works of, display, perform and otherwise exploit in any manner the Feedback, 



Page 7 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

and to make, have made, import, use, sell and otherwise distribute products and services using or 
incorporating the Feedback. 

 
8. Confidentiality. Each party agrees not to use the other party’s confidential and proprietary information 

(“Confidential Information”) except in the performance of the Support Services or as authorized by this 
Agreement, and not to disclose or otherwise make available such information to third parties without the 
other party’s prior written consent. Confidential Information does not include: (i) information that was 
publicly available at the time of disclosure or that subsequently becomes publicly available other than by 
a breach of this provision, (ii) information already known by the receiving party independent of the 
Confidential Information as evidenced by written records, (iii) information developed by the receiving party 
independent of the Confidential Information, and (iv) information that the receiving party rightfully obtains 
without restrictions on use and disclosure. Confidential Information shall remain the exclusive property of 
the disclosing party and no intellectual property right is licensed, granted or otherwise transferred by this 
section or any disclosure of Confidential Information to the receiving party. 

 
9. Miscellaneous. 

 
9.1 Force Majeure.  “Force Majeure” means any act of God, fire, natural disaster, earthquake, accident, 

act or regulation of government or a governmental agency, or an act that is beyond the reasonable 
control of either party.  Neither party will be deemed in default of this Agreement and/or applicable 
Support Scope and Terms (other than with respect to any obligations by you to pay for the applicable 
Subscription) to the extent that performance of its obligations or attempts to cure any breach are 
delayed or prevented by reason of Force Majeure; provided, that such party gives the other party 
written prompt notice thereof and continues to use its reasonable efforts to perform or cure, as 
applicable. 
 

9.2 Miscellaneous. Neither party may assign this Agreement or any of its rights or duties hereunder, 
without the prior written consent of the other party, except that either party may assign its rights and 
duties hereunder in connection with its acquisition or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets.  
Any attempted assignment or delegation in violation of the preceding sentence shall be void.  The 
provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their 
successors and permitted assigns.  ChargePoint is an independent contractor and shall not be 
deemed an employee or agent of you. The terms in this Agreement and in the applicable Support 
Scope and Terms constitute the complete agreement regarding any provision of Support Services by 
ChargePoint and supersede all prior agreements and discussions between the parties; provided, that 
in the event of any conflict between this Agreement and the applicable Support Scope and Terms or 
any other document the terms of the applicable Support Scope and Terms shall govern. In particular, 
any additional terms contained on your ordering instrument or other documents shall be of no force 
or effect. The parties shall comply with all applicable state, national and foreign laws and regulations. 
In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement should be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions 
contained herein shall not be in any way affected or impaired thereby. The waiver by either party of any 
default or breach of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent default or 
breach.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended, except in writing signed by a duly authorized 
representative of each party. 
 

9.3 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, ChargePoint Entities, and Dispute Resolution. The ChargePoint entity 
entering into this Agreement with you, the address to which you should direct notices under this 



Page 8 of 8 
10.17.24 Version 

Agreement, the governing law, and place of jurisdiction, shall be determined according to where you 
are domiciled: 

If You are 
domiciled in: 

The 
ChargePoint 
Entity entering 
into this 
Agreement is: 

Notices should be 
addressed to: 

Governing law is: Place of 
jurisdiction: 

Forum: 

The United States 
of America 

ChargePoint, 
Inc., a Delaware 
corporation 

Attn: Legal 
Department 
ChargePoint, Inc. 
254 E Hacienda 
Ave 
Campbell, CA 
95008 

California and 
controlling United 
States federal law  

Santa Clara, 
California, 
U.S.A. 

Judicial 
Arbitration 
and Mediation 
Services, Inc. 
(JAMS) 

Canada ChargePoint 
Canada, Inc., a 
British Columbia 
corporation 

Attn: Legal 
Department 
ChargePoint, Inc. 
254 E Hacienda 
Ave 
Campbell, CA 
95008 

British Columbia 
and controlling 
Canadian federal 
law  

Vancouver, 
British 
Columbia, 
Canada 

ADR Institute 
of Canada 

 

This Agreement, and any disputes related to this Agreement, will be governed by the applicable 
“Governing Laws” above in the table above, without regard to conflicts of laws rules or the United 
Nations Convention on the International Sale of Goods. 

Except with respect to any matter relating to your violation of the intellectual property rights of 
ChargePoint, any disputes, actions, claims or causes of action arising out of or in connection with 
this Agreement shall be submitted to and finally settled by arbitration using the English language in 
accordance with the Arbitration Rules and Procedures of the applicable Forum above then in effect, 
by one or more commercial arbitrator(s) with substantial experience in the industry and in resolving 
complex commercial contract disputes. Judgment upon the award so rendered may be entered in a 
court having jurisdiction or application may be made to such court for judicial acceptance of any 
award and an order of enforcement, as the case may be. All claims shall be brought in the parties’ 
individual capacity, and not as a plaintiff or class member in any purported class or representative 
proceeding. With respect to any matter relating to the intellectual property rights of ChargePoint, 
such claim may be litigated in a court of competent jurisdiction. The prevailing party in any dispute 
arising out of this Agreement shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party shall have the right to institute an action in any court of 
proper jurisdiction for injunctive relief. 

 

 



Page 1 of 7 
Version 3.26.2024 

Installation, Commissioning, and Activation: 

Scope and Terms 
Installation, Commissioning, and Activation are Services provided by ChargePoint to address the needs of 

our customers in the following ways: 

Description of Services. 

Installation. Once Site Preparation (as defined below) is completed by a customer who purchases (a) 

ChargePoint-manufactured electric vehicle charging station(s) or hardware and/or (b) third party-provided 

hardware sold by ChargePoint (subsections (a) and (b) are collectively defined as “Products”), a 

ChargePoint Operations and Maintenance partner (“O&M Partner”) will mount the Products on its anchor 

hardware or concrete pedestal and terminate the wires (“Installation”). See the “Key Tasks and 

Requirements” section below for further details and requirements for Installation.  

Commissioning. After the Products are anchored and wires are terminated, a ChargePoint, or a third party 

authorized by ChargePoint to undertake Commissioning (“Authorized Commissioning Partner”), will 

perform various assessments, including without limitation, energize the charging hardware, complete any 

required configuration and pinpointing steps, and validate the Product was installed in accordance with 

ChargePoint’s specifications (“Commissioning”). Customer is required to purchase Commissioning from 

ChargePoint with its purchase of any ChargePoint-manufactured DC charging hardware. Commissioning 

may also be required for third party-manufactured DC charging stations – please inquire with ChargePoint 

for the latest requirements. See the “Key Tasks and Requirements” section below for further details and 

requirements for Installation. 

Activation. ChargePoint will assist the customer with the onboarding, configuration, and activation of 

customer’s entitlements, including without limitation, entitlements to ChargePoint’s cloud management 

platform (“ChargePoint Cloud Platform”) in connection with the Products (“Activation”). See the “Key 

Tasks and Requirements” section below for further details and requirements for Activation, including 

ChargePoint’s onboarding guide at https://chargepoint.ent.box.com/v/gettingstarted for a detailed 

overview of the process for Activation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://chargepoint.ent.box.com/v/gettingstarted


Page 2 of 7 
Version 3.26.2024 

Key Tasks and Requirements. 

Please review the table below for a summary of the key tasks and requirements for the Services described 

above. All the Services described are subject to the ChargePoint Deployment and Consulting Terms and 

Conditions, as amended from time to time by ChargePoint, found at 

https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services.  Any capitalized term not otherwise 

defined in this Scope and Terms document are defined in the Deployment and Consulting Services Terms 

and Conditions. 

Task Activity 

 0 Service 
Prerequisites 

Customer, or a third-party contractor separately procured by customer, 
must complete the “Service Prerequisites” listed under the Additional 
Terms and Conditions section below. In addition, customer is required to 
complete and/or submit all required documentation described in the 
ChargePoint’s “welcome email,” which initiates the activation and 
onboarding process for customer’s purchased Product to connect and 
interoperate with ChargePoint’s Cloud Platform (“Welcome Email”). 
 

Installation 

1 Scheduling  ChargePoint will assign an O&M Partner to customer’s work order, and 
O&M Partner will reach out to customer to schedule a date to perform the 
Installation. 
 

2 Safety Protocol Once on-site at customer’s proposed site for Installation, O&M Partner will 
apply lock out/tag out (LOTO) to ensure Installation can be done in 
accordance with applicable safety requirements, site requirements, 
ChargePoint’s Health and Safety Policy, a copy of which may be requested 
from ChargePoint. 
 

3 Electrical 
Assessment 

O&M Partner will assess, measure, and verify the following in accordance 
with the Site Design Guide and Installation Guide (as both are defined 
below): 
 

• Protection devices (e.g. disconnects, breakers, fuses) 

• AC and DC Conductors (size, type, rating) 

• Breaker panels 

• Transformer configurations (Wye – secondary, input voltage) 

• Communication cables (e.g. routing, termination, pinout) 
 

4 Civil Work 
Assessment 

O&M Partner will assess, measure, and verify the following in accordance 
with the Site Design Guide: 
 

• ADA compliance to the extent specified in the Site Design Guide 

• Concrete pad, anchor bolts, and conduits comply with required 
specifications 

• Wiring, circuit protection, and metering are in place 
 

https://www.chargepoint.com/legal/deployment-consulting-services


Page 3 of 7 
Version 3.26.2024 

5 Mechanical Stand 
Up 

O&M Partner will mount the Product on the anchor hardware, terminate 
wiring, and if the Product is paired then terminate the AC and DC 
conductors and install the communication cable. 
 

6 Cellular Signal O&M Partner will check the cellular signal strength and quality comply with 
specifications described at https://chargepoint.ent.box.com/v/misc-
tn1416-enus.  
 

7 Charging Station 
Energization and 
Configuration 

For AC charging stations, O&M Partner will remove the lock out/tag out 
(LOTO), energize the charging station, complete hardware power 
configuration (and pairing if applicable), and apply any firmware updates. 
 
For DC charging stations, please refer to the Commissioning portion of the 
“Key Tasks and Requirements” table. 
 

8 Pinpointing For AC charging stations, O&M Partner will associate the Product with 
specific coordinates (latitude and longitude) so it can be found on 
ChargePoint’s charging network map. 
 
For DC charging stations, please refer to the Commissioning portion of the 
“Key Tasks and Requirements” table. 
 

9 Completion O&M Partner will then assess the Products for: 
 

• Integrity of subsystems and components 

• Cleanliness 

• Cabling and harnesses 

• Proper terminations 

• Hardware integrity and damage 

• Proper application of labels 

• Displays 
 
If the applicable Product fails to pass the above-described assessment, then 
ChargePoint will inform customer of the issue(s) identified in such 
assessment and pause the Installation until customer remediates the issues 
to the satisfaction of ChargePoint. As between the parties, it is the sole 
responsibility of customer to address and fix the issues identified in the 
above-described assessment.  
 
Once the applicable Product passes the above-described assessment to the 
satisfaction of ChargePoint, O&M Partner will call ChargePoint to report the 
completion of such assessment.  
 

Commissioning 

1 Scheduling  Customer must comply with the “Scheduling of Commissioning” 
requirements listed under the Additional Terms and Conditions section 
below. 

https://chargepoint.ent.box.com/v/misc-tn1416-enus
https://chargepoint.ent.box.com/v/misc-tn1416-enus


Page 4 of 7 
Version 3.26.2024 

 

2 De-Energization Once on-site at the customer’s proposed site for Commissioning, 
ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will apply lock out/tag out 
(LOTO) in adherence with customer-specific site requirements, as specified 
by customer during the scheduling for Commissioning, and ChargePoint’s  
Health and Safety Policy (a copy of which may be requested from 
ChargePoint), and other requirements ChargePoint deems necessary, in its 
sole discretion, relating to de-energizing the applicable Product. 
 

3 Site Assessment ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will assess the following 
in accordance with the Site Design Guide and Installation Guide: 
 

• ADA Compliance to the extent specified in the Site Design Guide 

• Cellular repeater configuration (make, model, line of sight) 

• Hardware protection (bollards, wheel stops) 
 

4 Civil/Environmental 
Assessment 

ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will assess the following 
in accordance with the Site Design Guide and Installation Guide: 
 

• Product installation (concrete pad dimensions, slopes, water 
entrapment) 

• Conduit runs 

• Product serviceability (clearance, slopes, ventilation) 
 

5 Mechanical 
Assessment 

ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will assess the following 
in accordance with the Installation Guide: 
 

• Product torquing (electrical cables, mounting, anchoring hardware, 
surface conduit entry kits, markings/labeling) 

• Product leveling 
 

6 Electrical 
Assessment 

ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will assess, measure, and 
verify the following in accordance with the Installation Guide: 
 

• Protection devices 

• AC and DC Conductors (size, type, rating, bend radius, clearance, 
termination) 

• Transformer configurations (Wye – secondary, input voltage) 

• Grounding impedance 

• Communication cables (routing, termination, pinout) 

• Labeling 
 

7 Product 
Assessment 

ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will assess the following 
for the Product in accordance with the Installation Guide: 
 

• Integrity of subsystems and components 

• Cleanliness 



Page 5 of 7 
Version 3.26.2024 

• Cabling and harnesses 

• Proper terminations 

• Hardware integrity and damage 

• Proper application of labels 

• Displays 
 

8 Cellular Signal ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will check the cellular 
signal strength and quality comply with specifications described at 
https://chargepoint.ent.box.com/v/misc-tn1416-enus. 
 

9 Product 
Energization and 
Configuration 

If any of the described assessments for Commissioning (as described in this 
table) identify critical non-conformities, then ChargePoint will inform 
customer of the issue(s) identified in the applicable assessment and pause 
the Commissioning until customer remediates the issues to the satisfaction 
of ChargePoint. As between the parties, it is the sole responsibility of 
customer to address and fix the issues identified in the previously described 
assessments. Critical non-conformities include, without limitation, flaws in 
Site Preparation and/or installation work that pose a safety risk, as 
determined by ChargePoint. 

 
If there are no critical non-conformities with the described assessments for 
Commissioning (as described in this table), then ChargePoint’s Authorized 
Commissioning Partner will remove the lock out/tag out (LOTO), to energize 
the Product, complete hardware power configuration (and pairing if 
applicable), and apply any firmware updates; provided that, customer also 
complies with the Additional Terms and Conditions section below. 
 

10 Pinpointing ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will associate the Product 
with specific coordinates (latitude and longitude) so it can be found on 
ChargePoint’s charging network map. 
 

11 Completion ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning Partner will submit the completed 
Commissioning-related forms to ChargePoint for ChargePoint’s review of 
such forms for accuracy, completeness, and description of any critical and 
non-critical non-conformities. 
 
ChargePoint may, upon written request by customer, provide a 
Commissioning-related punch list report after the successful completion of 
Commissioning. 
 

Activation 

1 Customer 
Onboarding 

Once the Product is installed, or in the case a DC charging station has been 
successfully completed Commissioning, ChargePoint will verify whether 
customer completed the “Service Prerequisites” described in the Additional 
Terms and Conditions below.  
 

https://chargepoint.ent.box.com/v/misc-tn1416-enus


Page 6 of 7 
Version 3.26.2024 

2 Configuration ChargePoint will (a) configure customer’s access to the ChargePoint Cloud 
Platform in accordance with the Station Activation & Configuration Form 
(provided with Welcome Email), which reflects the configuration setting 
(e.g. RFID reader) that ChargePoint sets up for each Product use by drivers; 
(b) apply access and pricing policies to customer’s organizations created on 
the ChargePoint Cloud Platform, and (c) add customer’s initial set of Product 
to the ChargePoint Cloud Network. 
 

3 Provisioning ChargePoint will review cloud and warranty entitlements associated with 
the customer’s organizations on ChargePoint’s Cloud Platform and apply 
them to the applicable Products. 
 

 

Additional Terms and Conditions.  

• Site Preparation.  Customer, or the third party contractor customer separately hires to perform 

the Site Preparation, are responsible for the compliance of the site design, construction and/or 

installation work with ChargePoint’s Site Design Guide(s) and/or Installation Guide(s), for the 

Product (“Site Preparation”). For clarity, customer is not responsible for the installation of the 

Product portion of Site Preparation if customer purchases Installation from ChargePoint. In 

connection with Site Preparation, each customer is responsible, for the following:   

 

1. Site design in accordance with ChargePoint’ site design guide(s), which can be found at 

https://www.chargepoint.com/products/guides/ (“Site Design Guide(s)”);  

2. Product installation in accordance with ChargePoint’s installation guide(s), which can be 

found through ChargePoint University (“Installation Guide(s)”); and  

3. Any costs associated with delays or cost overruns for correcting any non-conformities with 

the applicable Site Preparation, as identified by ChargePoint’s Authorized Commissioning 

Partner. 

 

• Service Prerequisites. Customer is required to complete the following before any of the Services 

described above may be scheduled and/or completed by ChargePoint: 

 

1. Network Manager Account. Create a Network Manager Account on ChargePoint Cloud 

Platform.  

2. MSSA. Accept ChargePoint’s Master Services and Subscription Agreement (“MSSA”), 

displayed during the Network Manager Account creation process. 

3. Activation Form. Complete the Station Activation and Configuration Form (SAF) provided 

via Welcome Email. 

4. Construction Signoff Form. If customer purchases Installation, then customer must 

complete the Construction Signoff Form, including without limitation providing any 

requested site photos, in response to the Welcome Email. The purpose of the 

Construction Signoff Form is to allow ChargePoint to confirm that the site complies with 

the specifications for Site Design and Installation Guide, including without limitation, 

https://www.chargepoint.com/products/guides/


Page 7 of 7 
Version 3.26.2024 

verifying mechanical, electrical, and civil/environmental compliance, prior to sending an 

O&M Partner to the site.  

5. Insulation Testing Report. If customer purchases Commissioning, then an insulation 

testing report (subject to availability from customer) will be provided for all AC and DC 

cables between the balance of plant, stations, and equipment installed in between the 

Product. 

6. Contractor Availability. If customer purchases Commissioning, then customer must 

confirm that its contractor, selected by customer to install the applicable Product, is 

scheduled to be on site during the scheduled visit for Commissioning. 

7. Scheduling of Commissioning. Customer is responsible for scheduling Commissioning 

with ChargePoint using the Commissioning request form provided by ChargePoint. The 

Commissiong request form is provided at the same time as the Welcome Email. Note the 

current requirements for scheduling: (1) a minimum two-week notice is required for 

scheduling; (2) a 72-hour notice is required for rescheduling the applicable 

Commissioning appointment; and (3) a rescheduling fee may be assessed to customer 

for any rescheduling or cancellations outside of the 72-hour notice requirement. 

 

• Relocation of DC Charging Hardware. If customer relocates DC charging hardware after 

Commissioning has been completed, then such relocation will require the DC charging hardware 

to be Commissioned again. Please review Commissioning requirements above.  

 

• Relocation of Products. If customer relocates any Product after Activation has been completed, 

then such relocation will require the Product to undergo Activation again. Please review Activation 

requirements above.    

 

• Voiding Services. Customer’s failure to meet their responsibilities described in this document may 

release ChargePoint from any obligations to perform and complete the applicable Services (i.e. 

Installation, Commissioning or Activations).  ChargePoint is not responsible or liable for the 

reliability and/or safe operation of DC charging stations that have not undergone Commissioning.  

 

• Remediation and Additional Fees. If customer fails to meet any of its obligations for the Services 

described in this document, including without limitation, remediating any identified non-

conformities, failure to pass the applicable assessments, and/or failure to complete any necessary 

preparation work for Installation and/or Commissioning, then customer acknowledges and agrees 

(1) ChargePoint is released from any further obligations to perform or complete the Service(s) 

purchased by customer; (2) ChargePoint is not responsible or liable for the reliability or operation 

of the Product in question; and (3) ChargePoint is not obligated to perform any Activation for 

customer.  Customer may be required to pay additional fees for (a) re-scheduling of Installation 

and/or Commissioning; and/or (b) re-Commissioning of DC charging hardware.   

 

 





















042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           1 
 

 
 

Solicitation Number: RFP #042221 
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and ChargePoint, Inc., 254 E. Hacienda Ave., Campbell, CA  95008-6617 
(Vendor). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government agency and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to federal, 
state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada. 
Sourcewell issued a public solicitation for Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment and Related 
Services  from which Vendor was  awarded a contract.     

  
Vendor desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires July 20, 2025, unless it is cancelled 
sooner pursuant to Article 22. This Contract may be extended up to one additional one-year 
period upon request of Sourcewell and with written agreement by Vendor. 
 
C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Articles 11 through 14 survive the expiration or cancellation of this 
Contract.  
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Vendor will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           2 
 

All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new/current model.  Vendor 
may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated in 
Vendor’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.   
 
B. WARRANTY. Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. 
In addition, Vendor warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Vendor’s dealers and 
distributors must agree to assist the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute 
over warranty terms with the manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that is effective past 
the expiration of the Vendor’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity.   
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution, Vendor will 
make available to Sourcewell a means to validate or authenticate Vendor’s authorized dealers, 
distributors, and/or resellers relative to the Equipment, Products, and Services related to this 
Contract. This list may be updated from time-to-time and is incorporated into this Contract by 
reference. It is the Vendor’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most current 
version of this list.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced as stated in Vendor’s 
Proposal.  
 
When providing pricing quotes to Participating Entities, all pricing quoted must reflect a 
Participating Entity’s total cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered 
Equipment, Products, and Services that are operational for their intended purpose, and 
includes all costs to the Participating Entity’s requested delivery location.   
 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Vendor must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. 
Participating Entities reserve the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           3 
 

time after delivery where circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the 
Equipment and Products at the time of delivery. 
   
Vendor must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Vendor in breach of this Contract if the Vendor intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products. In the event of the delivery of 
nonconforming Equipment and Products, the Participating Entity will notify the Vendor as soon 
as possible and the Vendor will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with 
conforming Equipment and Products that are acceptable to the Participating Entity. 
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Vendor with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Vendor may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Vendor determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Vendor may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. This form is available 
from the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. At a minimum, the request must:  
 

 Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
 Clearly specify the requested change; 
 Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
 Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 

along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 
 Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 

effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           4 
 

restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will become an amendment 
to this Contract and be incorporated by reference.  

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. Vendor understands that a Participating 
Entity’s use of this Contract is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating 
Entities reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
 
Vendor is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential participating entities 
to join Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its 
roster during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Vendor’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Vendor’s employees and agents must conduct themselves in 
a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Vendor. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Vendor. If a Participating 
Entity issues a purchase order, it may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly 
note the applicable Sourcewell contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this 
Contract must be issued prior to expiration of this Contract; however, Vendor performance, 
Participating Entity payment, and any applicable warranty periods or other Vendor or 
Participating Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract.  
 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           5 
 

Vendor’s acceptable forms of payment are included in Attachment A.  Participating Entities will 
be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no liability for any unpaid invoice of 
any Participating Entity.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order, or other required transaction documentation, may be 
negotiated between a Participating Entity and Vendor, such as job or industry-specific 
requirements, legal requirements (e.g., affirmative action or immigration status requirements), 
or specific local policy requirements. Some Participating Entitles may require the use of a 
Participating Addendum; the terms of which will be worked out directly between the 
Participating Entity and the Vendor.  Any negotiated additional terms and conditions must 
never be less favorable to the Participating Entity than what is contained in this Contract. 
 
C. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements (such as e-commerce specifications, 
specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and requirements) not addressed in 
this Contract, the Participating Entity and the Vendor may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 
D. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Vendor in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the goods to be purchased; 
2. Federal,  state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements; or 
3. Vendor commits any material breach of this Contract or the additional terms agreed to 
between the Vendor and a Participating Entity. 

 
E. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Vendor will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

 Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
 Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
 Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           6 
 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Vendor must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, supply issues, customer issues, and any other 
necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Vendor must provide a contract 
sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this 
Contract. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Vendor must submit a report indicating no sales were made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

 Customer Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
 Customer Physical Street Address; 
 Customer City; 
 Customer State/Province; 
 Customer Zip Code; 
 Customer Contact Name; 
 Customer Contact Email Address; 
 Customer Contact Telephone Number; 
 Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
 Item Purchased Description; 
 Item Purchased Price;  
 Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
 Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Vendor. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Vendor will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not 
added to, the pricing. Vendor may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted 
price to offset the Administrative Fee. 
 
The Vendor will submit payment to Sourcewell for two percent (2%) multiplied by the total 
sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services purchased by Participating Entities under this 
Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments should note the Vendor’s name and 
Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo; and must be mailed to the address above 
“Attn: Accounts Receivable” or remitted electronically to Sourcewell’s banking institution per 
Sourcewell’s Finance department instructions. Payments must be received no later than 45 
calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           7 
 

 
Vendor agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Vendor is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Vendor in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  
 

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Vendor’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Vendor’s Proposal. If Vendor’s 
Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Vendor must promptly 
notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 
10. AUDIT, ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 

 
A. AUDIT. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 
documents, and accounting procedures and practices relevant this Agreement are subject to 
examination by Sourcewell or the Minnesota State Auditor for a minimum of six years from the 
end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 
B. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the Vendor nor Sourcewell may assign or transfer any rights or 
obligations under this Contract without the prior consent of the parties and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.     
 
C. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been fully executed by the parties.   
 
D. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this Contract, that failure does not 
waive the provision or the right to enforce it. 
 
E. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract contains all negotiations and agreements between 
Sourcewell and Vendor. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or 
oral, may be used to bind either party. For any conflict between the attached Proposal and the 
terms set out in Articles 1-22, the terms of Articles 1-22 will govern. 
 
F. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           8 
 

respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  

 
11. LIABILITY 

  
Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including their 
agents and employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorneys’ fees, 
arising out of the performance of this Contract by the Vendor or its agents or employees; this 
indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to have been caused 
by some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract to the extent the 
Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its specifications. 

 
12. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 

 
Vendor and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Vendor under this Contract.  
 
If the Vendor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Vendor must 
immediately notify Sourcewell and Sourcewell will assist with how the Vendor should respond 
to the request. 
 

13. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
1. Grant of License. During the term of this Contract: 

a. Sourcewell grants to Vendor a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use theTrademark(s) provided to Vendor by Sourcewell in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with 
Vendor. 
b. Vendor grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use Vendor’s Trademarks in advertising and promotional materials for the 
purpose of marketing Vendor’s relationship with Sourcewell. 

2. Limited Right of Sublicense. The right and license granted herein includes a limited right 
of each party to grant sublicenses to its and their respective distributors, marketing 
representatives, and agents (collectively “Permitted Sublicensees”) in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing the Parties’ relationship to Participating 
Entities. Any sublicense granted will be subject to the terms and conditions of this Article. 
Each party will be responsible for any breach of this Article by any of their respective 
sublicensees.  
3. Use; Quality Control.  



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           9 
 

a. Sourcewell must not alter Vendor’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Vendor and must comply with Vendor’s removal requests as to specific uses of its 
trademarks or logos.   
b. Vendor must not alter Sourcewell’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Sourcewell and must comply with Sourcewell’s removal requests as to specific uses 
of its trademarks or logos.   
c. Each party agrees to use, and to cause its Permitted Sublicensees to use, the 
other party’s Trademarks only in good faith and in a dignified manner consistent 
with such party’s use of the Trademarks. Upon written notice to the breaching party, 
the breaching party has 30 days of the date of the written notice to cure the breach 
or the license will be terminated.  

4. As applicable, Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sourcewell and its 
Participating Entities against any and all suits, claims, judgments, and costs instituted or 
recovered against Sourcewell or Participating Entities by any person on account of the use 
of any Equipment or Products by Sourcewell or its Participating Entities supplied by Vendor 
in violation of applicable patent or copyright laws. 
5. Termination. Upon the termination of this Contract for any reason, each party, including 
Permitted Sublicensees, will have 30 days to remove all Trademarks from signage, websites, 
and the like bearing the other party’s name or logo (excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed 
catalog of vendors which may be used until the next printing).  Vendor must return all 
marketing and promotional materials, including signage, provided by Sourcewell, or dispose 
of it according to Sourcewell’s written directions. 

 
B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Vendor individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Materials should be sent to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator 
assigned to this Contract.   
 
D. ENDORSEMENT. The Vendor must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
Minnesota law governs this Contract. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Contract, or its 
breach, must be in the appropriate state court in Todd County or federal court in Fergus Falls, 
Minnesota.  
 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           10 
 

15. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

16. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void then both 
Sourcewell and Vendor will be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the 
remainder of this Contract is capable of performance, it will not be affected by such declaration 
or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

17. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Vendor will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes the 
issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  
2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Vendor may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Vendor will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Vendor must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Vendor fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its Participating Entities as a result 
of such failure to proceed will be borne by the Vendor. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
Written notice of default and a reasonable opportunity to cure must be issued by the party 
claiming default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           11 
 

 Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
 Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 

Contract. 
 

18. INSURANCE 
  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Vendor must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect at 
all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Vendor will maintain insurance covering its 
operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no less 
broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor 
will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles in limits 
of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms no less 
broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), or 
equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           12 
 

4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain umbrella 
coverage over Workers’ Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and Commercial 
Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Vendor will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The coverage 
may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a standalone 
policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of Vendor’s 
security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized access, 
disclosure of not public data – including but not limited to, confidential or private 
information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.  

 Minimum limits:  
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Vendor to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Vendor must furnish 
to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must be signed by 
a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. 
 
Failure to request certificates of insurance by Sourcewell, or failure of Vendor to provide 
certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves Vendor of its duties and responsibilities in 
this Contract. 
 
C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Vendor agrees to list Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including 
their officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Vendor’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 
“work” performed by or on behalf of Vendor, and products and completed operations of 
Vendor. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is 
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible 
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Vendor waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           13 
 

insurance applicable to the Vendor or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 
maintained by the Vendor or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Vendor must require 
similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY/SELF-INSURED RETENTION. The limits required by this 
Contract can be met by either providing a primary policy or in combination with 
umbrella/excess liability policy(ies), or self-insured retention. 
 

19. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Vendor must maintain a valid and current status on all required federal, 
state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the 
business that the Vendor conducts with Sourcewell and Participating Entities. 

 
20. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Vendor certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Vendor declares bankruptcy, Vendor must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 
government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Vendor certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Vendor further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

21. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Participating Entities that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or 
services from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the 
procurement standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Participating Entities may also require 
additional requirements based on specific funding specifications. Within this Article, all 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           14 
 

references to “federal” should be interpreted to mean the United States federal government. 
The following list only applies when a Participating Entity accesses Vendor’s Equipment, 
Products, or Services with United States federal funds. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           15 
 

not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Vendor certifies that during the term of an 
award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Vendor 
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor 
certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements as 
referenced above. 
 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Vendor 
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Vendors must file 
any required certifications. Vendors must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           16 
 

person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures 
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 
1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Vendor further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of 3 years after 
grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 
J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the 
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open 
competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Vendor agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Vendor that are directly pertinent to Vendor’s discharge of its obligations under this 
Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The right 
also includes timely and reasonable access to Vendor’s personnel for the purpose of interview 
and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  



042221-CPI 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           17 
 

 
22. CANCELLATION 

 
Sourcewell or Vendor may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Vendor’s Proposal.  
Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or service 
obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 
 
 

Sourcewell                  ChargePoint, Inc. 
 
 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz Rex S. Jackson 

Title: Chief Procurement Officer Title: Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
 
 
Approved:  
 
 
 

 

By: __________________________  
Chad Coauette  

Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 
 

 



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Bid Number: RFP 042221 Vendor Name: ChargePoint, Inc.



Sourcewell Contract #042221-CPI | Amendment #1 
Page 1 of 2 

AMENDMENT #1 
TO  

CONTRACT # 042221-CPI 
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT is by and between Sourcewell and  ChargePoint, Inc. (Vendor). 
 
Sourcewell awarded a contract to Vendor to provide Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment and Related 
Services to Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, effective July 15, 2021, through July 20, 2025 
(Contract). 
 
The parties wish to amend the following terms within the Contract. 

 
1. This Amendment is effective upon the date of the last signature below. 

 
2. Article 2. Equipment, Products, or Services Section, B. Warranty is deleted in its entirety and 

replaced with the following: 
 

Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free from liens and 
encumbrances, and for a period of one year and consistent with Vendor’s Parts Only Warranty 
(the “Warranty”) are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. In addition, 
Vendor warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will perform in 
accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Vendor’s dealers and distributors 
must agree to assist the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute over 
warranty terms with the manufacturer. Any manufacturer’s warranty that is effective past the 
expiration of the Vendor’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity. 

 
3. Article 6 Participating Entity Use and Purchasing, A. Orders and Payment is deleted in its entirety 

and replaced with the following: 
 

To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract, a Participating 
Entity must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access this Contract; however, order 
flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and Vendor. Typically, a 
Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Vendor. If a Participating Entity issues a 
purchase order, it may use its own forms as agreed between the Participating Party and Vendor, 
but the purchase order should clearly note the applicable Sourcewell contract number. All 
Participating Entity orders under this Contract must be issued prior to expiration of this 
Contract; however, Vendor performance, Participating Entity payment, and any applicable 
warranty periods or other Vendor or Participating Entity obligations may extend beyond the 
term of this Contract. 
 

4. Article 8 Report on Contract Sales Activity and Administrative Fee Payment, B. Administrative 
Fee is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 
In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, the Vendor will pay an 
administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and Services provided to 
Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not added to, the pricing. 



Sourcewell Contract #042221-CPI | Amendment #1 
Page 2 of 2 

Vendor may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted price to offset the 
Administrative Fee. The Vendor will submit payment to Sourcewell of 2% multiplied by the total 
sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services purchased by Participating Entities under this 
Contract during each calendar quarter. 

 
Payments should note the Vendor’s name and Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the 
memo; and must be mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable” or remitted 
electronically to Sourcewell’s banking institution per Sourcewell’s Finance department 
instructions. Payments must be received no later than 45 calendar days after the end of each 
calendar quarter. 

 
5. Article 11 Liability is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 
Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including their 
agents and employees, harmless from any third party claims or causes of action, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent arising out of the negligent performance of this 
Contract by the Vendor or its agents or employees or Vendor’s willful misconduct; this 
indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to have been caused by 
some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract to the extent the 
Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its specifications 

 
6. Article 21. Provisions for Non-United States Federal Entity Procurements Under United States 

Federal Awards or Other Awards, Section D. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or 
Agreement is deleted in its entirety. 

 
Except as amended by this Amendment, the Contract remains in full force and effect. 
 
Sourcewell      ChargePoint, Inc. 
 
 
By:       By:      
Jeremy Schwartz, Chief Procurement Officer  Rex Jackson 
 
Date:        Title:        
 
Approved:      Date:       
  
 
By:      
Chad Coauette, Executive Director/CEO   
 
Date:       



City of Carson 

Purchasing Division  

701 E. Carson Street 

Carson, CA 90745 

(310) 952-1758

Purchasing Waiver 

In compliance with Chapter 6 (Purchasing System) of Article II (Administration) of the Carson 

Municipal Code (CMC), Staff are seeking to exercise waiver of the following requirements (check 

all that apply):  

☒(A) Formal Bidding (Section 2611)

☐(B) Written Contract (Section 2605(1)(iii))

If (A) is selected above, please select the exception being exercised for this purchase: 

☐(d) Emergency Purchasing (Section 2611(d))

☐(e) Sole Source Purchasing (Section 2611(e))

☐(f) Piggyback Purchasing (Section 2611(f))

☒(g) Cooperative Purchasing (Section 2611(g))

☐(i) Other Purchase Exceptions (Section 2611(i)(1) through 2611(i)(18))

If (e) or (f) are selected above, please specify the contract number, awarding agency, and other 

contracting parties being exercised for this purchase:  

Sourcewell #042221-CPI | Exp. 07/20/2025 

Req # (if available):N/A 

Vendor Name: ChargePoint 

Formal bidding and/or a written contract would normally be required because the purchase is for 

an amount $75,000 or more; here, the amount is $100,000.00. 

Written justification or summary of purchase. 
Electric vehicle charging equipment, supplies, materials, services, and networking.

Purchasing: 

________________________________ 

Josilla Togiola, Purchasing Manager 

Date: 11/12/2024

Authorized Department Staff: 

________________________________ 

Name/Title: Reata Kulcsar, Energy and 
Sustainability Officer
Date: 11/12/2024

*Attach all relative applicable documents including, but not limited to vendor quote, statement of sole source

justification on vendor letterhead, relative contract agreements for piggybacking or cooperative purchasing

exceptions, etc.

**Attach a copy of the fully executed waiver to the corresponding requisition.
0224JT 



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

CONSENT 22.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Saied Naaseh, Director of Community Development  CD  Administration
 
Subject:          CONSIDER ISSUING THE "10-DAY REPORT" PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
65858(D) REGARDING INTERIM URGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U, WHICH ESTABLISHED A
TEMPORARY 45-DAY MORATORIUM ON ACCEPTANCE, PROCESSING AND CONSIDERATION OF
APPLICATIONS AND APPROVAL AND ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND ENTITLEMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL OR
INDUSTRIAL REDEVELOPMENT AND SUBSEQUENT USE OF CURRENT OIL REFINERY SITES WITHIN THE
CITY OF CARSON FOLLOWING CESSATION OF REFINERY OPERATIONS (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On November 6, 2024, the City Council approved Interim Urgency Ordinance No. 24-2414U, which
established a temporary 45-day moratorium on acceptance, processing and consideration of applications
and approval and issuance of permits and entitlements  for commercial or industrial redevelopment and
subsequent use of current oil refinery sites within the City following cessation of refinery operations.
(Exhibit No. 1; “Ordinance”). The City Council will consider an extension of the Ordinance on December
3, 2024. Pursuant to Government Code Section 65858(d), at least ten (10) days prior to expiration of the
Ordinance or any extension, the City Council must issue a written report describing the measures taken
to alleviate the condition which led to the adoption of the Ordinance ("10-Day Report") (Exhibit No. 2).

 
 

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following action:

1. ISSUE the "10-Day Report on Interim Ordinance No. 24-2414U” (Exhibit No. 2).

 

 

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action that City Council deems appropriate, subject to compliance with applicable law.
 
 

IV. BACKGROUND

701 East Carson Street



On November 6, 2024, the City Council adopted the Ordinance pursuant to  Government Code Section
65858 and City Charter Sections 313(F) and 316(4).

Ten days prior to the Ordinance expiring or the City extending the Ordinance (if sooner than the 45 days),
the City Council is required to issue a written report "describing the measures taken to alleviate the
condition that led to the adoption of the [O]rdinance." (Gov’t Code § 65858(d)).

If an interim ordinance is initially adopted without notice and a hearing, as was the case with the
Ordinance, it may be extended upon notice and a public hearing for an additional 10 months and 15
days, and then a second time upon notice and a public hearing for up to 12 additional months. Like the
initial adoption of the interim ordinance itself, any extension of it requires a four-fifths vote and requires
findings justifying the same. The maximum total permissible duration of effectiveness of an interim
ordinance, as extended, is two years.

The current Ordinance will expire on December 21, 2024, if it is not extended by the City Council on or
before that date. In order for the City Council to consider whether the facts and circumstances warrant
extension of the moratorium, the City Council is required to hold a noticed public hearing. Currently, staff
anticipates the public hearing for the extension of the Ordinance to occur on December 3, 2024. The 10-
Day Report must therefore be issued by the Council no later than November 23, 2024, in order for the
extension of the Ordinance to be considered on December 3, 2024.

As detailed in the 10-Day Report (Exhibit No. 2), the City’s Planning Commission has already heard and
recommended approval to the City Council of a General Plan Amendment that would expressly require
submittal and approval of a specific plan prior to, or concurrently with, approval of development plans for
any redevelopment of the site of an existing oil or petroleum refinery or associated use for a new use
following cessation of refinery operations. The proposed General Plan Amendment is slated to be
considered by the City Council for the first time on December 3, 2024.

The 10-Day Report also notes that the City is still studying potential further modifications to its General
Plan and Zoning Ordinance regulations pursuant to the City Council’s directive set forth in Section 7 of
the Ordinance, which provides that the City, during the effective period of the Ordinance, shall study and
consider proposed or potential General Plan, specific plan and/or zoning regulations related to
commercial and residential development and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites following cessation of
Refinery Operations that will enable the City to adequately and appropriately protect the public peace,
health, safety, and welfare, as well as environmental justice and environmental quality in connection with
any such redevelopment or subsequent use that may be proposed.

 
 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

None.

 
 

VI. EXHIBITS

 1. Ordinance No. 24-2414U 
 2. 10-Day Report

 

 

 



Attachments

Interim Urgency Ordinance (Moratorium) on Oil Refinery Redevelopment (11.6.2024)
(Refinery Redevelopment Moratorium) Ten Day Report on Ordinance No. 24-2414U(1032800.1).pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67341274186c4500542e98f7%2FInterim%20Urgency%20Ordinance%20(Moratorium)%20on%20Oil%20Refinery%20Redevelopment%20(draft%2010.30.24)%20(final)(1027651.4)FINAL%20SAIED.pdf?alt=media&token=96448bf3-5527-4dd6-9f69-16c1a68ad6a0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67341274186c4500542e98f7%2FInterim%20Urgency%20Ordinance%20(Moratorium)%20on%20Oil%20Refinery%20Redevelopment%20(draft%2010.30.24)%20(final)(1027651.4)FINAL%20SAIED.pdf?alt=media&token=96448bf3-5527-4dd6-9f69-16c1a68ad6a0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67341274186c4500542e98f7%2FInterim%20Urgency%20Ordinance%20(Moratorium)%20on%20Oil%20Refinery%20Redevelopment%20(draft%2010.30.24)%20(final)(1027651.4)FINAL%20SAIED.pdf?alt=media&token=96448bf3-5527-4dd6-9f69-16c1a68ad6a0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67341274186c4500542e98f7%2F(Refinery%20Redevelopment%20Moratorium)%20Ten%20Day%20Report%20on%20Ordinance%20No.%2024-2414U(1032800.1).pdf?alt=media&token=78adb8f4-c9c2-4f4f-9b03-bd92a0f14e85
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67341274186c4500542e98f7%2F(Refinery%20Redevelopment%20Moratorium)%20Ten%20Day%20Report%20on%20Ordinance%20No.%2024-2414U(1032800.1).pdf?alt=media&token=78adb8f4-c9c2-4f4f-9b03-bd92a0f14e85
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F67341274186c4500542e98f7%2F(Refinery%20Redevelopment%20Moratorium)%20Ten%20Day%20Report%20on%20Ordinance%20No.%2024-2414U(1032800.1).pdf?alt=media&token=78adb8f4-c9c2-4f4f-9b03-bd92a0f14e85


01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

AN INTERIM URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CARSON, 
CALIFORNIA, TO ESTABLISH A TEMPORARY 45-DAY MORATORIUM ON 
ACCEPTANCE, PROCESSING AND CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS 
AND APPROVAL AND ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND ENTITLEMENTS  FOR 
COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL REDEVELOPMENT AND SUBSEQUENT 
USE OF CURRENT OIL REFINERY SITES WITHIN THE CITY OF CARSON 
FOLLOWING CESSATION OF REFINERY OPERATIONS, AND DECLARING 
THE URGENCY THEREOF  

WHEREAS, the City of Carson (“City”), a charter city, has the authority, under its police power, to 
enact regulations for the public peace, morals, and welfare of the City pursuant to its Charter and 
California Constitution Article XI, Section 7. 

WHEREAS, Government Code 65858 and Charter Sections 313(F) and 316(4) expressly authorize 
the City Council to adopt an urgency ordinance for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health 
or safety and to prohibit a use that is in conflict with a contemplated general plan, specific plan, or zoning 
proposal that the legislative body, planning commission or the planning department is considering or 
studying or intends to study within a reasonable time. 

WHEREAS, there are multiple oil or petroleum refineries and related or supporting facilities or 
uses located in the City that are currently in operation, including but not limited to: (i) the Phillips 66 crude 
oil processing plant located on approximately 227 acres of land at 1520 E. Sepulveda Blvd. in the City of 
Carson, which serves as the front end of Phillips 66’ Los Angeles Refinery and is connected via pipelines 
with a back-end refinery facility located five miles away in the Wilmington District of the City of Los 
Angeles; and (ii) the Tesoro petroleum refinery located on approximately 730 acres of land at 2350 East 
223rd Street and/or 1801 E. Sepulveda Blvd. in the City of Carson, which is integrated with the Tesoro Los 
Angeles Refinery – Wilmington Operations located at 2101 East Pacific Coast Highway in the Wilmington 
District of the City of Los Angeles to collectively comprise the Tesoro Los Angeles Refinery. The current oil 
or petroleum refineries and oil or petroleum refinery-related or supporting facilities or uses in the City of 
Carson are located in and throughout (but not necessarily on each and every parcel in), the area of the 
City that is south of 223rd St. and east of Wilmington Ave.  The properties on which these facilities or uses 
are located are collectively referred to herein as the “Refinery Sites,” and individually as a “Refinery Site”).1 

WHEREAS, from time to time, oil refineries cease operations, as evidenced by the closure of the 
former Shell oil refinery located on Assessor’s Parcel No. 7318-018-008 abutting Del Amo Blvd. and 
Wilmington Ave. in the City, which ceased operations in 1992 (the “Shell Property”). More recently, on 
October 16, 2024, Phillips 66 publicly announced that it will cease operations at its Los Angeles Refinery 
in the fourth quarter of 2025.  

WHEREAS, the City is considering or studying, or intends to study within a reasonable time, 
General Plan, specific plan and/or zoning proposals to adopt new or amended land use and zoning 

 
1 The listed approximate acreage figures are from references contained in the City’s General Plan 

Community Character and Design Element, and the listed street addresses are from information 

found via online google searches. Additional information and studies are needed for the City to 

ascertain the precise boundaries and acreage of the Refinery Sites with certainty.  



01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

regulations that would be applicable to redevelopment and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites following 
cessation of oil or petroleum refinery-related or supporting operations or uses (“Refinery Operations”), 
to ensure the protection of public peace, health, safety, and welfare, environmental quality, and 
environmental justice in connection with any such redevelopment. 

WHEREAS, the City most recently updated its General Plan in April of 2023 by adopting the Carson 
2040 General Plan. The General Plan land use classification for the Refinery Sites is generally Heavy 
Industrial, although certain limited areas are classified as Light Industrial. The zoning designation for the 
Refinery Sites pursuant to the Carson Zoning Ordinance is Manufacturing-Heavy. The Manufacturing-
Heavy zoning designation permits a wide range of industrial and commercial uses by-right, consistent with 
the Heavy Industrial General Plan land use classification, and to a lesser extent the Light Industrial General 
Plan land use classification. Residential uses are prohibited on the Refinery Sites pursuant to the General 
Plan Heavy Industrial and Light Industrial land use classifications and the Manufacturing-Heavy zoning 
designation, and therefore are not the subject of this Ordinance. The General Plan accounts for potential 
redevelopment of the Shell Property by, among other things, providing that it is required to have a 
cohesive master plan or specific plan to outline long-term growth of the site and ensure compatibility with 
surrounding properties. However, the General Plan does not similarly account for the potential of 
redevelopment of the Refinery Sites. 

WHEREAS, the City is currently studying a potential amendment to the General Plan to better 
ensure the protection of public health, safety and welfare in connection with the prospect of 
redevelopment of the Refinery Sites for a new use, including the possibility of requiring a cohesive specific 
plan or master plan to guide any redevelopment of the Refinery Sites, similar to what is currently provided 
for the Shell Property. The City is also studying or considering, or intends to consider within a reasonable 
time, related Zoning Ordinance/Zoning Code text and/or Zoning Map amendments including potential 
rezoning of the Refinery Sites consistent with the General Plan as part of the City’s anticipated 
comprehensive Phase 2 Zoning Code Update, or separately therefrom. 

WHEREAS, City staff requires time to study and develop appropriate regulations for  
redevelopment and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites following cessation of Refinery Operations, 
consistent with State and federal law. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the foregoing authority, the City Council desires, on an urgency basis, to 
temporarily prohibit acceptance and processing of applications for and issuance of permits (including but 
not limited to demolition, grading and building permits, site plan and design review permits/approvals, 
development and site plan review permits/approvals, zoning compliance review permits/approvals, and 
major and minor conditional use permits), variances, subdivisions, and other entitlements for use, 
associated with any proposed commercial or industrial redevelopment or subsequent use of Refinery 
Sites, as well as any construction activities that may occur pursuant to any such commercial or industrial 
redevelopment applications or permits, following cessation of Refinery Operations. 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority conferred upon the City Council 
by Government Code Section 65858 (which applies to charter cities) and Charter Section 313(F) and 
316(4), and may be introduced and adopted at the same meeting and be effective immediately upon 
adoption if passed by a four-fifths vote of the City Council 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Interim Urgency Ordinance have occurred. 



01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.         INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.   

The foregoing recitals above are true and correct, and are incorporated herein by this reference 
as findings of fact. 

SECTION 2.         CEQA. 

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, this Ordinance does not constitute a CEQA “project”, 
because: (i) the whole of the action does not have the potential for resulting in either a direct physical 
change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, 
which are required parts of the definition of “project” under CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(a), and 
because the action constitutes administrative or maintenance activities of the City, such as general policy 
and procured making, which are excluded from the definition of project under CEQA Guidelines Section 
15378(a). There is no redevelopment proposal related to the Refinery Sites currently on file or otherwise 
before the City for review or consideration, and this action merely ensures the City will have sufficient 
time to study and consider the general plan or zoning proposals referenced above without being obligated 
to approve any application that may be received in the interim, to ensure that if and when an application 
for redevelopment of the Refinery Sites for a new use following cessation of Refinery Operations is filed 
with the City, the City will have the appropriate authority to ensure the protection of public health, safety, 
welfare and the environment in connection with its review and processing of and decision upon such 
application(s). 

In the event this Ordinance does constitute a CEQA “project,” it is exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), because the action does not have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment. “Significant effect on the environment” is defined in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15382 as “a substantial, or potentially substantial, adverse change in any of the physical 
conditions within the area affected by the project including land, air, water, minerals, flora, fauna, 
ambient noise, and objects of historic or aesthetic significance.” (emphasis added). It can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that this Ordinance may have a significant effect on the environment, 
because any potential change in any of the physical conditions within the area affected by the Ordinance 
would be favorable, not adverse, on the environment, in that the contemplated general plan and zoning 
proposals that the City is studying, by requiring approval of a cohesive specific plan or master plan for any 
new use of the Refinery Sites and rezoning Refinery Sites consistent with the General Plan thereby 
conferring greater discretion on the City to mitigate potential environmental impacts of such new uses, 
could only increase, and not in any way decrease, the potential that a proposed redevelopment of the 
Refinery Sites would constitute a discretionary project, within the meaning of Public Resources Code 
Section 21080(a), with respect to approval by the City, and that the City would therefore have authority 
to conduct environmental review of such project pursuant to CEQA and thereby take measures protect 
and improve the environment in connection with redevelopment of the Refinery Sites, whereas absent 
such regulations, the City may not have such authority over a proposed new by-right heavy industrial use 
or development of the Refinery Sites, and therefore without this ordinance could be obligated to 
approved such a new use or development without conducting CEQA review. 

SECTION 3.         URGENCY FINDINGS. 



01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

The City Council hereby finds and declares this Ordinance as an urgency measure necessary for 
the immediate preservation and protection of the public peace, health, safety and welfare. The facts 
constituting the urgency, in addition to the findings set forth above, are: 

A. There is a current and immediate threat to public peace, safety, health, and welfare posed 
by the prospect of submittal to the City of an application for commercial or industrial redevelopment or 
subsequent use of the Refinery Sites following cessation of Refinery Operations under the City’s current 
General Plan and zoning regulations, as further detailed below. In the event of such an application, absent 
this Ordinance and new or amended land use and zoning regulations resulting from the General Plan and 
zoning proposals being studied, the approval of subdivisions, variances, demolition, grading and building 
permits, use permits, site plan and design/development and site plan and zoning compliance review 
permits/approvals, or any other applicable entitlement for use which is required for the City to comply 
with its Zoning Ordinance would result in that threat to public peace, health, safety and welfare.    

B. The current Manufacturing-Heavy zoning designation applicable to the Refinery Sites 
permits a wide range of industrial and commercial uses by-right, consistent with the General Plan land 
use classification of Heavy Industrial, and to a lesser extent the General Plan land use classification of Light 
Industrial in the limited area where it applies south of 223rd St. and east of Wilmington Ave., and there is 
no requirement (unlike for the Shell Property) of a cohesive master or specific plan to outline long-term 
growth of the site and ensure compatibility with surrounding properties. Accordingly, in the event of an 
application for redevelopment of a Refinery Site for such a by-right use following cessation of Refinery 
Operations, the City may not have the discretion necessary to ensure the protection of public health, 
safety and welfare, including but not limited to environmental justice and compatibility with surrounding 
properties, in connection with the new proposed use or development of the Refinery Sites following 
cessation of Refinery Operations. For example, there are residential communities located immediately to 
the west and north of the Refinery Sites, and under the current regulations, the City would not have 
sufficient discretion and authority to ensure compatibility of the future use of the Refinery Sites with these 
residential communities and to ensure the future development and use of the Refinery Sites does not 
create adverse effects upon their public peace, health, safety and welfare.  

C. Similarly, absent new or amended City General Plan and/or zoning regulations, the City 
may not have authority to conduct CEQA review of a project for redevelopment or subsequent use of a 
Refinery Site following cessation of Refinery Operations, as detailed in Section 2 above. As a result, such 
redevelopment could result in unknown and unmitigated significant adverse environmental effects, 
including but not limited to risks to the health and safety of the individuals who occupy the sites of the 
future developments and that of the residents of the surrounding communities. It is well-known that oil 
refineries utilize many industrial processes and toxic materials, and have the potential to severely 
contaminate the property on which they are located, including potential soil and groundwater 
contamination from refinery wastewater or other discharges and spills that may occur from or at the 
refinery. The Refinery Sites have generally been operated as oil refineries for many years – according to 
the California Energy Commission’s webpage (https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-
almanac/californias-petroleum-market/californias-oil-refineries/california-oil), the Tesoro Los Angeles 
Refinery began its operations (in Wilmington and/or Carson) in 1938 and the Phillips 66 Los Angeles 
Refinery began its operations (in Wilmington and/or Carson) in 1917, and therefore many of the Refinery 
Sites are likely contaminated, although environmental testing would be needed prior to approval of any 
redevelopment in order to determine the extent of any contamination and the necessary remedial or 
mitigation actions or measures or other necessary restrictions to ensure the redevelopment and 
subsequent use is safe for the workers and occupants of the sites and those in the surrounding areas. 

https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/californias-petroleum-market/californias-oil-refineries/california-oil
https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/californias-petroleum-market/californias-oil-refineries/california-oil


01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

Ensuring the City has authority to conduct CEQA review over redevelopment projects and subsequent 
uses for the Refinery Sites will help ensure that any potential significant environmental impacts of any 
such proposed redevelopment are adequately studied, understood, made public, and mitigated to the 
extent feasible (unless a statement of overriding considerations is adopted or the project is exempt from 
CEQA) in accordance with CEQA prior to approval of any such redevelopment.  

D. Redevelopment and subsequent use following cessation of Refinery Operations also 
implicates potential environmental justice issues. As stated in the General Plan Environmental Justice 
element, the census tracts located within the City to the west and north of the Refinery Sites (as well as 
the Refinery Sites themselves, although unpopulated) are designated as SB 535 “Disadvantaged 
Communities,” defined as an area identified by CalEPA or a low-income area that is disproportionately 
affected by environmental pollution and other hazards that can lead to negative health effects, exposure 
or environmental degradation. These areas are majority-minority, low-income, and carry heavy pollution 
burdens. The areas to the south and east of the Refinery Sites are located within the City of Los Angeles. 
The General Plan and zoning proposals that are being studied and considered, or that the City intends to 
consider within a reasonable time, will help address the potential environmental justice issues associated 
with redevelopment of the Refinery Sites and ensure the protection of environmental justice consistent 
with the General Plan and applicable law. 

E. In the absence of modified local General Plan and/or zoning regulations applicable to the 
Refinery Sites that account for the real prospect of redevelopment of same for a new use as discussed 
above, the risk of adverse impacts to public peace, health, safety, and welfare, environmental justice, and 
environmental quality resulting from such redevelopment and new use of the Refinery Sites could be 
realized suddenly and dramatically in the event a by-right application is filed, particularly given the 
publicly-announced impending closure of the Phillips 66 Los Angeles Refinery and the possibility of an 
application being submitted prior to actual cessation of Refinery operations. Processing and acting upon 
an application for a permit, subdivision, variance, or any other applicable entitlement for use for 
commercial or industrial redevelopment or subsequent use of the Refinery Sites under the City’s current 
regulations could result in a severe negative impact upon the public peace, health, safety, and welfare in 
the City. 

F. The City is considering and studying, or intends to consider and study within a reasonable 
time of adoption of this Ordinance, General Plan and zoning proposals applicable to the redevelopment 
and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites in order to protect and preserve the public health, safety and 
welfare of its residents, businesses and visitors against the risks and negative impacts associated with 
same, as discussed above.  

G. The City’s City Council and staff need time to study, develop, revise and complete the 
contemplated General Plan and zoning proposals before they can be adopted and implemented. Among 
other things, as noted above, additional information and studies are needed for the City to ascertain the 
precise boundaries and acreage of the Refineries with certainty; such information will help guide the City’s 
preparation, consideration and action upon the contemplated General Plan and zoning proposals, 
including by enabling the City to have a better understanding of the potential impacts of a redevelopment 
or new use of such large oil refinery properties, which aside from the City’s experience with the Shell 
Property, is unprecedented in the City’s history.   

H. This Ordinance is being adopted in order to allow the City time to thoroughly study,  
develop, revise, and adopt General Plan and zoning regulations related to potential redevelopment and 



01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

subsequent of the Refinery Sites following cessation of Refinery Operations, to enable the City to 
adequately and appropriately protect and preserve the health, safety and welfare of the communities and 
residents of the City. 

I. The commencement of new commercial or industrial uses or associated development and 
construction activities on the Refinery Sites, and the consideration and processing of applications for 
approvals, permits and entitlements to engage in such new uses or development, may be in conflict with 
the contemplated General Plan and zoning proposals described above, and therefore there is a need to 
prohibit such activities temporarily to allow the City sufficient time to complete the necessary studies and 
take the necessary actions to protect the public health, safety and welfare as it relates to redevelopment 
and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites following cessation of Refinery Operations. 

J. As a result of the current and immediate threat that potential commercial or industrial 
redevelopment of the Refinery Sites poses to the public health, safety and welfare, it is necessary to adopt 
a temporary, forty-five (45) day moratorium on such redevelopment and subsequent use in the City, as 
detailed in Section 5 below. 

K. The moratorium is immediately necessary to preserve the public peace, health, safety, 
and welfare, and should be adopted immediately as an urgency ordinance, to make certain that 
commercial and industrial redevelopment and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites following cessation of 
Refinery Operations is prohibited for the effective period of this Ordinance. Imposition of a moratorium 
will allow the City sufficient time to study and prepare to enact comprehensive General Plan and zoning 
actions and regulations applicable to redevelopment and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites. 

SECTION 4.        AUTHORITY AND EFFECT 

A. Government Code Section 65858 expressly authorizes the City, in order to protect public 
safety, health, and welfare, to adopt an Urgency Ordinance prohibiting a use that is in conflict with a 
contemplated general plan, specific plan, or zoning proposal that the legislative body, planning 
commission, or the planning department is considering or studying or intends to study within a reasonable 
time, provided that the urgency measure shall require a four-fifths vote of the legislative body for 
adoption, and shall be of no further force and effect 45 days from its date of adoption, unless duly 
extended for an additional 10 months and 15 days. 

B. Section 313(F) of the City’s Charter provides that any urgency ordinance declared by the 
City Council as an urgency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of public peace, health or 
safety, and containing a statement of its urgency, may be introduced and adopted at one and the same 
meeting if passed by a two-thirds affirmative vote of the City Council. Section 316(4)-(5) of the City’s 
Charter provides that an urgency ordinance adopted in the manner provided for in Section 313(F) of the 
Charter, and any other such ordinance authorized by state law, shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  

SECTION 5.            MORATORIUM 

Subject to the Exemption in Section 6 below, during the effective period of this Ordinance, no 
application for any permit (including but not limited to applications for demolition, grading and building 
permits, site plan and design review permits/approvals, development and site plan review 
permits/approvals, zoning compliance review permits/approvals, and major and minor conditional use 
permits), variance, subdivision, or other entitlement for use will be accepted or processed, no 



01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

consideration of any application for any permit (including but not limited to demolition, grading and 
building permits, site plan and design review permits/approvals, development and site plan review 
permits/approvals, zoning compliance review permits/approvals, and major and minor conditional use 
permits), variance, subdivision, or entitlement for use will be made, and no permit (including but not 
limited to demolition, grading and building permits, site plan and design review permits/approvals, 
development and site plan review permits/approvals, zoning compliance review permits/approvals, and 
major and minor conditional use permits), variance, subdivision, or other entitlement for use will be 
approved or issued by the City for any new commercial or industrial use, development or construction on 
any of the Refinery Sites or any portion thereof, and any such new use, development or construction 
activity is prohibited.  The determination as to the precise boundaries of the Refinery Sites within the 
scope of this Ordinance shall be made by the Community Development Director or designee in his or her 
sole discretion (including on a case-by-case basis if necessary pending a comprehensive determination), 
subject to the provisions of this Ordinance.   

SECTION 6.   EXEMPTION 

This Ordinance does not apply to applications, permits, approvals, variances, subdivisions, 
entitlements for use, uses, or construction activities on the Refinery Sites that relate to continuing 
Refinery Operations.   

SECTION 7.   STUDY AND DEVELOPMENT 

During the effective period of this Ordinance, the City shall study and consider proposed or 
potential General Plan, specific plan and/or zoning regulations related to commercial and residential 
development and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites following cessation of Refinery Operations that 
will enable the City to adequately and appropriately protect the public peace, health, safety, and welfare, 
as well as environmental justice and environmental quality in connection with any such redevelopment 
or subsequent use that may be proposed. 

SECTION 8.             CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is consistent with the General Plan, including the 
following goals and policies thereof: 

A. LUR-G-12: Promote adaptive reuse and environmental remediation of brownfield sites. 

B. LUR-G-13: Ensure adequate buffers and transitions between industrial and residential 
land use as sites are developed or redeveloped. 

C LUR-G-14: Ensure that future industrial development is in harmony to the extent possible 
with adjacent residential areas. 

D. LUR-P-24: Establish performance and development standards to allow a wide range of 
uses as long as those uses will not adversely impact adjacent uses.  

E. LUR-P-29: Undertake planned development and specific plans for unique projects as a 
means to achieve high community standards, address neighborhood or significant site-specific issues, 
ensure compatibility between a number of uses, on large parcels, and when needed as part of a 
redevelopment or environmental remediation strategy. 



01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

F. CHE-G-1: Seek to improve Citywide health outcomes and reduce disparities between 
census tracts by focusing on prevention and interventions, and by addressing the root causes of health 
disparities and equities in Carson. 

G. CHE-G-2: Reduce air pollution and the incidence of respiratory illness through the land 
use planning process. 

H. CHE-G-4: Protect community health from pollution by toxics and hazardous materials, 
especially in areas with vulnerable or sensitive populations. 

SECTION 9.   SEVERABILITY 

The City Council hereby declares that, if any provision, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, 
phrase or word of this Ordinance is rendered or declared invalid or unconstitutional by any final action in 
a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any preemptive legislation, then the City Council would 
have independently adopted the remaining provisions, sections, subsections, paragraphs, sentences, 
phrases or words of this Ordinance and as such they shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 10. PUBLICATION  

The City Clerk shall certify as to the passage and adoption of this Ordinance and shall cause the 
same to be published in a manner prescribed by law. 

SECTION 11. EFFECTIVENESS OF ORDINANCE.  

This Interim Urgency Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption pursuant to 
Charter Section 316(4) and Government Code Section 65858. This Ordinance shall be of no further force 
and effect forty-five (45) days following the date of its adoption unless extended in accordance with 
Government Code Section 65858(a). Not later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration of this Interim 
Urgency Ordinance, the City Council shall issue a written report as required by Government Code Section 
65858(d).  

 

 

[signatures on the following page]  



01007.0001/1027651.4                              ORDINANCE NO. 24-2414U 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council on this 6th day of 
November, 2024, by at least a four-fifths affirmative vote of the City Council. 
 
 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:        CITY OF CARSON: 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney    Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 

 
         
 

           

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 

 

 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  ss. 
CITY OF CARSON  ) 

 
I, Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk of the City of Carson, California, hereby attest 
to and certify that the foregoing ordinance, being Ordinance No. 24-2414U passed on 
this 6th day of November , 2024 adopted by the Carson City Council at its meeting held 
on the 6th day of November 2024, by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
NOES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:   
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:   
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:   
RECUSED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:   

 
_________________________ 
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 



01007.0001/1032800.1  

      
10-Day Report on Interim Ordinance No. 24-2414U 

November 19, 2024 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



01007.0001/1032800.1  

On November 6, 2024, pursuant to a 5-0 vote, the City Council of the City of Carson adopted 

Interim Urgency Ordinance No. 24-2414U (the “Ordinance”), which established a temporary 45-

day moratorium on acceptance, processing and consideration of applications and approval and 

issuance of permits and entitlements  for commercial or industrial redevelopment and subsequent 

use of current oil refinery sites within the City following cessation of refinery operations. The 

moratorium was enacted pursuant to Section 65858 of the California Government Code, took 

effect immediately, and will expire on December 21, 2024 unless extended by the Council. 

 

The purpose of the moratorium is to allow the City time to study and consider proposed or potential 

General Plan, specific plan and/or zoning regulations related to commercial and residential 

development and subsequent use of the Refinery Sites (as defined in the Ordinance) following 

cessation of Refinery Operations (as defined in the Ordinance) that will enable the City to 

adequately and appropriately protect the public peace, health, safety, and welfare, as well as 

environmental justice and environmental quality in connection with any such redevelopment or 

subsequent use that may be proposed.  

 

Subdivision (d) of Section 65858 of the Government Code provides that “[t]en days prior to the 

expiration of that interim ordinance or any extension, the legislative body shall issue a written 

report describing the measures taken to alleviate the condition which led to the adoption of the 

ordinance.” This report complies with the requirements of Government Code section 65858(d). 

 

During the period the moratorium has been in place, the City has begun the process of preparing, 

considering and adopting a General Plan Amendment that would expressly require submittal and 

approval of a specific plan prior to, or concurrently with, approval of development plans for any 

redevelopment of the site of an existing oil or petroleum refinery or associated use for a new use 

following cessation of refinery operations. The proposed General Plan Amendment was heard by 

the City’s Planning Commission on November 12, 2024, and immediately following the hearing, 

the Planning Commission adopted a resolution recommending approval of the proposed General 

Plan Amendment by the City Council. The City Council is slated to consider the proposed General 

Plan Amendment for the first time on December 3, 2024, and may or may not see fit to take action 

on that date.  

 

If adopted as proposed (whether on December 3, 2024 or later), the General Plan Amendment 

would add another layer of City planning control, such that an applicant who seeks to redevelop 

an existing refinery site for a new use following cessation of refinery operations would be required 

to submit a proposed Specific Plan and go through the City’s Specific Plan review and decision-

making process in addition to the applicable use entitlement process (if any) and any other required 

approval process under the Carson Municipal Code (except to the extent the proposed Specific 

Plan, as approved, provides that it supersedes Carson Zoning Ordinance approval processes or 

requirements). This requirement would help ensure the City has the necessary authority to conduct 

CEQA review of such projects, and would also help ensure the City has the necessary Planning 

oversight and decision-making authority to require the redevelopment to be cohesive and 

compatible both within the site and with surrounding uses, such as (by way of example only) by 

requiring landscaped buffers and other project design features and other measures to avoid 

negative impacts on public health, safety, and welfare, including for the people who occupy the 

site of the redevelopment and the surrounding areas. In addition, the specific plan requirement 



01007.0001/1032800.1  

would ensure any redevelopment of such sites will be cohesive and compatible with surrounding 

areas, including existing or proposed residential areas that may be in the travel path of future 

development of such sites. 

 

The City has also begun the process of studying other potential General Plan and/or zoning 

regulations related to commercial and residential development and subsequent use of the Refinery 

Sites following cessation of Refinery Operations that will enable the City to adequately and 

appropriately protect the public peace, health, safety, and welfare, as well as environmental justice 

and environmental quality in connection with any such redevelopment or subsequent use that may 

be proposed. The proposed and potential amendments to the City’s regulations will also seek to 

further the goals and policies of the General Plan. Such potential new or amended regulations that 

the City is studying include, without limitation, possible changes to the permitted uses of such 

properties. However, in light of the complexity of the State and local laws governing this subject 

matter and the need to analyze such laws, and the need to analyze the land use and zoning 

regulations of other California cities in which refineries are located to determine what relevant 

regulations they may have in place, and given the potentially significant impact that approval of 

such a redevelopment or subsequent use under current regulations could have on the welfare of 

thousands of Carson residents, the City staff believe that more time is required to adequately study 

and make recommendations concerning the potential amendments to City regulations that would 

alleviate those impacts. 

 

Completing the required analyses, as well as developing and implementing the appropriate 

modifications, is anticipated to take at least several months. Therefore, the initial 45 days’ 

effectiveness of the moratorium enacted by Ordinance No. 24-2414U provides an insufficient 

amount of time to fully study and consider all the above, and any other impacts and relevant 

proposals.  

 

 



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY 23.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Saied Naaseh, Director of Community Development  CD  Administration
 
Subject:          PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 24-108 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $22,000,000
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY’S TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE
REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING, REFINANCING AND/OR REIMBURSING THE COST
OF ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT, REHABILITATION, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING OF
FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF AIDS HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION AND/OR A SUCCESSOR OR RELATED
ENTITY (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

The AIDS Healthcare Foundation (AHF) has requested the issuance of tax-exempt and/or taxable revenue
bonds, with an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $152 million, by the Public Finance Authority (PFA)
to finance multiple projects across the United States. Of this amount, up to $22 million will be allocated to
finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a new facility at 18421 S. Main Street, Carson. The City
Council’s approval is required as the facility is within Carson’s jurisdiction. This approval meets federal and
state statutory requirements and does not constitute a financial obligation for the City whatsoever-not now
and not in the future.

II. RECOMMENDATION

1. OPEN the public hearing, TAKE public testimony and accept any written and/or oral communications, and
CLOSE the public hearing.

2. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 24-108, “A RESOLUTION 24-108 OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $22,000,000
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY’S TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE
REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING, REFINANCING AND/OR REIMBURSING THE COST OF
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT, REHABILITATION, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING OF
FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF AIDS HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION AND/OR A SUCCESSOR OR RELATED
ENTITY.

III. ALTERNATIVES

 
TAKE another action deemed appropriate by the City Council.
 

701 East Carson Street



IV. BACKGROUND

The Public Finance Authority (PFA) is a national conduit issuer of tax-exempt and taxable bonds based in
Madison, Wisconsin. Established under Wisconsin state law, the PFA operates as a joint powers authority and
issues bonds on behalf of nonprofit organizations for projects that serve the public good, including
healthcare, education, and housing. Through partnerships with local jurisdictions, the PFA is authorized to
issue bonds across the United States for projects that align with its mission, including the AIDS Healthcare
Foundation (AHF) facility in Carson.

The AHF, a nonprofit organization committed to HIV/AIDS prevention, treatment, and advocacy, intends to use
bond proceeds to support the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a two-story, 53,978-square-foot
facility on approximately 2.47 acres within Carson (18421 Main Street).  The bond issuance is part of a larger
financing package of up to $152 million, which will fund other AHF projects in various  locations, including
Florida and Texas. For the Carson project specifically, AHF has requested up to $22 million of the bond
allocation.

Because the Carson facility falls within the City’s boundaries, the PFA requires City Council approval of the
bond issuance, specifically for the portion related to the Carson facility, to satisfy Section 66.0304(11)(a) of
the Wisconsin Statutes and Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code. This approval ensures compliance
with statutory requirements following a public hearing, where Carson community members are invited to
provide feedback on the project. While the City’s approval is necessary, it does not imply a financial obligation
on the City’s part. The bonds are special, limited obligations of the PFA, secured solely by AHF revenues. They
do not constitute a debt or liability for the City and are not backed by the City’s credit or taxing power.
Approval does not represent an endorsement of the project’s financial viability or of AHF’s creditworthiness.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

 
There is no fiscal impact on the City of Carson.
 

VI. EXHIBITS

1. RESOLUTION NO. 24-108

 

Prepared by Eric Romero, Economic Development Manager
 

 

 

Attachments

City of Carson Resolution 24-108.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672164e74d40b3005b5ef2f7%2FCity%20of%20Carson%20Resolution%2024-108.pdf?alt=media&token=eb6018f7-57a4-471c-8fbc-4edc428bce94
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672164e74d40b3005b5ef2f7%2FCity%20of%20Carson%20Resolution%2024-108.pdf?alt=media&token=eb6018f7-57a4-471c-8fbc-4edc428bce94
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672164e74d40b3005b5ef2f7%2FCity%20of%20Carson%20Resolution%2024-108.pdf?alt=media&token=eb6018f7-57a4-471c-8fbc-4edc428bce94


 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-108 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $22,000,000 AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY’S TAX-EXEMPT 
AND/OR TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING, 
REFINANCING, AND/OR REIMBURSING THE COST OF ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT, REHABILITATION, EQUIPPING AND 
FURNISHING OF FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF AIDS HEALTHCARE 
FOUNDATION AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO HEREIN SPECIFIED.  

WHEREAS, AIDS Healthcare Foundation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
(the “Code”), or a successor or related entity (the “Borrower”), has requested that the Public 
Finance Authority (the “Authority”) issue, from time to time, pursuant to a plan of finance, its tax-
exempt and/or taxable revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$152,000,000 (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Section 66.0304 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as amended 
(the “Act”), and loan a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds in an amount not to exceed 
$22,000,000 (the portion of the Bonds related to such proceeds, the “Local Project Bonds”) to the 
Borrower, for the purpose of (a) financing, refinancing and/or reimbursing the cost of the 
acquisition, construction, improvement, rehabilitation, equipping and furnishing of a two-story 
industrial building with approximately 53,978 square feet of space on approximately 2.47 acres 
located at 18421 S. Main Street, Gardena, California 90248 (collectively, the “Local Facilities”), (b) 
providing one or more debt service reserve funds for the benefit of all or a portion of the Local 
Project Bonds, if deemed necessary or desirable; (c) paying a portion of the interest to accrue on 
the Local Project Bonds, if deemed necessary or desirable; (d) paying certain working capital 
expenditures, if deemed necessary or desirable; and (e) paying certain costs of issuance of the 
Local Project Bonds (collectively, the “Local Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Borrower expects and, to the extent such approval is required by the Act or the 
Code,  is seeking approval from the applicable jurisdictions, to apply the remaining amount of the 
proceeds of the Bonds in an amount not to exceed $130,000,000 to finance, refinance and/or 
reimburse the cost of the acquisition, construction, improvement, rehabilitation, equipping and 
furnishing of certain facilities located in: (a) the State of Florida, in the maximum amount of 
$49,200,000; (b) the City of Dallas, Texas, in the maximum amount of $15,500,000; and (c) the 
City of Los Angeles, California, in the maximum amount of $65,300,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Facilities will be owned and operated either by the Borrower or by one or 
more limited liability companies, the sole member of which is the Borrower, in furtherance of the 
Borrower’s mission to eradicate HIV and AIDS through innovative medicine, advocacy, and 
prevention; AND 
 
WHEREAS, the issuance of the Local Project Bonds must be approved by the governmental unit 
which issued the Local Project Bonds or the governmental unit on behalf of which the Local Project 
Bonds are issued, and each governmental unit having jurisdiction over the territorial limits in 
which the Local Facilities are located pursuant to the public approval requirement of Section 



 

147(f) of the Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Facilities are located within the territorial limits of the City of Carson, 
California (the “City”) and the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) is the elected legislative 
body of the City and is one of the “applicable elected representatives” required to approve the 
issuance of the Local Project Bonds under Section 147(f) of the Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 66.0304(11)(a) of the Act, prior to their issuance, bonds issued by 
the Authority must be approved by the governing body or highest ranking executive or 
administrator of the political jurisdiction within whose boundaries the Local Facilities are located; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the City approve the financing, refinancing and/or 
reimbursement of the cost of the Local Facilities and the issuance of the Local Project Bonds in 
order to satisfy the requirements of Section 66.0304(11)(a) of the Act and Section 147(f) of the 
Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the City Council on this 19 day of November, 2024, at the 
meeting which commenced at the hour of 5:00 p.m., in the Helen Kawagoe Council Chambers at 
City Hall, 701 E. Carson Street, Carson, California 90745, following duly published notice thereof 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City, and all persons desiring to be heard have been 
heard; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Project Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt of the City or a pledge 
of the faith and credit of the City, but shall be special limited obligations of the Authority payable 
solely from the loan repayments to be made by the Borrower to the Authority, and the City has 
no liability whatsoever for the repayment of the Local Project Bonds, and neither the faith and 
credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged to the payment of the principal of or interest on 
the Local Project Bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is intended that this Resolution shall satisfy the requirements of Section 
66.0304(11)(a) of the Act and the public approval requirements of Section 147(f) of the Code; 
provided, however, that this Resolution is neither intended to nor shall it constitute an approval 
by the City Council of the Local Facilities for any other purpose; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, 
DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Authority’s issuance of the Local Project Bonds 
in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $22,000,000 and the financing, refinancing and/or 
reimbursement of the cost of the Local Project for the purposes of (i) Section 147(f) of the Code, 
and (ii) Section 66.0304(11)(a) of the Act. 

                  
Section 2. The City has no responsibility for the payment of the principal of or interest on the 
Local Project Bonds or for any costs incurred by the Borrower with respect to the Local Project 
Bonds or the Local Project, and the Local Project Bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the 
faith and credit of the City. The approval of the issuance of the Local Project Bonds does not 



 

constitute an endorsement to a prospective purchaser of the Local Project Bonds of the 
creditworthiness of the Borrower or the Local Project, the feasibility of the Local Project or the 
credit quality of the Local Project Bonds. 
 
Section 3. The approval of the issuance of the Local Project Bonds contained in this Resolution 
is independent of any other approval or approvals by the City Council that may be required in 
connection with the Local Project (the “Additional Approvals”), and nothing contained in this 
Resolution shall be construed to imply that any such Additional Approvals will be granted or to 
bind the City in any way with respect to any Additional Approvals. 
 
Section 4. This resolution is effective immediately upon its adoption by the City Council. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 19th day of November 2024. 

 

APPROVED 

 

 

_________________________ ________________________ 

Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
    ATTEST: 

 
 
 

_______________________________ 

Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss. 
CITY OF CARSON ) 

I, Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk of the City of Carson, California, hereby attest to and 
certify that the foregoing resolution, being Resolution No. 24-0108 adopted by the City of 
Carson City Council at its meeting held on November 19, 2024, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN:  COUNCIL MEMEBES: 
ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
 

 



 

_____________________________ 

Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

DISCUSSION 24.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             John Raymond, CRA Executive Director and Assistant City Manager  CD  Administration
 
Subject:          CONSIDER FOR INTRODUCTION ORDINANCE NO. 24-2415, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES
FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 (THE BOULEVARDS AT SOUTH BAY-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS) OF THE
CITY OF CARSON, AUTHORIZING THE CESSATION OF THE LEVY RELATED SPECIAL TAXES AND THE
EXTINGUISHMENT AND CANCELLATION OF ALL RELATED LIENS" (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

In 2012, two community facilities districts ("CFDs") were created for the benefit of the Boulevards at South Bay
project in Carson which were intended to provide for (1) the long-term operation and management ("O&M") of the
remedial systems on the property, and (2) to reimburse the then-developer, Carson Marketplace, LLC for certain
infrastructure improvements.  The Carson Reclamation Authority acquired the property from the developer in 2015
and since than has undertaken the master development and the O&M of the remedial systems during the
development period.  Post-completion, the private owners of the property will be responsible for funding the
remedial O&M work through the first CFD, while the second CFD will be replaced by obligations in the CC&Rs for
funding the maintenance of site infrastructure (such as streetlights, the master sign program, and landscaping). 
The CRA is working with the private developers to restructure the rate and method of allocation of CFD 2012-1 to
ensure it provides enough money for maintenance and also reflects an allocation tied to the proposed land uses. 
 The second CFD, 2012-2, will ultimately be extinguished.
 
The action, taken by the City Council acting as the legislative body of CFD 2012-2, authorizes the cessation of the
levy and the cancellation of all related liens.  While no taxes have been levied nor any liens created, this step is
necessary to clear this issue from the title of the property as the CRA gets ready to convey title of Cells 3, 4, and 5
to Carson Goose Owner, LLC. 

II. RECOMMENDATION

1. ACTING AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2012-2, WAIVE FURTHER
READING AND INTRODUCE ORDINANCE NO. 2415, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CARSON, CALIFORNIA, IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES FINANCING DISTRICT NO.
2012-2 (THE BOULEVARDS AT SOUTH BAY-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS) OF THE CITY OF CARSON,
AUTHORIZING THE CESSATION OF THE LEVY RELATED SPECIAL TAXES AND THE EXTINGUISHMENT AND
CANCELLATION OF ALL RELATED LIENS"

2. DIRECT STAFF TO RECORD "NOTICE OF CESSATION OF SPECIAL TAX UNDER COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 OF THE CITY OF CARSON " AGAINST THE PROPERTY

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action the Council deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

701 East Carson Street



Pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facility Act of 1982, on September 18, 2012, the City Council established
the Community Facilities District No. 2012-2 (The Boulevards at South Bay-Capital Improvements) of the City of
Carson (“CFD No. 2012-2”), pursuant to Council Resolution 12-092 and Ordinance 12-1494 (the “2012 Ordinance”). 
The 2012 Resolution authorized, among other things, the levy of a special tax upon the property subject to CFD No.
2012-2, consisting of approximately 157 acres of real property located within the City of Carson, commonly known
today as the Cal Compact Landfill or "The 157 Acre Site" (the “Property”), the issuance of bond indebtedness in an
aggregate principal amount of up to $30 million, and the establishment of an appropriations limit, for the purpose
of funding public improvements on the Property.  CFD 2012-2 was largely established to reimburse the previous
owner of the Property, Carson Marketplace, LLC, to be reimbursed for the construction of certain site infrastructure
through the levy and issuance of bonds.

A Notice of Special Tax Lien for Community Facilities District No. 2012-2 of the City of Carson was recorded on
September 28, 2012, as Instrument No. 20121467002 in the County of Los Angeles Recorder’s Office.  Since its
creation in 2012, however, CFD No. 2012-2 has never levied a special tax upon any owner of the Property as no
bonds were sold or issued and CFD No. 2012 has not incurred any bond indebtedness, nor has CFD No. 2012-2
levied any special tax assessments upon any owner(s) of the Property and CFD No. 2012-2 has no funds or
assets.  

The CRA, working with the Property developers, is working on a new Rate and Method of Apportionment (RMA) for
CFD 2012-1, the district established to cover the ongoing annual cost for the operation of the remedial systems on
the Property.  In the next several months staff will return to City Council with an ordinance replacing that CFD with a
new CFD with an updated RMA for the ongoing site maintenance.  In the meantime, the recommendation is to
cease the levy of any special tax within CFD No. 2012-2, which will  be replaced instead with a set of Covenants,
Codes, & Restrictions recorded against the owners covering a numbers of issues including a pro rata share of non-
remedial infrastructure maintenance. 

V. FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact from this action as CFD never imposed a lien on the property nor issued any debt
pursuant to the provisions of the CFD.  Future obligations in the area of maintenance of site improvements will be
paid for through CC&Rs recorded against all the properties.  These costs have not been fully determined nor has
the allocation among the properties established.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. ORDINANCE NO. 24-2415
2. NOTICE OF CESSATION OF SPECIAL TAX UNDER COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 OF THE

CITY OF CARSON

 

 

 

Attachments

Ordinance re CFD No. 2012-2 Dissolution (10-2024)(1029420.1).pdf
Notice of Cessation of Special Tax Carson CFD 2012-12 (10-2024)(1029421.1) (003).pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6729332ea622140054eae6c1%2FOrdinance%20re%20CFD%20No.%202012-2%20Dissolution%20(10-2024)(1029420.1).pdf?alt=media&token=7d675716-b37f-48a8-a580-800940dd321a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6729332ea622140054eae6c1%2FOrdinance%20re%20CFD%20No.%202012-2%20Dissolution%20(10-2024)(1029420.1).pdf?alt=media&token=7d675716-b37f-48a8-a580-800940dd321a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6729332ea622140054eae6c1%2FOrdinance%20re%20CFD%20No.%202012-2%20Dissolution%20(10-2024)(1029420.1).pdf?alt=media&token=7d675716-b37f-48a8-a580-800940dd321a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6729332ea622140054eae6c1%2FNotice%20of%20Cessation%20of%20Special%20Tax%20Carson%20CFD%202012-12%20(10-2024)(1029421.1)%20(003).pdf?alt=media&token=e6c1960a-7c0c-4245-99d0-2aa505ccf156
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6729332ea622140054eae6c1%2FNotice%20of%20Cessation%20of%20Special%20Tax%20Carson%20CFD%202012-12%20(10-2024)(1029421.1)%20(003).pdf?alt=media&token=e6c1960a-7c0c-4245-99d0-2aa505ccf156
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F6729332ea622140054eae6c1%2FNotice%20of%20Cessation%20of%20Special%20Tax%20Carson%20CFD%202012-12%20(10-2024)(1029421.1)%20(003).pdf?alt=media&token=e6c1960a-7c0c-4245-99d0-2aa505ccf156


01223.0019/1029420.1   
 

Ordinance No. 24-2415 

Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-2415 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, 
CALIFORNIA, IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 (THE BOULEVARDS 
AT SOUTH BAY-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS) OF THE CITY OF 
CARSON, AUTHORIZING THE CESSATION OF THE LEVY RELATED  
SPECIAL TAXES AND THE EXTINGUISHMENT AND CANCELLATION 
OF ALL RELATED LIENS 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facility Act of 1982 (as amended, 

the “Act”), on September 18, 2012, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Carson (the 

“City”) established the Community Facilities District No. 2012-2 (The Boulevards at South Bay-

Capital Improvements) of the City of Carson (“CFD No. 2012-2”), pursuant to Council Resolution 

12-092 (“2012 Resolution”), Council Resolution No. 12-094, and Ordinance No. 12-1494 (the 

“2012 Ordinance”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the 2012 Resolution and the 2012 Ordinance authorized, among other things, 

the levy of a special tax upon the property subject to CFD No. 2012-2, consisting of approximately 

157 acres of real property located within the City of Carson, generally located along the I-405, 

south of Del Amo Blvd. and east of Main St. (the “Property”), the issuance of bond indebtedness 

in an aggregate principal amount of up to $30 million, and the establishment of an appropriations 

limit, for the purpose of funding public improvements; and  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2012 Resolution and the 2012 Ordinance, a Notice of Special 

Tax Lien for Community Facilities District No. 2012-2 of the City of Carson (the “Notice of 

Special Tax Lien”) was recorded on September 28, 2012, as Instrument No. 20121467002 in the 

County of Los Angeles Recorder’s Office (the “Official Records”); and 

 

WHEREAS, CFD No. 2012-2 has never levied a special tax upon any owner of the 

Property as no bonds were sold or issued and CFD No. 2012 has not incurred any bond 

indebtedness, nor has CFD No. 2012-2 levied any special tax assessments upon any owner(s) of 

the Property and CFD No. 2012-2 has no funds or assets; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the City now desires to cease the levy of any special tax within CFD No. 

2012-2.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, 

CALIFORNIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and are 

incorporated herein as findings of fact. 

 

SECTION 2.  ALL POTENTIAL EXISTING AND FUTURE LIENS 

EXTINGUISHED UNDER CFD. The Council, acting in its capacity as the legislative body of 

CFD No. 2012-2, declares and determines that the obligation to pay special taxes relating to CFD 

No. 2012-2 with respect to the Property shall cease, and any outstanding liens against such 

Property shall be extinguished and canceled. 



01223.0019/1029420.1   
 

Ordinance No. 24-2415 

Page 2 

 

SECTION 3. CITY / CFD NO. 2012-2 NOT OBLIGATED TO PAY DEBT. The City 

finds and determines CFD No. 2012-2 is not authorized to issue any bond or indebtedness or issue 

any future special taxes upon the Property and there is no outstanding debt for the City or CFD No 

2012-2 to pay. 

 

SECTION 4:  CITY CLERK AUTHORIZATION. The City Clerk is hereby directed to 

cause to be recorded within the Official Records an addendum to the Notice of Special Tax Lien, 

which shall state that the CFD No. 2012-2 and all associated obligations contained therein 

(including any special taxes) shall be cancelled and shall be deemed terminated, and the City Clerk 

is authorized to execute any other documentation in accordance with the purposes for which this 

Ordinance has been adopted.  

 

SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or 

portion of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision 

of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty 

(30) days after its adoption. 

 

SECTION 7.  CERTIFICATION. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this 

Ordinance, and shall cause the same to be posted and codified in the manner required by law. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council on this 

___ day of __________, 2024. 
 
 
 
              ________________________________ 
  Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney 
 



 

 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY  ) 

AND WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO:  ) 

      ) 

CITY OF CARSON    ) 

701 EAST CARSON STREET    ) 

CARSON, CALIFORNIA 90745    ) 

ATTENTION: Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw      ) 

   City Clerk   ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

 (Space Above This Line for Recorder’s Office Use Only) 

 

 

This document is recorded for the benefit of the City of Carson, a public agency, and is fee-exempt under 

Section 6103 and 27383 of the California Government Code. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NOTICE OF CESSATION OF SPECIAL TAX 

UNDER  

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2012-2 

OF THE CITY OF CARSON  

 

Reference is hereby made to Notice of Special Tax Lien (the “Notice of Special Tax Lien”) with 

respect to Community Facilities District 2012-2 (The Boulevards at South Bay-Capital Improvements) 

of the City of Carson (“CFD No. 2012-2”) recorded on September 28, 2012, as Document No. 2012-

2467002, in the Los Angeles County Recorder’s Office (“Official Records”), which contains the Rate 

and Method of Apportionment for CFD No. 2012-2 and a list of the then owners and assessor tax parcel 

numbers within the boundaries of CFD No. 2012-2.  Reference is also hereby made to the boundary map 

for CFD No. 2012-2 recorded in Book 193 of the Maps of Assessments and Community Facilities 

Districts, at pages 71-22, as Instrument No. 2012-0580930, in the Official Records. 

Pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 53330.5 and California Streets and 

Highways Code Section 3115.5(c), the City Council of the City of Carson (“City”), acting as the 

legislative body of CFD No. 2012-2, has determined that the obligation to pay the special tax levied 

upon the property subject to CFD 2012-2, as more fully described / depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto 

(the “Property”), has ceased and the lien imposed by the Notice of Special Tax Lien is extinguished, 

pursuant to City Ordinance No. 24-2415. Therefore, the City Clerk of the City, hereby gives notice that 

the obligation to pay special taxes against all of the parcels of CFD No. 2012-2 shall cease and the 

recorded liens, if any, against such parcels are extinguished and cancelled.  

[signature appears on the following page] 

 

 



 

 

 

Dated:  _________, 2024   ______________________________________________ 

Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk of the City of 

Council of Carson, acting in its capacity as the legislative 

body of CFD No. 2012-2 

 

 

 



 

   01223.0019/1029421.1   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  ) 

 
On _________________, 2024 before me, ___________________________, a notary 
public, personally appeared _______________________________________________ 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or the entity upon behalf of 
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
_________________________________________ 
    Notary Public 
 
SEAL: 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 

individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 

truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document. 



 

01223.0019/1029421.1   
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
 

That certain real property in the City of Carson, County of Los Angeles, State of 

California, legally described as:  
 
PARCELS 1 AND 2 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 70372, IN THE CITY OF CARSON, COUNTY 

OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP FILED IN BOOK 377, PAGES 
76 THROUGH 89 INCLUSIVE OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE  OF THE COUNTY RECORDER 

OF SAID COUNTY. 
 
EXCEPT THE OIL, GAS, PETROLEUM AND OTHER HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES 

WHICH LIE BELOW A PLANE PARALLEL TO AND 500 FEET BELOW THE NATURAL 
SURFACE OF SAID LAND, WITHOUT HOWEVER, ANY RIGHT TO ENTER UPON THE 

SURFACE OF SAID LAND, TO EXPLORE FOR, DEVELOP OR REMOVE SAID 
SUBSTANCES, BUT WITH FULL RIGHT TO EXPLORE FOR, DEVELOP AND REMOVE THE  
SAME BY MEANS OF WELLS AND EQUIPMENT HAVING SURFACE LOCATION OUTSIDE 

THE OUTER BOUNDARIES OF SAID LAND, IN AND UNDER OR RECOVERABLE FROM 
SAID LAND, AS RESERVED IN THE DEED FROM DEL AMO ESTATE COMPANY, A 

CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 10, 1964 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2198 IN BOOK 
D-2318, PAGE 313 OFFICIAL RECORDS. 
 



 

   01223.0019/1029421.1   



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

DISCUSSION 25.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk  CCO  Option 1
 
Subject:          CONSIDERATION OF ONLY LOCAL UNCONTESTED APPOINTMENTS TO THE CITY’S
COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES, AND BOARDS, AND CITY AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS BY MAYOR AND
CITY COUNCIL AND CONSIDER ALL (CONTESTED AND UNCONTESTED) APPOINTMENTS TO ALL
COMMISSIONS EXCEPT PLANNING COMMISSION AND ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

This item is on the agenda to consider only uncontested appointments of City Commission, Committee, and
Board members in accordance with the City Charter, Article VI, by Mayor and City Council. (Exhibit 1)
 
Also, consider all (contested and uncontested) appointments to all commissions except the Planning
Commission and Environmental Commission. Also, consider appointments to City Affiliated Organizations.
 
Pursuant to Section 602 of the City Charter provides, in part, the mayor and each member of the city council
may appoint one member to a position on each City board or City commission, and the remaining
membership positions shall be appointed by the mayor and approved by a majority of the city council,
including the three alternates.
 
At the November 6, 2024, City Council meeting, Mayor Davis-Holmes continued this item to a future meeting.

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

1. CONSIDER and only APPOINT uncontested members to the City Commissions, Committees, and

Boards;

2. CONSIDER and APPOINT all (contested and uncontested) members to all commissions except Planning

Commission and Environmental Commission;

3. CONSIDER and APPOINT members to City Affiliated Organizations;

4. DIRECT the City Clerk to notify all affected appointments of this action in writing;

5. IF APPLICABLE, DIRECT the City Clerk to post and publish in accordance with the Maddy Act

III. ALTERNATIVES

N/A

701 East Carson Street



IV. BACKGROUND

Every two years after the municipal election, most Commission and Board appointments expire. As
unscheduled vacancies occur and/or members are frequently absent, it is best practice to consider new
appointments.

Invitations to submit an appointment application for all interested person(s) were posted in accordance with
the Maddy Act. Applications for individuals requesting appointments were previously provided under separate
cover to the Mayor and City Council.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

Funds for member stipends are already budgeted for Fiscal Year 2024-2025.

VI. EXHIBITS

Local Appointments List 
 
Prepared by: Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk and Tomisha Haywood, Records Management Coordinator

 

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit 1 - November 19, 2024, Agenda Report.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0f54a622140054f084e1%2FExhibit%201%20-%20November%2019%2C%202024%2C%20Agenda%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=9f1b5a13-55e4-49dd-b545-595919874e81
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0f54a622140054f084e1%2FExhibit%201%20-%20November%2019%2C%202024%2C%20Agenda%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=9f1b5a13-55e4-49dd-b545-595919874e81
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d0f54a622140054f084e1%2FExhibit%201%20-%20November%2019%2C%202024%2C%20Agenda%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=9f1b5a13-55e4-49dd-b545-595919874e81


*

** M
a

Mayor's uncontested

Denotes vacated seat

I. COMMISSIONS 

[1] Economic Development Commission

Established by: Ordinance No. 00-1191. §1 (CMC §27104.1); Ordinance No. 21-2108

Membership:

Qualification:  

Meetings:

Staff Liaison: 

Support Staff:

Appointed Term Expires

Aldridge Jr., Ray (LDH)** 12-06-22 11-30-24

Childers, Christopher (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Embry, Darren (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Kelley, Blake (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Jimenez, Trini (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Pandolfo, Katie (JH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Sparrow, Clyde (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Wallace, Deborah (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Watar, Nasser (JD) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Cordova, Ted (LDH) Alt. 1 04-04-23 11-30-24

Ibarra, Victor (LDH) Alt. 2 02-06-24 11-30-24

O'Leary, Danielle (LDH) Alt. 3 02-06-24 11-30-24

CITY OF CARSON
LOCAL APPOINTMENTS LIST FOR

COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES, AND BOARDS
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54970 et seq.)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the current terms for the following Commissioners, Committee and Board Members will
expire as indicated for the respective bodies listed. Any interested resident of the City of Carson, California is eligible to
serve on any of the below-named commissions, committees, or boards unless otherwise specified. Applications are
available at the City Clerk's Office by request at (310) 952-1720.  

The following appointed positions may receive compensation

John Raymond, Asst. City Mgr x1773; Saied Naaseh, Dir. of Comm. Dev. x1770

Article VI, §602 of the City Charter: To be qualified for appointment, the member shall be a qualified elector of the City, 

shall be domiciled in the City for at least sixty (60) days immediately preceding their appointment, and shall continue to 
reside in the City for the duration of his or her tenure, unless otherwise provided by ordinance.

The mayor and each member of the city council may appoint one member to a position on each City board, committee or 
commission, and the remaining membership positions shall be appointed by the mayor and approved by a majority of the 
city council, including the three alternates.

9 members; 3 alternates

Shall be and remain a resident of, or have a place of employment or business in the
City of Carson, and be at least 18 years of age. Shall include representatives of all
major sectors of the Carson business community as determined in the sole discretion
of the City Council.

Sandy Solis, Economic Development Commission Secretary x1325

1st Thursday, 8:00 a.m., Executive Conference Room

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 1



[2] Environmental Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 70-128; §1 (CMC §2750); Ordinance No. 21-2103

Membership:

Qualification:  

Meetings:

Staff Liaison: 

Support Staff:

Appointed Term Expires

Vacant (JH) 11-30-24

Swayzer, Ezekiel (LDH) 08-06-24 11-30-24

Hopson, Lillian (LDH)** 12-06-22 11-30-24

Tresvant, Christina (LDH) 07-05-23 11-30-24

Koons, William (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Love, Roye (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) 11-30-24

Taylor, Hourie (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Watkins, Freeman (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 1 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 2 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 3 11-30-24

[3] Human Relations Commission*

Established by:

Membership: 9 members (7 general, 2 youth); 3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 3rd Wednesday, 6:30 p.m., City Manager Conference Room

Staff Liaison: Robert Lennox, Asst. City Manager x1728

Support Staff: Cac Le, Council Aide x1722

Appointed Term Expires

Junio, Teresita (LDH)** 02-06-24 11-30-24

Calhoun, Jill (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Davenport, Kimberley (JH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Keely, Tina (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Ramos, Jessica (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Reed, Cassandra (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Russ, Harriett (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Ifeacho, Dr. Chinyere (LDH) Alt. 1 04-04-23 11-30-24

Viernes, Irene (LDH) Alt. 2 04-04-23 11-30-24

Calidonio, Hector (LDH) *Pending Alt. 3 08-08-24 11-30-24

Atkins, GP (LDH) Youth 04-04-23 11-30-24

Lane, K'hari (LDH) Youth 04-04-23 11-30-24

9 members; 3 alternates

Reata Kulcsar, Innovation & Sustainability Manager x1312

Shall be and remain a resident of the City of Carson and be at least eighteen (18)
years of age at the time of the member's appointment

Shall be a resident of the City of Carson. Youth members shall be 16-21 years of age,
enrolled in school at time of appointment, maintain a 2.0 GPA, shall have interest in
human relations.

Ordinance No. 74-294; Ordinance No. 87-812, §1; Ordinance No. 89-883,§1 

1st Wednesday, 6:30 p.m. (Executive Conference Room)

Jessica Coria, Division Secretary x1823

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 2



[4] Parks, Recreation and Cultural Arts Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 69-65 (CMC §2735); Ordinance No. 21-2106

Membership: 9 members; 3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: Last Thursday, 6:30 p.m. (Executive Conference Room)

Staff Liaison: Michael Whittiker Jr., Director of Community Services x3571

Support Staff: Kimberly Madrigal, Administrative Secretary x3581

Appointed Term Expires

Cainglet, Jesus-Alex (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Cortado, Kimberly (JH) 06-20-23 11-30-24

Dahilig Jr., Cesar (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Lawrence, Shannon (LDH) 06-20-23 11-30-24

Gonzalez, Walter (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Hilliard, Kisa (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Hunter, Edwina (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Langston, DeAnthony (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Ramos, Oscar (LDH)** 01-17-23 11-30-24

Brown, Kelvin (LDH) Alt. 1 01-23-24 11-30-24

Johnson, Jo Jacqueline (LDH) Alt. 2 04-04-23 11-30-24

Brillantes, Rudolfo (LDH) Alt. 3 04-04-23 11-30-24

[5] Planning Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 13, §1 (CMC §2700); § 606 of the City Charter

Membership: 9 members; 3 alternates

Qualification:  

Monthly Meeting: 2nd and 4th Tuesday, 6:30 p.m. (City Council Chambers)

Staff Liaison: Christopher Palmer, Planning Mgr. x1365; McKina Alexander, Sr. Planner x1326

Support Staff: Laura Gonzalez, Planning Secretary x1328

Appointed Term Expires

Diaz, Louie (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Docdocil, Frederick (LDH)** 12-06-22 11-30-24

Guerra, Carlos (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Hernandez, Richard (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Huff, Del (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Wilson, Leticia (LDH) 07-16-24 11-30-24

Mfume, DeQuita (LDH) 01-23-24 11-30-24

Johnson, Clarence (JH) 03-19-24 11-30-24

Thomas, Dianne (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Montecarlo, Jaime (LDH) Alt. 1 04-02-24 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 2 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 3 11-30-24

Resident of the City of Carson

Resident of the City of Carson

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 3



[6] Public Relations Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 01-1239, §2 (CMC §27105.1)

Membership: 9 members; 3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 4th Tuesday, 12:00 p.m. (City Manager Conference Room)

Staff Liaison: Margie Revilla-Garcia, Public Information Manager x1741

Support Staff: Christine Foisia, Senior Clerk x1740

Appointed Term Expires

Eatman, Sonya (LDH) Community Representative 04-04-23 11-30-24

Gomez, Freddie (LDH)** Community Representative 12-06-22 11-30-24

Stewart, Linda (LDH) Community Representative 04-04-23 11-30-24

Vacant (AR) Community Representative 11-30-24

Ross, Dorothy (JD) Public Relations Specialist 02-07-23 11-30-24

Nunley, Madalyn (LDH) Public Relations Specialist 04-04-23 11-30-24

Pitcher, Pamela (LDH) Public Relations Specialist 04-04-23 11-30-24

Smith, Byron (CH) Public Relations Specialist 03-06-24 11-30-24

Price, Dr. Denice (JH) Public Relations Specialist 04-04-23 11-30-24

Guillory, Rachelle (LDH) Alt. 1 04-04-23 11-30-24

Waddis, Dorcas (LDH) Alt. 2 04-04-23 11-30-24

Lustina, Lilibeth (LDH) Alt. 3 05-16-23 11-30-24

[7] Public Safety Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 99-1160 §  1; Ordinance No. 01-1239 § 1 (CMC §27103.6);
Ordinance No. 21-2104

Membership: 9 members;  3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 3rd Thursday, 6:30 p.m. (Executive Conference Room)

Staff Liaison: Priscilla Palma, Division Secretary x1787

Support Staff: Vacant

Appointed Term Expires

Allen, Jeffrey (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Arnold, Keith (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Flinton, Lawrence (AR) 08-06-24 11-30-24

Dacus, Samuel (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Dorsey, Donnie (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Lewis, Prentiss (JH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Rivers, Angela (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Romero, Heidi (LDH)** 12-06-22 11-30-24

Cogut, Louis (JD) 08-06-24 11-30-24

Wilson, Michael (LDH) Alt. 1 05-16-23 11-30-24

Brown, Randy (LDH) Alt. 2 03-06-24 11-30-24

Childs, Aisha (LDH) Alt. 3 04-04-23 11-30-24

Shall be a resident of the City of Carson and be at least eighteen (18) years of age at
the time of the member’s appointment.

Shall reside or be employed in the City of Carson and be at least eighteen (18) years
of age at the time of the member’s appointment. 

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 4



[8] Public Works Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 99-1181 § 2 (CMC § 2798.6) 

Membership: 9 members;  3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 2nd Monday, 6:30 p.m. (Executive Conference Room)

Staff Liaison: Gilbert Marquez, Principle City/Civil Engineer x1813

Support Staff: Taelour C. James, Division Secretary x1801

Appointed Term Expires

Baddeley, Kevin (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Calhoun, James (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Fe'esago, Uli (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

McNichols, Ryan (LDH)** 08-06-24 11-30-24

Howard, Kobii (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Benson, Melvin (CH) 07-18-23 11-30-24

Nweke, Chike (LDH) 07-16-24 11-30-24

Martin, Jr., Marion (LDH) 09-05-23 11-30-24

Vacant (JH) 11-30-24

Obiora, Emmanuel (LDH) Alt. 1 08-06-24 11-30-24

Cottrell, John (LDH) Alt. 2 04-04-23 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 3 11-30-24

[9] Senior Citizens Advisory Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 97-1119, § 1 (CMC § 2799.6)

Membership: 11 members;  3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 2nd Monday, 4:00 p.m. (Community Center, Carson/Dominguez room)

Staff Liaison: Mike Whittiker Jr., Dir. of Comm. Srvs. x1780; Dani Cook, Human Srvs. Supv. X04/04/2380

Support Staff:

Appointed Term Expires

Graves, Shirley (LDH)** 05-16-23 11-30-24

Lopez, Delia (LDH) 11-21-23 11-30-24

Cole, Daniel (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Dunn, Linda (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Bates, Billye (LDH) 05-16-23 11-30-24

Patterson, Patricia (LDH) 05-16-23 11-30-24

Ronquillo, Myrna (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Ruiz-Raber, Julie (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Seymore, Dr. Vergie (JH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Simpson-Lott, Darlene (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Walker, Itelia (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Brown, LaRhonda (LDH) Alt. 1 04-02-24 11-30-24

Leverette, Ernestine (LDH) Alt. 2 06-06-23 11-30-24

Davis, Pauline (LDH) Alt. 3 08-06-24 11-30-24

Brenda Reed, Senior Clerk x1775; 

Have interest, experience or ability in construction, transportation, traffic, or circulation
areas to ensure that traffic, vehicle parking, bikeways, and transportation systems and
other City facilities are regulated and constructed in a manner calculated to best
provide for the safety and welfare of the public. Shall be and remain a resident of, or
have a place of employment or business in, the City of Carson, and be at least
eighteen (18) years of age at the time of the member’s appointment.

Resident of the City of Carson and be at least 50 years of age at the time of
appointment.

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 5



[10] Veterans Affairs Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 99-1154, § 1 (CMC § 27102.6)

Membership: 11 members;  3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 3rd Monday, 6:00 p.m. (Veterans SportsComplex - Activity Room)

Staff Liaison: Kisheen Tulloss, Council Aide x1711

Support Staff: Mikala Multiauaopele, Division Secretary x3557

Appointed Term Expires

Batucal, Arthur (JH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Boyd, Robert (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Branch, Jr., Roger (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Da Silva, Manuel (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Raber, Brian (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Salomon, Emmanuel (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Galeon, Romeo (LDH)**Pending 08-06-24 11-30-24

Woods, Richard (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Woods, Thomas (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Seay, Al (LDH) 11-07-23 11-30-24

Wilvert, Karl (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 1 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 2 11-30-24

Mosequera, Nemie P. (LDH) Alt. 3 04-04-23 11-30-24

Shall be a resident of the City of Carson and be at least eighteen (18) years of age at
the time of the member’s appointment.

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 6



[11] Women's Issues Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 02-1246, § 1 (CMC § 27106.6)

Membership: 9 members;  3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 4th Monday, 6:00 p.m. (City Manager Conference Room)

Staff Liaison: Ravynne Staine, Council Aide x1733

Support Staff: Vacant

Appointed Term Expires

Dela Cruz-Manio, Connie (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Fielder, Yolanda (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Fields-Robinson, Dr. Leandrea (LDH)** 12-06-22 11-30-24

Foster, Carolyn (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Koons, Fe (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Odom Houze, Susan (JH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Price, Dr. Greta (AR) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Robinson, Prescious (CH) 12-06-22 11-30-24

Tresvant, Sheila (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Graves, Keichun (LDH) Alt. 1 06-06-23 11-30-24

Mackson, Monique (LDH) Alt. 2 06-06-23 11-30-24

Johnson, Veronica (LDH) Alt. 3 08-06-24 11-30-24

[12] Youth Commission*

Established by: Ordinance No. 98-1132, § 1 (CMC § 27100.6 )

Membership: 11 members;  3 alternates

Qualification:  

Meetings: 2nd Wednesday, 7:00 p.m. (Executive Conference Room)

Staff Liaison: Brian Legaspi, Council Aide x1721

Support Staff: Vacant

Appointed Term Expires

Mitchell, Hannah (LDH) 06-06-24 06-30-24

Moore, Joshua (JH) 06-06-24 06-30-24

Redway, Khristopher (LDH) 06-06-24 06-30-24

Estrada, Juan (LDH) 06-06-24 06-30-24

Villasana, Andrea (JD) 07-02-24 06-30-25

Vacant (LDH) 06-30-24

Colson, Lewis (LDH)** 06-06-24 06-30-24

Smith, Zoey (CH) 06-06-24 06-30-24

Williams, Liv (LDH) 06-06-24 06-30-24

Vacant (AR) 06-30-24

Vacant (LDH) 06-30-24

Mitchell, Jazcidi (LDH) Alt. 1 06-06-24 06-30-24

Homna, Kayla (LDH) Alt. 2 06-06-24 06-30-24

Macias, Lea (LDH) Alt. 3 06-06-24 06-30-24

Resident of the City of Carson and be at least 13, but not more than 18 years of age at
the time of appointment.

Shall be a resident of the City of Carson or work in the City of Carson during their
tenure on the Commission and shall be at least eighteen (18) years of age at the time
of the member’s appointment.

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 7



II. BOARDS & COMMITTEES

[13] Measure C and Measure K Budget Oversight Committee

Established by:

Membership: 5 members; 2 alternates

Qualification:  Resident of the City of Carson.

Meetings: 2nd Tuesday, 6:30p.m. (Community Center)

Staff Liaison: William Jefferson, Director of Finance x1756

Support Staff: Vicki Hernandez, Senior Clerk x1744

Appointed Term Expires

Dorsey-Reeves, Vera (CH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Vacant (AR) 11-30-24

Hunter, Cynthia (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Momoli, Nora (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Vacant (JH) 11-30-24

Addison, Rakeem (LDH) Alt. 1 04-04-23 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 2 11-30-24

[14] Mobilehome Park Rental Review Board*

Established by: Ordinance No. 79-485U, §4702; § 607 of the City Charter
Membership:  

Qualification:  

Meetings: 2nd and 4th Wednesday, 6:30 p.m. (City Council Chambers)

Staff Liaison: Tara Matthew, Interim Housing Program Manager x1708

Support Staff: Sandy Solis, Division Secretary x1325

Appointed Term Expires

Vacant (JH) At-large 11-30-24

Valdez, Daniel (JD) At-large 02-07-23 11-30-24

Vacant (AR) At-large 11-30-24

Clark Harris, Dr. Alice (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Muhammad, Nafis (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Perez, Karey (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Hayes, Phyllis (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Dzikowski, Barbara (LDH) Park owner  04-04-23 11-30-24

Forbath, Susy (LDH) Park owner  04-04-23 11-30-24

Horton, Maria (LDH) Park owner Alt. [1] 04-04-23 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Park owner Alt. [2] 11-30-24

Gonzalez, Leonor (LDH)** Resident homeowner 11-21-23 11-30-24

King, Tom (CH) Resident homeowner 01-17-23 11-30-24

Davis, William (LDH) Resident homeowner Alt. [1] 04-04-23 11-30-24

Richardson, Sheila (LDH) Resident homeowner Alt. [2] 08-08-24 11-30-24

See membership.

7 members (2 resident homeowners, 2 park owners, 3 at-large who are residents of
the City and not homeowners, park owners, landlords, property managers or tenants in
multifamily housing); 8 alternates (2 resident homeowners, 2 park owners, 4 at-large)

Article VI, §602 of the City Charter: To be qualified for appointment, the member shall be a qualified elector of the City, 

shall be domiciled in the City for at least sixty (60) days immediately preceding their appointment, and shall continue to 
reside in the City for the duration of his or her tenure, unless otherwise provided by ordinance.

The mayor and each member of the city council may appoint one member to a position on each City board, committee or 
commission, and the remaining membership positions shall be appointed by the mayor and approved by a majority of the 
city council, including the three alternates.

At-large Alt. [1]

At-large Alt. [2]

At-large Alt. [3]

Ordinance No. 09-1423 (CMC §61119); Amended by Resolution No. 19-027; Amended 
by Resolution No. 21-030

At-large Alt. [4]

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 8



[15] Relocation Appeals Board

Established by: Ordinance No. 74-313 (CMC § 21004)

Membership: 9 members; 3 alternates

Qualification:  Resident of the City of Carson.

Meetings: Only when necessary 

Staff Liaison: 
Support Staff: Sandy Solis, Economic Development Liaison x1325

Appointed Term Expires

Batucal, Dennis (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Evans, Linda (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Tate, Dorothy (LDH)** 01-23-24 11-30-24

Guray, Jr., Tancredo "Jun" (JD) 02-07-23 11-30-24

Hemphill, Dr. Afia (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Anson, Jr., Oscar (LDH) 01-23-24 11-30-24

Vacant (CH) 11-30-24

[Vacant] (JH) 11-30-24

Vacant (AR) 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 1 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 2 11-30-24

Vacant (LDH) Alt. 3 11-30-24

Saied Naaseh, Director of Community Development x1770

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 9



III. SPECIAL COMMITTEE

[16] General Plan Advisory Committee

Established by Minute Action 10-03-17; Amended by Resolution No. 19-029; Amended by Resolution No. 21-031

Membership: 7 members; 2 alternates

Meetings: Only when necessary

Staff Liaison: McKina Alexander, Senior Planner x1326

Support Staff: Planning Technician x1327

Appointed Term Expires

Mayor Lula Davis-Holmes (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Councilmember Jim Dear (JD) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Brimmer, Charlotte (LDH)** 04-04-23 11-30-24

Dudley-Kimble, Monica (CH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Gonzalez, Leonor (AR) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Hamilton, Dr. John (JH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Sheriff Department Representative (LDH) 04-04-23 11-30-24

Cottrell-Fulbright, Lisa (LDH) Alt. 1 04-04-23 11-30-24

Lott, Aminika (LDH) Alt. 2 04-04-23 11-30-24

IV. SPECIAL BOARD

[17] Carson Reclamation Joint Powers Authority (CRJPA)

Established by Resolution No. 15-01-CRJPA; Resolution No. 21-02-CRJPA

Membership:  5 members

Meetings: 1st Monday, 4:00 p.m. (Helen Kawagoe Council Chambers)

Staff Liaison: John Raymond, Executive Director x1773

Support Staff: Sylvia Rubio, Executive Assistant x1318

Appointed Term Expires

Authority Chair Lula Davis-Holmes 06-07-21 06-07-26

Vice Chair Cedric Hicks 06-07-21 06-07-26

Board Member Ray Aldridge, Jr. 01-26-21 01-26-26

Board Member Lillian Hopson 01-21-21 01-21-26

Board Member Dianne Thomas 01-21-21 01-21-26

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 10



V. COUNCIL SUB-COMMITTEES

[18] Bingo/Fireworks/Refuse Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 04-02-19

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 04-06-21

Councilmember Dear 04-06-21

[19] Community Development/Housing/Logistics & Transit Standing Committee

Established by Minute Order 04-02-19

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 06-01-21

Councilmember Dear 06-01-21

[20] Dignity Health Sports Park/CSUDH/Community Center Standing Committee

Established by Minute Order 04-02-19

Appointed

Councilmember Hicks 06-01-21

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 06-01-21

[21] Legislative Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 02-16-21

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 07-16-24

Councilmember Hicks 07-16-24

[22] City Hall/Community Center Renovation Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 01-26-21

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 01-26-21

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 01-26-21

[23] Economic Development/E-Commerce Ad Hoc Committee

Establised by Minute Order 03-02-21

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 03-02-21

Councilmember Hicks 03-02-21

[24] Conditional Use Permit Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 04-05-22

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 04-05-22

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 04-05-22

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 11



[25] Short Term Rentals Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 03-02-21

Appointed

 Mayor Davis-HolmesCouncilmember Hicks 03-02-21

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 03-02-21

[26] Housing Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 03-16-21

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 03-16-21

Councilmember HiltonCouncilmember Dear 03-16-21

[27] Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 09-07-21

Appointed

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 09-07-21

Councilmember Rojas 03-01-22

[28] Standard Management Procedures and Special Events Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 01-04-22

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 01-04-22

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 01-04-22

[29] Cell 2 Settlement Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 02-07-22 (Carson Reclamation Authority)

Appointed

Mayor Davis-HolmesAuthority Chair Lula Davis-Holmes 02-07-22

Mayor Pro Tempore HiltonBoard Member Dianne Thomas 02-07-22

[30] School Safety Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 02-15-22

Appointed

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 02-15-22

Councilmember Rojas 02-15-22

Captain Jones/Lieutenant Bolder 02-15-22

[31] Carson Finance and Audit Committee

Established by Minute Order 06-20-23

Appointed
Mayor Davis-Holmes 06-20-23
Councilmember Rojas 06-20-23

[32] Short-Term Rentals Ad Hoc Committee
Established by Minute Order 10-03-23

Appointed
Mayor Davis-Holmes 10-03-23
Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 10-03-23

[33] No Bail Policy Ad Hoc Committee
Established by Minute Order 10-03-23

Appointed
Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 10-03-23
Councilmember Rojas 10-03-23

City Attorney Soltani 10-03-23

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 12



[34] Special Event Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 06-06-24

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 06-06-24

Mayor Pro Tempore Dr. Hilton 06-06-24

[35] LA '28 Olympics Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 07-16-24

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes 07-16-24

Mayor Pro Tempore Dr. Hilton 07-16-24

VI. CITY AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS

[36] California Contract Cities Association

Appointed

Councilmember Dear Delegate 04-06-21

Councilmember Hicks Alt. 04-06-21

[37]

Appointed

Councilmember Hicks Delegate 11-15-22

Councilmember Dear Alt. 1 11-15-22

Staff Member Reata Kulcsar Alt. 2 11-15-22

[38] County of Los Angeles Public Library Commission

Appointed

Councilmember Dear Delegate 05-13-20

[39]

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes Delegate 01-26-21

Councilmember Dear Alt. 01-26-21

[40]

Appointed Term Expires

Councilmember Dear Delegate 01-26-21 01-05-26

(effective 01-03-22)

Ord. No. 17-1633; LACCE Joint Powers Agreement (Authority)

Clean Power Alliance

The District’s governing power is vested in its 35 members of the Board of Trustees. One trustee is appointed by each of

the 34 cities and the County Board of Supervisors appoints one to represent unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County.

To be appointed, the member must reside in and be a resident voter of the representative city (or county for county

member) in the District. Board member duties and responsibilities include setting policy, establishing the budget,

approving expenditures, and retaining legal counsel. The vector Trustee appointment and term are governed by the State

Health and Safety Code and begin and end on the first Monday in January. Additionally, the State Health and Safety

Code does not allow for alternate members to be appointed.

Greater Los Angeles County Vector Control District (Formerly SE Mosquito Abatement)*

Automatic designation of Mayor as Delegate per Health and Safety Code Section 4730. City Council as governing body,
must select an alternate to act in place of presiding officer (Mayor) in absence, inability, or refusal to act.

County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles (Dist. No. 8)*

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 13



[41] L.A. County City Selection Committee

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes Delegate 01-26-21

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton Alt. 01-23-24

[42] League of California Cities 

Appointed

Councilmember Rojas Delegate 03-01-22

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton Alt. 1 01-26-21

Councilmember Dear Alt. 2 01-26-21

[43] League of California Cities (Los Angeles Co. Division)
Appointed

Councilmember Dear Delegate 01-26-21

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton Alt. 1 01-26-21

Councilmember Rojas Alt. 2 03-01-22

Per Government Code Section 50270, the membership of each such City Selection Committee shall consist of the Mayor

of each city within the county. Members of the LA County City Selection Committee include the Mayor of each city within

Los Angeles County. Each city appoints an elected official as a delegate to the City Selection Committee; it usually is the

Mayor. The term of office for each Member of the LA County City Selection Committee coincides with City Mayor terms,

and the Committee meets three or four times a year, at the call of the Chairman. Their duties are to appoint City

representatives to such Boards, Commissions and Agencies as may be required by law, i.e., LAFCO, South Coast Air

Quality Management District, Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority, Los Angeles County

Hazardous Waste Management Advisory Committee; and to nominate for appointment Members to the California Coastal

Commission. Nominations for the City Selection Committee appointees to the MTA are made by the Sector

Subcommittees for the Sectors whose representatives’ terms are expiring. The cities assigned to one of the four regions

in Los Angeles County. Nominations for the City Selection Committee appointees to the MTA are made by the Sector

Subcommittees for the Sectors whose representatives’ terms are expiring. The cities assigned to one of the four regions

in Los Angeles County (North County/San Fernando Valley, San Gabriel Valley, Southeast Long Beach and Southwest

Corridor) shall meet as a Sector Subcommittee. Each candidate with a majority weighted vote will then be nominated from

that Sector for consideration for appointment to the MTA.

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 14



[44] National League of Cities 

Appointed

Councilmember Hicks Delegate 01-26-21

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton Alt. 1 01-26-21

Councilmember Dear Alt. 2 01-26-21

[45] South Bay Cities Council of Govts (Joint Powers Authority)

Appointed

Councilmember Hicks Delegate 01-26-21

Councilmember Dear Alt. 01-26-21

[46] South Bay Workforce Investment Board

Appointed Term Expires

Ted Cordova Member 06-18-24 06-30-28

Jeffrey Jennison Member 06-18-24 06-30-28

Janice Jimenez Member 07-01-21 06-30-25
Tamala Lewis Member 07-01-19 06-30-23

Tami Lorenzen-Fanselow Member 07-01-19 06-30-23

[47] Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG)

Appointed

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton Delegate 01-26-21

Mayor Davis-Holmes Alt. 1 01-26-21

Councilmember Dear Alt. 2 01-26-21

[48] U.S. Conference of Mayors

Appointed

Mayor Davis-Holmes Delegate 01-26-21

Councilmember Rojas Alt. 1 03-01-22

Councilmember Hicks Alt. 2 01-26-21

[49] West Basin Water Association

Appointed

Councilmember Dear Delegate 01-26-21

Councilmember Hicks Alt. 01-26-21

[50] LGBTQ+ Ad Hoc Committee
Established by Minute Order 11-01-22

Appointed

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton 11-01-22

Councilmember Rojas 11-01-22

Mayor Davis-Holmes Alternate

[51] Grocery Store Ad Hoc Committee

Established by Minute Order 06-18-24

Appointed

Mayor Pro Tempore Hilton Member 06-18-24

Councilmember Hicks Member 06-18-24

Agenda Report November 19, 2024 15



CITY OF CARSON

 

 

File #:                                 Version: 

Report to Honorable Mayor and City Council
Tuesday, November 19, 2024, 5:00 PM

ORDINANCE SECOND READING 26.
 

To:                  Honorable Mayor and City Council
 
From:             Antonio Velasco, Revenue Manager  FIN  Business License Revenue
 
Subject:          SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 24-2413, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 6340 (LIMITED EXEMPTIONS) OF PART 2
(LICENSES – PROVISIONS GOVERNING) OF CHAPTER 3 (BUSINESS, PROFESSIONS AND TRADES) OF
ARTICLE VI (TAXES AND LICENSES) OF THE CARSON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD A VETERAN’S LICENSE
EXEMPTION CONSISTENT WITH STATE LAW" (CITY COUNCIL)
 
 
 

I. SUMMARY

On November 6, 2024, under Item No. 27 of the City Council Agenda, the City Council voted 5-0 to introduce
Ordinance No. 24-2413. This item transmits a request for the City Council to conduct a Second Reading and adopt
Ordinance No. 24-2413.

II. RECOMMENDATION

CONDUCT a Second Reading by title only and with full reading waived, and ADOPT, Ordinance No. 24-2413, entitled 
“AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 6340
(LIMITED EXEMPTIONS) OF PART 2 (LICENSES – PROVISIONS GOVERNING) OF CHAPTER 3 (BUSINESS,
PROFESSIONS AND TRADES) OF ARTICLE VI (TAXES AND LICENSES) OF THE CARSON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD
A VETERAN’S LICENSE EXEMPTION CONSISTENT WITH STATE LAW" 

III. ALTERNATIVES

 TAKE another action the City Council deems appropriate, consistent with the requirements of the law.
 

IV. BACKGROUND

At the November 6, 2024, Council Meeting, the City of Carson introduced Ordinance No. 24-2413, amending Section
6340 of the Carson Municipal Code which provides certain exemptions for payment of business license fees for
veterans but does not include a specific carveout detailed in Section 16001.8 of the Business and Professions
Code which expressly exempts from payment of license fees, all veterans who are honorably discharged or
honorably relieved from the Armed Forces of the United States and are residents of the State of California when the
veteran’s business sells or provides services and the veteran is the sole proprietor of the business.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with the adoption of this Ordinance. However, to the extent veterans meeting
the requirements of the Ordinance apply for a business license and otherwise meet City’s licensing requirements,
fees will be not be charged to those businesses including both initially and for renewals.

701 East Carson Street



VI. EXHIBITS

1. Ordinance No. 24-2413

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit 1. Ordinance No. 24-2413 Section 6340 Business License Veterans Exemption.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d574ba622140054f17836%2FExhibit%201.%20Ordinance%20No.%2024-2413%20Section%206340%20Business%20License%20Veterans%20Exemption.pdf?alt=media&token=baa70a97-25b1-4d21-8a6c-d3003c77a96f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d574ba622140054f17836%2FExhibit%201.%20Ordinance%20No.%2024-2413%20Section%206340%20Business%20License%20Veterans%20Exemption.pdf?alt=media&token=baa70a97-25b1-4d21-8a6c-d3003c77a96f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/carsonca%2Factions%2F672d574ba622140054f17836%2FExhibit%201.%20Ordinance%20No.%2024-2413%20Section%206340%20Business%20License%20Veterans%20Exemption.pdf?alt=media&token=baa70a97-25b1-4d21-8a6c-d3003c77a96f


ORDINANCE NO.  24-2413 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 6340 (LIMITED EXEMPTIONS) 
OF PART 2 (LICENSES – PROVISIONS GOVERNING) OF CHAPTER 3 
(BUSINESS, PROFESSIONS AND TRADES) OF ARTICLE VI (TAXES 
AND LICENSES) OF THE CARSON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD A 
VETERAN’S LICENSE EXEMPTION CONSISTENT WITH STATE LAW  

WHEREAS, the City of Carson (“City”) is a charter city; and 

WHEREAS, while the City’s business licensing regulations set forth in Section 6300 et 
seq. of the Carson Municipal Code provide certain exemptions for payment of business license 
fees for veterans, the regulations do not include a specific carveout detailed in Section 16001.8 of 
the Business and Professions Code which expressly applies to all cities, including charter cities; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council now sees fit to adopt this Ordinance for the purpose of 
expressly exempting from payment of license fees, all veterans who are honorably discharged or 
honorably relieved from the Armed Forces of the United States and are residents of the State of 
California when the veteran’s business sells or provides services and the veteran is the sole 
proprietor of the business. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARSON, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference as findings of fact. 

SECTION 2.  In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), 
the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, §§ 15000 et seq.), and any 
applicable local CEQA policies and procedures, adoption of this Ordinance is not a “project” for 
purposes of CEQA, as that term is defined by the CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, because the 
Ordinance merely contemplates a government funding mechanism or other government fiscal 
activity, which does not involve any commitment to any specific project which may result in 
potentially significant physical impact on the environment, pursuant to Guidelines Section 
15378(b)(4), or alternatively, it constitutes an organizational or administrative activity that will 
not result in a direct or indirect physical change in the environment pursuant to Guidelines Section 
15378(b)(5). 

SECTION 3.  Section 6340 (Limited Exemptions) of Part 2 (Licenses – Provisions 
Governing) of Chapter 3 (Business, Professions and Trades) of Article VI (Taxes and Licenses) of 
the Carson Municipal Code is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:  



“6340 Limited Exemptions. 

The Finance Director, upon application being made therefor, and upon the applicant presenting 
evidence of his eligibility therefor, shall issue a business license endorsed as partially or wholly 
exempt from fees to: 

(a) Minors under the age of eighteen (18) years engaged in activities requiring a license under this
Chapter where such minor engages in those activities for no more than twenty (20) hours in any
week.

(b) Any veteran or widow of any veteran of the Spanish-American War, World Wars I and II, the
Korean or Vietnam conflicts, who is a resident of the City, shall be entitled to a credit of $25.00
against the business license fee required by this Chapter in any year in which the net income of
such person from his business is (or is estimated in the case of an initial license) to be less than
$10,000 per year.

(c) Any veteran described in CMC 6340(b), who is disabled as a result of activities while in 
military service in lieu of the credit described in CMC 6340(b), shall be entitled to the following 
credits against the business license fee required by this Chapter, irrespective of his net income: 

One-fourth disabled $ 50.00 credit 

One-half disabled $ 75.00 credit 

Three-fourths or more 
disabled $100.00 credit 

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (b) and (c) hereof:

(1) Every honorably discharged or honorably relieved soldier, sailor, or marine of the United
States who served in any Indian war, the Spanish-American War, any Philippine
insurrection, the Chinese Relief Expedition, the World War of 1914 and years following, or
World War II, who is physically unable to obtain a livelihood by manual labor, and who is a
voter of this State, may distribute circulars, and hawk, peddle, and vend any goods, wares or
merchandise owned by him, except spirituous, malt, vinous, or other intoxicating liquor,
without payment of any license tax or fee whatsoever, and the Finance Director shall issue
to such soldier, sailor or marine, without cost, a license therefor.

(2) Every person who was honorably discharged or honorably relieved from the military,
naval or air service of the United States who served on or after June 27, 1950, and prior to
February 1, 1955, or on or after August 5, 1964, and prior to a future date to be established
by the Legislature, who is physically unable to obtain a livelihood by manual labor, and who
is a resident of this State, may distribute circulars, and hawk, peddle, and vend any goods,
wares or merchandise owned by him, except spirituous, malt or vinous, or other intoxicating

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Carson/#!/Carson06/Carson060300.html#6340
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Carson/#!/Carson06/Carson060300.html#6340


liquor, without payment of any license tax or fee whatsoever, and the Finance Director shall 
issue to such person, without cost, a license therefor. (Ord. 71-161, § 2) 

(e) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (b), (c) and (d) hereof, any veteran who is
honorably discharged or honorably relieved from the Armed Forces of the United States and is
a resident of the State of California shall not be required to pay any business license fees for a
business selling or providing services if the veteran is the sole proprietor of the business.”

SECTION 4.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances, is, for any reason, held 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect any other provision or application, and to this end the provisions 
of this ordinance are declared to be severable. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, part or portion 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, 
phrases, parts or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 5.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
adoption. 

SECTION 6.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance, and shall 
cause the same to be posted and codified in the manner required by law. 

[signatures on the following page] 



PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council on this 
_________ day of _____________________, 2024. 

Lula Davis-Holmes, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Dr. Khaleah K. Bradshaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________________ 
Sunny K. Soltani, City Attorney 


	CityCouncilRegularMeeting-2024-11-20.pdf
	Item 8. .pdf
	Draft Minutes - CC Reg Mtg 11-06-2024.pdf
	Item 9. .pdf
	Exhibit 1 Demand Register Reso# 24-109.pdf
	Exhibit 1 Demand Register Reso# 24-109 CA.pdf
	Item 10. .pdf
	Exhibit 1 CHA Demand Reso# 24-11-CHA.pdf
	Item 11. .pdf
	Exhibit 1 CSA Demand Reso #24-11-CSA.pdf
	Item 12. .pdf
	Exhibit No. 1 - Intradepartmental Transfers - October 2024.pdf
	Item 13. .pdf
	Contract Report - October 2024.pdf
	Item 14. .pdf
	Exhibit No. 1 - LACMTA MOU.pdf
	Carson FY24 MOUPAICARS24000 Prop A Incentive Voluntary
	MOUPAICARS24000

	FY 22 NTD Data -FY24 MOU-Attachment A
	reduced reporters FY20
	FY20Voluntary NTD Pr.V ($)


	Item 15. .pdf
	MERCHANT LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC-  CONTRACT.pdf
	Item 16. .pdf
	RFP 24-017 Packet.pdf
	A.  SUMMARY
	B.  PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING
	Pre-proposal Meeting:    OPTIONAL
	Pre-proposal meeting date and time: 09/05/2024 | 10:00 am
	Pre-proposal meeting location:  Carson Event Center
	801 E. Carson Street, Carson, CA 90745
	The pre-proposal meeting is held for the purpose of answering proper’s questions. The pre-proposal meeting is Optional and attendance is not required to submit a proposal. Arrive early, plan accordingly. A sign-in sheet will be available. Please meet...
	C. SPECIFIC PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS
	E. PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS
	F. PROJECT LOCATION & SCHEDULE
	G.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	Certificate of Insurance:
	Automobile Liability Provisions:
	Automobile Liability Provisions:
	Workers Compensation Provisions:
	Professional Liability Insurance Provisions:
	H. PRICING
	Proposers shall provide everything necessary at their own expense including, and not limited to, labor, prep work, materials, supplies, parts, tools and equipment required to perform the required services.
	I. PROPOSAL OPENING, DOCUMENT REVIEW AND AWARD OF CONTRACT
	All proposals will be opened publicly by the Office of the City Clerk, via PlanetBids, on the date and time established on the RFP document. Proposal results will not be given out via telephone, email, or facsimile.
	Proposals will be evaluated on the basis of the responses to all questions and requirements in this RFP document. The evaluation of a Proposer’s capacity to provide the required equipment and services will be based on the written material submitted an...
	All proposals will be evaluated, scored, and ranked on the below:


	RFP 24-017 Bid Register.pdf
	RFP 24-017 Proposal Rankings Summary.pdf
	Donâ•Žs Audio Visual Services Proposal for RFP 24-017.pdf
	Don's AV Contract 2025 (draft 11.6.24)(1027362.3).pdf
	Item 17. .pdf
	EXHIBIT NO. 1-Reso No 24-103 Assitant to the City Manager 11.7.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 24-103
	PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of November 2024.

	Assistant to the City Manager Edit-Redlined  VH with AFSCME 1017 edits 10.29.24 11.7.pdf
	CITY OF CARSON                     City Council Reso. No:
	ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER

	REVISED Assistant City Manager JD 11.18.24.pdf
	Item 18. .pdf
	Exhibit 1 LA Conservation Corp Amendment 1.pdf
	1. Contract Changes. The Agreement is amended as provided herein (new text is identified in bold italics, deleted text in strike through).
	A. Section 2.1 (Contract Sum) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:
	B. Section 3.4 (Term) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:
	“3.4 Term.
	C. Subsection IV. of Exhibit C (Schedule of Compensation) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:


	“IV. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $866,759.78$433,379.89 as provided in Section 2.1 of this Agreement.”
	2. Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Amendment No. 1, all provisions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. From and after the date of this Amendment No. 1, whenever the term “Agreement” appears i...
	3. Affirmation of Agreement; Warranty Re Absence of Defaults. City and Consultant each ratify and reaffirm each and every one of the respective rights and obligations arising under the Agreement. Each party represents and warrants to the other that th...
	4. Adequate Consideration. The parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and agree that they have each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations they have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment No. 1.
	5. Authority. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so exe...
	6. Counterparts. This Amendment No. 1 may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, whether the signatures are originals, electronic, facsimiles or digital.  All such co...

	Item 19. .pdf
	Exhibit No. 1 - Amendment No. 2.pdf
	1. Contract Changes. The Agreement is amended as provided herein (new text is identified in bold italics, deleted text in strike through).
	3. Affirmation of Agreement; Warranty Re Absence of Defaults. City and Long Beach Transit each ratify and reaffirm each and every one of the respective rights and obligations arising under the Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other...
	4. Adequate Consideration. The Parties irrevocably stipulate and agree that they have each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations they have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment No. 2.
	5. Authority. The persons executing this Amendment No. 2 on behalf of the Parties warrant that (i) such Party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Amendment No. 2 on behalf of said Party, (iii) by s...
	6. Counterparts. This Amendment No. 2 may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, whether the signatures are originals, electronic, facsimiles or digital.  All such co...
	[Signatures on the following page]
	I. Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base Services at the flat annual rate of $1,770,000 (i.e., per 12 months of service) for the initial three-year term of this Agreement (the “Base Services Rate”). Long Beach Transit shall perform the Base Servic...
	II. The additional or enhanced service options specified in Section I.E of Exhibit “A”, if and when authorized pursuant to said Section I.E during the term of this Agreement, shall be performed at the following flat annual rates (i.e., per 12 months o...
	A. Add Sunday service (Saturday hours) to Base Services: add  $164,500 (+/- the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to Base Services Rate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should addition of this service be authori...
	B. Add one additional hour of service on weekdays to Base Services: add $122,400 (+/- the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to Base Services Rate.
	C. Add one additional hour of service on Saturdays to Base Services: add $25,200 (+/- the rate of inflation to be determined at time of contract amendment) annually to Base Services Rate.

	III. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $7,813,000 $5,752,500 for the initial  three-year term of this Agreement plus the extension periods through December 31, 2025 2024, as provided in Section 2.1 of this Agreement.
	IV. The City and Long Beach Transit shall reopen negotiations as to the rates of compensation specified in this Exhibit “C” and the level of services provided by Long Beach Transit to the City pursuant to Exhibit “A” for the service period from July 1...

	Exhibit No. 2 - LBT Contract.pdf
	Exhibit No. 3 - Amendment No. 1.pdf
	Item 20. .pdf
	Agreement with Lighthouse Home for Medically Fragile Children Inc.pdf
	Amendment No. 1 to Agreement Lighthouse4Kids Inc. TG.pdf
	Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement forÂ€ Lighthouse4Kids Inc.pdf
	Item 21. .pdf
	Exhibit No. 1 Quote.pdf
	Exhibit No. 2 - ChargePoint-MSSA-EN-US.pdf
	Exhibit No. 3 - ChargePoint -Purchase-Terms-Conditions.pdf
	Exhibit No. 4 - ChargePointSupport ServicesTermsConditions.pdf
	ChargePoint-Remote-Support-T&Cs-NA.pdf
	CHARGEPOINT REMOTE SUPPORT
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE
	Exhibit 1:  Service Level Terms


	Exhibit No. 5 - ChargePoint-Install-Comm-Activate-Scope-Ts&Cs-NA.pdf
	Exhibit No. 6 -ChargePoint CC Terms.pdf
	Exhibit No. 7 -SourcewellContract 042221.pdf
	ChargePoint Contract 042221
	ChargePoint 042221-Amendment 1

	Exhibit No. 8 -Purchasing Waiver - 042221-CPI JT.pdf
	Item 22. .pdf
	Interim Urgency Ordinance (Moratorium) on Oil Refinery Redevelopment (draft 10.30.24) (final)(1027651.4)FINAL SAIED.pdf
	(Refinery Redevelopment Moratorium) Ten Day Report on Ordinance No. 24-2414U(1032800.1).pdf
	Item 23. .pdf
	City of Carson Resolution 24-108.pdf
	Item 24. .pdf
	Ordinance re CFD No. 2012-2 Dissolution (10-2024)(1029420.1).pdf
	Notice of Cessation of Special Tax Carson CFD 2012-12 (10-2024)(1029421.1) (003).pdf
	Item 25. .pdf
	Exhibit 1 - November 19, 2024, Agenda Report.pdf
	Item 26. .pdf
	Exhibit 1. Ordinance No. 24-2413 Section 6340 Business License Veterans Exemption.pdf

		2024-10-02T13:25:47-0800
	4dd8a4b6-a104-429a-9907-9b6d6de7c696




